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Pershing Yoakley & Associates 

CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS 

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT 

To the Board of Directors of 
Mountain States Health Alliance: 

Pershing Yoakley & Assoclates, P.C. 
One Cherokee Mills, 2220 Sutherland Avenuf' 

Knoxville, TN 37~ 

(p) (865) 673·0844 (f) (865) 673-0173 
(w} www.pyapccom 

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of Mountain States Health Alliance 
and subsidiaries (the Allia.nce) as of June 30, 2010 and 2009 and the related consoJidated statements 
of operations and changes in net assets and cash flows for the years then ended. These consolidated 
financial statements are the responsibility of the Alliance's management. Our responsibility is to 
express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on our audits. 

We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United 
States of America. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable 
assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are free of material misstatement. An 
audit includes consideration of internal control over financial reporting as a basis for designing audit 
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the ·purpose of expressing an 
opinion on the effectiveness of the Alliance's internal control over financial reporting. Accordingly, 
we express no such opinion. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the 
amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial statements. An audit also includes assessing 
the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating 
the overall financial statement presentation. We believe our audits provide a reasonable basis for 
our opinion. 

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material 
respects, the financial position of Mountain States Health Alliance and subsidiaries as of June 30, 
2010 and 2009 and the results of their operations, changes in net assets and cash flows for the years 
then ended in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of 
America. 

Our audits were conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the consolidated financial 
statements taken as a whole. The supplemental schedules, as listed in the accompanying index, are 
presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part of the consolidated financial 
statements. Such information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of 
the consolidated financial statements and, in our opinion, is fairly stated in all material respects in 
relation to the consolidated financial statements taken as a whole. 

Knoxville, Tennessee 
October 25, 20 I 0 

ATLANTA AUSTIN KNOXVILLE TAMPA BAY 
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MOUNTAIN STATES HEALTH ALLIANCE 

Consolidated Balance Sheets 
(Dollars in Thousands) 

ASSETS 

CURRENT ASSETS 

Cash and cash equivalents 
Current portion of investments 

Patient accounts receivable, less estimated allowances 
for uncollectible accounts of $45,941 in 2010 and 

$42,587 in 2009 
Other receivables, net 

Inventories and prepaid expenses 

TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS 

INVESTMENTS, less amounts required 

to meet current obligations 

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT, net 

OTHER ASSETS 

Goodwill, net of accumulated amortization of 
$95,760 in 2010 and $84,687 in 2009 

Net deferred financing, acquisition costs and 

other charges, less current portion 

Other assets 

TOT AL OTHER ASSETS 

$ 

$ 

June 30, 
2010 

234,526 
28,467 

125,580 
17,926 
29,163 

435,662 

586,756 

695,598 

151,352 

30,819 
29,313 

211,484 

$ 

1,929,500 $ 

2009 

239,836 
27,317 

128,812 
16,108 

27,135 

439,208 

597,440 

590,569 

162,620 

31,473 

34,765 

228,858 

1,856,075 
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June 30, 
2010 2009 

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS 

CURRENT LIABILITIES 
Accrued interest payable $ 16,039 $ 12,050 
Current portion of long-term debt and capital lease 

obligations 28,131 31,306 
Current portion of estimated fair value of derivatives 10,740 10,921 
Accounts payable and accrued expenses 99,227 94,712 
Accrued salaries, compensated absences and amounts 

withheld 47,280 49,569 
Estimated amounts due to third-party payors, net 10,155 6,398 

TOT AL CURRENT LIABILITIES 211,572 204,956 

OTIIBR LIABILITIES 
Long-term debt and capital lease obligations, less 

current portion 1,054,842 1,040,944 
Estimated fair value of derivatives, less current 

portion 123,560 115,296 
Deferred revenue 20,445 21,078 
Estimated professional liability self-insurance 9,541 10,012 
Other long-term liabilities 12,628 13,885 

TOT AL LIABILITIES 1,432,588 1,406,171 

MINORITY INTERESTS 168,410 165,500 

COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES -
Notes D, F, G, and N 

NET ASSETS 

Unrestricted net assets 317,434 272,049 
Temporarily restricted net assets 10,941 12,178 
Permanently restricted net assets 127 177 

TOTAL NET ASSETS 328,502 284,404 

$ 1,929,500 $ 1,856,075 

See notes to consolidated financial statements. 3 



MOUNTAIN STATES HEALTH ALLIANCE 

Consolidated Statements of Operations and Changes in Net Assets 

Year Ended June 30, 
2010 2009 

CHANGES IN UNRESTRICTED NET ASSETS: 
Revenue, gains and support: 

Net patient service revenue $ 928,270 $ 822,898 
Other operating revenue 16,009 17,046 

TOTAL REVENUE, GAINS AND SUPPORT 944,279 839,944 

Expenses: 
Salaries and wages 325,663 296,073 
Physician salaries and wages 54,489 38,240 
Contract labor 6,546 16,899 
Employee benefits 68,362 61,134 
Fees 82,542 71,896 
Supplies 175,469 156,418 
Utilities 16,193 15,548 
Other 67,640 57,974 
Depreciation ·68,436 56,373 
Amortization 13,123 12,150 
Estimated provision for bad debts 7,961 5,011 
Interest and taxes 42,264 45,225 

TOTAL EXPENSES 928,688 832,941 

OPERA TING INCOME 15,591 7,003 

Nonoperating gains (losses): 

Interest and dividend income 17,298 19,105 
Net realized gains (losses) on the sale of securities 2,385 (6,552) 
Net unrealized gains (losses) on securities 15,018 (62,582) 
Derivative related income 4,394 4,772 
Loss on termination of derivatives - Note D (2,785) 
Loss on early extinguishment of debt - Note F (3,029) 

Change in estimated fair value of derivatives (8,607) (42,128) 
Other nonoperating gains (losses) 512 (306) 
Net assets released from restrictions used 

for operations 1,113 793 

NET NONOPERATING GAINS (LOSSES) 29,084 (89,683) 
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Year Ended June 30, 
2010 2009 

EXCESS (DEFICIT) OF REVENUE, GAINS AND 
SUPPORT OVER EXPENSES AND LOSSES, 

BEFORE DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS 
AND MINORITY INTERESTS 44,675 (82,680) 

Gain on sale of and deficit of revenue, gains and support 
over expenses and losses from discontinued operations 2,519 

EXCESS (DEFICIT) OF REVENUE, GAINS AND 
SUPPORT OVER EXPENSES AND LOSSES 

BEFORE MINORITY INTERESTS 44,675 (80,161) 

Minority interest in consolidated subsidiaries' net (gain) loss (3,162) 546 

EXCESS (DEFICIT) OF REVENUE, GAINS AND 
SUPPORT OVER EXPENSES AND LOSSES 41,513 (79,615) 

Other changes in unrestricted net assets: 
Pension and other defined benefit plan adjustments 1,589 (512) 
Net assets released from restrictions used for the 

purchase of property, plant and equipment 2,283 3,095 

INCREASE (DECREASE) IN 
UNRESTRICTED NET ASSETS 45,385 (77,032) 

CHANGES IN TEMPORARILY RESTRICTED 
NET ASSETS: 
Restricted grants and contributions 2,159 3,929 
Net assets released from restrictions (3,396) (3,888) 

(DECREASE) INCREASE IN TEMPORARILY 
RESTRICTED NET ASSETS (l,237) 41 

CHANGES IN PERMANENTLY RESTRICTED 
NET ASSETS: 
Net assets released from restrictions by donor (50) 

INCREASE (DECREASE) IN TOTAL NET ASSETS 44,098 (76,991) 

NET ASSETS, BEGINNING OF YEAR 284,404 361,395 

NET ASSETS, END OF YEAR $ 328,502 $ 284,404 

See notes to consolidated financial statements. 5 



MOUNTAIN STATES HEALTH ALLIANCE 

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows 
(Dollars in Thousands) 

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERA TING ACTMTIES: 
Increase (decrease) in net assets 
Adjustments to reconcile increase (decrease) in net assets to 

net cash provided by operating activities: 
Provision for depreciation and amortization 
Loss on early extinguishment of debt 
Loss on tennination of derivatives 
Change in estimated fair value of derivatives 
Equity in net income of joint ventures 
Gain on sale of assets held for resale and 

disposal of assets 
Amounts received on interest rate swap settlements 
Minority interest in consolidated subsidiaries' net (gain) loss 
Income recognized through forward sale agreements 
Capital Appreciation Bond accretion and other 
Restricted contributions 
Pension and other defined benefit plan adjustments 
Increase (decrease) in cash due to change in: 

Net patient accounts receivable 
Other receivables, net 
Inventories and prepaid expenses 
Trading securities 
Other assets 
Accrued interest payable 
Accounts payable and accrued expenses 
Accrued salaries~ compensated absences and 

amounts withheld 
Estimated amounts due from/to third-party payors, net 
Other long-term liabilities 
Estimated professional liability self-insurance 

Total adjustments 

NET CASH PROVIDED BY OPERATING ACTMTIBS 

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTNITIES: 
Purchases of property, plant and equipment, property 

held for resale and property held for expansion, net 
Additions to goodwill 
Net decrease (increase) in assets limited as to use 
Purchases of held-to-maturity securities 
Net sa]e or distribution from joint ventures and 

unconsolidated affiliates 

$ 

Year Ended June 30, 
2010 

44,098 

81,982 
3,029 

8,607 
(1,117) 

(548) 
(4,394) 
3,162 
(864) 

2,071 
(2,159) 

598 

3,232 
(1,246) 
(4,640) 

(13,368) 
(1,159) 
3,989 
(855) 

(2,289) 
3,757 
(201) 
(471) 

77,116 

121,214 

(172,240) 

50,362 
(28,175) 

1,162 

$ 

2009 

(76,991) 

68,967 

3,245 
42,128 

(723) 

(568) 
(4,772) 

(546) 
(796) 

1,678 
(3,929) 

512 

724 
(4,107) 
1,843 

183,450 
(4,144) 
1,900 
8,551 

3,500 
6,492 

(1,363) 
(610) 

301,432 

224,441 

(119,741) 
(16,097) 
(28,152) 

384 
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Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment and 
property held for resale 

NET CASH USED IN INVESTING ACTMTIES 

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES: 
Payments on long-term debt and capital lease obligations, 

including deposits to escrow 
Payment of acquisition and financing costs 
Proceeds from issuance of long-term debt and other 

financing arrangements 
Net amounts received on interest rate swap settlements 
Restricted contributions received 
Distribution to minority shareholders and other 

NET CASH PROVIDED BY FINANCING ACTIVITIES 

NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH AND 
CASH EQUIVALENTS 

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, beginning of year 

Year Ended June 30, 
2010 2009 

9,565 2,056 

(139,326) (161,550) 

(226,315) (36,820) 
(3,565) (3,214) 

235,158 135,780 
4,394 4,772 
3,382 5,767 

(252) (158) 

~~~---~----~~---"~-
12,802 106,127 

(5,310) 169,018 

---------------'-----~-----------"~-
239,836 70,818 

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, end of year $ 
====================== 

234,526 $ 239,836 

SUPPLEMENTAL INFORMATION AND NON-CASH TRANSACTIONS: 

Cash paid for interest $ 38 ,666 $ 

Cash paid for federal and state income taxes $ 446 $ 

Construction related payables in accounts payable 
and accrued expenses $ 14,847 $ 

Increase in receivable from sale of property $ 1,483 $ 

Decrease in land held for expansion related to property 
exchange transaction $ 3,432 $ 

45,218 

664 

9,246 

During the years ended June 30, 2010 and 2009, the Alliance refinanced previously issued debt of 
$184,050 and $9,445, respectively. 

As discussed in Note A, the Alliance acquired a 50. l % interest in Johnston Memorial Hospital, Inc. 
( JMH) in fiscal year 2009. JMH is consolidated within the accompanying financial statements as of 
the acquisition date, April I, 2009. The consolidated cash flows include JMfI' s cash flows since the 
acquisition date. 

See notes to consolidated financial statements. 7 



MOUNTAIN STATES HEALTH ALLIANCE 

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 
(Dollars in Thousands) 

Years Ended June 2010 and 2009 

NOTE A--ORGANIZATION AND OPERATIONS 

Mountain States Health Alliance (the Alliance) is a tax-exempt entity with operations primarily 
located in Washington, Sullivan, and Carter counties of Tennessee and Smyth, Wise, Dickenson, 
Russell and Washington counties of Virginia. The initial funds for the establishment of the Alliance 
in 1945 were provided by individuals and various institutions. Membership of the Alliance consists 
ofindividuals and institutions who have contributed at least $100 to the capital fund of the Alliance 
and are entitled to vote at the annual election of the Board of Directors. 

The primary operations of the Alliance consist of eleven acute and specialty care hospitals, as 
follows: 

Johnson City Medical Center (JCMC) - licensed for 645 beds 
Indian Path Medical Center (IPMC) - licensed for 322 beds 

• Smyth County Community Hospital (SCCH) - licensed for 279 beds 
Johnston Memorial Hospital (JMH) - licensed for 135 beds 
Norton Community Hospital (NCH) - licensed for 129 beds 
Sycamore Shoals Hospital (SSH) - licensed for 121 beds 
North Side Hospital (NSH) - licensed for 91 beds 
Russell County Medical Center (RCMC) - licensed for 78 beds 
Johnson City Specialty Hospital (JCSH) - licensed for 23 beds 
Dickenson Community Hospital (DCH) - licensed for 25 beds 
Johnson County Community Hospital (JCCH)- licensed for 2 beds 

Effective April 1, 2009, the Alliance acquired an interest in Johnston Memorial Hospital, Inc. 
(JMH), a 135 bed general acute care hospital located in Abingdon, Virginia. JMH is also the sole 
member of Abingdon Physician Partners (APP), a non-taxable corporation that owns and manages 
physician practices. The Alliance acquired a 50 .1 % interest in JMH by providing $132,000 to JMH 
(designated for capital). Johnston Memorial Healthcare Foundation, Inc. (JMHF), a hospital 
supporting organization, retained a 49.9% interest in JMH. The assets and liabilities of JMH at 
April I, 2009 have been consolidated by the Alliance at their carrying value as of that date. The 
following is condensed, unaudited financial information related to JMH as of March 31, 2009: 

Current Assets 
Other Assets 

Liabilities 

Total 

Net Assets (initial membership interest of JMHF) 

$ 

$ 

$ 

23,516 
139,576 

163,092 

47,440 
115,652 

$ 163,092 

8 



MOUNTAIN STATES HEALTH ALLIANCE 

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements - Continued 
(Dollars in Thousands) 

Years Ended June 30, 2010 and 2009 

NOTE A--ORGANIZATION AND OPERATIONS - Continued 

The activities and accounts of JMH since April 1, 2009 are included in the accompanying 
consolidated financial statements. 

The Alliance has a 50.l % interest in NCH. NCH is also the sole member or shareholder ofDCH 
and Norton Community Physician Services, LLC (NCPS), a taxable corporation that consists of 
physician practices and a pharmacy and; Community Home Care (CHC), a taxable corporation that 
provides home medical equipment. The activities and accounts of NCH are included in the 
accompanying consolidated financial statements. 

The Alliance also has an 80% interest in SCCH. SCCH is the sole shareholder of Southwest 
Community Health Services, Inc. (SWCH), a taxable entity that operates a pharmacy and provides 
other health services. The activities and accounts of SCCH are included in the accompanying 
consolidated financial statements. 

The Alliance is the sole shareholder of Blue Ridge Medical Management Corporation (BRMM), a 
for-profit entity that owns and manages physician practices and provides other healthcare services to 
patients in Tennessee and Virginia. BRMM also operates as a medical office real estate developer 
by owning, selling and leasing real estate to physician practices and other entities. BRMM is either 
the sole shareholder, a significant shareholder, or member of the following organizations: 

Blue Ridge Physician Group, Inc. (BRPG): A company that contracts with physicians to provide 
services to BRlvlM physician practices. 

Mountain States Properties, Inc. (MSP I): An entity that owns and manages certain real estate 
(primarily medical office buildings) and provides rehabilitation and fitness services. In addition, 
MSPI is a counter-party to various financing transactions, including interest rate swaps. 

Medi.serve Medical Equipment of Kingsport, Inc. (Mediserve): A company that provides durable 
medical equipment services. 

Kingsport Ambulatory Surgery Center (KA.SC) (db.a. Kingsport Day Surgery): A joint venture 
operating as a..'1 outpatient surgery center which performs procedures primarily in otolaryngology, 
orthopedics, ophthalmology, and general surgery. BRMM has a 43% ownership ofKASC at June 
30, 2010 and 2009; however, BRMM maintains control over KASC. As such, the accounts and 
activities ofKASC are included in the accompanying consolidated financial statements. 

9 



MOUNTAIN STATES HEALTH ALLIANCE 

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements - Continued 
(Dollars in Thousands) 

Years Ended June 2010 and 2009 

NOTE A--ORGANIZATION AND OPERATIONS - Continued 

Piney Flats Urgent Care (P FUC): A for-profit entity that provides urgent care patient services. 

The Alliance is the primary beneficiary of the activities of Mountain States Foundation, Inc. (MSF), 
a not-for-profit foundation formed to coordinate fundraising and development activities of the 
Alliance. The Alliance is also the beneficiary of Mountain States Health Alliance Auxiliary 
(Auxiliary), a not-for-profit organization formed to coordinate volunteer activities of the Alliance. 
The activities and accounts of MSF and the Auxiliary are included in the accompanying 
consolidated financial statements. 

Prior to 2010, the Alliance was a majority shareholder of PHP of Tri-Cities, LLC (PHPT). PHPT's 
primary purpose was to hold an equity interest in another organization engaged in and related to the 
financing and/or delivery ofhealthcare services. During 2009, PHPT's equity interest in this other 
entity was reacquired by that entity (PHP Companies, Inc. (PHP)). PHPT sold the interest to PHP 
for a net gain of $2,519. The activities of PHPT and gain on sale are included in the accompanying 
2009 consolidated financial statements as "discontinued operations". During 2009, PHPT was 
reorganized under the business name of Integrated Solutions Health Network, LLC (ISHN). 
Concurrent with the reorganization, the Alliance purchased the remaining ownership interest of 
Health Alliance PHO, Inc. (PHO), an entity in which the Alliance previously held a minority 
interest. The net assets of the PHO were merged into ISBN on June 30, 2009. The primary function 
of ISHN is to establish, operate and administer a provider-sponsored health care delivery network. 

NOTE B--SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

Principles of Consolidation: The accompanying consolidated financial statements include the 
accounts of the Alliance and its subsidiaries after elimination of all significant intercompany 
accounts and transactions. The Alliance classifies those activities directly associated with its 
mission of providing healthcare services, as well as other activities deemed significant to its 
operations, as operating activities. 

A minority interest is recorded to recognize the ownership or membership interests of third parties 
with respect to JMH, NCH, SCCH, KASC, PFUC and ISHN. 

In 2011, the Alliance will adopt recently issued accounting standards, which change the accounting 
for, and the financial statement presentation of, noncontrolling interests in a subsidiary within 
consolidated financial statements. This new standard requires that a noncontrolling interest in the 
equity of a subsidiary be accounted for and reported as equity, provides revised guidance on the 
treatment of net income and losses attributable to the noncontrolling interest and changes in 
ownership interests in a subsidiary and requires additional disclosures that identify and distinguish 
between the interests of the controlling and noncontrolling owners. Management of the 

JO 



MOUNTAIN STATES HEALTH ALLIANCE 

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements - Continued 
(Dollars in Thousands) 

Years Ended June 30, 2010 and 2009 

NOTE B--SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - Continued 

A1liance is currently assessing the potential impact of the adoption of this new guidance on the 
consolidated financial statements. 

Use of Estimates: The preparation of the consolidated financial statements in conformity with 
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America requires management to 
make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and 
disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities as of the date of the consolidated financial statements. 
Estimates also affect the reported amounts of revenue and expenses during the reporting period. 
Actual results could differ from these estimates. 

Accounting Standards Codification: In June 2009, the Financial Accounting Standards Board 
(F ASB) issued Statement of Financial Accounting Standard (SF AS) No. 168, The FASB Accounting 
Standards Codification and the Hierarchy of Generally Accepted Accounting Principles (GAAP) - a 
Replacement of FASB Statement No. 162. This Statement modifies the GAAP hierarchy by 
establishing only two levels of GAAP, authoritative and nonauthoritative literature. Effective 
September 2009, the FASB Accounting Standards Codification (ASC), also known collectively as 
the "Codification," is considered the single source of authoritative U.S. accounting and reporting 
standards. FASB ASC 105-10, Generally Accepted Accounting Principles, became applicable 
during fiscal year 2010. All accounting references have been updated, and therefore SFAS 
references have been replaced with ASC references. The adoption of the ASC did not have an 
impact on the consolidated financial statements. 

Cash and Cash Equivalents: Cash and cash equivalents include all highly Liquid investments with a 
maturity of three months or less when purchased. Cash and cash equivalents designated as assets 
limited as to use or uninvested amounts included in investment portfolios are not included as cash 
and cash equivalents on the Consolidated Balance Sheets. 

Investments: Investments as reported in the Consolidated Balance Sheets includes trading securities, 
held-to-maturity securities and assets limited as to use (Note C). FASB ASC 958-320, Jnvestments­
Debt and Equity Securities, allows not-for-profit organizations to report in a manner similar to 
business entities by identifying securities as available-for-sale or held-to-maturity and to exclude the 
unrealized gains and losses on those securities from the Performance Indicator (as defined below). 
Investments which the Alliance has the positive intent and ability to hold to maturity are considered 
as held-to-maturity. Substantially all other investments (including assets limited as to use) are 
considered as trading securities. Management annually evaluates the held-to-maturity investment 
portfolio and recognizes any "other-than-temporary" losses as deductions from the Performance 
Indicator. Management's evaluation considers the amount of decline in fair value, as well as the time 
period of any such decline. Management does not believe any investment classified as held-to­
maturity is other-than-temporarily impaired at June 30, 2010. 

11 



MOUNTAIN STATES HEALTH ALLIANCE 

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements - Continued 
(Dollars in Thousands) 

Years Ended June 2010 and 2009 

NOTE B--SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - Continued 

Within the trading securities portfolio, all debt securities and marketable equity securities with 
readily determinable fair values are reported at fair value based on quoted market prices. 
Investments without readily determinable fair values are reported at fair market value pursuant to 
F ASB ASC 825, Financial Instruments. Guaranteed investment contracts are reported at contract 
value. 

Realized gains and losses on trading securities and assets limited as to use are computed using the 
specific identification method for cost determination. Interest and dividend income is reported net of 
related investment fees. 

Investments in joint ventures are reported under the equity method of accounting, which 
approximates the Alliance's equity in the underlying net book value, unless the ownership structure 
requires consolidation. Other assets include investments in joint ventures of $2,418 and $2,463 at 
June 30, 2010 and 2009, respectively. 

Inventories: Inventories, consisting primarily of medical supplies, are stated at the lower of cost or 
market. 

Property, Plant and Equipment: Property, plant and equipment is stated on the basis of cost, or if 
donated, at the fair value at the date of gift. Generally, depreciation is computed by the straight-line 
method over the estimated useful life of the asset. Equipment held under capital lease obligations is 
amortized under the straight-line method over the shorter of the lease term or estimated useful life. 
Amortization of equipment held under capital lease is shown as a part of depreciation expense and 
accumulated depreciation in the accompanying consolidated financial statements. 

Interest costs incurred on borrowed funds during the period of construction of capital assets is 
capitalized as a component of the cost of acquiring those assets. The amount capitalized is net of 
investment earnings on assets limited as to use derived from borrowings designated for capital 
assets. Renewals and betterments are capitalized and depreciated over their useful life, whereas costs 
of maintenance and repairs are expensed as incurred. 

The Alliance reviews capital assets for indications of potential impairment when there are changes in 
circumstances related to a specific asset. If this review indicates that the carrying value of these 
assets may not be recoverable, the Alliance estimates future cash flows from operations and the 
eventual disposition of such assets. If the sum of these undiscounted future cash flows is less than 
the carrying amount of the asset, a write-down to estimated fair value is recorded. The Alliance did 
not recognize any impairment Josses during 2010 and 2009. 

12 



MOUNTAIN STATES HEALTH ALLIANCE 

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements - Continued 
(Dollars in Thousands) 

Years Ended June 30, 2010 and 2009 

NOTE B--SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - Continued 

Property held for resale and property held for expansion primarily represent land contributed to, or 
purchased by, the Alliance plus costs incurred to develop the infrastructure of such land. Other 
assets include property held for resale and property held for expansion of $9,135 and $12,542, 
respectively, at June 30, 2010 and 2009. Management annually evaluates its investment and records 
non-temporary declines in value when it is determined the ultimate net realizable value is less than 
the recorded amount. No such declines were identified in 2010 and 2009. 

Goodwill: Goodwill represents the difference between the acquisition cost of assets and the 
estimated fair value of net tangible and any separately identified intangible assets. The Alliance 
amortizes goodwill associated with its not-for-profit subsidiaries under the straight-line method over 
various estimated useful lives. For goodwill acquired by its for-profit subsidiaries, the Alliance does 
not amortize the goodwill and annually perfonns impairment testing in accordance with F ASB ASC 
350, Intangibles - Goodwill and Other. At June 30, 2010, management does not believe any 
goodwill so tested to be impaired. 

F ASB ASC 350, Intangibles - Goodwill and Other, will require, among other things, that goodwill 
associated with not-for-profit entities be evaluated annually for impairment, including a transitional 
impairment test upon adoption, and that such goodwill no longer be amortized. The Alliance will be 
required to adopt this standard in 2011 and will perform such transitional testing as of July 1, 2010 
prior to December 31, 2010. While the Alliance is evaluating the potential impact of the adoption of 
this standard, including the transitional impairment testing, it is currently not possible to determine 
the effects, if any, the adoption of this standard will have on the consolidated financial statements. 

Deferred Financing, Acquisition Costs and Other Charges: Deferred financing costs are amortized 
over the life of the respective bond issue principally using the average bonds outstanding method. 
Other intangible assets include licenses and similar assets and are being amortized over the 
intangible's estimated useful life under the straight-line method. 

Prior to 2009, the Alliance routinely financed interest rate swap and other derivative transaction 
issuance costs through modification of future settlement terms. As such, the unamortized issuance 
costs of these derivatives are included as deferred financing costs in the accompanying Consolidated 
Balance Sheets and are being amortized over the term of the respective derivative instrument. The 
unpaid issuance costs are included as a part of the estimated fair value of derivatives in the 
accompanying Consolidated Balance Sheets. Beginning in 2009, interest rate swap and derivative 
transaction issuance costs are expensed as incurred, in accordance with FASB ASC 820, Fair Value 
Measurements and Disclosures (FASB ASC 820). No such costs were incurred in 2010 and 2009. 

Derivative Financial Instruments: As further described in Note D, the Alliance is a party to interest 
rate swap and other derivative agreements. These financial instruments are not designated as hedges 
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MOUNTAIN STATES HEALTH ALLIANCE 

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements· Continued 
(Dollars in Thousands) 

Years Ended June 2010 and 2009 

NOTE B--SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - Continued 

and have been presented at estimated fair market value in the accompanying Consolidated Balance 
Sheets. These fair values are based on the estimated amount the Alliance would receive, or be 
required to pay, to enter into equivalent agreements at the valuation date. Due to the nature of these 
financial instruments, such estimates are subject to significant change in the near term. 

Estimated Professional Liability Self-Insurance and Other Long-Term Liabilities: Self-insurance 
liabilities include estimated reserves for reported and unreported professional liability claims (Note 
G) and are recorded at the estimated net present value of such claims. Other long-term liabilities 
include contributions payable and obligations under deferred compensation arrangements, a defined 
benefit pension plan, a post-retirement employee benefit plan as well as other liabilities which 
management estimates are not payable within one year. 

Net Patient Service Revenue/Receivables: Net patient service revenue is reported on the accrual 
basis in the period in which services are provided at the estimated net realizable amounts, including 
estimated retroactive adjustments under reimbursement agreements with third-party. payors. 
Retroactive adjustments are accrued on an estimated basis in the period the related services are 
rendered and adjusted in future periods as final settlements are determined. The Alliance's revenue 
recognition policies related to self-pay and other types of payors emphasize revenue recognition 
only when collections are reasonably assured. 

Patient accounts receivable are reported net of both an estimated allowance for uncollectible 
accounts and an estimated allowance for contractual adjustments. The contractual allowance 
represents the difference between established billing rates and estimated reimbursement from 
Medicare, TennCare and other third-party payment programs. Current operations include a 
provision for bad debts in the Consolidated Statements of Operations and Changes in Net Assets 
estimated based upon the age of the patient accounts receivable, prior experience and any unusual 
circumstances (such as local, regional or national economic conditions) which affect the 
collectibility of receivables, including management's assumptions about conditions it expects to 
exist and courses of action it expects to take. 

The Alliance's policy does not require collateral or other security for patient accounts receivable. 
The Alliance routinely accepts assignment of, or is otherwise entitled to receive, patient benefits 
payable under health insurance programs, plans or policies. 

Charity Care: The Alliance accepts all patients regardless of their ability to pay. A patient is 
classified as a charity patient by reference to certain established policies of the Alliance and various 
guidelines outlined by the Federal Government. These policies define charity as those services for 
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which no payment is anticipated and, as such, charges at established rates are not included in net 
patient service revenue. 

In addition to the charity care services described above, the Alliance provides a number of other 
services to benefit the poor for which little or no payment is received. Medicare, TennCare and 
State indigent programs do not cover the full cost of providing care to beneficiaries of those 
programs. The Alliance also provides services to the community at large for which it receives little 
or no payment. 

Excess (Deficit) of Revenue, Gains and Support Over Expenses and Losses: The Consolidated 
Statements of Operations and Changes in Net Assets includes the caption Excess (Deficit) of 
Revenue, Gains and Support Over Expenses and Losses (the Performance Indicator). Changes in 
unrestricted net assets which are excluded from the Performance Indicator, consistent with industry 
practice, include transfers of assets to and from affiliates and contributions of long-lived assets or 
amounts restricted to the purchase of long-lived assets, as well as pension and related adjustments. 

Income Taxes: The Alliance is classified as an organization exempt from income taxes under 
Section 50l(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code. As such, no provision for income taxes has been 
made in the accompanying consolidated financial statements for the Alliance and its tax-exempt 
subsidiaries. Taxable entities account for income taxes in accordance with FASB ASC 740, Income 
Taxes (Note L). The Alliance has no significant uncertain tax positions at June 30, 2010 and 2009. 

Temporarily and Permanently Restricted Net Assets: Temporarily restricted net assets are those 
whose use has been limited by donors to a specific time period or purpose. When a donor or time 
restriction expires; that is, when a stipulated time restriction ends or purpose restriction is fulfilled, 
temporarily restricted net assets are reclassified as unrestricted net assets and reported in the 
Statements of Operations and Changes in Net Assets as net assets released from restrictions. 
Permanently restricted net assets have been restricted by donors to be maintained by the Alliance in 
perpetuity. 

Fair Value Measurement: ln2009, theHospitaladoptedFASBASC 820,Fair ValueMeasurements 
and Disclosures, which defines fair value, establishes a framework for measuring fair value under 
generally accepted accounting principles and expands disclosures about fair value measurements. 
There was no significant impact on the consolidated financial statements as a result of adopting this 
standard (Note Q). 
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In January 2010, the FASB issued ASU 2010-06) Fair Value Measurements and Disclosures {Topic 
820) - Improving Disclosures about Fair Value Measurements (ASU 2010-06). ASU 2010-06 
requires new disclosures regarding significant transfers in and out of Levels I and 2, as well as 
information about activity in Level 3 fair value measurements, including presenting information 
about purchases, sales, issuances and settlements on a gross versus a net basis in the Level 3 activity 
roll forward. In addition, ASU 2010-06 clarifies existing disclosures regarding input and valuation 
techniques, as well as the level of disaggregation for each class of assets and liabilities. The Alliance 
will adopt ASU 2010-06 in 2011, except for the disclosures related to purchases, sales, issuance and 
settlements, which will be effective for the Alliance beginning July 1, 2012. The adoption of ASU 
2010-06 is not expected to have an impact on the Alliance's consolidated financial statements. 

Subsequent Events: The Alliance evaluated all events or transactions that occurred after June 30, 
20 I 0, through October 25, 2010, the issuance date of the consolidated financial statements. During 
this period management did not note any material recognizable subsequent events that required 
recognition or disclosure in the June 30, 2010 consolidated financial statements, other than as 
discussed in Note D and in Note F. 

Reclassifications: Certain 2009 amounts have been reclassified to conform with the 2010 
presentation in the accompanying consolidated financial statements. 

NOTE C--INVESTMENTS 

Assets limited as to use are summarized by designation or restriction as follows at June 30: 

2010 2009 

Designated or restricted: 
Under safekeeping agreements $ 52,050 $ 40,604 
Under guarantee agreements 89,486 86,364 
By Board for capital improvements 2,776 
Under bond indenture agreements: 

For debt service and interest payments 78,612 60,828 
For capital acquisitions 76,241 161,731 

299,165 349,527 
Less: amount required to meet current obligations (25,092) (22,492) 

$ 274,073 $ 327,035 
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Assets limited as to use consist of the following at June 30: 

2010 2009 

Cash, cash equivalents and money market funds $ 170,897 $ 173,859 
U.S. Government securities 1,795 1,795 
U.S. Agency securities 12,319 18,827 
Guaranteed investment contracts 114,154 155,046 

$ 299,165 $ 349,527 

Trading securities consist of the following at June 30: 

2010 2009 

Cash, cash equivalents and money market funds $ 4,799 $ 14,622 
U.S. Government securities 3,137 
U.S. Agency securities 13,760 16,013 
Corporate and forejgn bonds 15,063 10,014 
Municipal obligations 1,461 3,101 
U.S. equity securities 142,816 161,284 
Other 28,608 30,031 

209,644 235,065 
Less: amount classified as current (3,3 75) (4,825) 

$ 206,269 $ 230,240 

Held-to-Maturity securities consist of the following at June 30: 

2010 2009 

Cash, cash equivalents and money market funds $ 1,131 $ 452 
Corporate and foreign bonds 103,968 39,504 

Municipal obligations 1,315 209 
$ 106,414 $ 40,165 

Held-to-maturity securities had gross unrealized gains and losses of$5,525 and $607, respectively, 
at June 30, 2010 and $831 and $110, respectively at June 30, 2009. At June 30, 2010, the Alliance 
held one security within the held-to-maturity portfolio with a fair value and unrealized loss of$591 
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and $166, respectively, which had been at an unrealized loss position for over one year. At June 30, 
2009, no securities held in the held-to-maturity portfolio had been in an unrealized loss position for 
over one year. At June 30, 2010, the contractual maturities of held-to-maturity securities were 
$13,389 due in one year or less, $48,447 due from one to five years and $44,578 due after five years. 
At June 30, 2009, the contractual maturities of held-to-maturity securities were $733 due in one year 
or less, $21,190 due from one to five years and $18,242 due after five years. 

At June 30, 2010 and 2009, the Alliance held investments in certain limited partnerships and hedge 
funds of $28,608 and $30,031, respectively, that have a wide range of investment strategies with 
various levels of risk. These funds are included within trading securities and do not have readily 
determinable fair values. The funds are reported at fair market value pursuant to FASB ASC 825, 
Financial Instruments. 

The Alliance has investments in several joint ventures and corporations which are accounted for 
under the equity method of accounting. 

As a part of the acquisition of membership interests in JMH, SCCH and NCH, the Alliance has 
committed to invest $132,000, $48,100, and $45,000, respectively. Cumulative amounts expended 
at June 30, 2010 under these commitments are approximately $73,600. 

NOTE D--DERIV A TIVE TRANSACTIONS 

The Alliance is a party to a number of derivative transactions. These derivatives have not been 
designated as hedges and, as such, are valued at estimated fair value in the accompanying 
Consolidated Balance Sheets. Management's primary objective in holding such derivatives is to 
introduce a variable rate component into its fixed rate debt structure. Under the terms of these 
agreements, changes in the interest rate environment could have a significant effect on the Alliance. 

These derivative agreements require that the Alliance post additional collateral for the derivatives' 
fair market value deficits above specified levels. Such investments are included as assets limited as 
to use. As of June 30, 2010, management believes the Alliance was fully collateralized with respect 
to the derivative agreements and management does not believe such collateral is exposed to third­
party credit risk. Further, certain of the agreements contain requirements regarding maintenance of 
financial and liquidity ratios. Management has represented the Alliance is in compliance with all 
such covenants at June 30, 2010. 

Interest Rate Swaps: The Alliance is a party to six interest rate swap agreements with Merrill Lynch 
as the counterparty. A liability, representing the estimated fair value of these swaps, of$33,910 and 
$37,274 was recognized by the Alliance as of June 30, 2010 and 2009, respectively. 
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The following is a summary of five of these interest rate swap agreements at June 30, 20 IO: 

Notional Pa'J!_ments h'J'..: 
SWOf!. Amount Term Counterparty Alliance 

A $ 170,000 4/2008-4/2026 0.51 % through April 2011, 0.00% through April 2011, 
then 71.10% of then USD-SIFMA 

USD-ISDA Swap Rate Municipal Swap Index 
B 95,000 4/2008-4/2026 0.52% through April 2011, 0.00% through April 2011, 

then 71.18% of then USD-SIFMA 
USD-ISDA Swap Rate Municipal Swap Index 

c 173,030 4/200 8-4/2034 0.53% through April 2011, 0.00% through April 2011, 
then 72.35% of then USD-SIFMA 

USD-ISDA Swap Rate Municipal Swap Index 
D 82,055 12/2007-7/2033 USD-LIBOR-BBA through 4.411% 

June 2012, then 67.00% through June 2012, then 
USD-LIBOR-BBA 3.805% 

E 50,000 2/2008-7/2038 67.00% ofUSD-LIBOR-BBA 3.41% 
less 0.07% 

Deferred financing and acquisition costs, net of amortization, include $6,823 and $7, 167 at June 30, 
20 I 0 and 2009, respectively, related to these swaps. 

In addition to the swaps described above, the Alliance and Merrill Lynch are also parties to a total 
return swap in the notional amount of $23,900. No deferred financing and acquisition costs were 
recorded as a result of this transaction. The agreement consists of the following: 

An agreement that requires the Alliance to pay a variable rate of USD-SIFMA Municipal 
Swap Index through July 1, 2012 (or termination of the swap) on a notional amount equal to 
the outstanding 2001A Hospital Revenue and Improvement Bonds (the 2001A Reference 
Bonds). The Alliance receives a fixed rate of 6.25% on the outstanding 2001A Reference 
Bonds. 

• A "total return provision" under which the Alliance will pay (or receive) an amount equal to 
the product of the outstanding 200 lA Reference Bonds multiplied by the difference between 
the outstanding 2001A Reference Bonds and the 2001A Reference Bonds' market price at 
termination, as defined in the agreement. In the event the swap does not terminate prior to 
July 1, 2012, there would be no settlement of this component as there would be no 
outstanding 2001A Reference Bonds. 
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During 2009, the Alliance terminated an interest rate swap with a notional amount of $318 ,315 to 
which Merrill Lynch was the counterparty. As a result of the termination, the Alliance wrote-off 
deferred financing and issuance costs of $3,220 and recognized a gain on termination of $3,054, 
which are included in loss on termination of derivatives in the accompanying 2009 Consolidated 
Statement of Operations and Changes in Net Assets. 

The Alliance is party to a total return swap with Lehman Brothers as the counterparty. Lehman 
Brothers filed for bankruptcy in September 2008. The Alliance subsequently received notification 
from Lehman Brothers Special Financing, Inc. indicating the intent of the counterparty to terminate 
this agreement effective January l, 2009. As of October 25, 2010, the Alliance and Lehman 
Brothers Special Financing, Inc. have been unable to reach a settlement agreement In September 
2010, the Alliance was issued a subpoena to furnish certain documentation related to the transaction. 
A protocol has been put into place by the bankruptcy court whereby the parties are to undergo 
alternate dispute resolution. If a settlement is not reached through the alternate dispute resolution 
process, the matter will be subject to non-binding arbitration. Legal counsel has advised 
management that the court ordered process may take several years. 

The fair value of these swaps is undeterminable at January 1, 2009, as prior to the termination date 
Lehman Brothers liquidated the underlying referenced securities, making a valuation not 
commercially viable. An estimated liability of $10, 7 40 and $10 ,921 was recognized by the Alliance 
as of June 30, 2010 and 2009, respectively. Management believes that the liability as recorded at 
June 30, 2010 is sufficient to cover any exposure arising from litigation in this matter. However, it 
is reasonably possible management's estimate may change in the near term, although the amount of 
any change cannot be estimated. Due to the termination of this agreement, the estimated liability is 
included as a current liability in the accompanying Consolidated Balance Sheets. 

A third party holds collateral with a fair market value of approximately $13,570 and $13,252, 
respectively, at June 30, 2010 and 2009, with respect to these derivative agreements. Such collateral 
is included as current assets limited as to use. Additionally, during 2009 the Alliance wrote-off 
deferred financing and issuance costs related to these swaps of$2,619 which is included in loss on 
termination of derivatives in the accompanying 2009 Consolidated Statement of Operations and 
Changes in Net Assets. 

The arrangement consists of nine agreements each with three separate components (described 
below) with notional values of $23,600, $8,000, and $8,750 each. The swaps generally consist of 
the following: 
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An arrangement that calls for the Alliance to pay a variable rate (SIFMA Municipal Swap 
·Index) plus certain fixed payment amounts and receive a payment equal to the interest paid 
by the Alliance on a portion of its early extinguished, but still outstanding, 2000A and 
2000B Hospital Mortgage Revenue Refunding Bonds (the Reference Bonds) (whose fixed 
rates range from 7.50% to 7.75%). 

An arrangement that requires the Alliance to pay a fixed rate of 4.211 % through either July 
1, 2025, 2029 or 2033 (or termination of the swap) on the outstanding Reference Bonds and 
receive a variable rate of 67% ofUSD-LIBOR-BBA on the outstanding Reference Bonds; 
and 

A "total return provision" under which the Alliance will pay (or receive) the difference 
between the outstanding Reference Bonds, multiplied by 132%, less the fair value of the 
Reference Bonds on the date of termination and any fixed interest payments made under the 
arrangements described above. In the event the swaps do not terminate prior to their stated 
termination dates (2025, 2029 or 2033), there would be no settlement of this component as 
there would be no outstanding Reference Bonds. 

The swap also contains an agreement that consists of two separate components: 

An arrangement that requires the Alliance to pay a fixed rate of 2.98% through July 1, 2016 
(or termination of the swap) on the outstanding, but previously defeased, 1991 Hospital 
Revenue and Improvement Bonds (the 1991 Reference Bonds) and receive a variable rate of 
67% ofUSD-LIBOR-BBA on the outstanding 1991 Reference Bonds; and 

A "fixed payor provision" under which the Alliance will pay (or receive) the difference 
between the outstanding 1991 Reference Bonds multiplied by 100% and any fixed interest 
payments made as required under the agreement minus the outstanding 1991 Reference 
Bonds multiplied by the average market price at termination. In the event the swaps do not 
terminate prior to their stated termination date (2016), there would be no settlement of this 
component as there would be no outstanding 1991 Reference Bonds. 

Interest Rate Swap Option: In June 2004, the Alliance entered into an agreement with Bear Steams 
(acquired by JP Morgan) whereby Bear Stearns has purchased from the Alliance an option to enter 
into an interest rate swap agreement (swaption) with the Alliance on July I, 2011, which is an 
optional redemption date related to the Alliance's early extinguished 2000A and 2000B Bonds (Note 
F). The purpose of this agreement was to effectively sell the call features related to the early 
extinguished Series 2000A and 2000B Bonds. As consideration under this agreement, the Alliance 
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received a total of $42,500 in upfront payments as the swaption premium. Such amounts were 
initially recorded as estimated fair value of derivatives in the Consolidated Balance Sheets. 
Beginning 30 calendar days prior to July 1, 2011 and terminating 30 calendar days prior to July I, 
2015, the counterparty has the periodic right to exercise the swaption. 

The underlying interest rate swap transactions to which the swaption transaction relates have the 
following terms: 

Notional Payments by: 
Swal!_ Amount Term Counterparty Alliance 

2000A Ranging from $148,170 30 days following the 64%ofUSD- Fixed amounts ranging from 
through July 1, 2018 to exercise date through LIBOR-BBA 7 .13 % upon execution to 
$23,000 through July 2033 July2033 7.50% through July 2033, 

based on notional amount 

2000B Ranging from $76,240 30 days following the 64%ofUSD- Fixed amounts ranging from 
through July I. 2021 to exercise date through LIBOR-BBA 7.54% upon execution to 
$8,800 through July 2033 July 2033 8.00% through July 2033, 

based on notional amount 

Management anticipates the swaption will be settled by a payment of cash and not by the execution 
of an actual interest rate swap transaction, should the counterparty not elect to terminate. 

The Alliance retains the right to terminate the swaption at any time prior to May 17, 2011 at its fair 
market value. A liability of $89,650 and $78,022, representing the estimated fair value of the 
swaption at June 3 0, 2010 and 2009, respectively, is included in estimated fair value of derivatives in 
the accompanying Consolidated Balance Sheets. As a derivative financial instrument, this swaption 
is extremely sensitive to changes in long-term interest rates and other elements in the financial 
marketplace. As such, estimates of fair value are subject to significant changes in the near term. 

Deferred financing and acquisition costs include $434 and $868 at June 30, 2010 and 2009, 
respectively, related to the costs of this transaction. The change in estimated fair value of 
derivatives in the accompanying Statement of Operations and Changes in Net Assets for 2010 and 
2009 includes an unrealized loss of $11,628 and $9, 195, respectively, related to this derivative. 

Forward Sale Agreements: In June 2004, the Alliance entered into two related forward sale 
agreements with the counterparty to the swaption agreements and the Master Trustee of the Series 
2000 Bonds. The forward sale agreements originally related to the Debt Service Reserve Fund and 
to the Debt Service Fund, respectively, (collectively, the "Funds"), as established under provisions 
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of the Master Trust Indenture related to the issuance of the Series 2000 Bonds. In consideration of 
the future earnings on the Funds, the counterparty paid the Master Trustee a total of $30,000 during 
2005, to be held on behalf of the Alliance. In June 2006, one of these agreements was amended to 
also relate to the Series 2000C, 2000D, 2006A and 2006B Bonds, and to remove the Series 2000A 
Bonds from consideration under the agreement. As the original intent of these Funds was to secure 
debt service payments under the above referenced Bonds, the agreement requires these funds to be 
held under a guaranty agreement as further described below. 

In connection with the issuance of the Series 2007 Bonds and the derecognition of a portion of the 
Series 2000A Bonds, all of the outstanding Series 2000B Bonds, and all of the outstanding 2006B 
Bonds (Note F), one of these agreements as it relates to the Series 2000A and 2000B Bonds was 
partially terminated. As such, during 2008 the Alliance reduced its liability with respect to the 
portion related to the Series 2000A and 2000B Bonds, and paid the counterparty $6, 186 under the 
terms of the agreement. Management has represented that the other agreement will be amended in 
fiscal year 20 I I to include the Series 201 OA Bonds and to remove the Series 2000B and 2006B 
Bonds. As such, the Alliance has not reduced its liability for the portion related to the Series 2000B 
or 2006B Bonds under this agreement. 

A liability of $19, 864 and $20, 728 representing the unamortized payments from the counterparty is 
included as part of deferred revenue in the accompanying Consolidated Balance Sheets as of June 
3 0, 2010 and 2009, respectively. Amounts are being recognized as investment income over the life 
of the agreements. 

Pursuant to these agreements, the counterparty required that the Alliance's obligations under the 
swaption and forward sale agreements be collateralized under a guarantee agreement in favor of the 
counterparty. Due to various requirements of the Master Trust Indenture, the Alliance transferred to 
MSF a total of $42,500 that was in tum deposited with the counterparty as collateral in a Guaranteed 
Investment Contract (GIC). Amounts received under the forward sale agreements were also 
deposited into the GIC. All GIC deposits earn interest compounded at 4.14% for the first year, and 
at 3.5% thereafter through July 1, 2011. The GIC deposits as of June 30, 2010 and 2009 totaled 
$89,486 and $86,364, respectively. 

In the event the counterparty does not exercise the swaption, the Alliance will realize the swaption 
premium, forward sale amounts, and earnings on the GIC when the swaption expires on July 1, 
2015. In the event the Alliance settles with the counterparty, the Alliance would in effect lose the 
earnings on these funds. 
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Property, plant and equipment consist of the following at June 30: 

Land $ 
Buildings and leasehold improvements 
Property and improvements held for leasing 
Equipment 
Equipment held under capital lease 

Less: Allowances for depreciation and amortiz.ation 

Construction in progress (Note N) 

$ 

2010 2009 

60,351 $ 51,484 
404,790 407,063 

84,421 96,457 
479,523 424,738 

22,679 25,032 

1,051,764 1,004,774 

(569,913) (505,600) 

481,851 499,174 
213,747 91,395 

695,598 $ 590,569 

Accumulated depreciation and amortization on property and improvements held for leasing purposes 
is $21,543 and $21,829 at June 30, 2010 and 2009, respectively. Net interest capitalized was 
$11, 11 7 and $3, 7 44 for the years ended June 3 0, 20 I 0 and 2009, respectively. 

The Alliance is constructing two new hospital facilities, including Franklin Woods Community 
Hospital (FWCH) in Washington County, Tennessee and a replacement facility for JMH and has 
plans to construct a replacement facility at SCCH which will commence in 2011. The Alliance is 
also performing various renovations on existing hospital facilities. These projects may have a 
significant impact on the remaining useful life of the existing hospital facilities. Where 
commitments to construct new facilities have been finalized, management has adjusted the estimated 
useful lives of existing hospital facilities. 

NOTE F--LONG-TERM DEBT AND OTHER FINANCING ARRANGEMENTS 

Long-term debt and capital lease obligations consist of the following at June 30: 

Description 

20IOA Hospital Refunding Revenue Bonds, net 
of unamortized premium ofSl,096 at June 30, 
2010 

201 OB Hospital Refunding Revenue Bonds, net 
of unamortized premiwn ofS753 at June 30, 
2010 

Maturities 

$38,660 uninsured serially, through 2020 
$14,985 uninsured term bonds, due July I, 2025 
$19,385 uninsured tenn bonds, due July I, 2030 
$39,570 uninsured term bonds, due July I, 2038 
$55,480 tminsurcd tenn bonds, due July l, 2038 

$27,330 uninsured serie.Jly, through 2020 
$4,355 uninsured term bonds, due July l, 2023 
$4,250 uninsured term bonds, due July I, 2028 

3.00%to5.00% $ 
5.38% 
5.63% 
6.50% 
6.00% 

2.:50% to 5.00% 
5.00% 
5.50% 

Outrtanding Balance 
2010 20()9 

169,176 s 

36,688 
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OutsillndinK. Balance 
Descrie.tion Maturities Ra/es 2010 2009 

2009A Hospital Revenue Bonds, net of $725 uninsured term bonds, due July 1, 2019 7.25% 5,434 5,431 
unamortized discount of $126 and SI29 at June SJ, 730 uninsured term bonds, due July I, 2029 7.50% 
30, 2010 and 2009, respectively $3,105 uninsured tenn bonds, due July I, 2038 7.75% 

2009B Hospital Revenue Bonds $5,535 uninsured term bonds, due July l, 2038 8.00% 5,535 5,535 

2009C Hospital Revenue Bonds, net of $21,100 uninsured tenn bonds, due July l, 2019 7.25% J 13,447 113,360 
unamortized discount ofS2,508 and $2,595 et $20,000 uninsured tenn bonds, due July 1, 2029 7.50"/o 
June 30, 2010 and 2009, respectively $74,855 uninsured term bonds, due July l, 2038 7.75% 

2008A Hospital Revenue Bonds $13,245 uninsured term bonds, due July I, 2038, subject Variable, 0.91% 13,245 72,770 
to early redemption or tender at June 30, 2010 

2008B Hospital Re\•enue Bonds $54,050 uninsured term bonds, due July 1, 2038, subject Variable, 0.91% 54,050 54,230 
to early redemption or tender at June 30, 2010 

2007 A Hospital Revenue Bonds $4,305 uninsured tcnn bonds, due July I, 2038, subject to Variable, 0.91% 4,305 100,220 
early redemption_ or tender at June 30, 20 JO 

2007B Taxable Hospital Revenue Bonds $314, 190 uninsured tenn bonds, due July 1, 2033, subject Variable, 2.42% 314,190 320,170 
to early ~dcmption or tender at June 30, 20!0 

2007C Hospital Revenue Bonds SI ,900 uninsured term bonds, due July I, 2032, subject to Variable, 0.91 % l,900 36,575 
early redemption or tender at June 30, 2010 

2006A Hospital First Mortgage Revenue S7,265 uninsured serially, through 2019 4.50"/o to 5.00% 170,473 171,149 
Bonds, net of unamortized prerniwn of$ I 53 $7,375 uninsured term bonds, due July l, 2026 S.25% 
and $159 at June 30, 2010 and 2009, $20,SOS uninsured tenn bonds, due July I, 2031 5.50% 
respectively $135,175 uninsured term bonds, due July J, 2036 5.50% 

200JA Hospital First Mortgage Revenue Bonds $23,900 term bonds, due July I, 2026, subject to early 6.85% 23,900 24,600 
redemption or tender 

2001 Hospital Refunding and Improvement $675 insured term bonds, due Decem~r I, 20 l 0 5.13% 12,547 13,183 
Revenue Bonds (NCH), net of unamortized $1,465 insured term bonds, dueDcccm~r 1, 2012 5.75% 
discount of$43 and S38 at June 30, 2010 and $1,635 insured tenn bonds,dueDecem~r 1,2014 6.00% 
2009, respectively $8,815 insured tenn bonds, due Decem~r 1, 2022 6.00% 

2000A Hospital First Mortgage Revenue $28,417 insured Capital Appreciation Bonds, interest and 6.63% 28.417 26,601 
Refunding Bonds principal due July 1, 2026 lhrough 2030 

2000C Hospital First Mortgage Revenue $35,335 insured 1enn bonds, due July 1, 2026 8.50% 35,335 36,270 
Taxable Bonds 

2000D First Mortgage Taxable Bonds $15,225 insured tenn bonds, due July 1, 2026 8.50% 15,225 15,630 

l 998 Hospital Refunding and Improvement $1,125 uninsured serially, through 201 l S.00% 15,240 16,310 
Revenue :Bonds (JMH) $6,495 uninsured tenn bonds, due July 1, 2016 S.25% 

$7,620 uninsured term bonds, due July 1, 2028 5.38% 

Capitalized lcssc obligations secured by Mnturing through 2027 3.18%to 16,715 17,211 
buildings and equipment 13.01% 

Note payable secured by assets of Kingsport Monthly principal and interest payments maturing through 5.50% 334 
Ambulatory Surgery Center June 2010 

Note payable secured by property Monthly principal and interest payments of $7 beginning LIBOR+l.25% 204 
March 2007 maturing February 2012. Note was paid-off in 
2010 

$7,500 promissory note s=red by assets of Monthly principal and interest payments of S56 beginning LIBOR + l.l 0% 6,064 6,647 
Mediserve Medical Equipment ofKingsport, February 2007 maturing December 2011; remaining 
Inc. principal of$6,473 due Janusry 2012 

Capitalized lease obligations secured by Various monthly payments of monthly principal and Various 1,325 1,526 
equipment interest 

$7,482 promissory note secured by property Monthly interest-only payments lhrough maturity on .$32 interest 7,450 
end unsecured Jetter of credit December 31, 2010; paid off in 2010 per month 

Master installment payment agreement $2,I 94 due August 1, 2010 Unspecified 2,194 3,140 

$1,409 unsecured promissory note Monthly principal and interest payments of $23 ~ginning LIBOR+l.25% 920 1,202 
July 2008 through September 2013; remaining principal 
and accrued interest due CX:tober 2014 
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Description 

SJ ,800 note payable sccun:d by property 

$10,221 note payable secured by property 

$5,000 line of credit secu~ by investments 

$4,600 note payable secured by property 

Sl,065 note payable secured by land 

MoJuriJies 

Monthly interest-only pa:,ments through maturity in July 
2009 

Various annual principal end interest payments through 
April 2013 

Payable on demand 

Monthly principal and inkrestpayments ofSSO beginning 
Febnlllry 2009 maturing December 2013; remaining 
principal dueJunuary2014. Note was paid-off in 2010 

Monthly interest-<>nly payments through April 201 l; 
~maining principal and accmed interest due May 201 l 

$6,332 promissory note secured by Monthly principal payments of$35 plus accmed interest 
substantially all assets of the Alliance beginning July 2010 maturing June 2015; remaining 

principal due July 2015 

$3,955 note paya.ble secured by property Monthly principal and interest payments of $27 beginning 
July 20 l 0 maturing May 2015; remaining principal due 
June 2015 

Note payable under Master Financing Monthly principal and interest payments of Sl 66 
Agreement, secured by Equipment beginning July 2010 maturing June 2017 

Note payable under Master Financing Monthly principal and interest payments ofS56 beginning 
Agreement, sec~ by Equipment July 2010 maturing June 2017 

$4,926 convertible constmc~ion loan secured by Monthly interest-only payments through January 2011 
property and assigned tents followed by monthly principal and interest payments of 

$25 maturing December 2014; remaining prindpal and 
accrued interest due January 2015 

$1,885 line of credit secured by property Monthly interest-only payments through March 2011 
followed by monthly principal and interest payments of S9 
maturing February 2015; remaining principal and accrued 
interest due Ml!I'Ch 2015 

Le..'\S current portion 

Rates 

3.74% 

6.25% 

LIBOR+ 1.25% 

5.47% 

S.50% 

LIB OR+ 2.00% 

3.00% 

4.62% 

3.75% 

Prime 
(stated minimum and 

maximum interest rules 
of3.75% and 6.7So/o, 

respectively) 

Prime·0.50% 
(stated minimum and 

maximum intem;t rates 
of3.SO% and 6.25%, 

respectively) 

Outstanding Ba_la_nc_e __ 
2010 2009 

7,836 

1,065 

6,332 

3,955 

11,900 

4,100 

l,195 

265 

1,082,973 

(28,131) 

1,800 

10,221 

5,039 

4,377 

l,065 

1,072,250 

(31,306') 

1,054,842 s 1,040,944 

Series 2010 Bonds: In April 2010, the Alliance issued $168,080 (Series 2010A) and $35,935 Series 
2010B fixed rate Hospital Refunding Revenue Bonds (collectively, the Series 2010 Bonds). 
Proceeds of the Series 201 OA and the Series 201 OB Bonds were used to refinance outstanding 
indebtedness, specifically related to the Alliance's facilities in Tennessee and in Virginia, 
respectively, fund debt service reserve funds and pay costs of issuance. The Alliance recognized a 
$3,029 loss on early extinguishment of debt representing the write off of previously deferred and 
unamortized financing costs related to the refinanced Series 2008A and the Series 2007 A and 2007C 
debt issues discussed below. 

Series 2009 Bonds 

In March 2009, the Alliance issued $5,560 (Series 2009A), $5,535 (Series 20098) and $115,955 
(Series 2009C) fixed rate Hospital Revenue Bonds (collectively, the Series 2009 Bonds). The 
proceeds of Series 2009 Bonds were used to refinance a portion of the outstanding Series 2006C 
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Taxable Notes, which were originally issued to finance a capital commitment to SCCH and purchase 
certain leased assets, finance the acquisition of a majority ownership in JMH, fund a debt service 
reserve fund and pay costs of issuance. The portion of the 2006C taxable notes which were not 
refinanced with the Series 2009 Bonds were repaid with cash on hand. 

In connection with its acquisition of a majority ownership in JMH, the Alliance assumed the then 
outstanding long-term debt of JMH, totaling $33,906, including the JMH Series 1998 Hospital 
Refunding and Improvement Revenue Bonds as further described in the table above. 

Series 2008 Bonds 

In February 2008, the Alliance issued $72, 770 (Series 2008A) and $54,230 (Series 2008B) variable 
rate Hospital Revenue Bonds (collectively, the Series 2008 Bonds). The proceeds of Series 2008 
Bonds were primarily used to finance certain future capital projects for the Alliance's hospital 
facilities and for the repayment of previously issued 2008 Taxable Notes used for the acquisition of 
RCMC. The payment of principal and interest on the Series 2008 Bonds and the purchase price of 
any tendered bonds on each series are secured by a separate, irrevocable, transferable, direct-pay 
letter of credit (the Letters of Credit). The Letters of Credit entitle the Master Trustee to draw 
amounts equal to the principal amounts of the Series 2008 Bonds outstanding and up to 35 days 
interest at a rate of 12%. The Letters of Credit expire on December 14, 2012 unless renewed or 
replaced. A portion ($59,525) of the Series 2008A Bonds were repaid from proceeds of the Series 
2010 Bonds. 

The variable rate of interest on the Series 2008 Bonds is determined weekly by the Remarketing 
Agent (Merrill Lynch), as the rate equal to the lowest rate which, in regard to general financial 
conditions and other special conditions bearing on the rate, would produce as nearly as possible a 
par bid for the Series 2008 Bonds in the secondary market. In no event shall the variable rate on the 
Series 2008 Bonds during any period where interest is calculated weekly exceed the lesser of 12% 
annually or the maximum contract rate of interest permitted by the State of Tennessee for the Series 
2008A Bonds or the Commonwealth of Virginia for the Series 2008B Bonds. The Alliance has the 
option, upon written approval of the holder of the Letters of Credit, the Remarketing Agent and 
others, to convert to a medium-term rate period or to a fixed rate. 

The Series 2008 Bonds are subject to optional and mandatory tender for purchase prior to maturity at 
the option of the holder, upon conversion to a fixed rate, upon conversion to a medium-term rate 
period, prior to the effective date of any substitute letter of credit, or upon the termination of the 
Letters of Credit. The optional and mandatory tender provisions generally call for the Master 
Trustee to purchase the outstanding Series 2008 Bonds at a purchase price equal to the principal 
amount thereof plus accrued interest upon a stated date as described in the tender notice delivered to 
the bond holders. 
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Series 2007 Bonds 

In December 2007, the Alliance issued $104,355 (Series 2007A), $327,170 (Series 2007B taxable) 
and $36,575 (Series 2007C) variable rate Hospital Revenue Bonds (collectively, the Series 2007 
Bonds). The proceeds of Series 2007 Bonds were primarily used to early extinguish a portion of the 
outstanding Series 2000A Bonds, all of the outstanding 2000B Bonds, all of the outstanding Series 
1994 Bonds, and all of the outstanding Series 2006B Bonds; to finance the acquisition of a majority 
ownership in NCH, and to finance certain capital improvements and equipment acquisitions for the 
Alliance's hospital facilities. The payment of principal and interest on the Series 2007 Bonds and 
the purchase price of any tendered bonds on each series are secured by a separate, irrevocable, 
transferable, direct-pay letter of credit (the Letters of Credit). The Letters of Credit entitle the 
Master Trustee to draw amounts equal to the principal amounts of the Series 2007 Bonds 
outstanding and up to 35 days interest at a rate of 12%. The Letters of Credit expire on December 
14, 2012 unless renewed or replaced. A portion of the outstanding Series 2007A ($91,685) and 
Series 2007C ($32,840) Bonds were repaid from proceeds of the Series 2010 Bonds. 

The variable rate of interest on the Series 2007 Bonds is determined weekly in the same manner as 
described above for the Series 2008 Bonds. In no event shall the variable rate on the Series 2007 
Bonds during any period where interest is calculated weekly exceed the lesser of 12% annually or 
the maximum contract rate of interest permitted by the State of Tennessee for the Series 2007 A and 
2007B Bonds or the Commonwealth of Virginia for the 2007C Bonds. The Alliance has the option, 
upon written approval of the holder of the Letters of Credit, the Remarketing Agent and others, to 
convert to a medium-term rate period or to a fixed rate. Upon such conversion, the Series 2007 
Bonds become subject to mandatory tender for purchase. 

The Series 2007 Bonds are subject to optional and mandatory tender in the same manner as 
described above for the Series 2008 Bonds. In addition, the Series 2007B Bonds are subject to a 
special mandatory tender with respect to its conversion from taxable debt to tax-exempt debt. 

Series 2006 Bonds 

During 2006, the Alliance issued $173,030 Hospital First Mortgage Revenue Bonds (Series 2006A) 
and $66,500 Hospital First Mortgage Variable Rate Revenue Bonds (Series 2006B). The proceeds 
from the sale of the Series 2006A Bonds were used to finance certain future and prior capital 
projects for the Alliance's hospital facilities and to refund certain existing indebtedness, specifically 
the Series 2001B Bonds (discussed below) and certain existing short and intermediate term loans 
and leases, as well as fund a debt service reserve fund. The Series 2006B Bond proceeds were 
substantially used to refund the remaining outstanding principal of the Series 2001 B Bonds and 
establish a debt service reserve fund. 
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Series 2001 Bonds 

During 2001, the Alliance issued $26,000 Hospital First Mortgage Revenue Bonds (Series 2001A) 
and $60,175 Hospital First Mortgage Revenue Bonds (Series 2001B). The Series 2001A Bonds 
were subject to optional tender by Bond holders. Effective July 1, 2007, the Alliance entered into an 
agreement whereby the beneficial owners of the Series 200 IA Bonds have irrevocably waived their 
rights to tender the Bonds under the provisions of the respective Bond Indenture. The waiver will 
continue in effect through the maturity of the 2001A Bonds. The Series 2001B Bonds were 
refunded and redeemed in 2006. 

Series 2000 Bonds 

The Hospital First Mortgage Revenue Refunding (Series 2000A Bonds) and First Mortgage Revenue 
Refunding Bonds (Series 2000B Bonds), were used to advance refund previously existing 
indebtedness as well as fund a required debt service reserve fund. The Hospital First Mortgage 
Revenue Bonds (Series 2000C Taxable Bonds) were intended to refinance certain mortgage 
indebtedness of BRMM, and to refund other previously existing indebtedness. The proceeds from 
the sale of the First Mortgage Bonds (Series 2000D Taxable Bonds) were used primarily to fund 
working capital for the Alliance. 

The Series 2000A Bonds included at issue date $14,680 of insured Capital Appreciation Bonds. 
Such bonds bear a 0% coupon rate and have a yield of 6.625% annually. The Alliance recognizes 
interest expense and increases the amount of outstanding debt each year based upon this yield. Total 
principal and interest due at maturity (2026 through 2030) is $93,675. 

The advance refunding of previously issued debt requires funds to be placed in irrevocable trusts in 
order to satisfy remaining scheduled principal and interest payments. Management, upon advice of 
legal counsel, believes the amounts deposited in such irrevocable trust accounts have contractually 
relieved the Alliance of any future obligations with respect to this debt, and the debt and escrowed 
securities are not considered liabilities or assets of the Alliance. Therefore, such debt has been 
derecognized. 

Debt outstanding and not recognized in the Consolidated Balance Sheet at June 30, 2010 due to 
previous advance refundings of the Series 2000A Bonds, Series 2000B Bonds, Series l 998C Bonds, 
and Series 1991 Bonds, totaled approximately $585,960. 

The assets placed in the irrevocable trust accounts are also not recognized as assets of the Alliance. 
These assets consist primarily of various investments, as permitted by bond indentures and other 
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documents, including United States Treasury obligations, an investment contract with l\1BIA 
Insurance Corporation (MBIA) in the amount of $54,300, as well as the Series 2000C and 2000D 
Bonds which were purchased with the proceeds of the 2000A and 2000B Bonds specifically for the 
purpose of utilizing the Series 2000C and 2000D Bonds in the irrevocable trust. Therefore, certain 
of the assets held in the irrevocable trust accounts have future income streams contingent upon 
payments by the Alliance. 

Essentially all of the Alliance's bonds are subject to redemption prior to maturity, including 
optional, mandatory sinking fund and extraordinary redemption, at various dates and prices as 
described in the respective Bond indentures and other documents. 

Other Bonds, Notes Payable and Financing Arrangements 

The Alliance has granted a deed of trust on JCMC and SSH to secure the payment of the outstanding 
bonds. The bonds are also secured by the Alliance's receivables, inventories and other assets as well 
as certain funds held under the documents pursuant to which the bonds were issued. 

The NCH Series 2001 Hospital Refunding and Improvement Revenue Bonds are secured by 
revenues and a lien on certain real and personal property of NCH. The JMH Series 1998 Hospital 
Refunding and Improvement Revenue Bonds are secured by pledged gross receipts of JMH, as 
defined in the Master Trust indenture. 

The scheduled maturities and mandatory sinking fund payments of the long-term debt and capital 
lease obligations (excluding interest), exclusive of net unamortized original issue discount and 
premium, at June 30, 2010 are as follows: 

Year Ending 
June 30, 

2011 
2012 
2013 
2014 
2015 

Thereafter 

Net discount 

$ 28,131 
35,002 
30,312 
28,035 
31,898 

930,227 

1,083,605 
(632) 

$ 1,082,973 
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The Alliance, NCH and JMH are each members of separate Obligated Groups. The bond indentures, 
master trust indentures, Jetter of credit agreements and loan agreements related to the various bond 
issues and notes payable contain covenants with which the respective Obligated Groups must 
comply. These requirements include maintenance of certain financial and liquidity ratios, deposits 
to trustee funds, permitted indebtedness, use of facilities and disposals of property. These covenants 
also require that failure to meet certain debt service coverage tests will require the deposit of all 
daily cash receipts of the Alliance into a trust fund. Management has represented the Alliance, NCH 
and JMH are in compliance with all such covenants at June 30, 2010. 

In connection with the tax-exempt bonds, the Alliance is required every five years, and at maturity, 
to remit to the Internal Revenue Service amounts which are due related to positive arbitrage on the 
borrowed funds. The Alliance performs such computations when required and recognizes any 
liability at that time. Management does not believe there are any significant arbitrage liabilities at 
June 30, 2010 or 2009. 

In September 2010, in order to reduce credit risk and expenses, the Alliance replaced the existing 
letters of credit related to the Series 2007B, Series 2008A and Series 2008B Bonds with letters of 
credit held by several different financial institutions. The term of the letter of credit facility is for 
three years. As a part of this restructuring, the existing Bonds in these series were repaid through a 
remarketing of sub-series of each respective bond issue created per the mandatory tender and letter 
of credit substitution provisions. 

NOTE G--SELF-INSURANCE PROGRAMS 

The Alliance is self-insured for professional and general liability claims and related expenses. The 
Alliance maintains a $25,000 umbrella liability policy that attaches over the self-insurance limits of 
$10,000 per claim and a $15,000 annual aggregate retention. The Alliance also provides 
professional liability coverage for certain affiliates and joint ventures. 

The Alliance is self-insured for workers' compensation claims in the State of Tennessee and has 
established estimated liabilities for both reported and unreported claims. The Alliance maintains a 
stop-loss policy that attaches over the self-insurance limits of $1,000 per occurrence and $1,000 
annual aggregate retention. In the State of Virginia, the Alliance is not self-insured and maintains 
workers' compensation insurance through commercial carriers. 

At June 30, 2010, the Alliance is involved in litigation relating to medical malpractice and workers' 
compensation and other claims arising in the ordinary course of business. There are also known 
incidents occurring through June 30, 2010 that may result in the assertion of additional claims, and 
other unreported claims may be asserted arising from services provided in the past. Alliance 
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management has estimated and accrued for the cost of these unreported claims based on historical 
data and actuarial projections. The estimated net present value of malpractice and workers' 
compensation claims, both reported and unreported, as ofJune 30, 2010 and 2009 was $12,601 and 
$12,887, respectively. The discount rate utilized was 5% at June 30, 2010 and 2009. 

Additionally, the Alliance is self-insured for employee health claims and recognizes expense each 
year based upon actual claims paid and an estimate of claims incurred but not yet paid, including a 
catastrophic claims reserve based on historical claims in excess of $75. 

NOTE H--NET PATIENT SERVICE REVENUE 

A reconciliation of the amount of services provided to patients at established rates to net patient 
service revenue as presented in the accompanying Consolidated Statements of Operations and 
Changes in Net Assets is as follows for the years ended June 30: 

2010 2009 

Inpatient service charges $ 1,848,590 $ 1,630, 110 
Outpatient service charges 1,669,705 1,253,097 

Gross patient service charges 3,518,295 2,883,207 

Less: 
Estimated contractual adjustments and other discounts 2,417,082 1,929,061 
Estimated uncollectible self-pay - Note B 111,565 86,760 
Charity care 61,378 44,488 

2,590,025 2,060,309 

Net patient service revenue $ 928,270 $ 822,898 

NOTE !--THIRD-PARTY REIMBURSEMENT 

The Alliance renders services to patients under contractual arrangements with Medicare, Medicaid, 
TennCare, Blue Cross and various other commercial payors. The Medicare program pays for 
inpatient services on a prospective basis. Payments are based upon diagnosis related group 
assignments, which are determined by the patient's clinical diagnosis and medical procedures 
utilized. The Alliance also receives additional payments from Medicare based on the provision of 
services to a disproportionate share of Medicaid and other low income patients. Most Medicare 
outpatient services are reimbursed on a prospectively determined payment methodology. The 

32 



MOUNTAIN STATES HEALTH ALLIANCE 

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements .. Continued 
(Dollars in Thousands) 

Years Ended June 30, 2010 and 2009 

NOTE I--THIRD-PARTY REIMBURSEMENT- Continued 

Medicare program also reimburses certain other services on the basis ofreasonable cost, subject to 
various prescribed limitations and reductions. 

Reimbursement under the State of Tennessee's Medicaid waiver program (Tenn Care) for inpatient 
and outpatient services is administered by various managed care organizations (MCOs) and is based 
on diagnosis related group assignments, a negotiated per diem or fee schedule basis. The Alliance 
also receives additional supplemental payments from the State of Tennessee. The amount 
recognized totaled $8,700 and $11,137 for the years ended June 30, 2010 and 2009, respectively. 
Such payments are not guaranteed in future periods. 

The Virginia Medicaid program reimbursement for inpatient hospital services is based on a 
prospective payment system using both a per case and per diem methodology. Additional payments 
are made for the allowable costs of capital. Payments for outpatient services are based on Medicare 
cost reimbursement principles and settled through the filing of an annual Medicaid cost report. 

Amounts earned under the contractual agreements with the Medicare and Medicaid programs are 
subject to review and final determination by fiscal intermediaries and other appropriate 
governmental authorities or their agents. Retroactive adjustments are accrued on an estimated basis 
in the period the related services are rendered and adjusted in future periods as final settlements are 
determined. Activity with respect to audits and reviews of the governmental programs in the 
healthcare industry has increased and is expected to increase in the future. No additional specific 
reserves or allowances have been established with regard to these increased audits and reviews as 
management is not able to estimate such amounts. Management believes that any adjustments from 
these increased audits and reviews will not have a material adverse impact on the consolidated 
financial statements. However, due to uncertainties in the estimation, it is at }east reasonably 
possible that management's estimate will change in 2011, although the amount of any change cannot 
be estimated. The impact of final settlements of cost reports or changes in estimates decreased net 
patient service revenue by $3,540 in 2009. The impact of final settlements of cost reports or changes 
in estimates were not significant in 2010. 

Participation in the Medicare program subjects the Alliance to significant rules and regulations; 
failure to adhere to such could result in fines, penalties or expulsion from the program. Management 
believes that adequate provision has been made for any adjustments, fines or penalties which may 
result from final settlements or violations of other rules or regulations. Management has represented 
that the Alliance is in substantial compliance with these rules and regulations as of June 30, 2010. 

The Alliance has also entered into payment agreements with certain commercial insurance carriers, 
health maintenance organizations, preferred provider organizations and employer groups. The basis 
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for payment under these agreements includes prospectively determined rates per discharge, 
discounts from established charges and prospectively determined daily rates. 

NOTE J--EMPLOYEE BENEFIT PLANS 

The Alliance sponsors a retirement plan (the Plan) which covers substantially all employees. The 
Plan is a defined contribution plan which consists mainly of employer-funded contributions. During 
2010 and 2009, the Alliance made contributions to the Plan under a stratified system, whereby the 
Alliance's contribution percentage is based on each employee's years of service. In addition, the 
Alliance sponsors a 403(b) plan which is funded solely by employees' contributions. The Alliance 
does not make any discretionary or matching contributions into the 403(b) plan. Employees of 
certain other subsidiaries are covered by other plans, although such plans are not significant. The 
total expense related to defined contribution plans for the years ended June 30, 2010 and 2009 was 
$13,311 and $10,590, respectively. 

NCH maintains a defined benefit pension plan and a post-retirement employee benefit p1an. The 
accrued unfunded pension liability was $1,942 and $1,972, and the accrued unfunded post­
retirement liability was $3,843 and $4,821 at June 30, 2010 and 2009, respectively. 

The Alliance sponsors a secured executive benefit program (SEBP) for certain key executives. 
Contributions to the plan by the Alliance are based on an annual amount of funding necessary to 
produce a target benefit for the participants at their retirement date, although the Alliance does not 
guarantee any level of benefit will be achieved. The Alliance contributed $1,303 and $1,716 to the 
plan during 2010 and 2009, respectively. Other assets at June 30, 2010 and 2009 include $7,077 and 
$5,827, respectively, related to the Alliance's portion of the benefits which are recoverable upon the 
death of the participant. In addition, the Alliance sponsors a Section 457(f) plan for certain key 
executives. The benefits for substantially all employees previously participating in the SEBP plan 
have been transferred into the 457(f) plan. 

NOTE K--CONCENTRATIONS OF RISK 

The Alliance has locations primarily in upper East Tennessee and Southwest Virginia which is 
considered a geographic concentration. The Alliance grants credit without collateral to its patients, 
most of whom are local residents and are insured under third-party payor agreements. Net patient 
service revenue from Washington County, Tennessee operations were approximately 54% and 59% 
of total net patient service revenue for 2010 and 2009, respectively. 

The mix of receivables from patients and third-party payors based on charges at established rates is 
as follows as of June 30: 
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Medicare 
Tenn care/Medicaid 
Commercial 
Other third-party payors 
Patients 

2010 2009 

42% 40% 
15% 17% 
25% 31% 
10% 5% 
8% 7% 

100% 100% 

Approximately 98% of the consolidated total revenue, gains and support were related to the 
provision of healthcare services during 2010 and 2009. Admitting physicians are primarily 
practitioners in the regional area. 

Two of the Alliance's Virginia hospitals' employees are covered under collective bargaining 
agreements. These agreements expire in January 2011. 

The Alliance routinely invests in investment vehic]es as listed in Note C. The Alliance's investment 
portfolio is managed by outside investment management companies. Investments in corporate and 
foreign bonds and notes, municipal obligations, money market funds, equities and other vehicles that 
are held by safekeeping agents are not insured or guaranteed by the U.S. government. 

NOTE L--INCOME TAXES 

BRMM and its subsidiaries file a consolidated federal tax return and separate state tax returns. As of 
June 30, 2010 and 2009, BRMM and its subsidiaries had net operating loss carryforwards for 
consolidated federal purposes of $32,447 and $35,448, respectively, related to operating losses 
which expire through 2025. BRMM had state net operating loss carryforwards of $59,860 and 
$58,771, respectively, which expire through 2025. The net operating loss carryforwards may be 
offset against future taxable income to the extent permitted by the Internal Revenue Code and 
Tennessee Code Annotated. 

At June 30, 2010 and 2009, SWCH had federal and state net operating loss carryforwards of$4,376 
and $3,923, respectively, which expire through 2029. CHC files separate federal and state tax 
returns. CHC had a net deferred tax liability of $58 at June 30, 2010 and a net deferred tax asset of 
$55 at June 30, 2009; the differences are due primarily to temporary timing differences related to 
depreciation and net operating loss carryforwards. The net operating loss carryforwards may be off­
set against future taxable income to the extent permitted by the Internal Revenue Code and tax codes 
of the Commonwealth of Virginia. 
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Net deferred tax assets related to these carryforwards and other deferred tax assets have been 
substantially offset through valuation allowances equal to these amounts. Income taxes paid relate 
primarily to state taxes for certain subsidiaries and federal alternative minimum tax. 

NOTE M--RELA TED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 

The Alliance enters into transactions with entities affiliated with certain members of the Board of 
Directors including transactions to construct Alliance facilities and provide professional services to 
the Alliance. Board members refrain from discussion and abstain from voting on transactions with 
entities with which they are related. 

NOTE N--OTHER COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES 

Construction in Progress: Construction in progress at June 30, 2010 represents costs incurred 
related to various hospital and medical office building facility renovations and additions. The 
Alliance has outstanding contracts and other commitments related to the completion of these 
projects, and the cost to complete these projects is estimated to be approximately $223,847 at June 
30, 2010. The Alliance does not expect any significant costs to be incurred for infrastructure 
improvements to assets held for resale. 

Physician Contracts: BRM1V1 employs physicians to provide services to BRMM's physician 
practices through employment agreements which provide annual compensation, plus incentives 
based upon specified productivity levels. These contracts have various terms. 

In addition, the Alliance has entered into contractual relationships with non-employed physicians to 
provide services in Upper East Tennessee and Southwest Virginia. These contracts guarantee 
certain base payments and allowable expenses and have terms of varying lengths. Upon completion 
of the respective guarantee period, amounts drawn and outstanding under each agreement are treated 
as a loan bearing interest at various rates and are subject to repayment over a specified period. The 
physician note may also be amortized by virtue of the physician's continued practice in the specified 
conununity during the repayment period. A net receivable of $1,818 and $2,770 related to these 
agreements is included in the accompanying Consolidated Balance Sheets at June 30, 2010 and 
2009, respectively. 

Employee Scholarships: The Alliance offers scholarships to certain individuals which require that 
the recipients return to the Alliance to work for a specified period ohime after they complete their 
degree. Amounts due are then forgiven over a specific period of time as provided in the individual 
contracts. If the recipient does not return and work the required period of time, the funds disbursed 
on their behalf become due immediately and interest is charged until the funds are repaid. Other 
receivables June 30, 2010 and 2009 includes $5,571 and $3,880, respectively, related to students in 
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NOTE N--OTHER COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES - Continued 

school, graduates working at the Alliance and amounts due from others who are no longer in the 
scholarship program. 

Promises to Give: The Alliance has recorded certain unconditional promises to give to unrelated 
organizations. At June 30, 2010, $1,768 is due within one year, and an additional $644 is due within 
five years and is included in other long-term liabinties. 

Operating Leases and Maintenance Contracts: Total lease expense for the years ended June 30, 
2010 and 2009 was $10,216 and $9,412, respectively. Future minimum lease payments for each of 
the next five years and in the aggregate for the Alliance's noncancellable operating leases with 
remaining lease terms in excess of one year are as follows: 

Year Ending June 30, 

2011 $ 1,686 
2012 1,560 
2013 1,345 
2014 1,000 
2015 835 

Thereafter 3,808 

$ 10,234 

Estimated future minimum payments under various noncancellable maintenance contracts with 
remaining terms in excess of one year at June 30, 2010 total in the aggregate $3, 720 through 2015. 

Asset Retirement Obligation: The Alliance has identified asbestos in certain facilities and is 
required by law to dispose of it in a special manner if the facility undergoes major renovations or is 
demolished; otherwise, the Alliance is not required to remove the asbestos from the facility. The 
Alliance has complied with regulations by treating the asbestos so that it presents no known 
immediate or future safety concerns. An asset retirement obligation has been established to the 
extent that sufficient information exists upon which to estimate the liability. 

Other: During 2007, the Alliance received a Certificate of Need (CON) application to build a new 
80-bed hospital in Washington County, Tennessee. When this new facility (FWCH) is opened in 
2011, acute care services are planned to be discontinued or reduced at both NSH and JCSH. 
Management anticipates that the NSH and JCSH facilities will continue to be fully utilized by the 

37 



MOUNTAIN STATES HEALTH ALLIANCE 

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements - Continued 
(Dollars in Thousands) 

Years Ended June 2010 and 2009 

NOTE N--OTHER COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES - Continued 

Alliance in its operations and, therefore, no change to their estimated useful lives is anticipated. 
However, it is reasonabJy possible management's estimates related to the continuing use of these 
facilities could change in the near term. The carrying value of buildings and improvements related 
to these facilities is $12,493 at June 30, 2010. 

During 2007, the Alliance filed a Certificate of Public Need (COPN) application to build a new 57-
bed hospital in Smyth County, Virginia. The COPN has been approved by the applicable 
Commonwealth of Virginia agencies. Construction is expected to begin in 2011 and total costs are 
expected to be $68,216. 

The Alliance is a party to various transactions and agreements in the normal course of business, 
which include purchase and re-purchase agreements, put arrangements and other commitments, 
which may bind the Alliance to undertake additional transactions or activities in the future. 

NOTE 0--RENTAL INCOME UNDER OPERATING LEASES 

The Alliance leases rental properties to third parties, most of whom are physician practices, for 
various terms, generally five years. The following is a schedule by year and in the aggregate of 
minimum future rental income due under noncancellable operating leases at June 30, 2010: 

Year Ending June 30, 

2011 
2012 
2013 

2014 
2015 

Thereafter 

Total minimum future rentals 

NOTE P--FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 

$ 

$ 

1,648 
1,545 

995 
730 
615 
858 

6,391 

The fair value of financial instruments has been estimated by the Alliance using available market 
information as of June 30, 2010 and 2009, and valuation methodologies considered appropriate. The 
estimates presented are not necessarily indicative of amounts the Alliance could realize in a current 
market exchange. The carrying value of substantially all financial instruments approximates fair 
value due to the nature or term of the instruments, except as described below. 
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NOTE P--FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - Continued 

Investment in Joint Ventures: It is not practical to estimate the fair market value of the investments 
in joint ventures. 

Other Long-Term Liabilities: Estimates of reported and unreported professional liability claims, 
pension and post-retirement liabilities are discounted to approximate their estimated fair value. It is 
not practical to estimate the fair market value of other long-tenn liabilities due to uncertainty of 
when these amounts may be paid. Other long-term liabilities are not discounted. 

Long-Term Debt and Capital Leases: The fair value of long-term debt is estimated based upon 
quotes obtained from brokers for bonds and discounted future cash flows using current market rates 
for other debt. For long-term debt with variable interest rates, the carrying value approximates fair 
value. 

The Alliance's significant capital leases and vendor contracts were negotiated with various entities 
and are considered unique. It is not practicable to estimate the fair value of these obligations under 
current conditions. Other capital lease obligations are not significant. 

The estimated fair value of the Alliance's financial instruments that have carrying values different 
from fair value is as follows at June 30: 

2010 2009 
Carrying Estimated Carrying Estimated 

Value Fair Value Value Fair Value 

FINANCIAL LIABILITIES: 
Long-term debt $ 1,082,973 $ 1,105, 778 $ 1,072,250 $ 988,263 

NOTE Q--FAIR VALUE :MEASUREMENT 

F ASB ASC 820 establishes a three-level valuation hierarchy for disclosure of fair value 
measurements. The valuation hierarchy is based upon the transparency ofinputs to the valuation of 
an asset or liability as of the measurement date. The three levels are defined as follows: 

• Level I - Inputs based on quoted market prices for identical assets or liabilities in active 
markets at the measurement date. 

Level 2 - Observable inputs other than quoted prices included in Level 1, such as quoted 
prices for similar assets and liabilities in active markets; quoted prices for identical or similar 
assets and liabilities in markets that are not active; or other inputs that are observable or can 
be corroborated by observable market data. 
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NOTE Q--FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENT - Continued 

Level 3 - Unobservable inputs that are supported by little or no market activity and are 
significant to the fair value of the assets or liabilities. Level 3 includes values determined 
using pricing models, discounted cash flow methodologies, or similar techniques reflecting 
the Alliance's own assumptions. 

In instances where the determination of the fair value hierarchy measurement is based on inputs 
from different levels of the fair value hierarchy, the level in the fair value hierarchy within which the 
entire fair value measurement falls is based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair 
value measurement in its entirety. The Alliance's assessment of the significance of a particular input 
to the fair value measurement in its entirety requires judgment and considers factors specific to the 
asset or liability. 

The following table sets forth, by level within the fair value hierarchy, the financial assets and 
liabilities recorded at fair value on a recurring basis as of June 30, 2010 and 2009: 

June 30, 2010 Level 1 level 2 Level 3 

Trading securities $ 209,644 $ 164,510 $ 16,526 $ 28,608 
Assets whose use is limited 177, 180 177,180 

Total assets $ 386,824 $ 341,690 $ 16,526 $ 28,608 

Fair value of derivative agreements $ (134,300) $ - $ - $ (l 34,300) 

June 30, 2009 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 

Trading securities $ 235,065 $ 191,918 $ 13, 116 $ 30,031 

Assets whose use is limited 186,414 186,414 

Total assets $ 421,479 $ 378,332 $ 13,116 $ 30,031 

Fair value of derivative agreements $ (126,217) $ - $ - $ (126,217) 

The valuation of the Alliance's derivative agreements is determined using market valuation 
techniques, including discounted cash flow analysis on the expected cash flows of each agreement. 
This analysis reflects the contractual terms of the agreement, including the period to maturity) and 
uses observable market-based inputs, including forward interest rate curves. The fair values of 
interest rate swap agreements are determined by netting the discounted future fixed cash payments 
(or receipts) and the discounted expected variable cash receipts (or payments). The variable cash 
receipts (or payments) are based on the expectation of future interest rates based on observable 
market forward interest rate curves and the underlying notional amount. The Alliance also 

40 



MOUNTAIN STATES HEALTH ALLIANCE 

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements - Continued 
(Dollars in Thousands) 

Years Ended June 30, 2010 and 2009 

NOTE Q--FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENT - Continued 

incorporates credit valuation adjustments (CVAs) to appropriately reflect both its own 
nonperformance or credit risk and the respective counterparty' s nonperformance or credit risk in the 
fair value measurements. The CVA on the Alliance's interest rate swap agreements at June 30, 2010 
and 2009 resulted in a decrease in the fair value of the related liability of $10,085 and $7,914, 
respectively. 

A certain portion of the inputs used to value its interest rate swap agreements, including the forward 
interest rate curves and market perceptions of the Alliance's credit risk used in the CVAs, are 
unobservable inputs available to a market participant. As a result, the Alliance has determined that 
the interest rate swap valuations are classified in Level 3 of the fair value hierarchy. 

The following tables provide a summary of changes in the fair value of the Alliance's Level 3 
financial assets and liabilities during the fiscal years ended June 30, 20 IO and 2009: 

Trading Derivatives, 
Securities Net 

July 1, 2008 $ 32,187 $ (87,295) 
Total unrealized/realized losses in the performance indicator, net (9,298) (42,128) 
Purchases, issuance and settlements and other, net 1,015 3,206 
Transfers in (out), net 6,127 

June 30, 2009 30,031 (126,217) 

Total unrealized/realized losses in the performance indicator, net (1,546) (8,607) 
Purchases, issuance and settlements and other, net 1,446 524 
Transfers in (out), net (1,323) 

June 30, 2010 $ 28,608 $ (134,300) 

Net losses included in the performance indicator which are 
attributable to the change in unrealized gains or losses relating 
to assets still held at June 30, 2009 $ (9,298) $ (43,172) 

Net losses included in the performance indicator which are 
attributable to the change in unrealized gains or losses relating 
to assets still held at June 30, 2010 $ (1,920) $ (27,116) 

On July 1, 2009, the Alliance adopted the provisions of FASB ASC 820 related to non-financial 
assets and liabilities recognized or disclosed at fair value on a non-recurring basis. The Alliance 
does not have any non-financial liabilities recognized or disclosed at fair value on a non-recurring 
basis. Assets subject to this guidance primarily include certain goodwill, property and equipment 
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NOTE Q--FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENT - Continued 

and investments in unconsolidated affiliates. There were no significant assets or liabilities that were 
re-measured at fair value on a non-recurring basis during the fiscal year ended June 30, 2010. 

NOTE R~-OPERATING EXPENSES BY FUNCTIONAL CLASSIFICATION 

Direct expenses by functional classification are as follows for the years ended June 30: 

2010 2009 

Healthcare services $ 795,725 $ 686,779 
Administrative and general 124,338 135,994 

Other 8,625 10,168 

$ 928,688 $ 832,941 
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MOUNTAIN STATES HEALTH ALLIANCE 

Consolidating Balance Sheet 
(Dollars in Thousands) 

June 30, 2010 

ASSETS 

CURRENT ASSETS 
Cash and cash equivalent.~ 
Current portion of investments 
Patient accounts receivable, less estimated allowances 

for contractual adjustments and uncoltcctible accounts 
Other receivables, net 
Inventories and prepaid expenses 

TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS 

fNVESTMENTS, less amounts required 
to meet current obligations 

PROPJ<:::RTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT, net 

EQUITY lN AFFILIATES 

OTHER ASSETS 

Goodwill, net of accumulated RlTlortization 
Net deferred financing, acquisition costs and 

other charges, less current portion 
Other assets 

TOTAL OTHER ASSETS 

Blue Ridge Other 
Medical Obligated Group 

Mcmageme11t • Members Eliminations 

$ 1,043 $ 204,966 $ - $ 
9,588 

4,457 84.416 
352 10,277 

----··-·-··!9-.~-·-···- 18,9Tl 

6,044 328,224 

17,166 266,104 

9,152 463,652 

138,930 391,644 (160,670) 

6,246 143,276 

176 28,458 
10,695 8,087 

17,117 179,821 

Total 
Obligated 

Group 
Mountain States 

Properties 

206,009 $ 
9,58& 

7,566 $ 
14,120 

88,873 
10,629 
19.169 

334,268 

283,270 

472,804 

369,904 

149,522 

28,634 
18,782 

788 
183 

22,657 

18,765 

66,295 

1,540 
3.608 

Other 
Entitit:s 

20,951 $ 
4,759 

36,707 
6,509 
9,811 

78,737 

284,721 

156,499 

1,830 

645 
6.9.23 

196,938 5.148 -··---·-··-·····-··-9,398 

=$====18=8'=,4-=~?=-·-=· $=····=·····=··-·=····!""'· .6,,. .. ~=.?-::'4=45=··· =~==-·=·-··=·-·=--""'-(=l 6=0,;,,,,6=70=)=S==1=,6=5=7'=, 1=84=$==--·--! J ?-'-~6~-- ~ 529,355 $ 

• Management Services Organi7..ation only 

See note to supplemental schedules. 

Eliminations 

- $ 

(369,904) 

Total 

234,526 
28,467 

125,580 
17,926 
29.163 

435,662 

586,756 

695,598 

151,352 

30,819 
29,313 

211,48~-­

(3?..~:?.~~.L.~ ...... ,,,.-.L?..~2::.-?..QQ .... 
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June 30, 2010 
Blue Ridge Other Total 

Medical Obligated Group Obligated Mountain Stalel' Other 
J.fa1taf{_e1t1e11t * Members Eliminations Graul!. Pror.erties Entities Eliminations .Total 

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS 

CURRENT LIABILITIES 
Accrued interest payable $ - $ 15,550 $ - $ 15,550 $ 4 $ 485 $ $ 16,039 

Current portion of long-term debt and capital lease 
obligations 550 23,743 24,293 50 3,788 28,131 

Current portion of estimated fair value of derivatives 10,740 10,740 

Accounts payable and accrued expenses 2,159 76,098 78,257 1,317 19,653 99,227 

Accrued salaries, compensated absences and amounts 
withheld 2,695 31,604 34,299 12,981 47,280 

Payables to (receivables from) affiliates, net 9,392 (10,146) (754) (33,334) 34,088 

Estimated amounts due to third-party payors, net 7,983 7,983 2,172 ----···--··- 10.155 

TOT AL CURRENT LIABILJTIES 14,796 144,832 159,628 (21,223) 73,167 211,572 

OTIIER LIABILITIES 
Long-term debt and capital lease obligations, less 

current portion 5,515 1,006,038 1,011,553 1,144 42,145 1,054,842 
Estimated fair value of derivatives, less current 

portion 123,308 123,308 252 123,560 
Deferred revenue 20,092 20,092 353 20,445 
Estimated professional liability self-insurance 2,229 5,075 7,304 2,237 9,541 
Other long-term liabilities 5,199 1,598 6.797 5,831 12,628 

TOT AL LIABILITIES 27,739 1,300,943 1,328,682 {19,827) 123,733 1,432.588 

MINORITY INTERESTS 168,410 168,410 

NET ASSETS 
Unrestricted net assets 160,670 317,434 (160,670) 317,434 132,692 226,356 (359,048) 317,434 
Temporarily restricted net assets 10,941 10,941 10,729 (10,729) 10,941 
Permanently restricted net assets 127 127 127 (127) 127 

TOTAL NET ASSETS 160,670 328,502 (160,670) 328.502 132,692 237,212 (369.904) 328,502 

$ 188,409 $ 1.629.445 $ (160,670) $ L657,184 $ 112,865 $ 529,355 $ p69.904~ $ 1,929.500 

•Management Services Organization only. 

See note to supplemental schedules. 44 
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Year Ended June 30, 2(Jl 0 
Blue Ridge Other Total 

Medical Obligated Group Obligated Mountain States Other 
Mtmagemenl * Members Eliminations Group Properties Entities Eliminations Total -··----

CHANGES JN UNRESTRICTED NET ASSETS: 
Revenue, gains and support: 

Net patient service revenue $ 32,979 $ 657,122 $ (1,556) $ 688,545 $ - $ 239,921 $ (196) $ 928.270 
Other operating revenue 24,046 3,914 {18,087) 9,873 7,430 32,519 (33,813) 16,009 
Equity in net gain of affiliates 6,702 4,959 (5,460) 6,201 15 (6,216) 

TOTAL REVENUE, GAINS AND SUPPORT 63,727 665,995 (25,103) 704,619 7,430 272,455 (40,225) 944,279 

Expenses: 
Salaries and wages 15,053 225,269 240,322 139 87,975 (2,773) 325,663 

Physician salaries and wages 28,752 1,133 29,885 49,009 (24,405) 54,489 
Contract labor 873 3,460 4,333 2,499 (286) 6,546 
Employee benefits 5,152 43,758 (1,615) 47,295 39 22,587 (1,559) 68,362 

Fees 2,206 76,192 (18,018) 60,380 830 21,867 (535) 82,542 

Supplies 2,200 132,563 134,763 1 40,898 (193) 175,469 

Utilities 510 10,Q78 10,588 1,010 4,595 16,193 

Other 4,024 39,787 (11) 43,800 2,611 25,482 (4,253) 67.640 
Depreciation 1,059 42,890 43,949 2,585 21,902 68,436 
Amortization 266 12,711 12,977 146 13,123 

Estimated provision for bad debts l,522 3,822 5,344 2,617 7,961 

Interest and taxes (1,279) 41,601 40,322 l,409 4,787 {4.25~L. ____ 42.26'1 

TOTAL EXPENSES 60.338 633,264 (19.6442 673,958 8,624 284,364 (38,258l 928,688 

OPERA TING INCOME 3,389 32,731 (5,459) 30,661 (1,194) (11,909) (1,967) 15,591 

Nonoperating gains (losses): 
Interest and dividend income 546 10,904 11,450 791 9,31 I (4,254) 17,298 
Net realized gains on the sale of securities 128 1,543 l,671 714 2,385 

Net unrealized gains on securities 596 8,083 8,679 1,312 5,027 15,018 

Derivative related income 2,622 2,622 1,772 4,394 
Loss on early extinguishment of debt (3,029) (3,029) (3,029) 
Change in estimated fair value of derivatives (10,865) (10,865) 2,258 (8,607) 
Other nonoperating gains (losses) 800 2,502 3,302 533 (3,323) 512 
Net assets released from restrictions used for operations LI 13 1,113 

NET NONOPERATJNG GAINS 2.070 11,760 13.8JO 6.666 12.842 i~.:.?~?·1) 29,084 

EXCESS OF REVENUE, GAINS 
ANDSUPPORTOVEREXPENSESAND 

LOSSES, BEFORE MINORCT'Y INTERESTS 5,459 44,491 (5,459) 44,491 5,472 933 (6,221) 44,675 

See note to supplemental schedules. 45 



MOUNTAIN STATES HEALTH ALLIANCE 

Consolidating Statement of Operations and Changes in Net Assets - Continued 
(Dollars in Thousands) 

Year Ended June 30, 2010 
Blue Ridge Other Total 

Medical Obligated Group Ohligaied 
"/Yfm111{ietne1tt * Members Eliminations Grouf!_ 

Minority interest in consolidated subsidiaries' net gain 

EXCESS OF REVENUE, GACNS AND 
SUPPORT OVER EXPENSES AND LOSSES 5,459 44,491 (5,459) 44,491 

Other changes in unrestricted net a.-;.sets: 
Pension and other defined benefit plan adjustments 
Net assets released from restrictions used for the 

purchase of property, plant and equipment 

£NCREASE £N UNRESTRICTED 
NET ASSETS 5,459 44,491 {5,459} 44,491 

DECREASE IN TEMPORARILY RESTRJCTED NET ASSETS (393) (393) 

DECREASE IN PERMANENTLY RESTRICTED NET ASSETS 

INCREASE £N TOTAL NET ASSETS 5,459 44,098 (5,459) 44,098 

NET ASSETS, BEG£NN£NG OF YEAR 155,211 284,404 (155,2112 28·:\..404 

NET ASSETS, END OF YEAR $ 160,670 $ 328,502 $ (1602_~70) s 328,502 
··-

•Management Services Organiwtion only. 

See note to supplemental schedules. 

Mountain Slates Other 
Proe.erties Entities Eliminations Total 

(3,162) (3, 162~ 

5,472 (2,229) (6,221) 41.513 

1,589 1,589 

2,283 2,283 

5,472 l,643 (6,221) 45,385 

(844) (1,237) 

(50) (50) 

5,472 749 (6,221) 44,098 

127.220 236,463 (363,683) 284,404 

$ 132,692 $ 237,212 $ (369.904) $ 328,502 
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Note to Supplemental Schedules 

Year Ended June 2010 

NOTE A--OBLIGA TED GROUP MEMBERS 

As described in Note F to the consolidated financial statements, the Alliance has granted a deed of 
trust on JCMC and SSH to secure the payment of the outstanding bonds. The bonds are also secured 
by the Alliance's receivables, inventories and other assets as well as certain funds held under 
the documents pursuant to which the bonds were issued. In accordance with Article Six, Section 
6.6 of the Amended and Restated Master Trust Indenture between Mountain States Health Alliance 
and the Bank ofNew York Trust Company, NA as Master Trustee, those members pledged include 
Johnson City Medical Center Hospital, Indian Path Medical Center and Pavilion, North Side 
Hospital, Sycamore Shoals Hospital, Johnson City Specialty Hospital, Johnson County Community 
Hospital, Russell County Medical Center and Blue Ridge Medical Management Corporation (parent 
company only), collectively defined as the Obligated Group (Obligated Group). 

The supplemental consolidating schedules include the accounts of the members of the Obligated 
Group after elimination of all significant intergroup accounts and transactions. Certain other 
subsidiaries of the Alliance, Mountain States Properties, Inc. (MSP) and aH other affiliates (Other 
Entities), are not pledged to secure the payment of the outstanding bonds as they are not part of the 
Obligated Group. These affiliates have been accounted for within the Obligated Group based upon 
the Alliance's original and subsequent investments, as adjusted for the Alliance's pro rata share of 
income or losses and any distributions, and are included as a part of equity in affiliates in the 
supplemental consolidating balance sheet. 
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PERSHING YOAKLEY & ASSOC!ATES 

IN'DEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT 

To the Board of Directors of 
Mountain States Health Alliance: 

PERSHING YOAKl..EY & ASSOCIATES, P.C. 
Certified Public Accountants 

0..e Cherokee Mais. 2220 Sutherland Avenue 

Knoxville, ™ 37919 

p; (865) 673-0844 I f: (865) 673.{)l 73 
www.pyopc.com 

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of Mountain States Health Alliance 
and subsidiaries (the Alliance) as ofJune 30, 2011 and 2010 and the related consolidated statements 
of operations, changes in net assets and cash flows for the years then ended. These consolidated 
financial statements are the responsibility of the Alliance's management. Our responsibility is to 
express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on our audits. 

We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United 
States of America. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable 
assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are free of material misstatement. An 
audit includes consideration of internal control over financial reporting as a basis for designing audit 
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an 
opinion on the effectiveness of the Alliance's internal control over financial reporting. Accordingly, 
we express no such opinion. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the 
amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial statements. An audit also includes assessing 
the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating 
the overall financial statement presentation. We believe our audits provide a reasonable basis for 
our opinion. 

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material 
respects, the :financial position of Mountain States Health Alliance and subsidiaries as of June 30, 
2011 and 2010 and the results of their operations, changes in net assets and cash flows for the years 
then ended in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of 
America. 

Our audits were conducted for the purpose of fonning an opinion on the consolidated financial 
statements taken as a whole. The supplemental schedules, as listed in the accompanying index, are 
presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not a req~ired part of the consolidated :financial 
statements. Such infonnation has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of 
the consolidated financial statements and, in our opinion, is fairly stated in all material respects in 
relation to the consolidated financial statements taken as a whole. 

ATLANTA AUSTIN KNOXVILLE TAMPA BAY 1 



As discussed in Note B, the Alliance adopted Financial Accounting Standards Board Accounting 
Standards Codification 958-10, Consolidation, and applicable portions of958-805, Not-for-Profit 
Entities, during 2011. 

Knoxville, Tennessee 
October 26, 2011 
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MOUNTAIN STATES HEALTH ALLIANCE 

Consolidated Balance Sheets 
(Dollars in Thousands) 

ASSETS· 

CURRENT ASSETS 
Cash and cash equivalents 

Current portion of investments 
Patient accounts receivable, less estimated allowances 

for uncollectible accounts of $53,366 in 2011 and 
$45,941in2010 

Other receivables, net 
Inventories and prepaid expenses 

TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS 

INVESTMENTS, less amounts required 
to meet current obligations 

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT, net 

OTHER ASSETS 
Goodwill - Note B 
Net deferred financing, acquisition costs and 

other charges, less current portion 
Other assets 

TOTAL OTHER ASSETS 

$ 

$ 

June 30, 
2011 2010 

112,768 $ 234,526 
116,175 25,092 

134,611 125,580 
19,614 17,926 
28,965 29,163 

412,133 432,287 

581,376 590,131 

797,418 695,598 

148,666 151,352 

29,844 30,819 
28,448 29,313 

206,958 211,484 

1,997,885 $ 1,929,500 
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June 30, 
2011 2010 

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS 

CURRENT LIABILITIES 
Accrued interest payable $ 20,047 $ 16,039 
Current portion of long-term debt and capital lease 

obligations 28,162 28,131 
Current portion of estimated fair value of derivatives 102,609 10,740 
Accounts payable and accrued expenses 98,819 99,227 
Accrued salaries, compensated absences and amounts 

withheld 57,800 47,280 
Estimated amounts due to third-party payors, net 14,813 10,155 

TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES 322,250 211,572 

OTHER LIABILITIES 
Long-term debt and capital lease obligations, less 

current portion 1,040,923 1,054,842 
Estimated fair value of derivatives, less current portion 8,123 123,560 
Deferred revenue 19,267 20,445 
Estimated professional liability self-insurance 9,692 9,541 
Other long-term liabilities 14,352 12,628 

TOTAL LIABILITIES 1,414,607 1,432,588 

COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES -

Notes D, F, G, and N 

NET ASSETS 
Unrestricted net assets 

Mountain States Health Alliance 400,395 317,485 
Noncontrolling interests in subsidiaries - Note B 171,984 168,359 

TOTAL UNRESTRICTED NET ASSETS 572,379 485,844 

Temporarily restricted net assets 
Mountain States Health Alliance 10,715 10,890 
Noncontrolling interests in subsidiaries - Note B 57 51 

TOTAL TEMPORARILY 
RESTRICTED NET ASSETS 10,772 10,941 

Permanently restricted net assets 127 127 

TOTAL NET ASSETS 583,278 496,912 

$ 1,997,885 $ 1,929,500 

See notes to consolidated financial statements. 4 



MOUNTAIN STATES HEALTH ALLIANCE 

Consolidated Statements of Operations 
(Dollars itt Thousands) 

Year Ended June 30, 
2011 2010 

Revenue, gains and support: 
Net patient service revenue $ 960,254 $ 928,270 
Other operating revenue 15,871 16,009 

TOTAL REVENUE, GAINS AND SUPPORT 976,125 944,279 

Expenses: 
Salaries and wages 34~,208 325,663 
Physician salaries and wages 59,249 54,489 
Contract labor 5,964 6,546 

Employee benefits 67,139 68,362 

Fees 85,919 82,542 
Supplies 169,362 175,469 
Utilities 17,300 16,193 

Other 69,647 69,154 
Depreciation 87,499 68,436 
Amortization - Note B 2,559 13,123 
Estimated provision for bad debts 6,174 7,961 
Interest and taxes 44,153 42,264 

TOTAL EXPENSES 957,173 930,202 

OPERATING INC01\1E 18,952 14,077 

Nonoperating gains (losses): 
Interest and dividend income 16,224 17,298 
Net realized gains on the sale of securities 1,957 2,385 
Net unrealized gains on securities 22,168 15,018 
Derivative related income 5,072 4,394 
Loss on early extinguishment of debt - Note F (3,029) 
Change in estimated fair value of derivatives 23,049 (8,607) 
Other nonoperating gains (losses) · (2,653) 512 
Net assets released from restrictions used for 

operations 1,893 2,627 

NET NONOPERATING GAINS 67,710 30,598 

EXCESS OF REVENUE, GAINS AND SUPPORT 
OVER EXPENSES AND LOSSES $ 86,662 $ 44,675 

See notes to consolidated financial statements. 5 



MOUNTAIN STATES HEALTH ALLIANCE 

Consolidated Statements of Changes in Net Assets 
(Dollars in Thousands) 

Year Ended June 2011 

Mountain States Noncontrolling 
Health Alliance Interests Total 

U1\1R.ESTRICTED NET ASSETS: 
Excess of Revenue, Gains and Support over 

Expenses and Losses $ 83,269 $ 3,393 $ 86,662 
Pension and other defined benefit plan adjustments 620 617 1,237 
Cumulative effect of a change in accounting 

principle - Note B (2,965) (2,965) 
Net assets released from restrictions used for the 

purchase of property, plant and equipment 1,946 1,946 
Distributions to noncontrolling interests (270) (270) 
Repurchases of non controlling interests and other 40 (I 15) (75) 

INCREASE IN UNRESTRICTED 
NET ASSETS 82,910 3,625 86,535 

TEMPORARILY RESTRICTED NET ASSETS: 
Restricted grants and contributions 3,612 58 3,670 
Net assets released from restrictions (3,787) (52) (3,839) 

INCREASE (DECREASE) IN TEMPORARILY 
RESTRICTED NET ASSETS (175) 6 (169) 

INCREASE IN TOTAL NET ASSETS 82~735 3,631 86,366 

NET ASSETS, BEGINNING OF YEAR 328,502 168,410 496,912 

NET ASSETS, END OF YEAR $ 411,237 $ 172,041 $ 583,278 

See notes to consolidated financial statements. 6 



MOUNTAIN STATES HEALTH ALLIANCE 

Consolidated Statements of Changes in Net Assets - Continued 
(Dollars in Thousands) 

Year Ended June 30, 2010 

Mountain States Noncontrolling 
Health Alliance Interests Total 

UNRESTRICTED NET ASSETS: 
Excess of Revenue, Gains and Support over 

Expenses and Losses $ 42,372 $ ·2,303 $ 44,675 
Pension and other defined benefit plan adjustments 796 793 1,589 
Net assets released from restrictions used for the 

purchase of property, plant and equipment 2,283 2,283 
Distributions to noncontrolling interests (151) (151) 
Repurchases ofnoncontrolling interests and other (63) (38) ( 101) 

INCREASE IN UNRESTRICTED 
NET ASSETS 45,388 2,907 48,295 

TEMPORARJLY RESTRICTED NET ASSETS: 
Restricted grants and contributions 3,585 88 3,673 
Net assets released from restrictions (4,825) (85) (4,910) 

INCREASE (DECREASE) IN TEMPORARILY 
RESTRICTED NET ASSETS (1,240) 3 (l,237) 

PERMANENTLY RESTRICTED NET ASSETS: 
Net assets released from restrictions by donor (50} (50l 

1NCREASE IN TOTAL NET ASSETS 44,098 2,910 47,008 

NET ASSETS, BEGINNING OF YEAR 284,404 165,500 449,904 

NET ASSETS, END OF YEAR $ 328,502 $ 168,410 $ 496,912 

See notes to consolidated financial statements. 7 



MOUNTAIN STATES HEALTH ALLIANCE 

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows 
(Dollars in Thou.sands) 

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES: 
Increase in net assets 
Adjustments to reconcile increase in net assets to 

net cash provided by operating activities: 
Provision for depreciation and amortization 
Loss on early extinguish.ment of debt 
Cumulative effect of a change in accounting principle 
Change in estimated fair value of derivatives 
Equity in net income of joint ventures, net 
Gain on sale of assets held for resale and 

disposal of assets 
Amounts received on interest rate swap settlements 
Income recognized through forward sale agreements 
Capital Appreciation Bond accretion and other 
Restricted contributions 
Pension and other defined benefit plan adjustments 
Increase (decrease) in cash due to change in: 

Net patient accounts receivable 
Other receivables 
Inventories and prepaid expenses 
Trading securities 
Other assets 
Accrued interest payable 
Accounts payable and accrued expenses 
Accrued salaries, compensated absences and 

amounts withheld 
Estimated amounts due from/to third-party payors, net 
Other long-term liabilities 
Estimated professional liability self-insurance 

Total adjustments 

NET CASH PROVIDED BY OPERATING ACTNITIES 

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES: 
Purchases of property, plant and equipment, property 

held for resale and property held for expansion, net 
Additions to goodwill 
Net decrease ill assets limited as to use 
Purchases of held-to-maturity securities 
Net distribution from joint ventures and 

unconsolidated affiliates 
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment and 

property held for resale 

NET CASH USED IN INVESTING ACTIVITIES 

$ 

Year Ended June 30, 
2011 2010 

86,366 $ 47,008 

90,472 81,982 
3,029 

2,965 
(23,049) 8,607 

(898) (1,117) 

(367) (548) 
(5,072) (4,394) 

(864) (864) 
2,738 2,071 

(3,670) (2,159) 
(l,237) 598 

(9,031) 3,232 
(2,802) (1,246) 

(643) (4,640) 
(123,966) (13,368) 

(3,632) (1,159) 
4,008 3,989 
2,741 (855) 

11,361 (2,289) 
4,658 3,757 
2,961 (201) 

151 (471) 

(53,176) 73.954 

33,190 120,962 

(172,786) (172,240) 
(279) 

81,383 50,362 
(41,060) (28,175) 

l,057 1,162 

812 9,565 

(130,873) (139,326) 
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Year Ended June 30, 
2011 2010 

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES: 
Payments on long-term debt and capi~ lease obligations, 

including deposits to escrow 
Payment of acquisition and financing costs 
Proceeds from issuance oflong-term debt and other 

financing arrangements 
Net amounts received on interest rate swap settlements 
Restricted contributions received 

NET CASH (USED IN) PROVIDED BY 
FINANCING ACTIVITIES 

NET DECREASE IN CASH AND 
CASH EQUIVALENTS 

$ 

(37,735) 
(1,716) 

5,954 
5,072 
4,350 

(24,075) 

(121,758) 

234,526 

{226,315) 
(3,565) 

235,158 
4,394 
3,382 

13,054 

(5,310) 

239,836 

$ 

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, beginning of year 

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, end of year 
======================= 112,768 234,526 

SUPPLE1v1ENTAL INFORMATION AND NON-CASH TRANSACTIONS: 

Cash paid for interest $ 39,507 $ 

Cash paid for federal and state income taxes $ 739 $ 

Construction related payables in accounts payable 
and accrued expenses $ 11,384 $ 

Property purchased through capital lease arrangement $ 15,951 $ 

Increase in receivable from sale of property $ - $ 

Decrease in land held for expansion related to property 
exchange transaction $ - $ 

Land held for expansion placed in use $ 4,904 $ 

38,666 

446 

14,847 

1,483 

3,432 

During the year ended June 30, 2010, the Alliance refinanced previously issued debt of$184,050. 

See notes to consolidated financial statements. 9 



MOUNTAIN STATES HEALTH ALLIANCE 

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 
(Dollars in Thousands) 

Ended June 2011and2010 

NOTE A--ORGANIZATION AND OPERATIONS 

Mountain States Health Alliance (the Alliance) is a tax-exempt entity with operations primarily 
located in Washington, Sullivan, and Carter counties of Tennessee and Smyth, Wise, Dickenson, 
Russell and Washington counties of Virginia. The initial funds for the establishment of the Alliance 
in 1945 were provided by individuals and various institutions. Membership of the Alliance consists 
ofindividuals and institutions who have contributed at least $100 to the capital fund of the Alliance 
and are entitled to vote at the annual election of the Board of Directors. 

The primary operations of the Alliance consist often acute and specialty care hospitals, as follows: 

Johnson City Medical Center (JCMC) - licensed for 658 beds 
Smyth County Community Hospital (SCCH) - licensed for 279 beds 
Indian Path Medical Center (IPMC) - licensed for 261 beds 
Norton Community Hospital (NCH) - licensed for 129 beds 
Sycamore Shoals Hospital (SSH) - licensed for 121 beds 
Johnston Memorial Hospital (JMH) - licensed for 116 beds 
Franklin Woods Community Hospital (FWCH) - licensed for 80 beds 
Russell County Medical Center (RCMC) - licensed for 78 beds 
Dickenson Community Hospital (DCH) - licensed for 25 beds 
Johnson County Community Hospital (JCCH) - licensed for 2 beds 

FWCH opened in July 2010, replacing operations at North Side Hospital (NSH) and Johnson City 
Specialty Hospital (JCSH). NSH and JCSH were licensed for 91 beds and 23 beds, respectively, 
prior to the opening of FWCH and a total of 64 beds were transferred within the Alliance. 

The Alliance has a 50.1 % interest in JMH. JMH is also the sole member of Abingdon Physician 
Partners (APP), a non~taxable corporation that owns and manages physician practices. 

The Alliance has a 50.1 % interest in NCH. NCH is also the sole member or shareholder of DCH 
and Norton Community Physician Services, LLC (NCPS), a taxable corporation that consists of 
physician practices and a pharmacy and; Community Home Care (CHC), a taxable corporation that 
provides home medical equipment. 

The Alliance has an 80% interest in SCCH. SCCH is the sole shareholder of Southwest Community 
Health Services, Inc. (SWCH), a taxable entity that operates a pharmacy and provides other health 
services. 

The activities and accounts of JMH, NCH and SCCH are included in the accompanying consolidated 
financial statements. 
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MOUNTAIN STATES HEALTH ALLIANCE 

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements - Continued 
(Dollars in Thousands) 

Years Ended June 30, 2011 and 2010 

NOTE A--ORGANIZATION AND OPERATIONS - Continued 

The Alliance is the sole shareholder of Blue Ridge Medical Management Corporation (BRMM), a 
for-profit entity that owns and manages physician practices and provides other healthcare services to 
patients in Tennessee and Virginia. BRMM also operates as a medical office real estate developer 
by owning, selling and leasing real estate to physician practices and other entities. BRMM is either 
the sole shareholder, a significant shareholder, or member of the following organizations: 

Mountain States Physician Group, Inc. (MSPG): A company that contracts with physicians to 
provide services to BRMM physician practices. 

Mountain States Properties, Inc. (MSPI): An entity that owns and manages certain real estate 
(primarily medical office buildings) and provides rehabilitation and fitness services. In addition, 
MSPI is a counter-party to various financing transactions, including interest rate swaps. 

Mediserve Medical Equipment ojKingsport, Inc. (Mediserve): A company that provides durable 
medical equipment services. 

Synergy Health Group LLC: An affiliation of member hospitals that work together to maximize 
cost savings opportunities through aggregated buying power. 

Kingsport Ambulatory Surge1y Center (KASC) (d.b.a. Kingsport Day Surgery): A joint venture 
operating as an outpatient surgery center which performs procedures primarily in otolaryngology, 
orthopedics, ophthalmology, and general surgery. BRM1vI has a 43 % ownership ofKASC at June 
30, 2011 and 2010; however, BRrvfM maintains control over K.ASC through a management 
agreement. As such, the accounts and activities of KASC are included in the accompanying 
consolidated financial statements. 

Piney Flats Urgent Care (PFUC): A for-profit entity that provides urgent care patient services. 
BRMM has a 75% ownership ofPFUC. The accounts and activities of PFUC are included in the 
accompanying consolidated financial statements. 

The Alliance is the primary beneficiary of the activities of Mountain States Foundation, Inc. (MSF), 
a not-for-profit foundation formed to coordinate fundraising and development activities of the 
Alliance. The Alliance is also the beneficiary of the Mountain States Health Alliance Auxiliary 
(Auxiliary), a not-for-profit organization formed to coordinate volunteer activities of the Alliance. 
The activities and accounts of MSF and the Auxiliary are included in the accompanying 
consolidated financial statements. 

The Alliance is a majority shareholder oflntegrated Solutions Health Network, LLC (ISHN). The 
primary function ofISHN is to establish, operate and administer a provider-sponsored health care 
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MOUNTAIN STATES HEALTH ALLIANCE 

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements - Continued 
(Dollars in Thousands) 

Years Ended June 2011and2010 

NOTE A--ORGANIZATION AND OPERATIONS - Continued 

delivery network. The accounts and activities of ISHN are included in the accompanying 
consolidated financial statements. 

NOTE B--SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

Principles of Consolidation: The accompanying consolidated financial statements include the 
accounts of the Alliance and its subsidiaries after elimination of all significant intercompany 
accounts and transactions. The Alliance classifies those activities directly associated with its 
mission of providing healthcare services, as well as other activities deemed significant to its 
operations, as operating activities. 

Noncontrolling Interests in Subsidiaries: Noncontrolling interests represent the portion of equity 
(net assets) in a subsidiary not attributable, directly or indirectly, to a parent organization. Effective 
July 1) 2010, the Alliance adopted Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) Accounting 
Standards Codification (ASC) 958-810, Consolidation. ASC 958-810 amends the accounting for, 
and the financial statement presentation of, noncontrolling interests in a subsidiary within 
consolidated financial statements. ASC 958-810 requires that a noncontrolling interest in the net 
assets of a subsidiary be accounted for and reported as net assets and provides revised guidance on 
the treatment of income and losses attributable to the noncontrolling interest and changes in 
ownership interests in a subsidiary. 

The Alliance adopted ASC 958-810 during 2011 and reclassified $168,410 of noncontrolling 
interests from minority interest to net assets as ofJune 30, 2010. These amounts are reflected net of 
distributions and pension and other defined benefit plan adjustments within net assets in the 
Consolidated Balance Sheets. The Alliance attributed an Excess of Revenue, Gains and Support 
over Expenses and Losses of $3,393 and $2,303 for the years ending June 30, 2011 and 2010, 
respectively, to the noncontrolling interests in JMH, NCH, SCCH, KASC, PFUC and ISHN based 
on the noncontrolling interests' respective ownership percentage. None of the noncontrolling 
interests include redemption features. 

Use of Estimates: The preparation of the consolidated financial statements in confomrity with 
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America requires management to 
make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and 
disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities as of the date of the consolidated financial statements. 
Estimates also affect the reported amounts of revenue and expenses during the reporting period. 
Actual results could differ from these estimates. 

Cash and Cash Equivalents: Cash and cash equivalents include all highly liquid investments with a 
maturity of three months or less when purchased. Cash and cash equivalents designated as assets 
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MOUNT Alt..J ST ATES HEAL TH ALLIANCE 

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements- Continued 
(DollarsinThousands) 

Years Ended June 30, 2011and2010 

NOTE B--SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - Continued 

limited as to use or uninvested amounts included in investment portfolios are not included as cash 
and cash equivalents on the Consolidated Balance Sheets. 

Investments: Investments as reported in the Consolidated Balance Sheets include trading securities, 
held-to-maturity securities and assets limited as to use (Note C). FASB ASC 958-320, Jnvestments­
Debt and Equity Securities, allows not-for-profit organizations to report in a manner similar to 
business entities by identifying securities as available-for-sale or held-to-maturity and to exclude the 
unrealized gains and losses on those securities from the Performance Indicator (as defined below). 
Investments which the Alliance has the positive intent and ability to hold to maturity are considered 
as held-to-maturity. Substantially all other investments (including assets limited as to use) are 
considered as trading securities. Management annually evaluates the held-to-maturity investment 
portfolio and recognizes any ''other-than-temporary" losses as deductions from the Performance 
Indicator. Management's evaluation considers the amount of decline in fair value, as well as the time 
period of any such decline. Management does not believe any investment classified as held-to­
maturity is 0th.er-than-temporarily impaired at June 30, 2011. 

Within the trading securities portfolio, all debt securities and marketable equity securities with 
readily determinable fair values are reported at fair value based on quoted market prices. 
Investments without readily determinable fair values are reported at estimated fair market value 
pursuant to F ASB ASC 825, Financial lnstn.ements. Guaranteed investment contracts are reported at 
contract value. 

Realized gains and losses on trading securities and assets limited as to use are computed using the 
specific identification method for cost detennination. Interest and dividend income is reported net of 
related investment fees. 

Investments in joint ventures are reported under the equity method of accounting, which 
approximates the Alliance's equity in the underlying net book value, unless the ownership structure 
requires consolidation. Other assets include investments in joint ventures of $2,367 and $2,418 at 
June 30, 2011 and 2010, respectively. 

Inventories: Inventories, consisting primarily of medical supplies, are stated at the lower of cost or 
market. 

Property, Plant and Equipment: Property, plant and equipment is stated on the basis of cost, or if 
donated, at the fair value at the date of gift. Generally, depreciation is comput~d by the straight-line 
method over the estimated useful life of the asset. Equipment held under capital lease obligations is 
amortized under the straight-line method over the shorter of the lease term or estimated useful life. 
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MOUNTAIN ST ATES HEAL TH ALLIANCE 

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements - Continued 
(Dollars in Thousand!J) 

Years Ended June 2011and2010 

NOTE B--SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - Continued 

Amortization of building and equipment held under capital lease is shown as a part of depreciation 
expense and accumulated depreciation in the accompanying consolidated financial statements. 

Interest costs incurred on borrowed funds during the period of construction of capital assets is 
capitalized as a component of the cost of acquiring those assets. The amount capitalized is net of 
investment earnings on assets limited as to use derived from borrowings designated for capital 
assets. Renewals and betterments are capitalized and depreciated over their useful life, whereas costs 
of maintenance and repairs are expensed as incurred. 

The Alliance reviews capital assets for indications of potential impairment when there are changes in 
circumstances related to a specific asset. If this review indicates that the carrying value of these 
assets may not be recoverable, the Alliance estimates future cash flows from operations and the 
eventual disposition of such assets. If the sum of these undiscounted future cash flows is less than 
the carrying amount of the asset, a write-down to estimated fair value is recorded. The Alliance did 
not recognize any impairment losses during 2011and2010. 

Other assets include property held for resale and property held for expansion of $4,23 0 and $9, 13 5, 
respectively, at June 30, 2011 and 2010. During 2011, property held for expansion totaling 
approximately $4,905 was transferred to property, plant and equipment in conjunction with the 
construction ofFWCH. Property held for resale and property held for expansion primarily represent 
land contributed to, or purchased by, the Alliance plus costs incurred to develop the infrastructure of 
such land. Management annually evaluates its investment and records non-temporary declines in 
value when it is detennined the ultimate net realizable value is less than the recorded amount. No 
such declines were identified in 2011 and 2010. 

Goodwill: Goodwill represents the difference between the acquisition cost of assets and the 
estimated fair value of net tangible and any separately identified intangible assets. Prior to July 1, 
2010, the Alliance amortized goodwill associated with its not-for-profit subsidiaries under the 
straight-line method over various estimated useful lives ranging from 10 to 25 years. However, 
effective July 1, 2010, ASC 958-805, Not-for-Profit Entities, requires the not-for-profit entities 
within the Alliance to cease amortization of goodwill, perform a transitional impairment test and 
perform annual impairment testing in the future. 

As a result of its transitional impairment testing as of July 1, 2010, management determined that 
approximately $2,965 of goodwill associated with one of its reporting units was impaired, and such 
impairment has been reflected as the Cumulative Effect of a Change in Accounting Principle in the 
2011 Consolidated Statement of Changes in Net Assets. Based upon this transitional testing, 
management does not believe any remaining goodwill acquired by its not-for-profit entities to be 
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MOUNTAIN STATES HEALTH ALLIANCE 

Notes tn Consolidated Financial Statements- Continued 
(Dollars in Thousands) 

Years Ended June 30, 2011and2010 

NOTE B--SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - Continued 

impaired. The reporting unit for evaluation of substantially all such goodwill is the Alliance's 
aggregate acute-care operations. 

For goodwill acquired by its for-profit subsidiaries, the Alliance does not amortize goodwill and 
annually perfonns impairment testing. Based upon this annual impainnent testing, management has 
determined that there is no impairment related to goodwill associated with its for-profit subsidiaries. 

Deferred Financing, Acquisition Costs and Other Charges: Other assets, including deferred 
financing, acquisition costs and other charges, total $29,844 and $30,819 at June 30, 2011and2010, 
respectively. Deferred financing costs are amortized over the life of the respective bond issue 
principally using the average bonds outstanding method. Other intangible assets include licenses 
and similar assets and are being amortized over the intangible's estimated useful life under the 
straight-line method. 

Prior to 2009, the Alliance routinely financed interest rate swap and other derivative transaction 
issuance costs through modification of future settlement terms. As such, the unamortized issuance 
costs of these derivatives are included as deferred financing costs in the accompanying Consolidated 
Balance Sheets and are being amortized over the term of the respective derivative instrument. The 
unpaid issuance costs are included as a part of the estimated fair value of derivatives in the 
accompanying Consolidated Balance Sheets. Beginning in 2009, interest rate swap and derivative 
transaction issuance costs are expensed as incurred. 

Derivative Financial Instruments: As further described in Note D, the Alliance is a party to interest 
rate swap and other derivative agreements. These financial instruments are not designated as hedges 
and have been presented at estimated fair market value in the accompanying Consolidated Balance 
Sheets as either current or long-term liabilities, based upon the remaining term of the instrument. 
Changes in the estimated fair value of these derivatives are included in the Consolidated Statements 
of Operations as part of nonoperating gains (losses). Net settlements and other related income of 
derivatives are also reflected as a part of the Performance Indicator (described below). 

These fair values are based on the estimated amount the Alliance would receive, or be required to 
pay, to enter into equivalent agreements at the valuation date. The fair value of various derivatives 
are netted on the Consolidated Balance Sheets based on management's evaluation of the settlement 
provisions in the master contract. Gross positions of these derivatives are disclosed in Note D. Due 
to the nature of these financial instruments, such estimates of fair value are subject to significant 
change in the near term. 

Estimated Professional Liability Se?f-Insurance and Other Long-Term Liabilities: Self-insurance 
liabilities include estimated reserves for reported and unreported professional liability claims (Note 
G) and are recorded at the estimated net present value of such claims. Other long-term liabilities 
include contributions payable and obligations under deferred compensation arrangements, a defined 
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MOUNTAIN STATES HEALTH ALLIANCE 

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements - Continued 
(Dollars in Thousands) 

Years Ended June 2011and2010 

NOTE B--SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - Continued 

benefit pension plan, a post-retirement employee benefit plan as well as other liabilities which 
management estimates are not payable within one year. 

Net Patient Service Revenue/Receivables: Net patient service revenue is reported on the accrual 
basis in the period in which services are provided at the estimated net realizable amounts, including 
estimated retroactive adjustments under reimbursement agreements with third-party payors. 
Retroactive adjustments are accrued on an estimated basis in the period the related services are 
rendered and adjusted in future periods as final settlements are determined. The Alliance's revenue 
recognition policies related to self-pay and other types of payors emphasize revenue recognition 
only when collections are reasonably assured. 

Patient accounts receivable are reported net of both an estimated allowance for uncollectible 
accounts and an estimated allowance for contractual adjustments. The contractual allowance 
represents the difference between established billing rates and estimated reimbursement from 
Medicare, Medicaid, Tenn Care and other third-party payment programs. Current operations include 
a provision for bad debts in the Consolidated Statements of Operations estimated based upon the age 
of the patient accounts receivable, prior experience and any unusual circumstances (such as local, 
regional or national economic conditions) which affect the collectibility of receivables, including 
management's assumptions about conditions it expects to exist and courses of action it expects to 
take. 

The Alliance's policy does not require collateral or other security for patient accounts receivable. 
The Alliance routinely accepts assignment of, or is otherwise entitled to receive, patient benefits 
payable under health insurance programs, plans or policies. 

Charity Care: The Alliance accepts all patients regardless of their ability to pay. A patient is 
classified as a charity patient by reference to certain established policies of the Alliance and various 
guidelines outlined by the Federal Government. These policies define charity as those services for 
which no payment is anticipated and, as such, charges at established rates are not included in net 
patient service revenue. 

In addition to the charity care services described above, the Alliance provides a number of other 
services to benefit the poor for which little or no payment is received. Medicare, Medicaid, 
Tenn Care and State indigent programs do not cover the full cost of providing care to beneficiaries of 
those programs. The Alliance also provides services to the community at large for which it receives 
little or no payment. 

Excess of Revenue, Gains and Support Over Expenses and Loss.es: The Consolidated Statements of 
Operations and the Consolidated Statements of Changes in Net Assets includes the caption Excess of 
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MOUNTAIN STATES HEALTH ALLIANCE 

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements- Continued 
(Dollars in Thousands) 

Years Ended June 30, 2011and2010 

NOTE B--SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - Continued 

Revenue, Gains and Support Over Expenses and Losses (the Performance Indicator). Changes in 
unrestricted net assets which are excluded from the Performance Indicator, consistent with industry 
practice, include contributions of long-lived assets or amounts restricted to the purchase of long­
lived assets, pension and related adjustments, and distributions to, or contributions from, owners and 
transactions with noncontrolling interests. 

Income Ta..t...:es: The Alliance is classified as an organization exempt from income taxes under 
Section 501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code. As such, no provision for income taxes has been 
made in the accompanying consolidated financial statements for the Alliance and its tax-exempt 
subsidiaries. Taxable entities account for income taxes in accordance with FASB ASC 740, Income 
Taxes (Note L). The Alliance has no significant uncertain tax positions at June 30, 2011 and 2010. 

Temporari~y and Pennanently Restricted Net Assets: Temporarily restricted net assets are those 
whose use has been limited by donors to a specific time period or purpose. When a donor or time 
restriction expires; that is, when a stipulated time restriction ends or purpose restriction is fulfilled, 
temporarily restricted net assets are reclassified as unrestricted net assets and reported in the 
Consolidated Statements of Operations and Consolidated Statements of Changes in Net Assets as net 
assets released from restrictions. Permanently restricted net assets have been restricted by donors to 
be maintained by the Alliance in perpetuity. 

Fair Value Measurement: The Alliance had previously adopted F ASB ASC 820, Fair Value 
·Measurements and Disclosures, which defines fair value, establishes a framework for measuring fair 
value under generally accepted accounting principles and expands disclosures about fair value 
measurements. 

In January 2010, the F ASB issued ASU 2010-06, Fair Value Measurements and Disclosures (Topic 
820) - Improving Disclosures about Fair Value Measurements (ASU 2010-06). ASU 2010-06 
requires new disclosures regarding significant transfers in and out of Levels 1 and 2, as well as 
information about activity in Level 3 fair value measurements, including presenting information 
about purchases, sales, issuances and settlements on a gross versus a net basis in the Level 3 activity 
roll forward. In addition, ASU 2010-06 clarifies existing disclosures regarding input and valuation 
techniques, as well as the level of disaggregation for each class of assets and liabilities. The Alliance 
adopted ASU 2010-06 in 2011, except for the disclosures related to purchases, sales, issuance and 
settlements, which will be effective for the Alliance beginning July 1, 2012. The adoption of ASU 
2010-06 did not, and is not expected to, have an impact on the Alliance's consolidated financial 
statements. 

Subsequent Events: The Alliance evaluated all events or transactions that occurred after June 30, 
2011, through October 26, 2011, the date the consolidated financial statements were available to be 
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements - Continued 
(Dollars in Thousands) 

2011and2010 

NOTE B--SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - Continued 

issued. During this period management did not note any material recognizable subsequent events 
that required recognition or disclosure in the June 30, 2011 consolidated financial statements, other 
than as discussed in Notes D, F and S. 

New Accounting Pronouncements: In August 2010, the F ASB issued Accounting Standards Update 
(ASU) 2010-23, Health Care Entities-Measuring Charity Care for Disclosure. ASU 2010-23 is 
intended to reduce the diversity in practice regarding the measurement basis used in the disclosure of 
charity care. ASU 2010-23 requires that cost, identified as the direct and indirect costs of providing 
the charity care, be used as the measurement basis for disclosure purposes. ASU 2010-23 also 
requires disclosure of the method used to identify or determine such costs. The Hospital will adopt 
ASU 2010-23 in fiscal year 2012. Management does not expect the adoption of ASU 2010-23 to 
have a material impact on the consolidated financial statements. 

In August 2010, the FASB issued ASU 2010-24,Health Care Entities-Presentation of Insurance 
Claims and Related Insurance Recoveries. The amendments in the ASU clarify that a health care 
entity may not net insurance recoveries against related claim liabilities. In addition, the amount of 
the claim liability must be determined without consideration of insurance recoveries. ASU 2010-24 
is effective for the Alliance beginning July 1, 2011 and management is currently evaluating the 
impact of this ASU on the consolidated financial statements. 

In July 2011, the FASB issued ASU 2011-07, Healthcare Entities (Topic 954): Presentation. and 
Disclosure of Patient Service Revenue, Provision for Bad Debts, and Allowance for Doubtful 
Accounts for Certain Healthcare Entities, which will require certain healthcare entities to reclassify 
the provision for bad debts associated with providing patient care from an operating expense to a 
deduction from net patient service revenue in the Consolidated Statements of Operations. 
Additionally, ASU 2011-07 requires enhanced disclosures about an entity's policies for recognizing 
revenue and assessing bad debts and qualitative and quantitative information about changes in the 
allowance for doubtful accounts. The Alliance intends to adopt ASU 2011-07 in fiscal year 2013. 
Management does not expect the adoption of ASU 2011-07 to have a material impact on the 
consolidated financial statements. 

Reclassifications: Certain 2010 amounts have been reclassified to conform with the 2011 
presentation in the accompanying consolidated financial statements. 

NOTE C--INVESTMENTS 

Assets limited as to use are summarized by designation or restriction as follows at June 30: 
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NOTE C--INVESTMENTS - Continued 

2011 2010 

Designated or restricted: 
Under safekeeping agreements $ 28,349 $ 52,050 
Under guarantee agreements 92,720 89,486 
By Board for capital improvements 4 2,776 
Under bond indenture agreements: 

For debt service and interest payments 67,874 78,612 
For capital acquisitions 28,835 76,241 

217,782 299,165 
Less: amount required to meet current obligations (116,175) (25,092) 

$ 101,607 $ 274,073 

Assets limited as to use consist of the following at June 30: 

2011 2010 

Cash, cash equivalents and money market funds $ 115,579 $ 170,897 
U.S. Government securities 1,795 1,795 
U.S. Agency securities 7,688 12,319 
Guaranteed investment contracts 92,720 114,154 

$ 217,782 $ 299,165 

Trading securities consist of the following at June 30: 

2011 2010 

Cash, cash equivalents and money market funds $ 29,159 $ 4,799 
U.S. Government securities 9,409 3,137 
U.S. Agency securities 31,551. 13,760 
Corporate and foreign bonds 126,543 11,688 
Municipal ob1igatjons 451 1,461 
Preferred and asset backed securities 8,945 7,023 
U.S. equity securities 94,834 139,168 
Other 32,718 28,608 

$ 333,610 $ 209,644 

19 



MOUNTAIN STATES HEALTH ALLIANCE 

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements - Condnued 
(Dollars in Thousands) 

Ended June 2011and2010 

NOTE C--INVESTMENTS - Continued 

Held-to-Maturity securities are carried at amortized cost and consist of the following at June 30: 

2011 2010 

Cash, cash equivalents and money market funds $ 753 $ 1,131 
Corporate and foreign bonds 135,745 103,968 
Municipal obligations 9,661 1,315 

$ 146,159 $ 106Al4 

Held-to-maturity securities had gross unrealized gains and losses of$6,838 and $276, respectively, 
at June 30, 2011 and $5,525 and $607, respectively at June 30, 2010. At June 30, 2011, the Alliance 
held nine securities within the held-to-maturity portfolio with a fair value and unrealized loss of 
$549 and $44, respectively, which had been at an unrealized loss position for over one year. At June 
30, 2010, the Alliance held one security within the held-to-maturity portfolio with a fair value and 
unrealized loss of $591 and $166, respectively, which had been at an unrealized loss position for 
over one year. At June 30, 2011, the contractual maturities of held-to-maturity securities were 
$13,816 due in one year orless, $55,563 due from one to five years and $76,780 due after five years. 
At June 30, 2010, the contractual maturities ofheld-to-maturity securities were $13,389 due in one 
year or less, $48,44 7 due from one to five years and $44,578 due after five years. 

At June 30, 2011 and 2010, the Alliance held investments in certain limited partnerships and hedge 
funds of $32, 718 and $28,608, respectively, that have a wide range of investment strategies with 
various levels of risk. These funds are included within trading securities and do not have readily 
determinable fair values. The funds are reported at estimated fair market value pursuant to F ASB 
ASC 825, Financial Instruments. 

The Alliance has investments in several joint ventures and. corporations which are accounted for 
under the equity method of accounting. 

As a part of the acquisition of membership interests in JMH, SCCH and NCH, the Alliance has 
committed to invest $132,000, $48, 100, and $45,000, respectively. Cumulative amounts expended 
at June 30, 2011 under these commitments are approximately $150,184. 

NOTE D--DERIV ATIVE TRANSACTIONS 

The Alliance is a party to a number of derivative transactions. These derivatives have not been 
designated as hedges and are valued at estimated fair value in the accompanying Consolidated 
Balance Sheets. Management's primary objective in holding such derivatives is to introduce a 
variable rate component into its fixed rate debt structure. Under the terms of these agreements, 
changes in the interest rate environment could have a significant effect on the Alliance. 
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NOTE D--DERIV ATIVE TRANSACTIONS - Continued 

These derivative agreements require that the Alliance post additional collateral for the derivatives' 
fair market value deficits above specified levels. Such investments are included as assets limited as 
to use. As of June 3 0, 2011, management believes the Alliance was fully collateralized with respect 
to the derivative agreements and management does not believe such collateral is exposed to third­
party credit risk. Further, certain of the agreements contain requirements regarding maintenance of 
financial and liquidity ratios. Management has represented the Alliance is in compliance with all 
such covenants at June 30, 2011. 

Interest Rate Swaps: The Alliance is a party to six interest rate swap agreements with Merrill Lynch 
as the counterparty. The terms of five of these agreements were modified without settlement during 
2011 and no gain or loss was realized. However, such modifications did impact the estimated fair 
value of these interest rate swaps. A liability, representing the estimated net fair value of these 
swaps, of $8,123 and $33,910 was recognized by the Alliance as of June 30, 2011 and 2010, 
respectively. 

The following is a summary of five of these interest rate swap agreements at June 30, 2011: 

Paf._ments by: 

Notional Estimated 
Swap Amount Term Count.erl!_ar~ Alliance Fair Value 

A $ 170,000 4/2008-4/2026 1.265% through April 2013; 0.00% through April 2014, $ 3,028 
1.07% through April 2014; then USD-SIFMA 

then 71.l 0% of Municipal Swap Index 
USD-ISDA Swap Rate 

B 95,000 4/2008-4/2026 1.265% through April 2013; 0.00% through April 2014, 1,729 
1.08% through April 2014; then USD-SIFMA 

then 71.18% of Munidpal Swap Index 
USD-ISDA Swap Rate 

c 173,030 4/2008-4/2034 1.315% through April 2013; 0.00% through April 2014, 741 
1.12% through April 2014; then USD-SIFMA 

then 72.35% of Municipal Swap Index 
USD-ISDA Swap Rate 

D 82,055 12/2007-7/2033 1
> 3.493% through July 2012; 1>4.41 % through July 2012; (9,363) 

then 0% then .312% 
2
> USD-LIBOR-BBA through 2VSD-SIFMA 
July 2012, then 67% USD-

LIBOR-BBA 

E 50,000 2/2008-7 /203 8 67.00% of USD-LlBOR-BBA USD-SIFMA (3,918) 
plus .145% 

Deferred financing and acquisition costs, net of amortization, include $6,480 and $6,823 at June 30, 
2011 and 2010, respectively, related to these swaps. 
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NOTE D--DERIV ATIVE TRANSACTIONS - Continued 

In addition to the swaps described above, the Alliance and Merrill Lynch are also parties to a total 
return swap in the notional amount of $23)100 which has an estimated fair value of $(340) and 
$(252) at June 30, 2011 and 2010, respectively. The agreement consists of the following: 

• An agreement that requires the Alliance to pay a variable rate of USD-SIFMA Municipal 
Swap Index through July 1, 2012 (or termination of the swap) on a notional amount equal to 
the outstanding 2001A Hospital Revenue and Improvement Bonds (the 2001A Reference 
Bonds). The Alliance receives a fixed rate of 6.25% of the outstanding 2001 A Reference 
Bonds. 

A "total return provision" under which the Alliance will pay (or receive) an amount equal to 
the product of the outstanding 2001A Reference Bonds multiplied by the difference between 
the outstanding 2001A Reference Bonds and the 2001A Reference Bonds' market price at 
termination, as defined in the agreement. In the event the swap does not terminate prior to 
July 1, 2012, there would be no settlement of this component as there would be no 
outstanding 2001A Reference Bonds. 

The Alliance is also party to a total return swap with Lehman Brothers as the counterparty. Lehman 
Brothers filed for bankruptcy in September 2008. The Alliance subsequently received notification 
from Lehman Brothers Special Financing, Inc. indicating the intent of the countetparty to terminate 
this agreement effective January 1, 2009. The Alliance and Lehman Brothers Special Financing, 
Inc. have been unable to reach a settlement agreement. In September 2010, the Alliance was issued 
a subpoena to furnish certain documentation related to the transaction. A protocol has been put into 
place by the bankruptcy court whereby the parties are to undergo alternate dispute resolution, 
including non-binding arbitration, which management anticipates will occur in 2012. 

The fair value of these swaps is undetemtlnable at January 1, 2009, as prior to the tennination date 
Lehman Brothers liquidated the underlying referenced securities, making a valuation not 
commercially viable. An estimated liability of $10,565 and $10, 7 40 was recognized by the Alliance 
as of June 30, 2011 and 2010, respectively. Management believes that the liability as recorded at 
June 30, 2011 is sufficient to cover any exposure arising from litigation in this matter. However, it 
is reasonably possible management's estimate may change in the near term, although the amount of 
any change cannot be estimated. Due to the termination of this agreement, the estimated liability is 
included as a current liability in the accompanying Consolidated Balance Sheets. 

A third party holds collateral with a fair market value of approximately $13,381 and $13,570, 
respectively, at June 30, 2011 and2010, with respect to these Lehman derivative agreements. Such 
collateral is included as current assets limited as to use. 
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NOTE D--DERJVATIVE TRANSACTIONS- Continued 

The arrangement consists of nine agreements each with three separate components (described 
below) with notional values of $23,600, $8,000, and $8,750 each. The swaps generally consist of 
the following: 

• An arrangement that calls for the Alliance to pay a variable rate (SIFMA Municipal Swap 
Index) plus certain fixed payment amounts and receive a payment equal to the interest paid 
by the Alliance on a portion of its early extinguished, but still outstanding, 2000A and 
2000B Hospital Mortgage Revenue Refunding Bonds (the Reference Bonds) (whose fixed 
rates range from 7.50% to 7.75%). 

• An arrangement that requires the Alliance to pay a fixed rate of 4.211 % through either July 
1, 2025, 2029 or 203 3 (or termination of the swap) on the outstanding Reference Bonds and 
receive a variable rate of 67% of USD-LIBOR-BBA on the outstanding Reference Bonds; 
and 

• A "total return provision'' under which the Alliance will pay (or receive) the difference 
between the outstanding Reference Bonds, multiplied by 132%, less the fair value of the 
Reference Bonds on the date of termination and any fixed interest payments made under the 
arrangements described above. In the event the swaps do not ternrinate prior to their stated 
termination dates (2025, 2029 or 2033), there would be no settlement of this component as 
there would be no outstanding Reference Bonds. 

The swap also contains an agreement that consists of two separate components: 

• An arrangement that requires the Alliance to pay a fixed rate of 2.98% through July 1, 2016 
(or termination of the swap) on the outstanding, but previously defeased, 1991 Hospital 
Revenue and Improvement Bonds (the 1991 Reference Bonds) and receive a variable rate of 
67% ofUSD-LIBOR-BBA on the outstanding 1991 Reference Bonds; and 

• A "fixed payor provision" under which the Alliance will pay (or receive) the difference 
between the outstanding 1991 Reference Bonds multiplied by 100% and any fixed interest 
payments made as required under the agreement minus the outstanding 1991 Reference 
Bonds multiplied by the average market price at termination. In the event the swaps do not 
tenninate prior to their stated tennination date (2016), there would be no settlement of this 
component as there would be no outstanding 1991 Reference Bonds. 

Interest Rate Swap Option: In June 2004, the Alliance entered into an agreement with Bear Steams 
(acquired by JP Morgan) whereby Bear Steams has purchased from the Alliance an option to enter 
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into an interest rate swap agreement (swaption) with the Alliance on July 1, 2011, which is an 
optional redemption date related to the Alliance's early extinguished 2000A and 2000B Bonds (Note 
F). The purpose of this agreement was to effectively sell the call features related to the early 
extinguished Series 2000A and 2000B Bonds. As consideration under this agreement, the Alliance 
received a total of $42,500 in upfront payments as the swaption premium. Such amounts were 
initially recorded as estimated fair value of derivatives in the Consolidated Balance Sheets. 
Beginning 30 calendar days prior to July 1, 2011 and terminating 30 calendar days prior to July 1, 
2015, the counterparty has the periodic right to exercise the swaption. 

The underlying interest rate swap transactions to which the swaption transaction relates have the 
following terms: 

Notional Payments bl_: 
Swal!. Amount Term Counterparty Alliance 

2000A Ranging from $148,170 3 0 days following the 64% ofUSD- Fixed amounts ranging from 
through July 1, 2018 to exercise date through LIBOR-BBA 7 .13 % upon execution to 
$23,000 through July 2033 July2033 7 .50% through July 2033, 

based on notional amount 

2000B Ranging from $76,240 30 days following the 64% ofUSD- Fixed amounts ranging from 
through July 1, 2021 to exercise date through LIBOR-BBA 7.54% upon execution to 
$8,800 through July 2033 July 2033 8.00% through July 2033, 

based on notional amount 

The Alliance retained the right to terminate the swap ti on at any time prior to May 17, 2011 at its fair 
market value. A liability of $92,044 and $89,650, representing the estimated fair value of the 
swaption at June 30, 2011 and 2010, respectively, is included in estimated fair value of derivatives in 
the accompanying Consolidated Balance Sheets. As a derivative financial instrument, this swaption 
is extremely sensitive to changes in long-term interest rates and other elements in the financial 
marketplace. As such, estimates of fair value are subject to significant changes in the near term. 

Deferred financing and acquisition costs include $0 and $434 at June 30, 2011 and 2010, 
respectively, related to the costs of this transaction. The change in estimated fair value of 
derivatives in the accompanying Statements of Operations for 2011 and 2010 includes an unrealized 
loss of$2,394 and $11,628, respectively, related to this derivative. 

The interest rate swap option, described above, was terminated on October 13, 2011. To effectuate 
this termination, the Alliance transferred a portion of a Guaranteed Investment Contract (GIC), 
described below, to the third party as a termination payment. A gain of approximately $3,000 was 
recognized on this termination. 

24 



MOUNTAIN STATES HEALTH ALLIANCE 

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements - Continued 
(Dollars in Thousands) 

Years Ended June 30, 2011and2010 

NOTE D--DERIVATIVE TRANSACTIONS - Continued 

Forward Sale Agreements: In June 2004, the Alliance entered into two related forward sale 
agreements with the counterparty to the swaption agreements and the Master Trustee of the Series 
2000 Bonds. The forward sale agreements originally related to the Debt Service Reserve Fund and 
to the Debt Service Fund, respectively, (collectively, the ''Funds''), as established under provisions 
of the Master Trust Indenture related to the issuance of the Series 2000 Bonds. In consideration of 
the future earnings on the Funds, the counterpartypaid the Master Trustee a total of$30,000 during 
2005, to be held on behalf of the Alliance. In June 2006, one of these agreements was amended to 
also relate to the Series 2000C, 2000D, 2006A and 2006B Bonds, and to remove the Series 2000A 
Bonds from consideration under the agreement. As the original intent of these Funds was to secure 
debt service payments under the above referenced Bonds, the agreement requires these funds to be 
held under a guaranty agreement as further described below. 

In connection with the issuance of the Series 2007 Bonds and the derecognition of a portion of the 
Series 2000A Bonds, all of the outstanding Series 2000B Bonds, and all of the outstanding 2006B 
Bonds (Note F), one of these agreements as it relates to the Series 2000A and 2000B Bonds was 
partially terminated. As such, during 2008 the Alliance reduced its liability with respect to the 
portion related to the Series 2000A and 2000B Bonds, and paid the counterparty $6, 186 under the 
terms of the agreement. The agreement was amended in fiscal year 2011 to include the Series 
201 OA Bonds and to remove the Series 2000B and 2006B Bonds. 

A liability of $19,001 and $19 ,864 representing the unamortized payments from the counterparty is 
included as part of deferred revenue in the accompanying Consolidated Balance Sheets as of June 
30, 2011 and 2010, respectively. Amounts are being recognized as investment income over the life 
of the agreements. 

Pursuant to these agreements, the counterparty required that the Alliance's obligations under the 
swaption and forward sale agreements be collateralized under a guarantee agreement in favor of the 
counterparty. Due to various requirements of the Master Trust Indenture, the Alliance transferred to 
MSF a total of $42,500 that was in tum deposited with the counterparty as collateral in a GIC. 
Amounts received under the forward sale agreements were also deposited into the GIC. All GIC 
deposits earn interest compounded at4.14% for the first year, and at 3.5% thereafter through July 1, 
2011. The GIC deposits as of June 30, 2011 and 2010 totaled $92,720 and $89,486, respectively. 
The GIC was substantially utilized on October 13, 2011 to tenninate the interest rate swap option 
agreement discussed above and, as such, is included in the current portion of assets whose use is 
limited in the Consolidated Balance Sheet at June 30, 2011. 

NOTE E--PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 

Property, plant and equipment consist of the following at June 30: 
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Land $ 
Buildings and leasehold improvements 
Property and improvements held for leasing 
Equipment 
Buildings and equipment held under capital lease 

Less: Allowances for depreciation and amortization 

Construction in progress (Note N) 

$ 

2011 2010 

63,749 $ 58,037 
454,852 407,104 

80,568 84,421 
532,767 479,523 

42,720 22,679 

1,174,656 1,051,764 

(586,471) (569,913) 

588,185 481,851 
209,233 213,747 

797,418 $ 695,598 

Accumulated depreciation and amortization on property and improvements held for leasing purposes 
is $23,348 and $21,543 at June 30, 2011 and 2010, respectively. Net interest capitalized was 
$10,640 and $11,117 for the years ended June 30, 2011 and 2010, respectively. 

The Alliance is constructing replacement facilities for SCCH and JMH and is also performing 
various renovations on existing hospital facilities. During 2011 and 2010, management of the 
Alliance assessed the planned current and future use of the existing NSH, SCCH and JMH facilities 
as well as certain other facilities, and adjusted their estimated useful lives accordingly. 

NOTE F--LONG-TERM DEBT AND OTHER FINANCING ARRANGEMENTS 

Long-term debt and capital lease obligations consist of the following at June 30: 

Outstanding_ Bulance 
Descrie.non Muturities Rut es 2011 2010 

201 OA Hospital Revenue Bonds, net of $38,660 uninsured serially, through 2020 3.00% to 5.00% S 169,137 $ 169,176 
unamortized premium of$1,056 and $1 ,096 at $14,985 uninsured tenn bonds, due July 1, 2025 5.38% 
June 30, 2011 and 2010, respectively $19,385 uninsured tenn bonds, due July 1, 2030 5.63% 

$39,570 uninsured term bonds, due July I, 2038 6.50% 
$55,480 v.ninsured term bonds, due July I, 2038 6.00% 

201 OB Hospital Revenue Bonds. net of $27 ,330 uninsured serially, through 2020 2.50% to 5.00-/o 36,646 36,688 
unamortized premium ofS71 l and $753 at. June $4,355 uninsured term bonds, due July I. 2023 5.00% 
30, 201 J and 2010, respectively $4,250 uninsured term bonds, due July l, 2028 5.50Dlo 

2009A H:o~-pital Revenue Bonds. net of $725 uninsured term bonds, due July 1, 2019 7.25% 5,439 S.434 
unamortized discount ofS121 and $126 at June Sl,730 uninsured term bonds, due July 1, 2029 7.50% 
30, 20JJ aud 2010, respectively S3,105 uninsured term bonds. due July 1, 2038 7.75% 
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DescriptWn 

2009B Hospital Revenue Bonds 

2009C Hospital Revenue Bonds. net of 
unam011i1.ed discount ofS2,421 and S2,50S at 
June 30, 2011 and20IO, respectivc:ly 

2008A Hospital Revenue Bonds 

2008B Hospnal Revenue Bonds 

2007 A Hospital Revenue Bonds 

2007ll Taxable Hospital Revenue Bonds, 
bifurcated into sub-series B-1, B-2 and B-3 
during201 l 

2007C Hospital Revenue Bonds 

2006A Hospital First Mortgage Revenue Bonds, 
,net of unamortized premium of$147 and $153 
at June 30, 2011 and 20 l 0, respectively 

200 l A Hospital First Mortgage Revenue Bonds 

2001 Hospital Refunding and Improvement 
Revenue Bonds (NCH), net of unamortized 
discount ofS34 and $38 at June 30, 2011 and 
2010, respectively 

2000A Hospital First Mortgage Revenue 
Refunding Bonds 

2000(' Hospital First Mortgage Revenue Bonds 

20000 First Mortgage Taxable Bonds 

1998 Hospital Refunding and Improvement 
Revenue Bonds {JMH) 

Capitalized lease obligati()DS secured by 
buildings and equipment 

$7,500 promissory note secured by assets of 
Mediserve Medical Equipment of Kingsport, 
Inc. 

Capitalized lease obligations secured by 
equipment 

Master installment payment agreement 

$1,409 unsecured promissory note 

$10,221 note payable secured by property 

$1,065 note payable secured by land 

$6,332 promissory note secured by substantially 
all assets of the Alliance 

$3,955 note payable secured by property 

MflfUrities 

$5,535 uninsured term bonds, due July 1, 2038 

$21,100 uninsured term bonds, due July l, 2019 
$20,000 uninsumi tenn bonds, due July l, 2029 
$74,855 uninsured term bonds, due July l, 2038 

$13,245 uninsuw:f term bonds, due July I, 2038, subject to 
early redemption or tender 

$53,855 uninsurro tL"nn bonds, due July l, 2038, subject to 
early redemption ortender 

UninsW"Cd tem1 bonds, due July 1. 2038. redeemed in 
2011 

$307,900 uninsured term bonds, due July 1, 2033, subject 
to early redempti(llJ or tender 

Uninsured term bonds, due July I, 2032, redeemed in 2011 

$6,580 uninsured serially. through 2019 
$7,375 uninsured term bonds, due July 1, 2026 
$20.505 uninsured tenn bonds. due July l, 2031 
$135,175 llllinsured tenn bonds, due July l. 2036 

S23,l 00 term bonds, due July J, 2026, subject to early 
redl."Jllption or tender 

Sl.465 insured lenn bonds, due Dix:ember 1, 2012 
Sl,635 insured tellil bonds, due Dec-ember 1, 2014 
SS,815 insured tenn bonds, due December I, 2022 

$30,358 insured Capital Appreciation Bonds, interest and 
principal due July I, 2026 through 2030 

$34,325 insured ft."11ll bonds. due July I, 2026 

$14, 790 insured tenn bonds, due July J, 2026 

S6,49S uninsured 1erm bonds, due July l, 2016 
$7,620 uninsured term bonds, due July I, 2028 

Maturing through 2027 

Montbly principal and inlereSI payments of $56 beginning 
February 2007 maturing December 2011; remaining 
principal due January 2012 

Various monthly payments of monthly principal and 
interest 

Paid-off in 2011 

Monthly principal and interest payments of S23 beginninl! 
July 2008 lhrough September 2013; remaining principal 
and accrued interest due October 2014; note was paid-off 
in 201 l 

Various annual principal and intere.st payments tbrough 
April 2013: note was paid·offin20l l 

Monthly interest-only payments through October 2011: 
remaining principal and accrued interest due November 
2011 

Monthly principal payments ofS35 plus accrued interest 
beginning July 20 I 0 maturing June 2015; remaining 
principal due July 2015 

Monthly principal and interest payments ofS27 beginning: 
July 2010 maturing May 2015; remaining principal due 
June 2015 

Outslanding_ lJulan~ 
Rates 2011 2010 

8.(1()% 5,535 5,535 
7.25% 113,534 113,447 
7.50"/o 
7.75% 

Variable, 0.07% 13,245 13,245 
at June JO, 201 l 

Variable, 0.07% 53,855 54,050 
at June 30, 2011 

NA 4,305 

Variable, 307.900 314.190 
0.11% to 0.16% 
at June 30. 2011 

NA J,900 

5.00% 169.762 17Q.473 
S.25% 
S.50% 
5.50% 

6.85% 23,100 23.000 

5.75% 11,876 12,547 
6.00% 
6.00% 

6.63% 30,358 28,417 

8.50% 34,325 35,335 

S.50% 14.790 15,225 

5.25% 14,115 15,240 
5.38% 

3.18%to 16,153 l6,715 
13.01% 

LlBOR + 1.l 0% 5,473 6,064 

Various 587 J,325 

Unspecified 2,194 

LIBOR+ 1.25% 920 

6.25% 7,836 

5.50% 572 l,065 

UBOR -r 2.00% 5,945 6,332 

3.00% 3,743 3,955 
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Description 

Note payable under Master financing 
Agreement, secured by Equipment 

Note payable under Master Financing 
Agreement, secured by Equipment 

Maturi'tiPs 

Monthly principal and interest payments of $166 
beg.inning July 2010 maluring June 2017 

Monthly principal and interest payments ofS56 beginning 
July 20 l 0 maturing June 2017 

$4,926 convertible construction loan secured by Monthly interest-only payments through January 2011 
property and assigned rents followed by monthly principal and interest payments of 

$25 maturing December 2014; remaining principal and 
accrued interei.i due January 2015; note was paid-off in 
2011 

$ l,885 line of credit secured by property Monthly interest-only payments through Marcb 2011 
followed by monthly principal and interest payments of $9 
maturing February 2015: remaining principal and accrued 
interest due March 2015 

$1.593 note payable, secured by equipment Various annual principal payments through July 2014 

Capitalized lease obligation secured by medical Maturing through 2026 
office building (JMH) 

Less cummt portion 

Outstanding Balance 
Rat<'S 2011 2010 

4.62% 10.431 11.900 

3.75% 

Prime 
(stated minimum and 

maximum intel'C6irates 
of3.75% and 6.75%, 

respectively) 

Prime - 0.50% 
(stated minimum !111d 

maximum interest rotes 
of3.50% and 6.25%, 

re~tively) 

Unspecified 

9.72% 

3,580 

1,873 

1,593 

15,498 

4,100 

1.195 

265 

1.069,0&5 1.082,973 
(28,162) (28,131) 

$ 1,040,923 s 1,054,842 

In September 2010, in order to reduce credit risk and expenses, the Alliance replaced the existing 
letters of credit related to the Series 2007B, Series 2008A and Series 2008B Bonds with letters of 
credit held by several different financial institutions. The substitute letters of credit entitle the 
Master Trustee to draw amounts equal to the principal amounts of the respective series of Bonds 
outstanding and up to 37 days interest at a rate of 12%. The substitute letters of credit expire on 
September 29, 2013 unless renewed or replaced. 

Series 2010 Bonds: In April 2010, the Alliance issued $168,080 (Series 2010A) and $35,935 Series 
2010B fixed rate Hospital Refunding Revenue Bonds (collectively, the Series 2010 Bonds). 
Proceeds of the Series 2010A and the Series 2010B Bonds were used to refinance outstanding 
indebtedness, specifically related to the Alliance's facilities in Tennessee and in Virginia, 
respectively, fund debt service reserve funds and pay costs of issuance. The Alliance recognized a 
$3,029 loss on early extinguislunent of debt representing the write off of previously deferred and 
unamortized financing costs related to the refinanced Series 2008A and the Series 2007 A and 2007C 
debt issues discussed below. 

Series 2009 Bonds 

In March 2009, the Alliance issued $5,560 (Series 2009A), $5,535 (Series 2009B) and $115,955 
(Series 2009C) fixed rate Hospital Revenue Bonds (collectively, the Series 2009 Bonds). The 
proceeds of Series 2009 Bonds were used to refinance a portion of the outstanding Series 2006C 
Taxable Notes, which were originally issued to finance a capital commitment to SCCH and purchase 
certain leased assets, finance the acquisition of a majority ownership in JMH, fund a debt service 
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reserve fund and pay costs of issuance. The portion of the 2006C taxable notes which were not 
refinanced with the Series 2009 Bonds were repaid with cash on hand. 

In connection with its acquisition of a majority ownership in JMH, the Alliance assumed the then 
outstanding long-term debt of JMH, totaling $33,906, including the JMH Series 1998 Hospital 
Refunding and Improvement Revenue Bonds as further described in the table above. 

Series 2008 Bonds 

In February 2008, the Alliance issued $72,770 (Series 2008A) and $54,230 (Series 2008B) variable 
rate Hospital Revenue Bonds (collectively, the Series 2008 Bonds). The proceeds of Series 2008 
Bonds were primarily used to finance certain future capital projects for the Alliance's hospital 
facilities and for the repayment of previously issued 2008 Taxable Notes used for the acquisition of 
RCMC. As discussed above, the payment of principal and interest on the Series 2008 Bonds and the 
purchase price of any tendered bonds on each series are secured by a separate, irrevocable, 
transferable, direct-pay letter of credit. A portion ($59,525) of the Series 2008A Bonds were repaid 
from proceeds of the Series 2010 Bonds. 

The variable rate of interest on the Series 2008 Bonds is determined weekly by the Remarketing 
Agent (Merrill Lynch), as the rate equal to the lowest rate which, in regard to general financial 
conditions and other special conditions bearing on the rate, would produce as nearly as possible a 
par bid for the Series 2008 Bonds in the secondary market. In no event shall the variable rate on the 
Series 2008 Bonds during any period where interest is calculated weekly exceed the lesser of 12% 
annually or the maximum contract rate of interest permitted by the State of Tennessee for the Series 
2008A Bonds or the Commonwealth of Virginia for the Series 2008B Bonds. The Alliance has the 
option, upon written approval of the holder of the letters of credit, the Remarketing Agent and 
others, to convert to a medium-term rate period or to a fixed rate. 

The Series 2008 Bonds are subject to optional and mandatory tender for purchase prior to maturity at 
the option of the holder, upon conversion to a fixed rate, upon conversion to a medium-term rate 
period, prior to the effective date of any substitute letter of credit, or upon the termination of the 
letters of credit. The optional and mandatory tender provisions generally call for the Master Trustee 
to purchase the outstanding Series 2008 Bonds at a purchase price equal to the principal amount 
thereof plus accrued interest upon a stated date as described in the tender notice delivered to the 
bond holders. 

Series 2007 Bonds 

In December 2007, the Alliance issued $104,355 (Series 2007 A), $327, 170 (Series 2007B taxable) 
and $36,575 (Series 2007C) variable rate Hospital Revenue Bonds (collectively, the Series 2007 
Bonds). The proceeds of Series 2007 Bonds were primarily used to early extinguish a portion of the 
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outstanding Series 2000A Bonds, all of the outstanding 2000B Bonds, all of the outstanding Series 
1994 Bonds, and all of the outstanding Series 2006B Bonds; to finance the acquisition of a majority 
ownership in NCH, and to finance certain capital improvements and equipment acquisitions for the 
Alliance's hospital facilities. A portion of the outstanding Series 2007 A ($91,685) and Series 2007C 
($32,840) Bonds were repaid from proceeds of the Series 20 I 0 Bonds. The remaining outstanding 
Series 2007 A and Series 2007C Bonds were redeemed in 2011. 

In 2011 during the letter of credit restructuring, the existing 2007B Bonds were repaid through a 
remarketing of Sub-Series 2007B-l, 2007B-2 and 2007B-3 (collectively, the Sub-Series 2007B 
Bonds), created per the mandatory tender and letter of credit substitution provisions. As discussed 
above, the payment of principal and interest on the Sub-Series 2007B Bonds and the purchase price 
of any tendered bonds on each series are secured by a separate, irrevocable, transferable, direct-pay 
letter of credit. 

The variable rate of interest on the Series 2007 Bonds is determined weekly in the same manner as 
described above for the Series 2008 Bonds. In no event shall the variable rate on the bonds during 
any period where interest is calculated weekly exceed the lesser of 12% annually or the maximum 
contract rate of interest permitted by the State of Tennessee. The Alliance has the optjon, upon 
written approval of the holder of the letters of credit, the Remarketing Agent and others, to convert 
to a medium-term rate period or to a fixed rate. Upon such conversion, the bonds become subject to 
mandatory tender for purchase. 

The Sub-Series 2007 Bonds are subject to optional and mandatory tender in the same manner as 
described above for the Series 2008 Bonds. In addition, the Sub-Series 2007B Bonds are subject to 
a special mandatory tender with respect to its conversion from taxable debt to tax-exempt debt. As 
discussed in Note S, certain of the Sub-Series 2007B Bonds were redeemed subsequent to year end. 

Series 2006 Bonds 

During 2006, the Alliance issued $173,030 Hospital First Mortgage Revenue Bonds (Series 2006A) 
and $66,500 Hospital First Mortgage Variable Rate Revenue Bonds (Series 2006B). The proceeds 
from the sale of the Series 2006A Bonds were used to finance certain future and prior capital 
projects for the Alliance's hospital facilities and to refund certain existing indebtedness, specifically 
the Series 2001B Bonds (discussed below) and certain existing short and intermediate term loans 
and leases, as well as fund a debt service reserve fund. The Series 2006B Bond proceeds were 
substantially used to refund the remaining outstanding principal of the Series 2001 B Bonds and 
establish a debt service reserve fund. 
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Series 2001 Bonds 

During 2001, the Alliance issued $26,000 Hospital First Mortgage Revenue Bonds (Series 2001A) 
and $60,175 Hospital First Mortgage Revenue Bonds (Series 2001B). The Series 2001A Bonds 
were subject to optional tender by Bond holders. Effective July 1, 2007, the Alliance entered into an 
agreement whereby the beneficial owners of the Series 2001 A Bonds have irrevocably waived their 
rights to tender the Bonds under the provisions of the respective Bond Indenture. The waiver will 
continue in effect through the maturity of the 2001A Bonds. The Series 2001B Bonds were 
refunded and redeemed in 2006. 

Series 2000 Bonds 

The Hospital First Mortgage Revenue Refunding (Series 2000A Bonds) and First Mortgage Revenue 
Refunding Bonds (Series 2000B Bonds), were used to advance refund previously existing 
indebtedness as well as fund a required debt service reserve fund. The Hospital First Mortgage 
Revenue Bonds (Series 2000C Taxable Bonds) were intended to refinance certain mortgage 
indebtedness of BRMM, and to refund other previously existing indebtedness. The proceeds from 
the sale of the First Mortgage Bonds (Series 2000D Taxable Bonds) were used primarily to fund 
working capital for the Alliance. 

The Series 2000A Bonds included at issue date $14,680 of insured Capital Appreciation Bonds. 
Such bonds bear a 0% coupon rate and have a yield of 6.625% annually. The Alliance recognizes 
interest expense and increases the amount of outstanding debt each year based upon this yield. Total 
principal and interest due at maturity (2026 through 2030) is $93,675. 

The advance refunding of previously issued debt requir~s funds to be placed in irrevocable trusts in 
order to satisfy remaining scheduled principal and interest payments. Management, upon advice of 
legal counsel, believes the amounts deposited in such irrevocable trust accounts have contractually 
relieved the Alliance of any future obligations with respect to this debt, and the debt and escrowed 
securities are not considered liabilities or assets of the Alliance. Therefore, such debt has been 
derecognized. 

Debt outstanding and not recognized in the Consolidated Balance Sheet at June 30, 2011 due to 
previous advance refundings of the Series 2000A Bonds, Series 2000B Bonds, Series 1998C Bonds, 
and Series 1991 Bonds, totaled approximately $525,025. 

The assets placed in the irrevocable trust accounts are also not recognized as assets of the Alliance. 
These assets consist primarily of various investments, as permitted by bond indentures and other 
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documents, including United States Treasury obligations, an investment contract with MBIA 
Insurance Corporation (MBIA) in the original amount of $54,300, as well as the Series 2000C and 
20000 Bonds which were purchased with the proceeds of the 2000A and 2000B Bonds specifically 
for the purpose of utilizing the Series 2000C and 20000 Bonds in the irrevocable trust. Therefore, 
certain of the assets held in the irrevocable trust accounts have future income streams contingent 
upon payments by the Alliance. 

Essentially all of the Alliance's bonds are subject to redemption prior to matuiity, including 
optional, mandatory sinking fund and extraordinary redemption) at various dates and prices as 
described in the respective Bond indentures and other documents. 

Other Bonds, Notes Payable and Financing Arrangements 

The Alliance has granted a deed of trust on JCM C and SSH to secure the payment of the outstanding 
bonds. The bonds are also secured by the Alliance's receivables, inventories and other assets as well 
as certain funds held under the documents pursuant to which the bonds were issued. The NCH 
Series 2001 Hospital Refunding and Improvement Revenue Bonds are secured by revenues and a 
lien on certain real and personal property ofNCH. The JMH Series 1998 Hospital Refunding and 
Improvement Revenue Bonds are secured by pledged gross receipts of JMH, as defined in the 
Master Trust indenture. 

The scheduled maturities and mandatory sinking fund payments of the long-term debt and capital 
lease obligations (excluding interest), exclusive of net unamortized original issue discount and 
premium, at June 30, 2011 are as follows: 

Year Ending 
June 30, 

2012 
2013 
2014 
2015 
2016 

Thereafter 

$ 

Net discount 

$ 

28,162 
32,230 
28,706 
34,504 
33,585 

912,560 

1,069,747 
(662) 

1,069,085 
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The Alliance, NCH and JMH are each members of separate Obligated Groups. The bond indentures, 
master trust indentures, letter of credit agreements and loan agreements related to the various bond 
issues and notes payable contain covenants with which the respective Obligated Groups must 
comply. These requirements include maintenance of certain financial and liquidity ratios, deposits 
to trustee funds, pennitted indebtedness, use offacilities and disposals of property. These covenants 
also require that failure to meet certain debt service coverage tests will require the deposit of all 
daily cash receipts of the Alliance into a trust fund. Management has represented the Alliance, NCH 
and JMH are in compliance with all such covenants at June 30, 2011. 

In connection with the tax-exempt bonds, the Alliance is required every five years, and at maturity, 
to remit to the Internal Revenue Service amounts which are due related to positive arbitrage on the 
borrowed funds. The Alliance perfonns such computations when required and recognizes any 
liability at that time. Management does not believe there are any significant arbitrage liabilities at 
June 30, 2011 or 2010. 

NOTE G--SELF-INSURANCE PROGRAMS 

The Alliance is substantially self-insured for professional and general liability claims and related 
expenses. The Alliance maintains a $25,000 umbrella liability policy that attaches over the self­
insurance limits of $10,000 per claim and a $15,000 annual aggregate retention. The Alliance,s 
insurance program also provides professional liability coverage for certain affiliates and joint 
ventures. 

The Alliance is also substantially self-insured for workers' compensation claims in the State of 
Tennessee and has established estimated liabilities for both reported and unreported claims. The 
Alliance maintains a stop-loss policy that attaches over the self-insurance limits of $1,000 per 
occurrence and $1,000 annual aggregate retention. In the State of Virginia, the Alliance is not self­
insured and maintains workers' compensation insurance through commercial carriers. 

At June 30, 2011, the Alliance is involved in litigation relating to medical malpractice and workers, 
compensation and other claims arising in the ordinary course of business. There are also known 
incidents occurring through June 30, 2011 that may result in the assertion of additional claims, and 
other unreported claims may be asserted arising from services provided in the past. Alliance 
management has estimated and accrued for the cost of these unreported claims based on historic.al 
data and actuarial projections. The estimated net present value of malpractice and workers' 
compensation claims, both reported and unreported, as ofJune 30, 2011and2010 was $13,531 and 
$12,601, respectively. The·discount rate utilized was 5% at June 30, 2011 and 2010. 
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Additionally, the Alliance is self-insured for employee health claims and recognizes expense each 
year based upon actual claims paid and an estimate of claims incurred but not yet paid, including a 
catastrophic claims reserve based on historical claims in excess of $75. 

NOTE H--NET PATIENT SERVICE REVENUE 

A reconciliation of the amount of services provided to patients at established rates to net patient 
service revenue as presented in the accompanying Consolidated Statements of Operations is as 
follows for the years ended June 30: 

2011 2010 

Inpatient service charges $ 1,983,340 $ 1,848,590 
Outpatient service charges 1,807,247 1,669,705 

Gross patient service charges 3,790,587 3,518,295 
Less: 

Estimated contractual adjustments and other discounts 2,647,514 2,417,082 
Estimated uncollectible self-pay 110,387 111,565 
Charity care 72,432 61,378 

2,830,333 2,590,025 

Net patient service revenue $ 960,254 $ 928,270 

NOTE I--THIRD-PARTY REIMBURSEMENT 

The Alliance renders services to patients under contractual arrangements with Medicare, Medicaid, 
TennCare, Blue Cross and various other commercial payors. The Medicare program pays for 
inpatient services on a prospective basis. Payments are based upon diagnosis related group 
assignments, which are determined by the patient's clinical diagnosis and medical procedures 
utilized. The Alliance also receives additional payments from Medicare based on the provision of 
services to a disproportionate share of Medicaid and other low income patients. Most Medicare 
outpatient services are reimbursed on a prospectively detennined payment methodology. The 
Medicare program also reimburses certain other services on the basis of reasonable cost, subject to 
various prescribed limitations and reductions. 

Reimbursement under the State ofTennessee's Medicaid waiver program (TennCare) for inpatient 
and outpatient services is administered by various managed care organizations (MCOs) and is based 
on diagnosis related group assignments, a negotiated per diem or fee schedule basis. The Alliance 
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also receives additional supplemental payments from the State of Termessee. The amount 
recognized totaled $11,480 and $7,811 for the years ended June 30, 2011 and 2010, respectively. 
Such payments are not guaranteed in future periods. 

The Virginia Medicaid program reimbursement for inpatient hospital services is based on a 
prospective payment system using both a per case and per diem methodology. Additional payments 
are made for the allowable costs of capital. Payments for outpatient services are based on Medicare 
cost reimbursement principles and settled through the filing of an annual Medicaid cost report. 

Amounts earned under the contractual agreements with the Medicare and Medicaid programs are 
subject to review and final determination by fiscal intermediaries and other appropriate 
governmental authorities or their agents. Retroactive adjustments are accrued on an estimated basis 
in the period the related services are rendered and adjusted in future periods as final settlements are 
determined. Activity with respect to audits and reviews of the governmental programs in the 
healthcare industry has increased and is expected to increase in the future. No additional specific 
reserves or allowances have been established with regard to these increased audits and reviews as 
management is not able to estimate such amounts. Management believes that any adjustments from 
these increased audits and reviews will not have a material adverse impact on the consolidated 
financial statements. However, due to uncertainties in the estimation, it is at least reasonably 
possible that management's estimate will change in 2012, although the amount of any change cannot 
be estimated. The impact of final settlements of cost reports or changes in estimates decreased net 
patient service revenue by $4,570in2011. The impact of final settlements of cost reports or changes 
in estimates were not significant in 2010. 

Participation in the Medicare program subjects the Alliance to significant rules and regulations; 
failure to adhere to such could result in fines, penalties or expulsion from the program. Management 
believes that adequate provision has been made for any adjustments, fines or penalties which may 
result from final settlements or violations of other rules or regulations. Management has represented 
that the Alliance is in substantial compliance with these rules and regulations as of June 30, 2011. 

The Alliance has also entered into payment agreements with certain commercial insurance carriers, 
health maintenance organizations, preferred provider organizations and employer groups. The basis 
for payment under these agreements includes prospectively determined rates per discharge, 
discounis from established charges and prospectively determined daily rates. 

NOTE J--EJ\.1PLOYEE BENEFIT PLANS 

The Alliance sponsors a retirement plan (the Plan) which covers substantially all employees. The 
Plan is a defined contribution plan which consists mainly of employer-funded contributions. During 
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2011 and 2010, the Alliance made contributions to the Plan under a stratified system, whereby the 
Alliance's contribution percentage is based on each employee's years of service. In addition, the 
Alliance sponsors a 403(b) plan which is funded solely by employees' contributions. The Alliance 
does not make any discretionary or matching contributions into the 403(b) plan. Employees of 
certain other subsidiaries are covered by other plans, although such plans are not significant. The 
total expense related to defined contribution plans for the years ended June 30, 2011 and 2010 was 
$12,682 and $13,311, respectively. 

NCH maintains a defined benefit pension plan and a post-retirement employee benefit plan. The 
accrued unfunded pension liability was $1,313 and $1,942, and the accrued unfunded post­
retirement liability was $3,761 and $3,843 at June 30, 2011and2010, respectively. 

The Alliance sponsors a secured executive benefit program (SEBP) for certain key executives. 
Contributions to the plan by the Alliance are based on an annual amount of funding necessary to 
produce a target benefit for the participants at their retirement date, although the Alliance does not 
guarantee any level of benefit will be achieved. The Alliance contributed $929 and $1,303 to the 
plan during 2011 and 2010, respectively. Other assets at June 30, 2011 and 2010 include $7,888 and 
$ 7, 077, respectively, related to the Alliance's portion of the benefits which are recoverable upon the 
death of the participant. In addition, the Alliance sponsors a Section 457(£) plan for certain key 
executives. The benefits for substantially all employees previously participating in the SEBP plan 
have been transferred into the 457(£) plan. 

NOTE K--CONCENTRA TIONS OF RISK 

The Alliance has locations primarily in upper East Tennessee and Southwest Virginia which is 
considered a geographic concentration. The Alliance grants credit without collateral to its patients, 
most of whom are local residents and are insured under third-party payor agreements. Net patient 
service revenue from Washington County, Tennessee operations were approximately 54% of total 
net patient service revenue for each of the years 2011 and 2010. 

The mix of receivables from patients and third-party payers based on charges at established rates is 
as follows as of June 30: 
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Medicare 
Tenncare/Medicaid 
Commercial 
Other third-party payors 
Patients 

2011 2010 

40% 42% 
12% 15% 
27% 25% 

9% 10% 
12% 8% 

100% 100% 

Approximately 98% of the consolidated total revenue, gains and support were related to the 
provision of healthcare services during 2011 and 2010. Admitting physicians are primarily 
practitioners in the regional area. 

Two of the Alliance's Virginia hospitals' employees are covered under collective bargaining 
agreements which extend through February 2, 2014. 

The Alliance routinely invests in investment vehicles as listed in Note C. The Alliance's investment 
portfolio is managed by outside investment management companies. Investments in corporate and 
foreign bonds and notes, municipal obligations, money market funds, equities and other vehicles that 
are held by safekeeping agents are not insured or guaranteed by the U.S. government. At June 30, 
2011, the Alliance also had deposits in financial institutions significantly in excess of the Federal 
Deposit Insurance Corporation's limits. 

NOTE L--INCOME TAXES 

BRM:M and its subsidiaries file a consolidated federal tax return and separate state tax returns. As of 
June 30, 2011 and 2010, BRMM and its subsidiaries had net operating loss carryforwards for 
consolidated federal purposes of $34,822 and $32,447, respectively, related to operating losses 
which expire through 2030. At June 30, 2011 and 2010, BRMM had state net operating loss 
carryforwards of$65,979 and $59,860, respectively, which expire through 2025. The net operating 
loss carryforwards may be offset against future taxable income to the extent permitted by the 
Internal Revenue Code and Tennessee Code Annotated. 

At June 30, 2011 and2010, SWCHhad federal and state net operating loss carryforwards of$4,875 
and $4,376, respectively, which expire through 2030. CHC files separate federal and state tax 
returns. At June 30, 2011 and 2010, CHC had a net deferred tax liability of $69 and $58, 
respectively, due primarily to temporary timing differences related to depreciation. The net 
operating loss carryforwards may be off-set against future taxable income to the extent pennitted by 
the Internal Revenue Code and tax codes of the Commonwealth of Virginia. 
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Net deferred tax assets related to these carryfoiwards and other deferred tax assets have been 
substantially offset through valuation allowances equal to thes·e amounts. Income taxes paid relate 
primarily to state taxes for certain subsidiaries and federal alternative minimum tax. 

NOTE M--RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 

The Alliance enters into transactions with entities affiliated with certain members of the Board of 
Directors including transactions to construct Alliance facilities and provide professional services to 
the Alliance. Board members refrain from discussion and abstain from voting on transactions with 
entities with which they are related. 

NOTE N--OTHER COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES 

Construction in Progress: Construction in progress at June 30, 2011 represents costs incurred 
related to various hospital and medical office building facility renovations and additions. The 
Alliance bas outstanding contracts and other commitments related to the completion of these 
projects, and the cost to complete these projects is estimated to be approximately $98, 721 at June-.30, 
2011. The Alliance does not expect any significant costs to be incurred for infrastructure 
improvements to assets held for resale. 

Physician Contracts: BRMM employs physicians to provide services to BRMM's physician 
practices through employment agreements which provide annual compensation, plus incentives 
based upon specified productivity levels. These contracts have various terms. 

In addition, the Alliance has entered into contractual relationships with non-employed physicians to 
provide services in Upper East Tennessee and Southwest Virginia. These contracts guarantee 
certain base payments and allowable expenses and have terms of varying lengths. Upon completion 
of the respective guarantee period, amounts drawn and outstanding under each agreement are treated 
as a loan bearing interest at various rates and are subject to repayment over a specified period. The 
physician note may also be amortized by virtue of the physician's continued practice in the specified 
community during the repayment period. A net receivable of $1,407 and $1,818 related to these 
agreements is included in the accompanying Consolidated Balance Sheets at June 30, 2011 and 
2010, respectively. 

Employee Scholarships: The Alliance offers scholarships to certain individuals which require that 
the recipients return to the Alliance to work for a specified period of time after they complete their 
degree. Amounts due are then forgiven over a specific period oftime as provided in the individual 
contracts. If the recipient does not return and work the required period of time, the funds disbursed 
on their behalf become due immediately and interest is charged until the funds are repaid. Other 
receivables June 30, 2011and2010 includes $7,250 and $5,571, respectively, related to students in 
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school, graduates working at the Alliance and amounts due from others who are no longer in the 
scholarship program. 

Promises to Give: The Alliance has recorded certain unconditional promises to give to unrelated 
organizations. At June 30, 2011, $1,568 is due within one year, and an additional $180 is due within 
five years and is included in other long-tenn liabilities. 

Operating Leases and }v.faintenance Contracts: Total lease expense for the years ended June 30, 
2011and2010 was $9,362 and $10,216, respectively. Future minimum lease payments for each of 
the next five years and in the aggregate for the Alliance's noncancellable operating leases with 
remaining lease terms in excess of one year are as follows: 

Year Ending June 30, 

2012 $ 2,846 
2013 2,631 
2014 2,286 
2015 2,121 
2016 1,285 

Thereafter 9,914 

$ 21,083 

Estimated future minimum payments under various noncancellable maintenance contracts with 
remaining terms in excess of one year at June 30, 2011 total in the aggregate $1,422 through 2016. 

Asset Retirement Obligation: The Alliance has identified asbestos in certain facilities and is 
required by law to dispose of it in a special manner if the facility undergoes major renovations or is 
demolished; otheIWise, the Alliance is not required to remove the asbestos from the facility. The 
Alliance has complied with regulations by treating the asbestos so that it presents no known 
immediate or future safety concerns. An asset retirement obligation has been established to the 
extent that sufficient information exists upon which to estimate the liability. 

Other: The Alliance is a party to various transactions and agreements in the normal course of 
business, which include purchase and re-purchase agreements, put arrangements and other 
commitments, which may bind the Alliance to undertake additional transactions or activities in the 
future. In addition, the Alliance has agreed to guarantee a portion of the outstanding indebtedness of 
a joint venture. Management estimates that the fair value of the guarantee of this debt is immaterial 
as of June 30, 2011. 
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NOTE N--OTHER COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES - Continued 

Healthcare Industry: Recently, government activity has increased with respect to investigations and 
allegations concerning possible violations of fraud and abuse statutes and regulations by healthcare 
providers. Violations of these laws and regulations could result in expulsion from govermnent 
healthcare programs together with the imposition of significant fines and penalties, as well as 
significant repayments for patient services previously billed. 

In March 2010, Congress adopted comprehensive health care insurance legislation, Patient Care 
Protection and Affordable Care Act and Health Care and Education Reconciliation Act. The 
legislation, among other matters, is designated to expand access to coverage to substantively all 
citizens by 2019 through a combination of public program expansion and private industry health 
insurance. Changes to existing Tenn Care and Medicaid coverage and payments are also expected to 
occur as a result of this legislation. Implementing regulations are generally required for these 
legislative acts, which are to be adopted over a period of years and, accordingly, the specific impact 
of any future regulations is not determinable. 

NOTE 0--RENTAL INCOME UNDER OPERATING LEASES 

The Alliance leases rental properties to third parties, most of whom are physician practices, for 
various terms, generally five years. The following is a schedule by year and in the aggregate of 
minimum future rental income due under noncancellable operating leases at June 30, 2011: 

Year Ending June 30, 

2012 
2013 
2014 

2015 
2016 

Total minimum future rentals 

NOTE P--F AIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 

$ 

$ 

1,742 
1,219 

958 

796 
397 

5,112 

The fair value of financial instruments has been estimated by the Alliance using available market 
information as of June30, 2011and2010, and valuation methodologies considered appropriate. The 
estimates presented are not necessarily indicative of amounts the Alliance could realize in a current 
market exchange. The carrying value of substantially all financial instruments approximates fair 
value due to the nature or term of the instruments, except as described below. 
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NOTE P--F AIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - Continued 

Investment in Joint Ventures: It is not practical to estimate the fair market value of the investments 
injoint ventures. 

Other Long-Term Liabilities: Estimates of reported and unreported professional liability claims, 
pension and post-retirement liabilities are discounted to approximate their estimated fair value. It is 
not practical to estimate the fair market value of other long-term liabilities due to uncertainty of 
when these amounts may be paid. Other long-term liabilities are not discounted. 

Long-Term Debt and Capital Leases: The fair value of long-term debt is estimated based upon 
quotes obtained from brokers for bonds and discounted future cash flows using current market rates 
for other debt. For long-term debt with variable interest rates, the carrying value approximates fair 
value. 

The Alliance's significant capital leases and vendor contracts were negotiated with various entities 
and are considered unique. It is not practicable to estimate the fair value of these obligations under 
current conditions. Other capital lease obligations are not significant. 

The estimated fair value of the Alliance's financial instruments that have carrying values different 
from fair value is as follows at June 30: 

FINANCIAL LIABILITIES: 

Carrying 
Value 

2011 
Estimated 
Fair Value 

Carryi11g 
Value 

2010 
Estimated 
Fair Value 

Long-term debt $ 1,069,085 $ 1,046,675 $ 1,082,973 $ 1,105,778 

NOTE Q--F AIR VALUE MEASUREMENT 

F ASB ASC 820 establishes a three-level valuation hierarchy for disclosure of fair value 
measurements. The valuation hierarchy is based upon the transparency of inputs to the valuation of 
an asset or liability as of the measurement date. The three levels are defined as follows: 

Level 1 - Inputs based on quoted market prices for identical assets or liabilities in active 
markets at the measurement date. 

Level 2 - Observable inputs other than quoted prices included in Level 1, such as quoted 
prices for similar assets and liabilities in active markets; quoted prices for identical or similar 
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NOTE Q--FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENT- Continued 

assets and liabilities in markets that are not active; or other inputs that are observable or can 
be corroborated by observable market data. The Alliance's Level 2 investments are valued 
primarily using the market valuation approach. 

• Level 3 - Unobservable inputs that are supported by little or no market activity and are 
significant to the fair value of the assets or liabilities. Level 3 includes values detennined 
using pricing models, discounted cash flow methodologies, or similar techniques reflecting 
the Alliance's own assumptions. 

In instances where the determination of the fair value hierarchy measurement is based on inputs 
from different levels of the fair value hierarchy, the level in the fair value hierarchy within which the 
entire fair value measurement falls is based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair 
value measurement in its entirety. The Alliance's assessment of the significance ofa particular input 
to the fair value measurement in its entirety requires judgment and considers factors specific to the 
asset or liability. 

The following table sets forth, by level within the fair value hierarchy, the fmancial assets and 
liabilities recorded at fair value on a recurring basis as of June 30, 2011 and 2010: 

June 30, 2011 Lei1e/ 1 Level 2 Levef 3 

Trading securities $ 333,610 $ 164,953 $ 135,939 $ 32,718 
Assets whose use is limited 117,170 117~170 

Total assets $ 450,780 $ 282,123 $ 135,939 $ 32,718 

Fair value of derivative agreements - Note D $ (110,732} $ - $ - $ (110,732) 

June 30, 2010 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 

Trading securities $ 209,644 $ 164,510 $ 16.526 $ 28,608 
Assets whose use is limited 177,180 177,180 

Total assets $ 386,824 $ 341,690 $ 16.526 $ 28,608 

Fair value of derivative agreements - Note D $ (134,300) $ - $ - $ (134,300) 

The valuation of the Alliance's derivative agreements is determined using market valuation 
techniques, including discounted cash flow analysis on the expected cash flows of each agreement. 
This analysis reflects the contractual terms of the agreement, including the period to maturity, and 
uses observable market-based inputs, including forward interest rate curves. The fair values of 
interest rate swap agreements are determined by netting the discounted future fixed cash payments 
(or receipts) and the discounted expected variable cash receipts (or payments). The variable cash 
receipts (or payments) are based on the expectation of future interest rates based on observable 
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market forward interest rate curves and the underlying notional amount. The Alliance also 
incorporates credit valuation adjustments (CV As) to appropriately reflect both its own 
nonperformance or credit risk and the respective counterparty' s nonperformance or credit risk in the 
fair value measurements. The CVA on the Alliance's interest rate swap agreements at June 30, 2011 
and 2010 resulted in a decrease in the fair value of the related liability of $7,940 and $10,085, 
respectively. 

A certain portion of the inputs used to value its interest rate swap agreements, including the forward 
interest rate curves and market perceptions of the Alliance's credit risk used in the CV As, are 
unobservable inputs available to a market participant. As a result, the Alliance has determined that 
the interest rate swap valuations are classified in Level 3 of the fair value hierarchy. 

The following tables provide a summary of changes in the fair value of the Alliance's Level 3 
financial assets and liabilities during the fiscal years ended June 30, 2011 and 2010: 

Trading Derivatives, 
Securities Net 

July l, 2009 $ 30,031 $ (126,217) 

Total unrealized/realize<l Iosses in the Performance Indicator, net (1,546) (8,607) 

Purchases, issuance and settlements and other, net 1,446 524 
Transfers in (out), net (l.323) 

June 30, 2010 28,608 (134,300) 

Total unrealized/realized gains in the Performance Indicator, net 2,847 23,049 

Purchases, issuance and settlements and other, net L263 519 

June 30, 2011 $ 32,718 $ (110,732) 

There were no changes in valuation techniques in 2011 or 2010. During 2011, as part of the 
transitional test of goodwill impairment, the Alliance recognized goodwill impairment of $2,965 
based primarily on the fair value of the reporting unit, utilizing the income approach. Remaining 
goodwill determined not to be impaired, for this specific reporting unit, is included in the 
Consolidated Balance Sheet at $2,900. There were no significant assets or liabilities that were re­
measured at fair value on a non-recurring basis during the fiscal year ended June 30, 2010. 

NOTE R--OPERATING EXPENSES BY FUNCTIONAL CLASSIFICATION 

Direct expenses by functional classification are as follows for the years ended June 30: 
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2011 

Healthcare services $ 817,397 $ 795,725 

Administrative and general 130,543 125,852 
Other 9,233 8,625 

$ 957>173 $ 930,202 

NOTE S--SUBSEQUENT EVENTS 

Acquisition: Subsequent to June 30, 2011, the Alliance purchased the stock of a phannacyprovider 
for approximately $6, 700. The Alliance has not completed an allocation of the purchase price 
although it is anticipated significant intangible assets will be recognized upon such allocation. 

Debt: In October 2011, the Alliance (along with BRMMC, NCH and SCCH) issued $85,260 of 
Series 2011 Tax-exempt Hospital Revenue Bonds through The Health and Educational Facilities 
Board of the City of Johnson City, Tennessee (the Tennessee Bonds) and $110,580 through the 
Industrial Development Authority of Smyth, Virginia (the Virginia Bonds). Such bonds were issued 
on parity with the outstanding bond indebtedness of the Alliance as of June 30, 2011. The Bonds 
bear interest at a variable rate determined by a remarketing agent based upon a weekly rate period. 
Additionally, the Alliance issued $15,960 of Series 2011 Taxable Bonds. NCH and SCCHwerealso 
admitted as members of the Alliance Obligated Group. 

The proceeds from the Tennessee Bonds will be issued to finance certain capital acquisitions in the 
State of Tennessee and pay issuance costs related to these Bonds. The proceeds from the Virginia 
Bonds will be used to refinance $11,200 of 2001 NCH Hospital Refunding and Improvement 
Revenue Bonds, finance capital acquisitions for NCH, JMH and SCCH and to pay issuance costs 
associated with these Bonds. The Series 2011 Taxable Bonds proceeds will be used to finance 
capital acquisitions of SCCH and BR.MMC and pay issuance costs. The timely payment of the 
Tennessee and the Virginia Bonds is secured by a letter of credit which expires October 19, 2014. 
The Alliance also redeemed $115,135 of the Series 2007B-1 Revenue Bonds and $29,405 of the 
Series 2007B-3 Revenue Bonds. 

Management further anticipates issuance of an additional $25,000 of tax-exempt bonds for the 
benefit of JMH. JMH is not a member of the Mountain States Health Alliance Obligated Group. 

Subsequent to June 30, 2011, JMH exercised their right to purchase a facility previously held under 
a capital lease for total consideration of$16,05 l. $2,093 was paid directly to the third party and the 
remaining $13,958 was by assumption of a promissory note with payments through 2013. The 
promissory note bears interest at a variable rate ofLIBOR plus 1.5%. Additionally, JMH assumed 
an interest rate swap in the notional amount of $13,940. J1"1H pays a fixed rate of 7.46% 
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and receives a variable rate of LIBOR plus 1.5%. The interest rate swap has a termination date of 
August 15, 2012. 
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MOUNTAIN STATES HEALTH ALLIANCE 

Consolidating Balance Sheet 
(Dollars in Thousands) 

June 30, 2011 
BlueR;dge Other 
Medical Obligated Group 

:l{amrgemnrt "' Members Eliminations 

ASSETS 

CURRENT ASSETS 
Cash and cash equivaJent'I $ 450 $ 85,976 $ -
Current portion of investments 7,629 
Patient accounts receivable, less estimated allowances for 

uncollectihle account'I 4,476 96,083 
Other receivables, net 848 13,434 
Inventories and prepaid expenses 553 --·-···---!~.?.~L ________ 

TOTAL CURRf."NT ASSETS 6,,327 221,905 

INVESTMENfS, less amounts required 
to meet current obligations 19.193 337,367 

EQUITY IN AFFJLIATES 139,582 387.825 (155.611) 

PROPERTY. PLANf AND EQUIPMENT, net 10,696 469,613 

OTIIER ASSETS 
Goodwill 3,281 143.276 

Net deferred financing, acquisition costs and 
other charges, less current portion 168 27,991 

Other assets S,467 10,154 

TOTAL OTHER ASSETS 11,916 181,421 

$ 187.714 $ l.598.131 $ (155,61 l) 

* Management Services Organization only 

- ~note to supplemental schedules. 

Total 
Obligated Otller 

(;roup Eniilies 

$ 86,426 $ 17,023 
7,629 94,775 

100.559 34.052 
14,282 4,552 
19.336 9,477 

228,232 159,879 

356,.560 190.937 

371,796 

480,309 258,342 

146,557 2.109 

28,159 568 
18,621 7.265 

193,337 9.942 

$ l,630.234 $ 619,JOO 

Mountain States 
Properties 

s 9,319 $ 
13.771 

780 
152 

24,022 

33,879 

58.766 

1,117 
2,5()2 

3.579 

[20,346 $ 

Elimination:.· 

- $ 

(371,795) 

(371,795) $ 

.Total 

112.768 
116,175 

134,61 I 
19,614 
2S,965 

412,133 

581.376 

797,418 

148,666 

206,958 

1,997,S85 



MOUNTAIN STATES HEALTH ALLIANCE 

Consolidating Balance Sheet - Continued 
(Dollars in Thousands) 

June 30, 2011 
Blue Ridge Ot/ler Total 

Medical Obligated (;roup Obligated Other Mou11tain Stales 

/Hmta!{_ement " Members Eliminations Grour:_ Entities Prol!_erties Eliminations Total 

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS 

CURRENT LIABILITIES 
Accrued interest payable $ - $ 19,607 $ - $ 19,607 $ 440 $ - $ . $ 20,047 

Cuuent portion of long-term debt and capital I ease 
obligations 550 23,724 24,274 3,888 28,162 

Current portion of estimated fair value of derivatives 92,044 92,044 10,565 102,609 

Accounts payable and accrued expenses 3,463 66,494 69,957 27,645 1,217 98,819 

Accrued salaries, compensated absences and amounts 
withheld 3,093 40,177 43,270 14,530 57,800 

Payables to (receivables from) affiliates, net 11,094 (81,319) (70,225) 94,632 (24,407) 
Estimated amounts due to third-party payors, net 12,547 12,547 2,266 14,813 

TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES 18,200 173,274 191,474 143,401 (12,625) 322,250 

OTHER LIABILITIES 
Long-tenn debt and capital lease obligations, less 

current portion 4,923 979,774 984,697 56,226 1,040,923 
Estimated fair value of derivatives, less current 

portion 7,783 7,783 340 8,123 
Deferred revenue 19,167 19,167 100 19,267 
Estimated professional liability self-insurance 2,285 4,494 6,779 2,913 9,692 

Other long-tenn liabilities 6,695 2.402 9,097 5,255 14,352 

TOTAL LIABILITIES 32,103 1,186,894 1,218,997 207,895 (12,285) 1,414,607 

NET ASSETS 

UNRESTRICTED NET ASSETS 

Unrestricted net assets 
Mountain States Health Alliance 155,478 400,395 (155,478) 400,395 228,554 132,631 (361,185) 400,395 

Noncontrolling interests in subsidiaries 171,984 171,984 

TOTAL UNRESTRICTED NET ASSETS 155,478 400,395 (155,478) 400,395 400,538 132,631 (361,185) 572,379 

Temporarily restricted net assets 
Mountain States Health Alliance 133 10,715 (133) 10,715 I 0,483 (I0,483) 10,715 
Noncontrolling interests in subsidiaries 57 57 

TOTAL TEMPORARILY 
RESTRICTED NET ASSETS 133 10,715 (133) 10,715 10,540 (10,483) 10,772 

Permanently restricted net assets 127 127 127 127 127 

TOTAL NET ASSETS l55,6lt 411,237 (155,611) 411,237 411,205 132,631 p11,79si 583,278 

$ 187,714 $ 1,598,131 $ 155,611) $ l,630,234 $ 619,100 $ 120,346 $ 371,795 $ 1,997,885 

See note to supplemental schedules. 47 



MOUNTAIN STATES HEALTH ALLIANCE 

Consolidating Statement of Operations 
(Dollars in Thousands) 

Year Ended June 30, 2011 
Blue Ridge Oilier Total 

Medical Obligated Group Obligated Otlter Mountain Siiiies 

1W111111c.eme11t * Members Eliminations Groul!. Entities Properties Eliminations Total 

Revenue, gains and support: 
Net patient service revenue $ 35,353 $ 683,224 $ (1,702) $ 716,875 $ 243.487 $ ~ $ (108) $ 960,254 
Other operating revenue 26,855 3,657 {20,748) 9,764 39,423 7,807 (41,123) 15,871 
Equity in net gain (loss) of affiliates 974 (3,283) 2,051 {258) 258 

TOTAL REVENUE, GAINS AND SUPPORT 63,182 683,598 (20,399) 726,381 282,910 7,807 (40,973) 976,125 

Expenses; 
Salaries and w11ges 17,287 235,564 252,851 92,108 150 (2,901) 342,208 

Physician salaries and wages 32,631 l,OIO 33,641 55,417 (29,809) 59,249 

Contract labor 866 3,234 4,100 2,123 (259) 5,964 

Employee benefits 4,874 45,591 (1,743) 48,722 20,414 35 (2,032) 67,139 

Fees 3,544 81,194 (20,612) 64,126 22,251 713 (1,171) 85,919 

Supplies 1,745 129,126 130,871 38,594 2 (105) 169,362 

Utilities 455 Jl,386 11,841 4,452 1,007 17,300 

Other 4,778 38,479 (95) 43,162 28,206 3,230 (4,951) 69,647 
Depreciation l,476 59,635 61,111 23,666 2,722 87,499 

Amortization 23 2,188 2,211 348 2,559 
Estimated provision for bad debts 353 4,097 4,450 1,724 6,174 

Interest and taxes ~1,228) 42,204 40,976 3.248 l,374 (1.445) 44.153 

TOTAL EXPENSES 66,804 653.708 ~22,450) 698.062 292,551 9,233 (42.673) 957,173 

OPERATING INCOME (LOSS) (3,622) 29,890 2,051 28,319 (9,641) (1,426) 1,700 18,952 

Nonoperating gains (losses): 
Interest and dividend income 662 9,810 10,472 6,552 645 (l,445) 16,224 

Net realized gains on the sale of securities 73 l,449 1,522 435 1,957 

Net unrealized gains on securities l,311 13,664 14,975 7,949 (756) 22,168 

Derivative related income 3,512 3,512 l,560 5,072 

Change in estimated fair value of derivatives 23,137 23,137 (88) 23,049 

Other nonoperating gains (losses) (475) 1,245 770 (3,430) 4 3 (2,653) 
Net assets released from restrictions used for operations 562 562 1,331 1,893 

NET NONOPERATING GAINS 1.571 53,379 54,950 12.837 l.365 (1.442) 67.710 

EXCESS (DEFICIT) OF REVENUE, GAINS AND 
SUPPORT OVER EXPENSES AND LOSSES $ (2,051) $ 83,269 $ 2,051 $ 83,269 $ 3.196 $ (61) $ 258 $ 86.662 

•Management Services Organization only. 

See note to supplemental schedules. 48 



MOUNTAIN STATES HEALTH ALLIANCE 

Consolidating Statement of Changes in Net Assets 
(Dollars in Thousands) 

Year Ended June 30, 2011 

UNRESTRICTED NET ASSETS: 
E.~cess of Revenue. Ge.ins and Support over 
E~ses and Losses 

Pension and other defined benefit plan adjustmcntl> 
Cumulative effect of a change in accounting principle 
Net assets rclca'!Cd from restrictions U.'!Cd for the 

purchosc of property. plant and equipment 
Distributi1>ns to ncmcontrolling interest.~ 
RepurchflSes Qf nonconfrQlling interests and o1ha 

£NCR.EASE (.DECREASE) IN UNRESTRICTED 
NET ASSETS 

TEMPORARILY RESTRICTED NET ASSETS: 
Restricted grams and contributions 
Net a~se1s relca~ed from restriction.~ 

INCREASE (DECREASE) IN TEMPORARILY 
RESTR£CTED NET ASSETS 

.Blue .Ridge 
Jlt!dieal 

1l1111ia:::e111e111 • 

Other 
Qbligafed Group 

Jlm11her.v 

(2,051) $ ~'3.269 

(2,965) 

(·13) 

(5,059) 

620 
(2,965) 

1,946 

40 

82.910 

3,612 
{3,787) 

(175) 

J:li111inati1ms 

$ 2,051 

2,965 

43 

5,059 

fNCREASE (DECREASE) IN TOTAL NET ASSETS 

NET ASSETS. BEG:INNING OF YEAR 

(5,059} 

160.670 

82. 735 5,059 

328.502 (160,670) 

*Mam1ganent Services Orga.oiwtioo only. 

See note to supplemental schedules. 

$ 

Total 
Obligated 

Gnme 

83,269 
620 

(2.965) 

1,946 

.10 

82,910 

3,612 
(3.787') 

{175) 

82,735 

328.502 

411.2.>7 

Otht!rEntiJ:ies 
Mountailf StateJ Noncontrolling 
lltalth AUionce lnteres/J 

$ (197) 3393 
620 617 

1.946 
(270) 

w::!1 (1 l5J 

2.187 3,625 

2.990 58 
(3,125) (52) 

(235) 

l,952 3,631 

237,212 168.4.IO 

$ 2·:2;~~~"""~· 172,0~I 

Total 
Other 

far ti ti.es 

3,196 
J,237 

l,946 
(270) 
(197) 

5,812 

3,043 
(3.277) 

(229) 

5,583 

405.622 

Mountain State.~ 
Prur•crtie.~ 

(61) 

(61) 

(61) 

132,692 

Elimim1tiom 

258 $ 
{620) 

(l,946) 

182 

(2,126) 

(2,990) 
3,225 

235 

(J,891) 

(369.904) 

(.nl.795) $ 

86,662 
l,237 

(2,965) 

1,946 
(270) 

(15) 

86,535 

3,670 
(3,839) 

(169) 

86,366 

496,912 

?.~.:~.27L, 
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MOUNTAIN STATES HEALTH ALLIANCE 

Note to Supplemental Schedules 

Year Ended June 30, 2011 

NOTE A--OBLIGATED GROUP MEMBERS 

As described in Note F to the consolidated financial statements, the Alliance has granted a deed of 
trust on JCMC and SSH to secure the payment of the outstanding bonds. The bonds are also secured 
by the Alliance's receivables, inventories and other assets as well as certain funds held under 
the documents pursuant to which the bonds were issued. In accordance with Article Six, Section 
6.6 of the Amended and Restated Master Trust Indenture between Mountain States Health Alliance 
and the Bank of New York Trust Company, NA as Master Trustee, those members pledged include 
Johnson City Medical Center Hospital, Indian Path Medical Center, Franklin Woods Community 
Hospital, Sycamore Shoals Hospital, Johnson County Community Hospital, Russell Col.lllty Medical 
Center and Blue Ridge Medical Management Corporation (parent company only), collectively 
defined as the Obligated Group (Obligated Group). 

The supplemental consolidating schedules include the accounts of the members of the Obligated 
Group after elimination of all significant intergroup accounts and transactions. Certain other 
subsidiaries of the Alliance, Mountain States Properties, Inc. (MSP) and all other affiliates (Other 
Entities), are not pledged to secure the payment of the outstanding bonds as they are not part of the 
Obligated Group. These affiliates have been accounted for within the Obligated Group based upon 
the Alliance's original and subsequent investments, as adjusted for the Alliance's pro rata share of 
income or losses and any distributions, and are included as a part of equity in affiliates in the 
supplemental consolidating balance sheet. 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT 

To the Board of Directors of 
Mountain States Health Alliance: 

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of Mountain States Health Alliance and 
subsidiaries (the Alliance) as of June 30, 2012 and 2011 and the related consolidated statements of 
operations, changes in net assets and cash flows for the years then ended. These consolidated financial 
statements are the responsibility of the Alliance's management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion 
on these consolidated financial statements based on our audits. 

We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of 
America. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about 
whether the consolidated financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes 
consideration of internal control over financial reporting as a basis for designing audit procedures that are 
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the 
Alliance's internal control over financial reporting. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit 
includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated 
financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant 
estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We 
believe our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion. 

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, 
the financial position ofMountain States Health Alliance and subsidiaries as of June 30, 2012 and2011 and 
the results of their operations, changes in net assets and cash flows for the years then ended in conformity 
with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. 

Our audit was conducted for the putpose of forming an opinion on the consolidated financial statements as a 
whole. The supplemental information as listed in the accompanying index is presented for purposes:of 
additional analysis and is not a required part of the consolidated financial statements. Such information is 
the responsibility of management and was derived from and relates directly to the underlying accounting and 
other records used to prepare the consolidated financial statements. The information has been subjected to 
the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the consolidated financial statements and certain additional 
procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and 
other records used to prepare the financial statements or to the consolidated financial statements themselves, 
and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United 
States of America. In our opinion, the information is fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the 
financial statements as a whole. 

Knoxville, Tennessee 
October 26, 2012 

ATLANTA AUSTIN KNOXVILLE TAMPA BAY 



MOUNTAIN STATES HEALTH ALLIANCE 

Consolidated Balance Sheets 

June 30, 
2012 2011 

ASSETS 

CURRENT ASSETS 
Cash and cash equivalents $ 65,107 $ 112,768 
Current portion of investments - Note C 36,557 116,175 
Patient accounts receivable, less estimated allowances 

for uncoUectible accounts of $52,911 in 2012 and 
$53~366 in 2011 150,690 134,611 

Other receivables, net 23,008 19,614 
Inventories and prepaid expenses 28,810 28,965 

TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS 304,172 412,133 

INVESTMENTS, less amounts required 
to meet current obligations 560,697 581,376 

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT, net 865,456 797,418 

OTHER ASSETS 
Goodwill 154,391 148,666 
Net deferred financing, acquisition costs and 

other charges 28,187 29,844 
Other assets 28,144 28,448 

TOTAL OTHER ASSETS 210,722 206,958 

$ 1,941,047 $ 1,997,885 
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June30, 
1012 2011 

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS 

CURRENT LIABILITIES 
Accrued interest payable $ 18,525 $ 20,047 
Current portion of long-term debt and capital lease 

obligations 32,477 28,162 
Current portion of estimated fair value of derivatives 

-NoteD 10,395 102,609 
Accounts payable and accrued expenses 108,870 98,819 
Accrued salaries, compensated absences and amounts 

withheld 55,589 57,800 
Estimated amounts due to third-party payors, net 18,060 14,813 

TOTAL CURRENT LIABJLIDES 243,916 322,250 

O'IHER LIABILITIES 
Long-term debt and capital lease obligations, less 

current portion 1,048,098 1,040,923 
Estimated fair value of derivatives, less current portion 8,986 8,123 
Deferred revenue 3,134 19,267 
Estimated professional liability self-insurance 9,344 9,692 
Other long~tenn liabilities 16,822 14,352 

TOTAL LIABILITIES 1,330,300 1,414,607 

CO:rvtMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES -
Notes D, F, G, and N 

NET ASSETS 
Unrestricted net assets 

Mountain States Health Alliance 436,388 400,395 
Noncontrolling interests in subsidiaries 162,959 171,984 

TOTAL UNRESTRICTED NET ASSETS 599,347 572,379 

Temporarily restricted net assets 
Mountain States Health Alliance 11,223 10,715 
Noncon1rolling interests in subsidiaries so 57 

TOTAL TEMPORARILY 
RESTRICTED NET ASSETS 11,273 10,772 

Permanently restricted net assets 127 127 

TOTAL NET ASSETS 610,747 583,278 

$ 1,941,047 $ 1,997,885 

See notes to consolidated financial statements. 3 



MOUNTAIN STATES HEALTH ALLIANCE 

Consolidated Statements of Operations 
in 

Year Ended June 30, 
2012 2011 

Revenue, gains and support: 
Patient service revenue, net of contractual allowances 

and discounts $ 1,075,050 $ 1,062,123 
Provision for bad debts (122,917) (116,248) 
Net patient service revenue 952,133 945,875 

Other operating revenue 39,407 24,868 

TOTAL REVENUE, GAINS AND SUPPORT 991,540 970,743 

Expenses: 
Salaries and wages 358,607 342,208 
Physician salaries and wages 65,706 59,249 
Contract labor 6,375 5,964 
Employee benefits 69,600 67,139 
Fees 97,959 85,919 
Supplies 170,186 168,261 
Utilities 17,289 17,300 
Other 76,285 69,647 
Depreciation 73,060 87,499 
Amortization 2,245 2,559 
Interest and taxes 45~03 44,153 

TOTAL EXPENSES 983,215 949,898 

OPERATING INCOME 8,325 20,845 

Nonoperating gains (losses): 
Interest and dividend income 15,213 16,224 
Net realized gains (losses) on the sale of securities (2,595) 1,957 
Change in net unrealized gains on securities (2,884) 22,168 
Derivative related income 7,515 5,072 
Loss on early extinguishment of debt - Note F (2,636) 
Change in estimated fair value of derivatives (6,198) 23,049 
Other nonoperating gains (losses) 11,236 (2,653) 

NET NONOPERATING GAINS 19,651 65,817 

EXCESS OF REVENUE, GAINS AND SUPPORT 
OVER EXPENSES AND LOSSES $ 27,976 $ 86,662 

See notes to consolidated.financial statements. 4 



MOUNTAIN STATES HEALTH ALLIANCE 

Consolidated Statements of Changes in Net Assets 
(Dollars in Thousands) 

Year Ended June 30, 2012 

Mountain States Noncontrolling 
Health Alliance Interests Total 

UNRESTRICTED NET ASSETS: 
Excess (Deficit) of Revenue, Gains and Support 

over Expenses and Losses $ 31,702 $ (3,726) $ 27,976 
Pension and other defined benefit plan adjustments (1,119) (1,115) (2,234) 
Net assets released from restrictions used for the 

purchase of property, plant and equipment 1,550 1,550 
Distributions to noncontrolling interests (324) (324) 
Repurchases of noncontrolling interests 3,860 p,860) 

INCREASE (DECREASE) IN 
UNRESTRICTED NET ASSETS 35,993 (9,025) 26,968 

TEMPORARILY RESTRICTED NET ASSETS: 
Restricted grants and contributions 3,860 39 3,899 
Net assets released :from restrictions (3,352} {46) (3,398) 

INCREASE (DECREASE) IN TEMPORARILY 
RESTRICTED NET ASSETS 508 (7l 501 

JNCREASE (DECREASE) JN 
TOTAL NET ASSETS 36,501 (9,032) 27,469 

NET ASSETS, BEGINNING OF YEAR 411,237 172,041 583,278 

NET ASSETS, END OF YEAR $ 447,738 $ 163,009 $ 610,747 
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MOUNTAIN STATES HEALTH ALLIANCE 

Consolidated Statements of Changes in Net Assets - Continued 
(Dollars in Thousands) 

Year Ended June 2011 

Mountain. States Noncontrolling 
Health Alliance Interests Total 

UNRESTRICTED NET ASSETS: 
Excess of Revenue, Gains and Support over 

Expenses and Losses $ 83,269 $ 3,393 $ 86,662 
Pension and other defined benefit plan adjustments 620 617 1,237 
Cumulative effect of a change in accounting 

principle - Note B (2,965) (2,965) 
Net assets released from restrictions used for the 

purchase of property, plant and equipment 1,946 1,946 
Distributions to noncontrolling interests (270) (270) 
Repurchases of noncontrolling interests and other 40 (115} (75) 

INCREASE IN UNRESTRICTED 
NET ASSETS 82,910 3,625 86,535 

TEMPORARILY RESTRICTED NET ASSETS: 
Restricted grants and contributions 3,612 58 3,670 
Net assets released from restrictions (3,787~ {52} (3,839) 

INCREASE (DECREASE) IN IBMPORARIL Y 
RESTRICTED NET ASSETS (175l 6 (169) 

JNCREASE IN TOTAL NET ASSETS 82,735 3,631 86,366 

NET ASSETS, BEGINNING OF YEAR 328,502 168,410 496,912 

NET ASSETS, END OF YEAR $ 411,237 $ 172,041 $ 583,278 

See notes to consolidated financial statements. 6 



MOUNTAIN STATES HEALTH ALLIANCE 

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows 
(Dollars in Thousands) 

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES: 
Increase in net assets 
Adjustments to reconcile increase in net assets to 

net cash provided by operating activities: 
Provision for depreciation and amortization 
Loss on early extinguishment of debt 
Cumulative effect of a change in accounting principle 
Change in estimated fair value of derivatives 
Equity in net income of joint ventures, net 
Loss (gain) on disposal of assets 
Amounts received on interest rate swap settlements 
Gain on escrow restructuring - Note F 
Income recognized through forward sale agreements 
Gain on tennination of swaption and forward sale 

agreements - Note D 
Capital Appreciation Bond accretion and other 
Restricted contributions 
Pension and other defined benefit plan adjustments 
Increase (decrease) in cash due to change in: 

Patient accounts receivable 
Other receivables, net 
Inventories and prepaid expenses 
Trading securities 
Other assets 
Accrued interest payable 
Accounts payable and accrued expenses 
Accrued salaries, compensated absences and 

amounts withheld 
Estimated amounts due to third-party payors, net 
Other long-term liabilities 
Estimated professional liability self-insurance 

Total adjustments 

NET CASH PROVIDED BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES 

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES: 
Purchases of property, plant and equipment 
Additions to goodwill 
Net decrease in assets limited as to use 
Purchases of held-to-maturity securities 
Net distribution from joint ventures and unconsolidated affiliates 
Proceeds :from sale of property, plant and equipment 

NET CASH USED JN INVESTING ACTNITIES 

$ 

Year Ended June 30, 
2012 2011 

27,469 $ 86,366 

75,777 90,472 
2,636 

2,965 
6,198 (23,049) 
(979) (898) 
446 (367) 

{7,515) (5,072) 
(5,337) 

(864) (864) 

(7,766) 
3,159 2,738 

(3,899) (3,670) 
2,234 (1,237) 

(16,079) (9,031) 
(3,501) (2,802) 

155 (643) 
21,646 (123,966) 
(2,733) (3,632) 
(1,522) 4,008 
4,131 2,741 

(2,211) 11,361 
3,247 4,658 

236 2,961 
(348) 151 

67,111 {53,1762 
94,580 33,190 

(132,890) (172,786) 
(5,725) (279) 
85~47 81,383 
{9,516) (41,060) 

882 1,057 
1,881 812 

(59,421) (130,873) 
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CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIBS: 
Payments on long-term debt and capital lease obligations, 

including deposits to escrow 
Payment of acquisition and financing costs 
Proceeds from issuance of long-term debt and other 

financing arrangements 
Payment on termination of swaption 
Gain on escrow restructuring 
Net amounts received on interest rate swap settlements 
Restricted contributions received 

NET CASH USED JN FINANCJNG ACTIVITIES 

NET DECREASE IN CASH AND 
CASH EQUN ALENTS 

CASH AND CASH EQUN ALENTS, beginning of year 

Year Ended June 30, 
2012 2011 

~~------'-~~--...:;.__--.::.... 

~~~---~~~~....:;_~ 

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, end of year $ ====================== 

SUPPLE1\IBNTAL INFORMATION AND NON-CASH TRANSACTIONS: 

Cash paid for interest $ 41,168 $ 39,507 

Cash paid for federal and state income taxes $ 336 $ 739 

Construction related payables in accounts payable 
and accrued expenses $ 6,821 $ 11,384 

Property acquired through capital lease arrangement $ 13,959 $ 15,951 

Payable on termination of forward sale agreements in accounts 
payable and accrued expenses $ 13,429 $ 

Land held for expansion placed in use $ 1,610 $ 4,904 

During the year ended June 30, 2012, the Alliance refinanced previously issued debt of $174,547. 
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MOUJ\1TAIN STATES HEALTH ALLIANCE 

Notes to Consolidated Financial. Statements 
(Dollars in Thoutumds) 

Years Ended June 30, 2012 and 2011 

NOTE A--ORGANIZA TION AND OPERATIONS 

Mountain States Health Alliance (the Alliance) is a true-exempt entity with operations primarily 
located in Washington, Sullivan, and Carter counties of Tennessee and Smyth, Wise, Dickenson, 
Russell and Washington counties ofVirginia. The initial funds for the establishment of the Alliance 
in 1945 were provided by individuals and various institutions. Membership of the Alliance consists 
of individuals and institutions who have contributed at least $100 to the capital fund of the Alliance 
and are entitled to vote at the annual election of the Board of Directors. 

The primary operations of the Alliance consist often acute and specialty care hospitals, as follows: 

• Johnson City Medical Center (JCMC)- licensed for 658 beds 
• Indian Path Medical Center (IPMC) - licensed for 261 beds 
• Smyth County Community Hospital (SCCH) - licensed for 153 beds 
• Norton Community Hospital (NCH) - licensed for 129 beds 
• Sycamore Shoals Hospital (SSH) - licensed for 121 beds 
• Johnston Memorial Hospital (.Thffi) - licensed for 116 beds 
• Franklin Woods Community Hospital (FWCH) - licensed for 80 beds 
• Russell County Medical Center (RCMC) - licensed for 78 beds 
• Dickenson Community Hospital (DCH) - licensed for 25 beds 
• Johnson County Community Hospital (JCCH) - licensed for 2 beds 

The Alliance has a 50.1% interest in JMH. JMH is also the sole member of Abingdon Physician 
Partners (APP), a non-taxable corporation that ovvns and manages physician practices. 

The Alliance has a 50. l % interest in NCH. NCH is also the sole member or shareholder ofDCH and 
Norton Community Physician Services, LLC (NCPS), a taxable corporation that consists of 
physician practices and a pharmacy and; Community Home Care (CHC), a taxable corporation that 
provides home medical equipment. 

The Alliance has an 80% interest in SCCH. SCCH is the sole shareholder of Southwest Community 
Health Services, Inc. (SWCH), a taxable entity that operates a pharmacy and provides other health 
services. 

The activities and accounts of JMH, NCH and SCCH are included in the accompanying consolidated 
financial statements. 

The Alliance is the sole shareholder of Blue Ridge Medical Management Corporation (BRM:M), a 
for-profit entity that owns and manages physician practices and provides other healthcare services to 
patients in Tennessee and Virginia. BRMM also operates as a medical office real estate developer by 

9 



MOUNTAIN STATES HEALTH ALLIANCE 

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements .. Continued 
(Dollars Thousands) 

Years Ended June 30, 2012 and 2011 

NOTE A--ORGANIZATION AND OPERATIONS - Continued 

owning, selling and leasing real estate to physician practices and other entities. BRMM is either the 
sole shareholder, a significant shareholder, or member of the following organizations: 

Mountain States Physician Group, Inc. (MSPG): A company that contracts ·with physicians to 
provide services to BRMM physician practices. 

Mountain States Properties1 Inc. (MSP I): An entity that owns and manages certain real estate 
(primarily medical office buildings) and provides rehabilitation and fitness services. In addition, 
MSPI is counter-party to an interest rate swap. 

Mediserve Medical Equipment of Kingsport, Inc. (Mediserve): A company that provides durable 
medical equipment services. 

Kingsport Ambulatory Surgery Center (KASC) (db.a. Kingsport Day Surgery): Ajoint venture 
operating as an outpatient surgery center which performs procedures primarily in otolaryngology, 
orthopedics, ophthalmology, and general surgery. BRMM has a 43% ownership of KASC and 
maintains control over KASC through a management agreement. The accounts and activities of 
KASC are included in the accompanying consolidated financial statements. 

Piney Flats Urgent Care (P FUC): A for-profit entity that provides urgent care patient services. 
BRMlVI has a 75% ownership of PFUC. The accounts and activities of PFUC are included in the 
accompanying consolidated fmancial statements. 

Wilson Pharmacy, Inc. (Wilson): In August 2012, BRMJ\..1 acquired Wilson, a Company that owns 
and operates retail pharmacies. BR.M:M: purchased 100% of the total issued and outstanding 
capital stock of Wilson for $8,114 and recognized goodwill of$5,725. 

The Alliance is the primary beneficiary of the activities of Mountain States Foundation, Inc. ')vfSF), 
a not-for-profit foundation fonned to coordinate fundraising and development activities of the 
Alliance. The Alliance is also the beneficiary of the Mou..tttain States Health Alliance Auxiliary 
(Auxiliary), a not-for-profit organization formed to coordinate volunteer activities of the Alliance. 
The activities and accounts ofMSF and the Auxiliary are included in the accompanying consolidated 
financial statements. 

The Alliance is a majority shareholder of Integrated Solutions Health Network, LLC (ISHN). The 
primary function ofISHN is to establish, operate and administer a provider-sponsored health care 
delivery network. The accounts and activities of ISHN are included in the accompanying 
consolidated financial statements. 
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MOUNTAIN STATES HEALTH ALLIANCE 

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements ... Continued 
(Dollars in Thousands) 

Years Ended June 2012 and 2011 

NOTE B--SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIBS 

Principles of Consolidation: The accompanying consolidated financial statements include the 
accounts of the Alliance and its subsidiaries after elimination of all significant intercompany 
accounts and transactions. The Alliance classifies those activities directly associated with its mission 
of providing healthcare services, as well as other activities deemed significant to its operations, as 
operating activities. 

Noncontrolling Interests in Subsidiaries: The Alliance's accompanying consolidated fmancial 
statements include all assets, liabilities, revenues, expenses, and changes in net assets, including 
amounts attributable to the noncontrolling interest. NoncontroUing interests represent the portion of 
equity (net assets) into a subsidiacy not attributable, directly or indirectly, to the Alliance. For the 
years ending June 30, 2012 and 2011, the AIIiance attributed an Excess (Deficit) ofRevenue, Gains 
and Support over Expenses and Losses of ($3, 726) and $3,393, respectively, to the noncontrolling 
interests in J.l\ffi, NCH, SCCH, KASC, PFUC and ISHN based on the noncontrolling interests' 
respective ownership percentage. 

Use of Estimates: The preparation of the consolidated financial statements in conformity with 
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America requires management to 
make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and 
disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities as of the date of the consolidated financial statements. 
Estimates also affect the reported amounts of revenue and expenses during the reporting period. 
Actual results could differ from these estimates. 

Cash and Cash Equivalents: Cash and cash equivalents include all highly liquid investments with a 
maturity of three months or less when purchased. Cash and cash equivalents designated as assets 
limited as to use or uninvested amounts included in investment portfolios are not included as cash 
and cash equivalents on the Consolidated Balance Sheets. 

Investments: Investments as reported in the Consolidated Balance Sheets include trading securities, 
held-to-maturity securities and assets limited as to use (Note C). The Financial Accounting 
Standards Board (FASB) Accounting Standards Codification (ASC) 958-320, Investments-Debt 
and Equity Securities, allows not-for-profit organizations to report in a manner similar to business 
entities by identifying securities as available-for-sale or held-to-maturity and to exclude the 
unrealized gains and losses on those securities from the Performance Indicator (as defined below). 
Investments which the Alliance has the positive intent and ability to hold to maturity are considered 
as held-to-maturity. Substantially all other investments are considered as trading securities. 
Management annually evaluates the held-to-matwity investment portfolio and recognizes any "other­
than-temporary" losses as deductions from the Performance Indicator. Management's evaluation 
considers the amount of decline in fair value, as well as the time period of any such decline. 
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MOUNTAIN STATES HEALTH ALLIANCE 

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements - Continued 
(Dollars in Thousands) 

Years Ended June 2012 and 2011 

NOTE B--SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - Continued 

Management does not believe any investm.ent classified as held-to .. maturity is other-than~temporarily 
impaired at June 30, 2012. 

Within the trading securities portfolio, all debt securities and marketable equity securities with 
readily determinable fair values are reported at fair value based on quoted market prices. Investments 
without readily determinable fair values are reported at estimated fair market value pursuant to 
FASB ASC 825, Financial Instruments. Guaranteed investment contracts are reported at contract 
value. 

Realized gains and losses on trading securities and assets limited as to use are computed using the 
specific identification method for cost determination. Interest and dividend income is reported net of 
related investment fees. 

Investments in joint ventures are reported under the equity method of accounting, which 
approximates the Alliance's equity in the underlying net book value, unless the ownership structure 
requires consolidation. Other assets include investments in joint ventures of$2,153 and $2,367 at 
June 30, 2012 and 2011, respectively. 

Inventories: Inventories, consisting primarily of medical supplies, are stated at the lower of cost or 
market. 

Property, Plant and Equipment: Property, plant and equipment is stated on the basis of cost, or if 
donated, at the fair value at the date of gift. Generally, depreciation is computed by the straight-line 
method over the estimated useful life of the asset. Equipment held under capital lease obligations is 
amortized under the straight-line method over the shorter of the lease term or estimated useful life. 
Amortization of buildings and equipment held under capital leases is shown as a part of depreciation 
expense and accumulated depreciation in the accompanying consolidated financial statements. 
Renewals and betterments are capitalized and depreciated over their useful life, whereas costs of 
maintenance and repairs are expensed as incurred. 

Interest costs incurred on borrowed funds during the period of construction of capital assets is 
capitalized as a component of the cost of acquiring those assets. The amount capitalized is net of 
investment earnings on assets limited as to use derived from borrowings designated for capital assets. 

The Alliance reviews capital assets for indications of potential impairment when there are changes in 
circumstances related to a specific as.set. If this review indicates that the carrying value of these 
assets may not be recoverable, the Alliance estimates future cash flows from operations and the 
eventual disposition of such assets. If the sum of these undiscounted future cash flows is less than 
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MOUNTAIN STATES HEALTH ALLIANCE 

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements ... Continued 
(Dollars in Thousands) 

Years Ended June 30, 2012 and 2011 

NOTE B--SIGNJFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - Continued 

the canying amount of the asset, a write-down to estimated fair value is recorded. The Alliance did 
not recognize any impairment losses during 2012 and 2011. 

Other assets include property held for resale and property held for expansion of $2,620 and $4,230, 
respectively, at June 30, 2012 and 2011. During 2012, property held for expansion totaling 
approximately $1,610 was transferred to property, plant and equipment in conjunction with the 
construction of a replacement facility for SCCH. During 2011, property held for expansion totaling 
approximately $4,904 was transferred to property, plant and equipment in conjunction with the 
construction of FW CH. Property held for resale and property held for expansion primarily represent 
land contributed to, or purchased by, the Alliance plus costs incurred to develop the infrastructure of 
such land. Management annually evaluates its investment and records non-temporary declines in 
value when it is determined the ultimate net realizable value is less than the recorded amount. No 
such declines were identified in 2012 and 2011. 

Goodwill: Goodwill represents the difference between the acquisition cost of assets and the 
estimated fair value of net tangible and any separately identified intangible assets. Effective July 1, 
2010, the Alliance adopted ASC 350, Intangibles- Goodwill and Other, which requires goodwill to 
be evaluated for impairment at least annually. Upon adoption of ASC 350, the Alliance was required 
to perform a transitional impairment test. As a result of this testing, management determined that as 
of July 1, 2010 approximately $2,965 of goodwill associated with one of its reporting units was 
impaired, and such impairment has been reflected as the Cumulative Effect of a Change in 
Accounting Principle in the 2011 Consolidated Statement of Changes in Net Assets. 

In September 2011, the FASB issued Accounting Standards Update (ASU) 2011-08 which allows 
entities to use a qualitative approach to detennine whether the fair value of a reporting unit is more 
likely than not impaired. The Alliance early adopted the provisions of this ASU and, based upon this 
qualitative analysis, management does not believe it is more likely than not that goodwill associated 
with any of its reporting units is impaired as of June 30, 2012. The reporting unit for evaluation of 
substantially all such goodwill is the Alliance's aggregate acute-care operations. 

Deferred Financing, Acquisition Costs and Other Charges: Other assets, including deferred 
financing, acquisition costs and other charges, total $28, 187 and $29, 844 at June 30, 2012 and 2011, 
respectively. Deferred financing costs are amortized over the life of the respective bond issue 
principally using the average bonds outstanding method. Other intangible assets include licenses and 
similar assets and are being amortized over the intangible's estimated useful life under the straight­
line method. 
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MOUNTAIN STATES HEALTH ALLIANCE 

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements .. Continued 
(Dollars in Thousands) 

Years Ended June 2012 and 2011 

NOTE B-~SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - Continued 

Prior to 2009, the Alliance routinely financed interest rate swap and other derivative transaction 
issuance costs through modification of future settlement terms. As such, the unamortized issuance 
costs of these derivatives are included as deferred financing costs in the accompanying Consolidated 
Balance Sheets and are being amortized over the term of the respective derivative instrument. The 
unpaid issuance costs are included as a part of the estimated fair value of derivatives in the 
accompanying Consolidated Balance Sheets. Subsequent to 2009, interest rate swap and derivative 
transaction issuance costs were expensed as incurred. 

Derivative Financial Instruments: As further described in Note D, the Alliance is a party to interest 
rate swap and other derivative agreements. These financial instruments are not designated as hedges 
and have been presented at estimated fair market value in the accompanying Consolidated Balance 
Sheets as either current or long-term liabilities, based upon the remaining term of the instrument. 
Changes in the estimated fair value of these derivatives are included in the Consolidated Statements 
of Operations as part of nonoperating gains (losses). Net settlements and other related income of 
derivatives are also reflected as a part of the Performance Indicator (described below). 

These fair values are based on the estimated amount the Alliance would receive, or be required to 
pay, to enter into equivalent agreements at the valuation date and include an estimated credit value 
adjustment. The fair value of various derivatives a.re netted on the Consolidated Balance Sheets 
based on management's evaluation of the settlement provisions in the master contract. Gross 
positions of these derivatives are disclosed in Note D. Due to the nature of these financial 
instruments, such estimates of fair value are subject to significant change in the near term. 

Estimated Professional Liability Self-Insurance and Other Long-Term Liabilities: Self-insurance 
liabilities include estimated reserves for reported and unreported professional liability claims (Note 
G) and are recorded at the estimated net present value of such claims. Other long-term liabilities 
include contributions payable and obligations under deferred compensation arrangements, a defined 
benefit pension plan, a post-retirement employee benefit plan as well as other liabilities which 
management estimates are not payable within one year. 

Net Patient Service Revenue/Receivables: Net patient service revenue is reported on the accrual 
basis in the period in which services are provided at the estimated net realizable amounts, including 
estimated retroactive adjustments under reimbursement agreements with third-party payers. 
Retroactive adjustments are accrued on an estimated basis in the period the related services are 
rendered and adjusted in future periods as fmal settlements are determined. The Alliance's revenue 
recognition policies related to self-pay and other types of payors emphasize revenue recognition only 
when collections are reasonably assured. 
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MOUNTAIN STATES HEALTH ALLIANCE 

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements .., Continued 
(Dollars in Thousands) 

Years Ended June 2012 and 2011 

NOTE B--SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES ~ Continued 

Patient accounts receivable are reported net of both an estimated allowance. for uncollectible 
accounts and an estimated allowance for contractual adjustments. The contractual allowance 
represents the difference between established billing rates and estimated reimbursement from 
Medicare, Medicaid, TennCare and other third-party payment programs. Current operations include 
a provision for bad debts in the Consolidated Statements of Operations estimated based upon the age 
of the patient accounts receivable, historical writeoffs and recoveries and any unusual circumstances 
(such as local, regional or national economic conditions) which affect the collectibility of 
receivables, including management's assumptions about conditions it expects to exist and courses of 
action it expects to take. Additions to the allowance for uncollectible accounts result from the 
provision for bad debts. Patient accounts written off as uncollectible are deducted from the 
allowance for uncollectible accounts. 

For uninsured patients that do not qualify for charity care, the Alliance recognizes revenue on the 
basis of discounted rates under the Alliance's self .. paypatientpolicy. Under the policy, a patient who 
has no insurance and is ineligible for any government assistance program has his or her bill reduced 
to the amount which generally would be billed to a commercially insured patient. 

The Alliance's policy does not require collateral or other security for patient accounts receivable. 
The Alliance routinely accepts assignment of, or is otherwise entitled to receive, patient benefits 
payable under health insurance programs, plans or policies. 

Charity Care: The Alliance accepts all patients regardless of their ability to pay. A patient is 
classified as a charity patient by reference to certain established policies of the Alliance and various 
guidelines outlined by the Federal Government. These policies defme charity as those services for 
which no payment is anticipated and, as such, charges at established rates are not included in net 
patient service revenue. The estimated direct and indirect cost of providing these services totaled 
approximately $24,709 and $18,158 in 2012 and 2011, respectively. Such costs are determined 
using a ratio of cost to charges analysis with indirect cost allocated under a reasonable and systematic 
approach. 

In addition to the charity care services described above, the Alliance provides a number of other 
services to benefit the poor for which little or no payment is received. Medicare, Medicaid, 
Tenn Care and State indigent programs do not cover the full cost of providing care to beneficiaries of 
those programs. The Alliance also provides services to the community at large for which it receives 
little or no payment. 

Excess (Deficit) of Revenue, Gains and Support Over Expenses and Losses: The Consolidated 
Statements of Operations and the Consolidated Statements of Changes in Net Assets includes the 
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Years Ended June 2012 and 2011 

NOTE B--SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTJNG POLICIES - Continued 

caption Excess (Deficit) of Revenue, Gains and Support Over Expenses and Losses (the Performance 
Indicator). Changes in unrestricted net assets which are excluded from the Performance Indicator~ 
consistent with industry practice, include contributions oflong-lived assets or amounts restricted to 
the purchase of long-lived assets, pension and related adjustments, and distributions to, or 
contributions from, owners and transactions with noncontrolling interests. 

Income Taxes: The Alliance is classified as an organization exempt from income taxes under 
Section 50l{c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code. As such, no provision for income taxes has been 
made in the accompanying consolidated financial statements for the Alliance and its true-exempt 
subsidiaries. Taxable entities account for income taxes in accordance with FASB ASC 740, Income 
Taxes (Note L). The Alliance has no significant uncertain tax positions at June 30, 2012 and2011. 

Temporarily and Permanently Restricted Net Assets: Temporarily restricted net assets are those 
whose use has been limited by donors to a specific tmie period or purpose. 'When a donor or time 
restriction expires; that is, when a stipulated time restriction ends or purpose restriction is fulfilled, 
temporarily restricted net assets are reclassified as unrestricted net assets and reported in the 
Consolidated Statements of Operations and Consolidated Statements of Changes in Net Assets as net 
assets released from restrictions. The Alliance's policy is to net contribution and grant revenues 
against related expenses and present such amounts as a part of other nonoperating gains (losses) in 
the Consolidated Statements of Operations. Permanently restricted net assets have been restricted by 
donors to be maintained by the Alliance in perpetuity. 

Fair Value Measurement: The Alliance had previously adopted FASB ASC 820, Fair Value 
Measurements and Disclosures, which defines fair value, establishes a framework for measuring fair 
value under generally accepted accounting principles and expands disclosures about fair value 
measurements. 

Subsequent Events: The Alliance evaluated all events or transactions that occurred after June 30, 
2012, through October 26, 2012, the date the consolidated financial statements were available to be 
issued. During this period management did not note any material recognizable subsequent events 
that required recognition or disclosure in the June 30, 2012 consolidated financial statements, other 
than as discussed in Notes D and S. 

New Accounting Pronouncements: In July 2011, the FASB issued ASU 2011-07, Healthcare 
Entities (Topic 954): Presentation and Disclosure of Patient Service Revenue, Provision for Bad 
Debts, and Allowance for Doubtful Accounts for Certain Healthcare Entities, which requires certain 
healthcare entities reclassify the provision for bad debts associated with providing patient care from 
an operating expense to a deduction from net patient service revenue in the Consolidated 
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Years Ended June 2012 and 2011 

NOTE B--SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - Continued 

Statements of Operations. Additionally, ASU 2011-07 requires enhanced disclosures about an 
entity's policies for recognizing revenue and assessing bad debts and qualitative and quantitative 
information about changes in the allowance for doubtful accounts. The Alliance retroactively 
adopted ASU 2011-07 in fiscal year 2012. The adoption of ASU 2011-07 did not have a material 
impact on the 2012 or 2011 consolidated financial statements. 

In August 2010, the FASB issued ASU 2010-24, Health Care Entities - Presentation of Insurance 
Claims and Related Insurance Recoveries (ASU 2010-24 ). The amendments in ASU 2010-24 clarify 
that a healthcare entity may not net insurance recoveries against related claim liabilities. In addition, 
the amount of the claim liability must be determined without consideration of insurance recoveries. 
The Alliance adopted ASU 2010-24 prospectively during 2012. The adoption of ASU 2010-24 did 
not have a material impact on the consolidated financial statements. 

In August 2010, the FASB issued ASU 2010-23, Health Care Entities-Measuring Charity Care for 
Disclosure. ASU 2010-23 is intended to reduce the diversity in practice regarding the measurement 
basis used in the disclosure of charity care. ASU 2010-23 requires that cost, identified as the direct 
and indirect costs of providing the charity care, be used as the measurement basis for disclosure 
purposes. ASU 2010-23 also requires disclosure of the method used to identify or determine such 
costs. The Alliance adopted ASU 2010-23 in 2012. The adoption of ASU 2010-23 did not have a 
material impact on the consolidated financial statements. 

Reclassifications: Certain 2011 amounts have been reclassified to conform with the 2012 
presentation in the accompanying consolidated financial statements. 

NOTE C--INVESTMENTS 

Assets limited as to use are summarized by designation or restriction as follows at June 30: 

Designated or restricted: 
Under safekeeping agreements and other 
Under guarantee agreements 
By Board for capital improvements 

$ 

2012 

24,026 $ 

4 

2011 

28,349 
92,720 

4 
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Years Ended June 30, 2012 and 2011 

NOTE C--INVESTMENTS - Continued 

Under bond indenture agreements: 
For debt service and interest payments 
For capital acquisitions 

Less: amount required to meet current obligations 

Assets limited as to use consist of the following at June 30: 

Cash, cash equivalents and money market funds 
U.S. Government securities 
U.S. Agency securities 
Municipal obligations 
Guaranteed investment contract 

Trading securities consist of the following at June 30: 

Cash, cash equivalents and money market funds 
U.S. Government securities 
U.S. Agency securities 
Corporate and foreign bonds 
Municipal obligations 
Preferred and asset backed securities 
U.S. equity securities 
Mutual funds 
Other 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

2012 

77,602 
29,578 

131,210 
(36,557) 

94,653 $ 

2012 

80,304 $ 
8,582 

40,398 
1,926 

131,210 $ 

2012 

5,186 $ 
10,697 
26,165 
52,581 

961 
11,183 
28,344 

141,968 
34,880 

311,965 $ 

2011 

67,874 
28,835 

217,782 
(116,175) 

101,607 

2011 

115,579 
1,795 
7,688 

92,720 

217,782 

2011 

29,159 
9,409 

31,551 
32,895 

451 
8,945 

21,774 
166,708 
32,718 

333,610 

Held-to-maturity securities (other than assets limited as to use) are carried at amortized cost and 
consist of the following at June 30: 
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NOTE C--INVESTMENTS - Continued 

Cash, cash equivalents and money market funds 
Corporate and foreign bonds 
Municipal obligations 

$ 

$ 

2012 

298 $ 
138,232 

15,549 

154,079 $ 

2011 

753 
135,745 

9,661 

146,159 

Held-to-maturity securities had gross unrealized gains and losses of $11A32 and $33, respectively, 
at June 30, 2012 and $6,838 and $276, respectively at June 30, 2011. At June 30, 2012, the Alliance 
held no securities within the held-to-maturity portfolio which had been at an unrealized loss position 
for over one year. At June 30, 2011, the Alliance held nine securities within the held-to-maturity 
portfolio with a fair value and unrealized loss of $549 and $44, respectively, which had been at an 
unrealized loss position for over one year. At June 30, 2012, the contractual maturities ofheld-to­
maturity securities were $11,225 due in one year or less, $67,532 due from one to five years and 
$75,322 due after five years. At June 30, 2011, the contractual maturities of held-to-maturity 
securities were $13 ,816 due in one year or less, $55,563 due from one to five years and $76, 780 due 
after five years. 

At June 30, 2012 and 2011, the Alliance held investments in certain limited partnerships and hedge 
funds of $34,880 and $32, 718, respectively, that have a wide range of investment strategies with 
various levels of risk. These funds are included within trading securities and do not have readily 
determinable fair values. The funds are reported at estimated fair market value pursuant to FASB 
ASC 825, Financial Instruments. 

NOTE n .. -DERIVATIVE TRANSACTIONS 

The Alliance is a party to a number of derivative transactions. These derivatives have not been 
designated as hedges and are valued at estimated fair value in the accompanying Consolidated 
Balance Sheets. Management's primary objective in holding such derivatives is to introduce a 
variable rate component into its fixed rate debt structure. Under the terms of these agreements, 
changes in the interest rate environment could have a significant effect on the Alliance. 

These derivative agreements require that the Alliance post additional collateral for the derivatives' 
fair market value deficits above specified levels. Such investments are included as assets limited as 
to use. As of June 3 0, 2012, management believes the Alliance was fully collateralized with respect 
to the derivative agreements and management does not believe such collateral is exposed to third­
party credit risk. 
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NOTE D--DERIV ATIVE TRANSACTIONS - Continued 

Interest Rate Swaps: The Alliance is a party to six interest rate swap agreements with Bank of 
America, Merrill Lynch as the counterparty. The terms of five of these agreements were modified 
without settlement during 2011. No gain or loss was realized as a result of the modifications 
although such modifications did impact the estimated fair value of the interest rate swaps. A 
liability, representing the estimated net fair value of these swaps, of $8,765 and $8,123 was 
recognized by the Alliance as of June 30, 2012 and 2011, respectively. 

The following is a summary of five of these interest rate swap agreements at June 30, 2012: 

Payments~: 

Notib1u1l Estimated 
Swap Amount Term Counterpa:rty Alliance Fair Value 

A $ 170,000 4/2008-4/2026 1.265% through April 2013; 0 .00% through April 2014, $ 3,500 
1.07% through April 2014; then USD-SIFMA 

then 71.10% of 
USD-ISDA Swap Rate 

B 95,000 4/2008-4/2026 1.265% through April 2013; 0.000/o through April 2014, 1,983 
1.08% through April 2014; then USD-SIFMA 

then 71.18% of 
USD-ISDA Swap Rate 

c 173,030 4/2008-4/2034 1.315% through April 2013; 0.00% through April 2014, (513) 
1.12% through April 2014; then USD-SIFMA 

then 72.35% of 
USD-ISDA Swap Rate 

D 82,055 1212007-7/2033 3.493% through July 2012; 4.4 I% through July 2012; (9,520) 
then0% then .312% 

USD-LIBOR-BBA through USD-SIFMA 
July2012, then 67% USD-

LIB OR-BB A 
E 50,000 2/2008-7/2038 67.00% ofUSD-LIBOR-BBA USD-SIFMA (3,895) 

plus .145% 

Deferred financing and acquisition costs, net of amortization, include $6,135 and $6,480 at June 30, 
2012 and 2011, respectively, related to these swaps. 

In addition to the interest rate swaps described above, the Alliance and Bank of America, Merrill 
Lynch are also parties to a total return swap. The notional amount of the total return swap is equal to 
the outstanding 2001A Hospital Revenue and Improvement Bonds which was $22,300 at June 30, 
2012. The estimated fair value of the total return swap was $(320) and $(340) at June 30, 2012 and 
2011, respectively. The terms of the swap were modified without settlement during 2012. No gain 
or loss was realized as a result of the modifications although such modifications did impact the 

estimated fair value. The as amended consist of the 
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Beginning July 1, 2012, the Alliance will pay a variable rate ofUSD-SIFMA plus basis 
points ranging from 65 to 400, depending on the Alliance's bond rating as set forth by 
Standard and Poor's Ratings Service and Moody's Investors Service. The Alliance will 
receive a fixed rate of 4.50% and settlements will be made semi-annually through July 1, 
2015. 

• A "total return provision" under which the Alliance will pay (or receive) an amobnt equal to 
the product of the outstanding 2001A Reference Bonds multiplied by the difference between 
the outstanding 2001A Reference Bonds and the 2001A Reference Bonds' market price at 
termination, as defined in the agreement. 

In addition to the six interest rate swaps discussed above, the Alliance is also a party to an interest 
rate swap with Regions Bank (the Regions swap) and an interest rate swap with First Tennessee 
Bank National Association (the FTB swap). The Regions swap was entered into in July 2011 and 
terminates in August 2012. The FTB swap was entered into in June 2010 and terminates in July 
2015. The notional amounts of the Regions swap and FTB swap were $13,727 and $5,524, 
respectively, at June 30, 2012. A liability, representing the estimated net fair value of these swaps, 
of $221 was recognized by the Alliance as of June 30, 2012. The estimated fair value of the FTB 
swap was not significant at June 30, 2011. 

The Alliance was previously a party to a total return swap with Lehman Brothers as the counterparty. 
Lehman Brothers filed for bankruptcy in September 2008. The Alliance subsequently received 
notification from Lehman Brothers Special Financing, Inc. indicating the intent of the counterparty to 
terminate this agreement effective January 1, 2009. The Alliance and Lehman Brothers Special 
Financing, Inc. were unable to reach a settlement agreement at the time the swap was terminated. 

An estimated liability related to the agreement of $10,395 and $10,565 was recognized by the 
Alliance at June 30, 2012 and 2011. In addition, a third party holds investments with a fair market 
value ofapproximately $13,809 and $13,381, respectively, at June 30, 2012 and 2011 as collateral. 
The collateral and estimated liability related to this agreement are classified as current in the 
accompanying Consolidated Balance Sheets. 

At June 30, 2012, the parties were undergoing alternate dispute resolution, including non-binding 
arbitration. Subsequent to year end, the parties reached a tentative settlement agreement. In full 
settlement of the liability, the Alliance will pay the counterparty $7,375 from the funds held as 
collateral and the remaining collateral will be returned to the Alliance. 
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Interest Rate Swap Option: In June 2004, the Alliance entered into an agreement with Bear Steams 
(acquired by JP Morgan) whereby Bear Steams purchased from the Alliance an option to enter into 
an interest rate swap agreement (swaption) with the Alliance beginning July 1, 2011, which is an 
optional redemption date related to the Alliance's early extinguished 2000A and 2000B Bonds (Note 
F). The purpose of this agreement was to effectively sell the call features related to the early 
extinguished Series 2000A and 2000B Bonds. As consideration under this agreement, the Alliance 
received a total of $42,500 in upfront payments as the swaption premium. Such amounts were 
initially recorded as estimated fair value of derivatives in the Consolidated Balance Sheets. 

During 2012, the counterparty expressed their intent to exercise the swaption on January 1, 2012 and 
the Alliance exercised its right to terminate the swaption at its fair market value. The swaption was 
terminated on October 13, 2011. To effectuate the termination, 1heAlliancetransferred $93,353 ofa 
Guaranteed Investment Contract ( GIC), described below, to the third party as a termination payment. 
A gain of $3,058 was recognized on the termination, which is included within other nonoperating 
gains (losses) in the accompanying 2012 Consolidated Statement of Operations. 

A liability of $92,044, representing the estimated fair value of the swaption at June 30, 2011, 
respectively, is included in estimated fair value of derivatives in the accompanying 2011 
Consolidated Balance Sheet. The change in estimated fair value of derivatives in the accompanying 
Consolidated Statements of Operations for 2012 and 2011 includes an unrealized loss of$4,67 6 and 
$2,394, respectively, related to this derivative, prior to termination. 

Forward Sale Agreements: In June 2004, the Alliance entered into nvo related forward sale 
agreements with the counterparty to the swaption agreements and the Master Trustee of the Series 
2000 Bonds. The forward sale agreements originally related to the Debt Service Reserve Fund and 
to the Debt Service Fund, respectively, (collectively, the ''Funds"), as established under provisions of 
the Master Trust Indenture related to the issuance of the Series 2000 Bonds. In consideration of the 
future earnings on the Funds, the counterparty paid the Master Trustee a total of $30,000 during 
2005, to be held on behalf of the Alliance. As the original intent of these Funds was to secure debt 
service payments under the above referenced Bonds, the agreement requires these funds to be held 
under a guaranty agreement as further described below. 

In June 2006, one of these agreements was amended to also relate to the Series 2000C, 2000D, 
2006A and 2006B Bonds, and to remove the Series 2000A Bonds from consideration under the 
agreement. In connection with the issuance of the Series 2007 Bonds and the derecognition of a 
portion of the Series 2000A Bonds, all of the outstanding Series 2000B Bonds~ and all of the 
outstanding 2006B Bonds (Note F), one of these agreements as it relates to the Series 2000A and 
2000B Bonds was partially terminated. As such, during 2008 the Alliance reduced its liability with 
respect to the portion related to the Series 2000A and 2000B Bonds, and paid the counterparty 
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$6, 186 under the terms of the agreement. The agreement was amended in fiscal year 2011 to include 
the Series 2010A Bonds and to remove the Series 2000B and 2006B Bonds. 

Amounts were being recognized as inves1ment income over the life of the agreements. A liability of 
$19,001 representing the illlamortized payments from the counterparty at June 30, 2011 is included 
as part of deferred revenue in the accompanying 2011 Consolidated Balance Sheet. 

In June 2012, the Alliance and the counterparty terminated the two forward sale agreements. To 
effectuate the termination, the Alliance agreed to pay $13,429 to the counterparty. At June 30, 2012, 
the termination payable was included in accounts payable and accrued expenses in the accompanying 
2012 Consolidated Balance Sheet. The Alliance recognized a gain of$4,708 on the termination of 
these agreements) which is included within other nonoperating gains (losses) in the accompanying 
2012 Consolidated Statement of Operations. 

Pursuant to these agreements, the counterparty required that the Alliance's obligations under the 
swaption and forward sale agreements be collateralized under a guarantee agreement in favor of the 
counterparty. Due to various requirements of the Master Trust Indenture, the Alliance had previously 
transferred to MSF a total of $42,500 that was in turn deposited with the counterparty as collateral in 
a GIC. Amounts received under the forward sale agreements were also deposited into the GIC. All 
GIC deposits earn interest compounded at 4.14% for the first year, and at 3.5% thereafter through 
July 1, 2011. The GIC deposits as of June 30, 2011 totaled $92,720. The GIC was substantially 
utilized on October 13, 2011 to terminate the swaption discussed above and, as such, is included in 
the current portion of assets whose use is limited in the 2011 Consolidated Balance Sheet. 

NOTE E~-PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPN.IENT 

Property, plant and equipment consist of the following at June 30: 

Land 
Buildings and leasehold improvements 
Property and improvements held for leasing 
Equipment 
Buildings and equipment held under capital lease 

$ 

2012 

69,356 $ 
661,146 

74,914 
571,774 
20,540 

1~397,730 

2011 

63,749 
454,852 

80,568 
532,767 
42,720 

1,174,656 
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Less: Allowances for depreciation and amortization 

Construction in progress (Note N) 

$ 

2012 

(626,552) 

771,178 
94,278 

865,456 $ 

2011 

(586,471) 

588,185 
209)233 

797,418 

Accumulated depreciation and amortization on property and improvements held for leasing purposes 
is $22,951 and $23,348 at June 30, 2012 and 2011, respectively. Net interest capitalized was $3,110 
and $10,640 for the years ended June 30, 2012 and 2011, respectively. 

During 2012, the Alliance executed an Amendment and Mutual Release Agreement with a vendor 
whereby the Alliance waived its right to take any action with respect to prior contracts in exchange 
for professional services in future periods, primarily related to accelerated deployment of information 
systems. The Alliance recognized approximately $3 ,200 in 2012 as additions to property, plant and 
equipment with an offsetting gain related to the agreed-upon value of such professional services. 
The Alliance anticipates recognition of additional amounts in future periods as such services are 
provided. 

NOTE F--LONG-TERM DEBT AND OTHER FJNANCING ARRANGEMENTS 

Long-term debt and capital lease obligations consist of the following at June 30: 

Datulpti11n 
201 lA Hospital Revenue Bonds 

201 IB Hospital Revenue Bonas 

2011C Hospital Revenue Bands 

201 lD Hospital Revenue Bonds 

2011E Taxable Bonds 

2011 Hospital Facility Revenue Refunding l!lld 
.Improvement Bonds (.i.MH) 

201 OA Hospital Revenue Bonds, net of 
U!ll1lllortized premfum of'S1,<H7 and Sl,056 at 
June 30, 2012 and 2011, respec:tMJ)'• 

$65,260 uninsured term bonds, due July 1, 2033, mbject 
to early redemption or tender 

$20,000 uninsured term bonds, due July 1, 2033, subjett 
to early redemption err tcOOer 

S49,1!75 unimun:d term bonds, due Inly 1, 2031, subject 
to c11rly redemption or tender 

$60,705 uninsured temi bonds, due July 1, 2031, subject 
to early rellempfion or tender 

$15,960 uninBured term bondJ, due July 1, 2026, subject 
to early redemption or tender 

$24,1170 mrinsured tmn bonds, due July 1, 2033, subject 
to carlyrcxlemption or knder 

$32,515 ur.insured serially, through 2020 
$14,985 ~d term bonds, due July 1, 2015 
$19,3&5 uninsured tcrn1bonds,dueJuly1,2030 
$39,570 uninslll'!Xl term bonds, due July 1, 2038 
$55,400 uninsured term bonds, due July 1, 2038 

Rmu 
Vllriable,0.19% S 
~June 30, 2012 

Varillble, OJ9% 
at June 30, 2012 

Variable, 0.16% 
at June 30, 2012 

Variable, 0.19% 
et June 30, 2012 

Varillbje, 0.24% 
atJunc30,20l2 

Variable, l.2% 
at June 30, 2012 

3.0()% Ui 5.00% 
5.38% 
5.63% 
6.50% 
6.00% 

~~Balm«ce 
21112 1(}11 

65,260 s 

20,000 

49,875 

60,705 

15,960 

24,870 

162,952 169,13? 
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NOTE F--LONG-TERM DEBT AND OTHER FINANCING ARRANGEMENTS - Continued 

Qwtamlhft, &lsHCe 

Descr!/!!f_D1t MdttJrlJW Rata 2012 2011 

2010B Hospital Rovmuo Bonds, not of $23,855 ut1msurnd serially, through 2020 2.50% to S.00% 33,129 36,646 
unamortized pr-emium of $66!1 and $711 at June $4,355 uninsured tenn bonds, due July I, 2023 5.00"/o 
30, 2012 and 201 t, respectively $4,250 Dilin&ured term bonds, due July 1, 2028 5.50% 

2009A Hospital Revenue Bonds, net of $725 Ullinsured fc1m bonds, du.e July 1, 2019 7.25% S,443 S,439 
UlllWlortiud diBCOunt of $117 and $121 at June $1,730 uninsured tenn bonds, due July l, 2029 1.50% 
30, 2012 and 2011, ~pectivcly $3,105 uninsured tmn bonds, due July 1, 2038 7.75% 

2009B Hospital Revenue Bonds $5,535 tmiimlred term bonds, due July l, 2038 8.000/o 5,535 5,535 
2009C Hospital Revenue B0t1ds, net of $21,100uninsurnd1mm hoods, dU1l July 1, 2019 7.25% 113,621 113,534 
IltlmlOrtized discount of $2,334 and $2,421 l'lt $20,000 uninBU1'lld term bood!t, dllt! July I, 2029 7.50% 
June 30, 2012 and 2011, respectively $74,l!SS unirulured term booda, due July I, 2033 7.75% 

2008A Hospital R¢V¢1lUe Bonds $13,245 unittsure<! term bonda, due July I, 2038, subject Varilible, 0,19% 13,245 13,245 
ro early redemption c.rr tender at June 30. 2012 

2008B Hospital Revenue Bonds $52,930 uninsured term bonds, due Inly 1, 2038, robject Variable, 0.19% 52,930 53,855 
to oarly redemption or tender at June 30, 2012 

2007B Tu..~le Hospital Revtlllue Bonds, $156,760 uninsured tmm bonds, duo July l, 2033, subjoot Vuri11hlo, 156,760 307,900 
bifurcated into sub-llerics B-1, B-2 and B-3 to early redemption or tender 0.20% to 0.23% 
during20ll at Juno 30, 2012 

20()6.A Hospital First Mortgage Revoo.ue $5,940 uninsurnd serially, through 2019 S.00% 169,136 169,782 
Bond!t, net of unsmortized premium of $141 $7 ;375 uninsured tetm bonds, due July 1, 2026 5.25% 
erui $147 at June 30, 2012 and 2011, $20,505 unin.surad Wm1 hoods, due July I, 2031 5.50% 
respectively $135,175 uninsured term bonds, due July I, 2036 5.50% 

2001A H06pital First Mortgage Revenue $22,300 tmn bond.-!, due July I, 2026, ll!lbject to eBrly 4.50% 22,300 23,100 
Bond&, re-i.smed in 2012 redemption or tender II/! re-isBUed 

2001 Hospital Refunding and Improvement Redeemed w 2012 NIA 11,876 
Revenue Bonds (NCH), net of unamortized 
discount of$34June 30, 2011 

2000A Hospital First Mortgage Revenue $32,431 instwd Capital Appreciation Bonds, interest 11nd 6.63% 32,431 30,358 
Refunding Bonds principal duo July 1, 2026 through 2030 

2.000C Hospital First Mortgage Revc:nuc Bondl $33,230 insured tc:rm bond&, due July I, 2026 8.50% 33,230 34,325 

20000 Fmt MortgAgc Taxable Bontls $14,315 imured tenn bond!, due July I, 2026 850",{, 14,315 14,790 

1998 Hospital Refunding and Improvement Redeemed In 2012 NIA 14,115 
Revetllle Boods (JMH) 

Capitalized l!llllle obligation Lell.!le paid-off in 2012 NIA 13,656 

$7,500 promissory note Nole paid-off in 2012 NIA 5,473 

Capimli.ted lease obligations seCl.lffil by Varion& monthly psyments of monthly principal and Various 1,645 2,518 
~t inte.rcst 

$1,065 ootc paynhle Not.e paid-off in 2012 NIA 572 

$6,332 promissoiynote Promill&OlY note paid-off in 2012 NIA 5,945 

$3,955 note pllyllble Note paid-ofi'in 2012 NIA 3,743 

Notes payable under MMteT Fimmoing Notes paid-off in 2012 NIA 14,011 
Agreement 

$1,1185 linc of credit Linc of cn:dit paid--off in 2012 NIA 1,873 

$1,593 note payable, secured by equipment Variom annual principal payments through July 2014 Unspecified 1,343 1,593 

Capitalized lease obliption secured by med.il:al Maturing through 2026 • Note S 9.12% IS,498 15,952 
office building (JMH) 

Mau installment p.aymeot agreeml.llrt Vurioa.s ~ paymentll through May 2014 Unspeci&d 4,438 112 
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.Malik€' installment payment agn:ement, secured Variow quarterly payments through May 2014 
by equipment 

$1,!!70 note payable, secured by land Monthly prlndpal payments afS HJ through maturity in 
July20iS 

$1 ,052 in promissory noti:s secmrc:d by llSsets of Vsrious monthly principill and intecent pllyments through 
Emmaus Community Healthcare, ILC 2019 

Rater 2012 2fJIJ 

Unspecified 3,032 

Unspecified 1,370 

3.00%-3.75% l,052 

l,Oll0,575 l,069,085 
(32,477) (21!,162) 

s 1,048,098 $ l,040,923 

Series 2011 Bonds: In October 2011, the Alliance issued $65,260 (Series 201 lA) and $20,000 
(Series 201 IB) variable rate tax-exempt Hospital Revenue Bonds through The Health and 
Educational Facilities Board of the City of Johnson City, Tennessee, $49,875 (Series 201 lC) and 
$60,705 (Series 201 lD) variable rate tax-exempt Hospital Revenue Bonds through the Industrial 
Development Authority of Smyth, Virginia and $15,960 (Series 201 lE) variable rate Taxable Bonds 
(collectively, the Series 2011 Bonds). The Series 2011 Bonds bear interest at a variable rate 
determined by a remarketing agent based upon a weekly rate period. The proceeds from the Series 
201 l A and Series 201 lB Bonds were used to finance certain capital acquisitions in the State of 
Tennessee and pay issuance costs related to these Bonds. The proceeds from the Series 2011 C and 
201 lD Bonds were used to refinance the 2001 NCH Hospital Refunding and Improvement Revenue 
Bonds, finance capital acquisitions for NCH, JlVIH and SCCH and to pay issuance costs associated 
with these Bonds. The Series 20 I IE Bond proceeds were used to refinance certain capital 
acquisitions of SCCH and BRlvIM:C and pay issuance costs. The timely payment of the Series 2011 
Bonds is secured by a letter of credit which expires October 19, 2014. 

In November 2011, .Th1H issued $24,870 (JMH Series 2011) variable rate tax-exempt Hospital 
Facility Revenue Refunding and Improvement Bonds through the Industrial Development Authority 
of Smyth County. The JMH Series 2011 Bonds bear interest at a variable rate detennined by a 
remarketing agent based upon a weekly rate period. The proceeds from the .T.MH Series 2011 Bonds 
were used to refinance the 1998 Hospital Refunding and Improvement Revenue Bonds, refinance 
existing indebtedness incurred to finance capital acquisitions and to pay issuance costs associated 
with the Bonds. 

Series 2010Bonds: In April 2010, theAllianceissued$168;080 (Series2010A) and$35,935 (Series 
2010B) fixed rate Hospital Refunding Revenue Bonds (collectively, the Series 2010 Bonds). 
Proceeds of the Series 2010A and the Series 2010B Bonds were used to refinance outstanding 
indebtedness, specifically related to the Alliance's facilities in Tennessee and in Virginia, 
respectively, fund debt service reserve funds and pay costs of issuance. 
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Series 2009 Bonds: In March 2009, the Alliance issued $5,560 (Series 2009A), $5,535 (Series 
2009B) and $115,955 (Series 2009C) fixed rate Hospital Revenue Bonds (collectively, the Series 
2009 Bonds). The proceeds of Series 2009 Bonds were used to refmance a portion of the outstanding 
Series 2006C Taxable Notes, which were originally issued to finance a capital commitment to SCCH 
and purchase certain leased assets, finance the acquisition of a majority ownership in JMH, fund a 
debt service reserve fimd and pay costs of issuance. The portion of the 2006C taxable notes which 
were not refmanced with the Series 2009 Bonds were repaid with cash on hand. 

Series 2008 Bonds: In February 2008, the Alliance issued $72, 770 (Series 2008A) and $54,230 
(Series 2008B) variable rate Hospital Revenue Bonds (collectively, the Series 2008 Bonds). The 
proceeds of Series 2008 Bonds were primarily used to finance certain future capital projects for the 
Alliance's hospital facilities and for the repayment of previously issued 2008 Taxable Notes used for 
the acquisition of RCMC. The payment of principal and interest on the Series 2008 Bonds and the 
purchase price of any tendered bonds on each series are secured by a separate, irrevocable, 
transferable, direct-pay letter of credit. A portion ($59,525) of the Series 2008A Bonds were repaid 
from proceeds of the Series 2010 Bonds. 

Series 2007 Bonds: In December 2007, the Alliance issued $104,355 (Series 2007A), $327,170 
(Series 2007B taxable) and $36,575 (Series 2007C) variable rate Hospital Revenue Bonds 
(collectively, the Series 2007 Bonds). The proceeds of Series 2007 Bonds were primarily used to 
early extinguish a portion of the outstanding Series 2000A Bonds, all of the outstanding 2000B 
Bonds, all of the outstanding Series 1994 Bonds, and all of the outstanding Series 2006B Bonds; to 
finance the acquisition of a majority o\Vllership in NCH, and to fmance certain capital improvements 
and equipment acquisitions for the Alliance's hospital facilities. A portion of the outstanding Series 
2007A ($91,685) and Series 2007C ($32,840) Bonds were repaid from proceeds ofthe Series 2010 
Bonds. 

During 2011, the remaining outstanding Series 2007 A and Series 2007C Bonds were redeemed and 
the existing 2007B Bonds were repaid through a remarketing of Sub-Series 2007B-1, 2007B-2 and 
2007B-3 (collectively, the Sub-Series 2007B Bonds), created per the mandatory tender and letter of 
credit substitution provisions. The payment of principal and interest on the Sub .. Series 2007B Bonds 
and the purchase price of any tendered bonds on each series are secured by a separate, irrevocable, 
transferable, direct-pay letter of credit. 

During 2012, the Alliance redeemed $115,135 of the Series 2007B-1 Bonds and $29,405 of the 
Series 2007B-3 Bonds. 
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Series 2006 Bonds: During 2006, the Alliance issued $173,030 Hospital First Mortgage Revenue 
Bonds (Series 2006A) and $66,500 Hospital First Mortgage Variable Rate Revenue Bonds (Series 
2006B). The proceeds from the sale of the Series 2006A Bonds were used to finance certain future 
and prior capital projects for the Alliance's hospital facilities and to refund certain existing 
indebtedness, specifically the Series 2001 B Bonds (discussed below) and certain existing short and 
intermediate term loans and leases, as well as fund a debt service reserve fund. The Series 2006B 
Bond proceeds were substantially used to refund the remaining outstanding principal of the Series 
200 IB Bonds and establish a debt service reserve fund. 

Series 2001 Bonds: During 2001, the Alliance issued $26,000 Hospital First Mortgage Revenue 
Bonds (Series 2001A) and $60,175 Hospital First Mortgage Revenue Bonds (Series 2001B). The 
Series 200 lA Bonds were subject to optional tender by Bond holders. The Series 2001B Bonds were 
refunded and redeemed in 2006. The Alliance redeemed the 2001 A Bonds and released anew Series 
2001A to Bank of America Merrill Lynch during 2012. 

Series 2000 Bonds: The Hospital First Mortgage Revenue Refunding (Series 2000A Bonds) and 
First Mortgage Revenue Refunding Bonds (Series 2000B Bonds), were used to advance refund 
previously existing indebtedness as well as fund a required debt service reserve fund. The Hospital 
First Mortgage Revenue Bonds (Series 2000C Taxable Bonds) were used to refinance certain 
mortgage indebtedness of BRMM:, and to refund other previously existing indebtedness. The 
proceeds from the sale of the First Mortgage Bonds (Series 2000D Taxable Bonds) were used 
primarily to fund working capital for the Alliance. 

The Series 2000A Bonds included at issue date $14,680 of insured Capital Appreciation Bonds. 
Such bonds bear a 0% coupon rate and have a yield of 6.625% annually. The Alliance recognizes 
interest expense and increases the amount of outstanding debt each year based upon this yield. Total 
principal and interest due at maturity (2026 through 2030) is $93,675. 

Derecognized Bonds: The advance refunding of previously issued debt requires funds to be placed 
in irrevocable trusts in order to satisfy remaining scheduled principal and interest payments. 
Management, upon advice oflegal counsel, believes the amounts deposited in such irrevocable trust 
accounts have contractually relieved the Alliance of any future obligations with respect to this debt, 
and the debt and escrowed securities are not considered liabilities or assets of the Alliance. 
Therefore, such debt has been derecognized. 

Debt outstanding and not recognized in the Consolidated Balance Sheet at June 30, 2012 due to 
previous advance refundings of the Series 2000A Bonds, Series 2000B Bonds, Series l 998C Bonds, 
and Series 1991 Bonds, totaled approximately $483,625. 
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The assets placed in the irrevocable trust accounts are also not recognized as assets of the Alliance. 
These assets consist primarily of various investments, as permitted by bond indentures and other 
documents, including United States Treasury obligations, an investment contract with MBIA 
Insurance Corporation (MBIA) in the original amount of $54,300, as well as the Series 2000C and 
2000D Bonds which were purchased with the proceeds of the 2000A and 2000B Bonds specifically 
for the purpose of utilizing the Series 2000C and 20000 Bonds in the irrevocable trust. Therefore, 
certain of the assets held in the irrevocable trust accounts have future income streams contingent 
upon payments by the Alliance. 

During 2012, the Alliance instructed the trustee of the 1998C Bonds to liquidate certain investments 
held in the related irrevocable trust account and to redeem a portion of the 1998C Bonds with the 
proceeds from the liquidation. The fair value of the liquidated assets exceeded the payment 
necessary to redeem the 1998C Bonds and the excess was paid to the Alliance. As a result of this 
transaction, the Alliance recognized a gain of $5,337, net of fees, which is included in other 
nonoperating gains Oosses) in the accompanying 2012 Consolidated Statement of Operations. 

Variable Rate Issuances: The variable rate of interest on the Series 2011, Series 2008 and Series 
2007 Bonds is determined weekly by the Remarketing Agent, as the rate equal to the lowest rate 
which, in regard to general financial conditions and other special conditions bearing on the rate, 
would produce as nearly as possible a par bid for the Bonds in the secondary market. In no event 
shall the variable rate on the Bonds during any period where interest is calculated weekly exceed the 
lesser of 12% annually or the maximum contract rate of interest permitted by the applicable State of 
issue. The Alliance has the option, upon written approval of the holder of the letters of credit, the 
Remarketing Agent and others, to convert to a medium-term rate period or to a fixed rate. 

Early Redemption: Essentially all of the Alliance's bonds are subject to redemption prior to 
maturity, including optional, mandatory sinking fund and extraordinary redemption, at various dates 
and prices as described in the respective Bond indentures and other documents. 

Other Bonds, Notes Payable and Financing Arrangements: The Alliance has granted a deed of trust 
on JCMC and SSH to secure the payment of the outstanding Bonds. The Bonds are also secured 
by the Alliance's receivables, inventories and other assets as well as certain funds held under 
the documents pursuant to which the bonds were issued. The JMH Series 2011 Hospital Refunding 
and hnprovement Revenue Bonds are secured by pledged revenues of JMH, as defined in the Credit 
Agreement. 
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The scheduled maturities and mandatory sinking fund payments of the long-term debt and capital 
lease obligations (excluding interest), exclusive of net unamortized original issue discount and 
premium, at June 30, 2012 are as follows: 

Year Ending June 3fA 

2013 $ 32,477 
2014 33,414 
2015 29,932 
2016 31~315 
2017 31~006 

Thereafter 923.055 

1,081,199 
Net discount (624) 

$ 1,080,575 

The Alliance and JWI are each members of separate Obligated Groups. The bond indentures, 
master trust indentures, letter of credit agreements and loan agreements related to the various bond 
issues and notes payable contain covenants with which the respective Obligated Groups must 
comply. These requirements include maintenance of certain financial and liquidity ratios, deposits to 
trustee funds, permitted indebtedness, use of facilities and disposals of property. These covenants 
also require that failure to meet certain debt service coverage tests will require the deposit of all daily 
cash receipts of the Alliance into a trust fund. Management has represented the Alliance and JMH 
are in compliance with all such covenants at June 30, 2012. 

In connection with the tax-exempt bonds, the Alliance is required every five years, and at maturity, 
to remit to the Internal Revenue Service amounts which are due related to positive arbitrage on the 
borrowed funds. The Alliance performs such computations when required and recognizes any 
liability at that time. Management does not believe there are any significant arbitrage liabilities at 
June 30, 2012 or 2011. 

During 2012, the Alliance recognized a $2,636 loss on early extinguishment of debt representing the 
write off of previously deferred and unamortized financing costs generally related to the refinanced 
or otherwise redeemed portion of the Series 2007B Bonds, Series 1998 Jivlli Bonds and the Series 
2001 NCH Bonds. 
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NOTE G--SELF-INSURANCE PROGRAMS 

The Alliance is substantially self-insured for professional and general liability claims and related 
expenses. The Alliance maintains a $25,000 umbrella liability policy that attaches over the self­
insurance limits of $10,000 per claim and a $15,000 annual aggregate retention. The Alliance's 
insurance program also provides professional liability coverage for certain affiliates an.d joint 
ventures. 

The Alliance is also substantially self-insured for workers' compensation claims in the State of 
Tennessee and has established estimated liabilities for both reported and unreported claims. The 
Alliance maintains a stop-loss policy that attaches over the self-insurance limits of $1,000 per 
occurrence and $1,000 annual aggregate retention. In the State of Virginia, the Alliance is not self­
insured and maintains workers' compensation insurance through commercial carriers. 

At June 30, 2012, the Alliance is involved in litigation relating to medical malpractice and workers' 
compensation and other claims arising in the ordinary course of business. There are also known 
incidents occurring through June 30, 2012 that may result in the assertion of additional claims, and 
other unreported claims may be asserted arising from services provided in the past Alliance 
management has estimated and accrued for the cost of these unreported claims based on historical 
data and actuarial projections. The estimated net present value of malpractice and workers' 
compensation claims, both reported and unreported, as of June 30, 2012 and 2011 was $12,896 and 
$13,531, respectively. The discount rate utilized was 5% at June 30, 2012 and 2011. 

Additionally, the Alliance is self-insured for employee health claims and recognizes expense each 
year based upon actual claims paid and an estimate of claims incurred but not yet paid, including a 
catastrophic claims reserve based on historical claims in excess of$75. 

NOTE H--NET PATIENT SERVICE REVENUE 

A reconciliation of the amount of services provided to patients at established rates to net patient 
service revenue as presented in the accompanying Consolidated Statements of Operations is as 
follows for the years ended June 30: 

2012 2011 

Inpatient service charges $ 2,095,036 $ 1,983,340 
Outpatient service charges 1,982,154 1,791,858 

Gross patient service charges 4,077,190 3,775,198 
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Less: 
Estimated contractual adjustments and other discounts 
Charity care 
Provision for bad debts 

Net patient service revenue $ 

2012 

2,899,678 2,640,909 
102,462 72,166 
122,917 116,248 

3,125,057 2,829,323 

952,133 $ 945,875 

Net patient service revenue by major payor source for the years ended June 30, 2012 and 2011, net of 
contractual allowances and self-pay discounts (before the provision for bad debts), is as follows: 

Third-party payors 
Self-pay 

Patient service revenue 

$ 

$ 

2012 

968,101 $ 
106,949 

1,075,050 $ 

2011 

957,828 
104,295 

1,062,123 

Deductibles and copayments under third-party payment programs, which are included within the 
third-party payor amounts above, are the patient's responsibility and the Alliance considers these 
amounts in its determination of the provision for bad debts based on prior collection experience. 
Accounts receivable are also reduced by an allowance for doubtful accounts. In evaluating the 
collectibility of accounts receivable, the Alliance analyzes its past history and identifies trends for 
each of its major payor sources of revenue to estimate the appropriate allowance for doubtful 
accounts and provision for bad debts. Management regularly reviews data about these major payor 
sources of revenue in evaluating the sufficiency of the allowance for doubtful accounts. For 
receivables associated with services provided to patients who have third-party coverage, the Alliance 
analyzes contractually due amounts and provides an allowance for doubtful accounts and a provision 
for bad debts, if necessary, for expected uncollectible deductibles and copayments or for payors who 
are known to be having financial difficulties that make the realization of amounts due unlikely. For 
receivables associated with self-pay patients, which includes both patients without insurance and 
patients with deductible and copayment balances due for which third-party coverage exists for part of 
the bill, the Alliance records a significant provision for bad debts in the period of service on the basis 
of its past experience, which indicates that many patients are unable or unwilling to pay the portion 
of their bill for which they are financially responsible. The difference between discounted rates and 
the amounts actually collected after all reasonable collection efforts have been exhausted is charged 
against the allowance for doubtful accounts. 

32 



MOUNTAIN STATES HEALTH ALLIANCE 

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements - Continued 
(Dollars in Thousands) 

Years Ended June 30, 2012 and 2011 

NOTE H--NET PATIENT SERVICE REVENUE - Continued 

The Alliance's allowance for doubtful accounts totaled $52,911 and $53,366 at June 30, 2012 and 
2011, respectively. The allowance for doubtful accounts decreased from 28% of patient accounts 
receivable, net of contractual allowances, at June 30, 2011 to 26% of patient accounts receivable, net 
of contractual allowances, as of June 30, 2012. Write-offs, net of recoveries, for the years ending 
June 30, 2012 and 2011 were $123,373 and $108,823, respectively, and relate primarily to self-pay 
patients. Write-offs of third-party payor accounts were not significant in the years ending June 30, 
2012 and 2011. The Alliance has not experienced significant changes in write-off trends and has not 
changed its charity care policy for the year ended June 30, 2012. The provision for bad debts 
associated with the Alliance's ancillary service lines are not significant. 

NOTE I--THIRD-P ARTY REIMBURSE:rv.IBNT 

The Alliance renders services to patients under contractual arrangements with Medicare, Medicaid, 
TennCare, Blue Cross and various other commercial payors. The Medicare program pays for 
inpatient services on a prospective basis. Payments are based upon diagnosis related group 
assignments, which are determined by the patient's clinical diagnosis and medical procedures 
utilized. The Alliance also receives additional payments from Medicare based on the provision of 
services to a disproportionate share of Medicaid and other low income patients. Most Medicare 
outpatient services are reimbursed on a prospectively determined payment methodology. The 
Medicare program also reimburses certain other services on the basis ofreasonable cost, subject to 
various prescribed limitations and reductions. 

Reimbursement under the State ofTennessee's Medicaid waiver program (TennCare) for inpatient 
and outpatient services is administered by various managed care organizations (MCOs) and is based 
on diagnosis related group assignments, a negotiated per diem or fee schedule basis. The Alliance 
also receives additional supplemental payments from the State of Tennessee. The amount 
recognized totaled $11,300 and $11,480 for the years ended June 30, 2012 and 2011, respectively. In 
addition, during 2012 the Alliance recognized $4,894 from Tenn Care related to the implementation 
and meaningful use of electronic medical records as provided by the Health Information Technology 
for Economics and Clinical Health (HITECH) Act. Such payments are included within other 
operating revenue in the accompanying 2012 Consolidated Statement of Operations and are not 
guaranteed in future periods. 

The Virginia Medicaid program reimbursement for inpatient hospital services is based on a 
prospective payment system using both a per case and per diem methodology. Additional payments 
are made for the allowable costs of capital Payments for outpatient services are based on Medicare 
cost reimbursement principles and settled through the filing of an annual Medicaid cost report. 

33 



MOUNTAIN STATES HEAL TH ALLIANCE 

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements - Continued 
(Dollars in Thousands) 

Years Ended June 2012 and 2011 

NOTE I--THIRD-PARTY REII\IBURSEMENT - Continued 

Amounts earned under the contractual agreements with the Medicare and Medicaid programs are 
subject to review and final determination by fiscal intermediaries and other appropriate governmental 
authorities or their agents. Retroactive adjustments are accrued on an estimated basis in the period 
the related services are rendered and adjusted in future periods as final settlements are determined. 
Activity with respect to audits and reviews of the governmental programs in the healthcare industry 
has increased and is expected to increase in the future. No additional specific reserves or allowances 
have been established with regard to these increased audits and reviews as management is not able to 
estimate such amounts. Management believes that any adjustments from these increased audits and 
reviews will not have a material adverse impact on the consolidated financial statements. However, 
due to uncertainties in the estimation, it is at least reasonably possible that management's estimate 
will change in 2013, although the amount of any change cannot be estimated. The impact of final 
settlements of cost reports or changes in estimates decreased net patient service revenue by $1 ~556 
and $4,570 in 2012 and 2011, respectively. 

Participation in the Medicare program subjects the Alliance to significant rules and regulations; 
failure to adhere to such could result in fines, penalties or expulsion from the program. Management 
believes that adequate provision has been made for any adjustments, fines or penalties which may 
result from final settlements or violations of other rules or regulations. Management has represented 
that the Alliance is in substantial compliance with these rules and regulations as of June 30, 2012. 

The Alliance has also entered into payment agreements with certain commercial insurance carriers, 
health maintenance organizations, preferred provider organizations and employer groups. The basis 
for payment under these agreements includes prospectively determined rates per discharge, discounts 
from established charges and prospectively determined daily rates. 

NOTE J--EMPLOYEE BENEFIT PLANS 

The Alliance sponsors a retirement plan (the Plan) which covers substantially all employees. The 
Plan is a defmed contribution plan which consists mainly of employer-funded contributions. During 
2012 and 2011, the Alliance made contributions to the Plan under a stratified system, whereby the 
Alliance's contribution percentage is based on each employee's years of service. Employees of 
certain other subsidiaries are covered by other plans, although such plans are not significant. The 
total expense related to defined contribution plans for the years ended June 30, 2012 and 2011 was 
$15,072 and $12,682, respectively. 

NCH maintains a defined benefit pension plan and a post-retirement employee benefit plan. The 
accrued unfunded pension liability was $2,560 and $1,313, and the accrued unfunded post-retirement 
liability was $4,554 and $3,761 at June 30, 2012 and 2011, respectively. 
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The Alliance sponsors a secured executive benefit program (SEBP) for certain key executives. 
Contributions to the plan by the Alliance are based on an annual amount of funding necessary to 
produce a target benefit for the participants at their retirement date, although the Alliance does not 
guarantee any level of benefit will be achieved. The Alliance contributed $1,734 and $929 to the 
plan during2012 and2011, respectively. Other assets atJune30, 2012 and2011 include $9,675 and 
$7 ,888, respectively, related to the Alliance's portion of the benefits which are recoverable upon the 
death of the participant. In addition, the Alliance sponsors a Section 457(f) plan for certain key 
executives. 

NOTE K--CONCENTRATIONS OF RISK 

The Alliance has locations primarily in upper East Tennessee and Southwest Virginia which is 
considered a geographic concentration. The Alliance grants credit without collateral to its patients, 
most of whom are local residents and are insured under third-party payor agreements. Net patient 
service revenue from Washington County, Tennessee operations were approximately 53% and 53% 
of total net patient service revenue for 2012 and 2011, respectively. 

The mix of receivables from patients and third .. party payors based on charges at established rates is 
as follows as of June 30: 

2012 2011 
Medicare 36% 40% 
Tenncare/Medicaid 14% 12% 
Commercial 26% 27% 
Other third-party payors 13% 9% 
Patients 11% 12% 

100% 100% 

Approximately 96% and 96% of the consolidated total revenue, gains and support were related to the 
provision of healthcare services during 2012 and 2011, respectively. Admitting physicians are 
primarily practitioners in the regional area. 

Two of the Alliance's Virginia hospitals' employees are covered under collective bargaining 
agreements which extend through February 2014 and January 2015, respectively. 

The Alliance routinely invests in investment vehicles as listed in Note C. The Alliance's investment 
portfolio is managed by outside investment management companies. Investments in corporate and 
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foreign bonds, municipal ·obligations, money market funds, equities and other vehicles that are held 
by safekeeping agents are not insured or guaranteed by the U.S. government. At June 30, 2012, the 
Alliance also had deposits in financial institutions significantly in excess of the Federal Deposit 
Insurance Corporation's limits. 

NOIBL--INCOME TAXES 

BR.i\1M and its subsidiaries file a consolidated federal tax return and separate state tax returns. As of 
June 30, 2012 and 2011, BRMiv.f and its subsidiaries had net operating loss carryforwards for 
consolidated federal purposes of $38,888 and $34,822, respectively, related to operating loss 
carryforwards which expire through 2031. At June 30, 2012 and 2011, BRM:M: had state net 
operating loss carryfonvards of $69,999 and $65,979, respectively, which expire through 2026. The 
net operating loss carryforwards may be offset against future taxable income to the extent permitted 
by the Internal Revenue Code and Tennessee Code Annotated. 

At June 30, 2012 and201 l, SWCHhad federal and state net operating loss carryforwards of$5,614 
and $4,875, respectively, which expire through 2031. The net operating loss carryfonvards may be 
off-set against future taxable income to the extent permitted by the Internal Revenue Code and tax 
codes of the Commonwealth of Virginia. 

Net deferred tax assets related to these carryforwards and other deferred tax assets have been 
substantially offset through valuation allowances equal to these amounts. Income taxes paid relate 
primarily to state taxes for certain subsidiaries and federal alternative minimum tax. 

NOTE M--RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 

The Alliance enters into transactions with entities affiliated with certain members of the Board of 
Directors including transactions to construct Alliance facilities and provide professional services to 
the Alliance. Board members refrain from discussion and abstain from voting on transactions with 
entities with which they are related. 

NOTE N--OTHER COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES 

Construction in Progress: Construction in progress at June 30, 2012 represents costs incurred 
related to various hospital and medical office building facility renovations and additions. The 
Alliance has outstanding contracts and other commitments related to the completion of these 
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projects, and the cost to complete these projects is estimated to be approximately $100,312 at June 
30, 2012. The Alliance does not expect any significant costs to be incurred for infrastructure 
improvements to assets held for resale. 

Physician Contracts: BRMM: employs physicians to provide services to BRMM' s physician 
practices through employment agreements which provide annual compensation, plus incentives 
based upon specified productivity levels. These contracts have various terms. 

In addition, the Alliance has entered into contractual relationships with non-employed physicians to 
provide services in Upper East Tennessee and Southwest Virginia. These contracts guarantee certain 
base payments and allowable expenses and have terms of varying lengths. Amounts drawn and 
outstanding under each agreement are treated as a loan bearing interest at various rates and are 
subject to repayment over a specified period. The physician notes may also be amortized by virtue of 
the physician's continued practice in the specified community during the repayment period. A net 
receivable of $1,436 and $1,407 related to these agreements is included in the accompanying 
Consolidated Balance Sheets at June 30, 2012 and 2011, respectively. 

Employee Scholarships: The Alliance offers scholarships to certain individuals which require that 
the recipients return to the Alliance to work for a specified period of time after they complete their 
degree. Amounts due are then forgiven over a specific period of time as provided in the individual 
contracts. If the recipient does not return and work the required period of time, the funds disbursed 
on their behalf become due immediately and interest is charged until the funds are repaid. Other 
receivables at June 30, 2012 and 2011 include $8,005 and $7,250, respectively, related to students in 
school, graduates working at the Alliance and amounts due from others who are no longer in the 
scholarship program, net of allowance. 

Promises to Give: The Alliance has recorded certain unconditional promises to give to unrelated 
organizations. At June 30, 2012, $1,354 is due within one year, and anadditional$100isduewithin 
five years and is included in other long-term liabilities. 

Operating Leases and Maintenance Contracts: Total lease expense for the years ended June 30, 2012 
and 2011 was $8,823 and $9 ,362, respectively. Future minimum lease payments for each of the next 
five years and in the aggregate for the Alliance~s noncancellable operating leases with remaining 
lease terms in excess of one year are as follows: 
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MOUNTAIN STATES HEALTH ALLIANCE 

Notes to Consolidated Fimmeial Statements ... Continued 
(Dollars in Thousands) 

Years Ended June 30, 2012 and 2011 

NOTE N--OTHER COMl\1ITMENfS AND CONTINGENCIES - Continued 

2013 $ 
2014 
2015 
2016 
2017 

Thereafter 

$ 

4,661 
4,476 
4,253 
3,997 
2,332 
8,008 

27,727 

Asset Retirement Obligation: The Alliance has identified asbestos in certain facilities and is required 
by law to dispose of it in a special manner if the facility undergoes major renovations or is 
demolished; otherwise, the Alliance is not required to remove the asbestos from the facility. Tue 
Alliance has complied with regulations by treating the asbestos so that it presents no known 
immediate or future safety concerns. An asset retirement obligation has been established to the 
extent that sufficient information exists upon which to estimate the liability. 

Other: The Alliance is a party to various transactions and agreements in the nonnal course of 
business, which include purchase and re-purchase agreements, put arrangements and other 
commitments, which may bind the Alliance to undertake additional transactions or activities in the 
future. In addition, the Alliance has agreed to guarantee a portion of the outstanding indebtedness of 
a joint venture. Management estimates that the fair value of the guarantee of this debt is immaterial 
as of June 30, 2012. 

Healthcare Industry: Recently, government activity has increased with respect to investigations and 
allegations concerning possible violations of fraud and abuse statutes and regulations by healthcare 
providers. Violations of these laws and regulations could result in expulsion from government 
healthcare programs together with the imposition of significant fines and penalties, as well as 
significant repayments for patient services previously billed. 

In March 2010, Congress adopted comprehensive health care insurance legislation, Patient Care 
Protection and Affordable Care Act and Health Care and Education Reconciliation Act. The 
legislation, among other matters, is designated to expand access to coverage to substantively all 
citizens by 2019 through a combination of public program expansion and private industry health 
insurance. Changes to existing Tenn Care and Medicaid coverage and payments are also expected to 
occur as a result of this legislation. Implementing regulations are generally required for these 
legislative acts, which are to be adopted over a period of years and, accordingly, the specific impact 
of any future regulations is not determinable. 
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MOUNTAIN STATES HEALTH ALLIANCE 

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements ... Continued 
(Dollars in Thousands) 

Years Ended June 2012 and 2011 

NOTE Q .. -RENTAL INCOME UNDER OPERATING LEASES 

The Alliance leases rental properties to third parties, most of whom are physician practices, for 
various terms, generally five years. The following is a schedule by year and in the aggregate of 
minimum future rental income due under noncancellable operating leases at June 30, 2012: 

Year Ending June 30, 

2013 
2014 
2015 
2016 
2017 

Thereafter 

Total minimum future rentals 

NOTE P~-FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 

$ 

$ 

1,574 
1A54 
1,339 

762 
405 
116 

5,650 

The fair value of financial instruments has been estimated by the Alliance using available market 
information as of June 30, 2012 and2011, and valuation methodologies considered appropriate. The 
estimates presented are not necessarily indicative of amounts the Alliance could realize in a current 
market exchange. The carrying value of substantially all financial instruments approximates fair 
value due to the nature or term of the instruments, except as described below. 

Investment in Joint Ventures: It is not practical to estimate the fair market value of the investments 
in joint ventures. 

Other Long-Tenn Liabilities: Estimates of reported and unreported professional liability claims, 
pension and post-retirement liabilities are discounted to approximate their estimated fair value. It is 
not practical to estimate the fair market value of other long-term liabilities due to uncertainty of 
when these amounts may be paid. Other Iong .. tenn liabilities are not discounted. 

Long-Term Debt and Capital Leases: The fair value of long-term debt is estimated based upon 
quotes obtained from brokers for bonds and discounted future cash flows using current market rates 
for other debt. For long-term debt with variable interest rates, the carrying value approximates fair 
value. 

The Alliance's significant capital leases and vendor contracts were negotiated with various entities 
and are considered unique. It is not practicable to estimate the fair value of these obligations under 
current conditions. Other capital lease obligations are not significant. 
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MOUNTAIN STATES HEALTH ALLIANCE 

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements - Continued 
(Dollars in Thousands) 

Years Ended June 2012 and 2011 

NOTE P--FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - Continued 

The estimated fair value of the Alliance's financial instruments that have carrying values different 
from fair value is as follows at June 30: 

2012 2011 
Carrying Estimated Carrying Estimated 

Value Fair Value Value Fair Value 
FJNANCIAL LIABILITIES; 

Long-term debt $ l,080,575 $ 1,150,201 $ 1,069,085 $ l,046,675 

NOTE Q--F AIR VALUE I\1EASUREiv.iENT 

F ASB ASC 820 establishes a three-level valuation hierarchy for disclosure of fair value 
measurements. The valuation hierarchy is based upon the transparency of inputs to the valuation of 
an asset or liability as of the measurement date. The three levels are defined as follows: 

• Level 1 - Inputs based on quoted market prices for identical assets or liabilities in active 
markets at the measurement date. 

Level 2 - Observable inputs other than quoted prices included in Level 1, such as quoted 
prices for similar assets and liabilities in active markets; quoted prices for identical or similar 
assets and liabilities in markets that are not active; or other inputs that are observable or can 
be corroborated by observable market data. The Alliance's Level 2 investments are valued 
primarily using the market valuation approach. 

• Level 3 - Unobservable inputs that are supported by little or no market activity and are 
significant to the fair value of the assets or liabilities. Level 3 includes values determined 
using pricing models, discounted cash flow methodologies, or similar techniques reflecting 
the Alliance's own assumptions. 

In instances where the determination of the fair value hierarchy measurement is based on inputs from 
different levels of the fair value hierarchy, the level in the fair value hierarchy within which the entire 
fair value measurement falls is based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value 
measurement in its entirety. The Alliance's assessment of the significance of a particular input to the 
fair value measurement in its entirety requires judgment and considers factors specific to the asset or 
liability. 

The following table sets forth, by level within the fair value hierarchy, the financial assets and 
liabilities recorded at fair value on a recurring basis as of June 30, 2012 and 2011: 
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MOUNTAIN STATES HEALTH ALLIANCE 

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements - Continued 
(Dollars in Thousands) 

Years Ended June 30, 2012 and 2011 

NOTE Q--FAIR VALUE I\IBASUREMENT ~Continued 

Total 

June 3-0, 2012 
Cash, cash equivalents and money market funds $ 85,017 $ 
U.S. Government securities 15~693 

U.S. Agency securities 62,437 
Corporate and foreign bonds 52,581 
Municipal obligations 961 
Preferred and asset backed securities 11,183 
U.S. equity securities 28,344 
Mutual funds 141.968 
Other 34,880 

Total assets $ 433,064 $ 

Fair value of derivative agreements - Note D $ {19,38Q $ 

.June 30t 2011 
Cash, cash equivalents and money market funds $ 142,031 $ 
U.S. Government securities 11,204 
U.S. Agency securities 34.054 
Corporate and foreign bonds 32,895 
Municipal obligations 451 
Preferred and asset backed securities 8,945 
U.S. equity securities 21,774 
Mutual funds 166,708 
Other 32,718 

Total assets $ 450.780 $ 

Fair value of derivative agreements - Note D $ {110,7322 $ 

Levell Level2 Level 3 

85,017 $ - $ 
15,693 
62,437 

52,581 
961 

11,183 
28~344 

97,600 44,368 
34,880 

289,091 $ 109,093 $ 34,880 

- $ - $ p9,381} 

142,031 $ . $ 
11,204 
34,054 

32,895 
451 

8,945 
21,774 
73.060 93,648 

32,718 

282,123 $ 135,939 $ 32,718 

- $ . $ (110,732i 

The valuation of the Alliance's derivative agreements is determined using market valuation 
techniques, including discounted cash flow analysis on the expected cash flows of each agreement. 
This analysis reflects the contractual terms of the agreement, including the period to maturity, and 
uses certain observable market-based inputs~ The fair values of interest rate agreements are 
determined by netting the discounted future fixed cash payments (or receipts) and the discounted 
expected variable cash receipts (or payments). The variable cash receipts (or payments) are based on 
the expectation of future interest rates and the underlying notional amount. The Alliance also 
incorporates credit valuation adjustments (CV AB) to appropriately reflect both its own 
nonperformance or credit risk and the respective counterparty' s nonperformance or credit risk in the 
fair value measurements. The CV A on the Alliance's interest rate swap agreements at June 30, 2012 
and 2011 resulted in a decrease in the fair value of the related liability of $5,726 and $7,940, 
respectively. 
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements ... Continued 
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Years Ended June 30, 2012 and 2011 

NOTE Q--F AIR VALUE I\.1EASUREMENT - Continued 

A certain portion of the inputs used to value its interest rate swap agreements, including the forward 
interest rate curves and market perceptions of the Alliance's credit risk used in the CV As, are 
unobservable inputs available to a market participant. As a result, the Alliance has determined that 
the interest rate swap valuations are classified in Level 3 of the fair value hierarchy. 

The following tables provide a summary of changes in the fair value of the Alliance's Level 3 
financial assets and liabilities during the fiscal years ended June 30, 2012 and 2011: 

Trading Derivatives, 
Securities Net 

July 1,2010 $ 28,608 $ (134,300) 
Total unrealized/realized gains in the Performance Indicator, net 2,847 23,049 
Net investrn.ent income 1,263 519 

June 30, 2011 32,718 (110,732) 

Total unrealized/realized gains in the Performance Indicator, net 1,466 (6,198) 
Net investment income 1,221 515 
Purchases 5,107 
Settlements 97,034 
Distributions {S.6322 

Jue 30, 2012 $ 34,880 $ (19,381) 

There were no changes in valuation techniques in 2012 or 201 I. During 2011, as part of the 
transitional test of goodwill impairment, the Alliance recognized goodwill impairment of $2,965 
based primarily on the fair value of the reporting unit, utilizing the income approach. Remaining 
goodwill determined not to be impaired, for this specific reporting unit, is included in the 
Consolidated Balance Sheets at $2,900. 

NOTE R--OPERATING EXPENSES BY FUNCTIONAL CLASS1FICATION 

The Alliance does not present expense information by functional classification because its resources 
and activities are primarily related to providing healthcare services. Further, since the Alliance 
receives substantially all of its resources from providing healthcare services in a manner similar to 
business enterprise, other indicators contained in these consolidated financial statements are 
considered important in evaluating how well management has discharged their stewardship 
responsibilities. 
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements - Continued 
(Dollars in Thousands) 

Years Ended June 2012 and 2011 

NOTE S--SUBSEQUENT EVENTS 

In September 2012, the Alliance issued $55,000 (Series 2012A) fixed rate and $28,095 (Series 
2012B) variable rate tax-exempt Hospital Revenue Bonds through The Health and Educational 
Facilities Board of the City of Johnson City, Tennessee, and $9, 785 (Series 2012C) variable rate tax­
exempt Hospital Revenue Bonds through the Industrial Development Authority of Wise, Virginia 
(collectively, the Series 2012 Bonds). The proceeds from the Series 2012A Bonds will be used to 
finance a surgery center project at JCMC and pay issuance costs related to these Bonds. The 
proceeds from the Series 2012B and 2012C Bonds will be used to finance or refinance capital 
improvements and equipment acquisitions and to pay issuance costs associated with these Bonds. 
The timely payment of the Series 2012B and Series 2012C Bonds is secured by irrevocable 
transferable direct-pay letters of credit. 

In July 2012, the Trustee of the previously derecognized 1998C Bonds liquidated certain investments 
held in the related irrevocable trust account and redeemed a portion of the l 998C Bonds with the 
proceeds from the liquidation. The fair value of the liquidated assets exceeded the payment 
necessary to redeem the l 998C Bonds and the excess was paid to the Alliance. As a result of th.is 
transaction, the Alliance recognized a gain of $13,847, net of fees. 

Subsequent to June 30, 2012, JMH exercised their purchase option related to a medical office 
building previously held under a capital lease. The purchase price was $17 ,529 which was financed 
through a taxable private placement bond issuance. 

43 





MOUNTAIN STATES HEALTH ALLIANCE 

Consolidating Balance She.et 
(Dollars in Thousands) 

June 30, 2012 
.Blu.e Ridge OtAu Total 

Medictd. Obligatt!d Group Obligtded Other MoMtain States 
Man5emera * Mt!.MIH!rs ElimlnatloN.S Gro~ Elflitlt'JI Pro£!.mit!8 Ellmlnatlona Toflll 

ASSETS 

CURRENT ASSETS 
Cash and cash equivalents $ 1.482 $ 36,881 $ ~ $ 38,363 $ 22,.006 $ 4,738 $ - $ 65,107 
Current portion ofin:vestments 22,745 22,745 3 13,809 36,557 
Patient !W<:OUDtll receivable, less estimated allowances for 

uncollectible ncoounts .5,051 116,629 121,680 29,010 150,690 
Other receivables, net 1.624 18,852 20,476 3,120 412 (1,000) 23,008 
Inventories and prepaid expemcs 832 20,951 21,783 6,924 103 28,810 

TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS 8,989 216,058 225,047 61,063 19,062 (1,000) 304,172 

INVESTMENTS, less amounts required 
to meet cum:nt obligations 19,348 395,778 415,126 100,811 44,760 560,697 

EQUITY IN AFFIUAIBS 143,050 318,231 (157,099) 304,1&2 (304,182) 

PROPER1Y, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT, net 13.559 598,415 611,974 199,990 53,492 865,456 

OTIIER ASSETS 

Goodwill 9,007 143,276 152,283 2,108 154,391 
Net deferred financing. acquisition costs and 

other charges 302 26,776 27,078 602 507 28,187 
Otberaasets 8,887 12,145 21,032 4550 2,562 23,144 

TOTAL OTHER ASSETS 181196 182,197 200z393 7,260 3,069 210,722 

$ 2031142 $ l,710,679 $ ~157,099~ $ t,756,722 $ 3691124 $ 120,383 $ (305,1822 $ 1,941,047 

"' Management Services Organization only 

See note to supplemental schedules. 44 



MOUNTAIN STATES HEALTH ALLIANCE 

Consolidating Balance Sheet - Continued 
(Dollars in Thousands) 

Ju:m! 30, 2012 
Blue Ridge Other Total 

Medical OMJgated Group Obligated Other Mountain States 
Mtm11~11t* Members Eliminations Gro~ Entitles Pmpmies ElJmla.otion:t Total 

LIABtLITIES AND NET ASSETS 

CUR.RENT LlABILITIES 
Accrued interest payable $ 46 $ 18,455 $ ~ $ 18,501 $ 24 $ - $ - $ 18,525 
Current portion of long-term debt and capital lease 

obligutions 29,824 29,824 2,653 32,477 
Current portion of estimated fair value of derivatives 10,395 l0,395 

Accounts payable and accrued expenses 4,191 94,352 98,543 9,297 1,030 108,870 

Accrued salaries, compensated absences and amounts 
withheld 3,704 40,121 43,825 11,764 55,589 

Payables to (roccivables from) affiliates. net 15,321 3,118 18,439 8,365 (26,804) 
Estimatl.'ld amounts due to third-party payors, net 16,607 16,607 1,453 18060 

TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES 23,262 202,477 225,739 33,556 (15,.379) 243,916 

OTHER LIABILITIES 
Long-term debt and capital lease obligroions, Jess 

current portion 13,676 994,014 1,007,690 41.408 (1,000) 1,048,098 
Estimated fair value of derivatives, less cum:nt 

portion 8,534 8,534 133 319 11,986 
Deferred revenue 2,929 2,929 205 3,134 
Estimated professional liability self-insurance 2,268 5,975 8,243 l,101 S'.344 
Other long-term. liabilitie11 6,837 9839 16,676 146 16,822 

TOTAL IlABil..ITlES 46,043 1,223,768 1,269,811 76,549 (15,060) (l,000) 1,330,300 

NET ASSETS 

Unrestr:icted net assets 
Mountain States Health Alliance 157,099 436,388 (157,099) 436,388 164,117 135,443 (299,560) 436,383 
Noncontrolling interests in subsidiaries 39,123 39,123 117,377 6459 H:i2,959 

TOTAL UNRESTRICTED NET ASSETS 157,099 475,511 (1'57,099) 475,'511 281,494 135,443 (293,101) 599,347 

Temporarily restricted net asscls 
Mountain States Health AJlience 11,223 11,223 10,955 (10,955) 11,223 
NoncontroJiing interests in subsidiaries 50 50 !i) I '50 

TOTAL TEMPORARILY 
RESTRICTED NET ASSETS 11,273 11,273 10,954 (10,954) 11,273 

Permanently m'ltricted net assets 127 127 127 ~127l 127 

TOTAL NET ASSETS 157.099 486,911 !157,099l 486,911 292,575 135,443 p04,182) 610,747 

$ 203t142 $ l,710t679 $ !157,099l $ 1!7561722 $ 369!124 $ 120,383 $ pos,1s21 $ 1,94l,o47 

*Management Services Organization only. 

See note to supplemental schedules. 45 



MOUNTAIN STATES HEALTH ... .\LLIANCE 

Consolidating Statement of Operations 
(Dollars in Thousands) 

Year Ended June 30, 2012 
Blue Ridge Other Total 
Mdictd Obligaled Group Obligated Otho Mo1mtain Sltnes. 

M11n5ttment * Members Elimintl(ion.t GFOr!J!. Entities Pnteuties ElimiJ:ations TotGl 

Revenue, gains and support: 
Patient service revenue, net of contractual 

alloWllllces and discounts $ 50,213 $ 824,899 $ (2,165) s 872,947 $ 202,108 $ * $ (5) $ 1,075,050 
Provision for bad debts (4,39!2 ~5,440~ {99,837} !23,080} {122!91!} 
Net patient service revenue 45,816 729,459 (2,165) 773,110 179,02& (5) 952,133 
Other operating revenue 39,451 15,163 (29,595) 25,019 67,543 8,398 (61,553) 39,407 
Equity in net gain (loss) of affiliates 3,332 {17,848l {1.488) {161004) 16,004 

TOTAL REVENUE, GAINS AND SUPPORT 88,599 726,774 (33,248) 782,125 246,571 8,398 (45,554) 991,54-0 
Expenses: 

Salaries and wages 21,613 268,799 290,412 72,35& 451 (4,614) 35R,607 
Physician salaries and wages 43.468 1,162 44,630 62,704 (41,62&) 65,706 
Contract labor 777 3,864 4,641 2,382 9 (657) 6,375 
Employee benefits 7,416 51,007 (2,236) 56,187 17,510 85 (4,182) 69,600 
Foos 4,025 100,938 (29,034) 75,929 25,946 517 {4,433) 91,959 
Supplies 2,454 135,733 138,187 32,124 40 (165) 170,186 
Utilities 626 12,222 12,IWS 3,476 965 17,289 
Other 7,538 47,568 (490) 54,616 23,471 4,077 (5,879) 76,285 
Depreciation J,395 49,959 51,354 19,458 2,248 73,060 
Amortization 30 2,161 2,191 54 2,245 
Interest and taxes p,169) 4~976 41!&07 3t018 11112 Q4) 451903 

TOTAL EXPENSES 881173 7161389 (31,760) 772,802 262,501 91504 ~61!592) 983J15 
OPERATING INCOME (LOSS) 426 10,385 (1,488) 9,323 (15,930) (1,106) 16,038 8,325 

Nonopenmng gains (losses): 
Jn~ and dividend income 673 10,841 ll,514 2,401 l,332 (34) ?5,213 
Net n:alizcd girins (losses) on the sale of securities 21 611 632 (3,217) (2,595) 
Change in net unrealized gains on securities {455) (3,758) (4,213) 133 1,196 (2,884) 
Derivative related income 6,051 6,051 t,464 7,515 
Loss on early extinguishment of debt (2,553) (2,553) (83} (2,636) 
Change in estimated fair value of deriVlltives (6,086) (6,086) (133) 21 (6,198) 
Ofuer nonoperating gains (losses) 823 12,485 13,308 (1,977) ~95} 11,236 

NETNONOPERATING GAINS 1,062 17,591 18,653 {;&s~ 3t918 {34) 19!651 
EXCESS (DEFICIJ) OF REVENUE, GAJNS AND 

SUPPORT OVER EXPENSES AND LOSSES $ 1,488 $ 27/J76 $ p~488} $ 27,976 $ {18,81~ $ 2t812 $ 16,004 $ 272_76 

*Management Services Organization only. 

See note to supplemental schedules. 46 



MOUNTAIN STATES HEALTH ALLIANCE 

Consolidating Statement of Changes in Net Assets 
(Dollars in Thousands) 

Year Ended June 30, 2012 
Bl11t1 lGlgt. Oll«er Ob¥gmi G'n:>5P Mmditn 
Mfl'dkal Mouhdtt ~ No11etmtrollillg 

Totid 
MoNJfi.tlf Stt:llr:8 Nrmcontmllmg Otlat!F Mo1mtntn States 

Man~* HealJ!u~lll<DJtY. lRtrm!:m J'!llmJMtWru Ilea/Ill Mlkmtt lntt!'HJ!ff6 &atll:lt'lf l"N!(!Crlks Elfmlnllllom Total 

UNRf>STRICTED NET ASSETS: 
Ex!:C>llC (dllfu:lt) of revenue, gains and tupport ov111: 

CXp!illlflC5 aOO foll808 $ 
l"l:nsiun and oth11r rumtmd !mncfit plm adjustmCllt4 
Net usem tcleased from mr!ric:tio.ns mod fur tho 

purohase Qfproperty, plmt md equipmmt 
Dilltrlbutioon to nonoontrolling ~ 
Repurdllutes ofnoru:ontroUmg l~ 

INCREASE (DECREASE') JN UNRESTRICTED 
NET ASSETS 

TEMPORARJL Y RESTRICTED NET ASSETS: 
Remii::trd grants amt rontrlbutiOll8 
Net 11S11Cts released from l'CIJtrictiona 

INCRF.ASE (DECREASE) INTEMPORARIL Y 
RESTRICTED NET ASSETS 

INCREASE (DECREASE) JN TOT AI. NET ASSETS 

NET ASSETS, BEOlNNING OF YEAR. 

1,488 s 

1,488 

1,488 

155,611 

31,702 $ (3,726} $ 
(1,119) (t,11S) 

1,s:m 
(324) 

3,MO (J,86-0) 

35,993 (9,025) 

3,860 39 
(3,352) (%) 

508 (7) 

36,501 (9,032) 

411,237 

ADDmON OF ODLIGATEO MEMBERS S4,025 

(1,488) $ 27,976 $ 
(2,234) 

(1,488) 

(1,488) 

(155,611) 

1,550 
(324) 

26,%8 

3,IWSJ 
(3,39g) 

501 

27,469 

411,237 

54,025 

(12,729) $ 
(9) 

1,550 

{ll,138) 

3,036 
Q).SS) 

(219) 

(ll,407) 

239,164 

{52,55.9) 

(6,087) $ (ll,316) $ 
(9) (13) 

l,SSO 
(324) (324) 

(6,420) (17,®lt) 

12 3,043 
(22) (l,277) 

(10) (229) 

(6,-430) (17,837) 

172,041 4tl,20S 

(54,054) (Hl6,613) 

2,lllZ $ 

2.812. 

2,812 

132,631 

IG,004 $ 27$76 
18 {2,.234) 

(1,550) l,5SO 
324 (324) 

(3,048) 3,899 
3,2n (3,39'!) 

229 501 

15,025 Z7,%9 

(3 71,795) 583,278 

52,58& 

(S,820} S,820 5,820 NETASSETTRANSFER ~~~~~~~~~~~~~~<~~~82~0~)~~~~~~...,_;=--~~~~~~~~-'"'~'-----''-'=~~~~~~~~~~~~~ 
486,911 $ 175,198 $ 117,377 $ :297575 $ NETASSET~ENDOFYEAR ........... --1s_7~,0-99...._.$~""""'-44-7~~-3M&.....,_...~-3~~~173_ ....... $ ....... (1.57 •• @.....,.~...,,,s ......................... """":.;,;;.\.;;;:.;;,..m.. ............. .;.;;,;.~..,,.;; ..... "'1iioi.a...;,,,,,., ....... ~t-35~,44-3,_.,,_.g~04~,~l!2)~~$=6~l0-,7~47 .... 

"'Man~Servm Orgmizlltion only, 

See note to supplemental schedules. 47 



MOUNTAIN STATES HEALTH ALLIANCE 

Note to Supplemental Schedules 

Year Ended June 2012 

NOTE A--OBLIGATED GROUP MEMBERS 

As described in Note F to the consolidated financial statements, the Alliance has granted a deed of 
trust on JCMC and SSH to secure the payment of the outstanding bonds. The bonds are also secured 
by the Alliance's receivables, inventories and other assets as well as certain funds held under 
the documents pursuant to which the bonds were issued. In accordance with Article Six, Section 6.6 
of the Amended and Restated Master Trust Indenture between Mountain States Health AIJiance and 
the Bank of New York Mellon Trust Company, NA as Master Trustee, those members pledged in 
2011 include Johnson City Medical Center Hospital, Indian Path Medical Center, Franklin Woods 
Community Hospital, Sycamore Shoals Hospital, Johnson County Community Hospital, Russell 
County Medical Center and Blue Ridge Medical Management Corporation (parent company only), 
collectively defined as the Obligated Group (Obligated Group). In 2012, NCH and SCCH (hospitals 
only) were admitted into the Obligated Group. These entities' operations since admission (including 
noncontrolling interests) are included as part of the Obligated Group results for 2012 in the 
accompanying consolidated statements of operations and changes in net assets. 

The supplemental consolidating schedules include the accounts of the members of the Obligated 
Group after elimination of all significant intergroup accounts and transactions. Certain other 
subsidiaries of the Alliance, Mountain States Properties, Inc. (MSP) and all other affiliates (Other 
Entities), are not pledged to secure the payment of the outstanding bonds as they are not part of the 
Obligated Group. These affiliates have been accounted for within the Obligated Group based upon 
the Alliance's original and subsequent investments, as adjusted for the Alliance's pro rata share of 
income or losses and any distributions, and are included as a part of equity in afflliates in the 
supplemental consolidating balance sheet 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT 

To the Board of Directors of 
Mountain States Health Alliance: 

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of Mountain States Health 
Alliance and its subsidiaries (the Alliance), which comprise the consolidated balance sheets as of 
June 30, 2013 and 2012, and the related consolidated statements of operations, changes in net assets, 
and cash flows for the years then ended, and the related notes to the financial statements. 

j,lanagement's Responsibility for the Financial Statements 

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these consolidated financial 
statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of 
America; this includes the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to 
the preparation and fair presentation of consolidated financial statements that are free from material 
misstatements, whether due to fraud or error. 

Auditor's Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on our 
audits. We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the 
United States of America. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain 
reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are free from material 
misstatement. 

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures 
in the consolidated financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, 
including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial 
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments> the auditor considers 
internal control relevant to the Alliance's preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated 
financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in 1he circumstances, but 
not for the pmpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Alliance's internal control. 
Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of 
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by 
management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated financial statements. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis 
for our audit opinion. 

1 
ATLANTA KANSAS CITY KNOXVILLE TAMPA BAY 



Opinion 

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material 
respects, the financial position of Mountain States Health Alliance and its subsidiaries as of June 30, 
2013 and 2012, and the results of their operations, changes in net assets, and cash flows for the years 
then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of 
America. 

Other Matter 

Our audits were conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the consolidated fmancial 
statements as a whole. The supplemental consolidating information is presented for purposes of 
additional analysis and is not a required part of the consolidated financial statements. Such 
information is the responsibility of management and was derived from and relates directly to the 
underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the consolidated financial statements. The 
information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the consolidated 
financial statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such 
information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the consolidated 
financial statements or to the consolidated financial statements themselves, and other additional 
procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. 
In our opinion, the information is fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the consolidated 
financial statements as a whole. 

Knoxville, Tennessee 
October 24, 2013 
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MOUNTAIN STATES HEALTH ALLIANCE 

Consolidated Balance Sheets 
(Dollars in Thousands) 

ASSETS 

CURRENT ASSETS 
Cash and cash equivalents 
Current portion of investments - Note C 
Patient accounts receivable, less estimated allowances 

for uncollectible accounts of $49,449 in 2013 and 
$52,696 in 2012 

Other receivables, net 
Inventories and prepaid expenses 

TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS 

INVESTMENTS, less amounts required 
to meet current obligations 

PROPERTY, PLANT ~"'lD EQUJPMENT,net 

OTIIER ASSETS 
Goodwill 
Net deferred financing, acquisition costs and 

other charges 
Other assets 

TOTAL OTHER ASSETS 

June30, 
2013 2012 

$ 74,902 $ 65,107 
20,386 36,557 

164,187 147,466 
33,468 30,190 
31,073 28,810 

324,016 308,130 

601,352 560,697 

884,293 853,625 

154,391 154,391 

28,480 28,187 
46,544 39,975 

229,415 222,553 

$ 2,039,076 $ 1,945,005 

3 



June 30, 
2013 2012 

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS 

CURRENT LIABILITIES 
Accrued interest payable $ 19,706 $ 18,525 
Current portion of long-term debt and capital lease 

obligations 34,417 32,477 
Current portion of estimated fair value of derivatives 

-NoteD 10,395 
Accounts payable and accrued expenses 94,302 108,870 
Accrued salaries, compensated absences and amounts 

withheld 63,665 55,589 
Estimated amounts due to third-party payors, net 26,775 22,018 

TOT AL CURRENT LIABILITIES 238,865 247,874 

OTHER LIABILITIES 
Long-term debt and capital lease obligations, less 

current portion 1,090,348 1,048,098 
Estimated fair value of derivatives, less current portion 8,185 8,986 
Deferred revenue 2,216 3,134 
Estimated professional liability self-insurance 8,758 9,344 
Other long-term liabilities 17,721 16,822 

TOT AL LIABILITIES 1,366,093 1,334,258 

COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES -
Notes D, F, G, and N 

NET ASSETS 
Unrestricted net assets 

Mountain States Health Alliance 490,414 436,388 
Noncontrolling interests in subsidiaries 169,614 162,959 

TOTAL UNRESTRICTED NET ASSETS 660,028 599,347 

Temporarily restricted net assets 
Mountain States Health Alliance 12,776 11,223 
Noncontrolling interests in subsidiaries 52 50 

TOTAL Ta1PORARILY 
RESTRICTED NET ASSETS 12,828 11,273 

Permanently restricted net assets 127 127 

TOTAL NET ASSETS 672,983 610,747 

$ 2,039,076 $ 1,945,005 

See notes to consolidated financial statements. 4 



MOUNTAIN STATES HEALTH ALLIANCE 

Consolidated Statements of Operations 
(Dollars in Thousands) 

Year Ended June 30, 
2013 2012 

Revenue, gains and support: 
Patient service revenue, net of contractual allowances 

and discounts $ 1,045,245 $ 1,075,050 
Provision for bad debts (112,497) (122,917) 

Net patient service revenue 932,748 952,133 
Premium revenue 1,003 
Net investment gain 40,980 9,734 
Net derivative gain 7,118 1,317 
Other revenue, gains and support 77,455 50,643 

TOTAL REVENUE, GAINS AND SUPPORT 1,059,304 1,013,827 

Expenses: 
Salaries and wages 355,590 358,607 
Physician salaries and wages 74,258 65,706 
Contract labor 3,942 6,375 
Employee benefits 74,590 69,600 
Fees 105,891 97,959 
Supplies 162,955 170,186 
Utilities 16,857 17,289 
Medical costs 1,039 
Other 80,211 76,285 
Loss on early extinguishment of debt - Note F 2,636 
Depreciation 78,941 73,060 
Amortization 2,260 2,245 
Interest and taxes 43,203 45,903 

TOTAL EXPENSES 999,737 985,851 

EXCESSOFREVENUE,GA1NSANDSUPPORT 
OVER EXPENSES AND LOSSES $ 59,567 $ 27,976 

See notes to consolidated financial statements. 5 



MOUNTAIN STATES HEALTH ALLIANCE 

Consolidated Statements of Changes in Net Asse'ls 
(Dollars in Thousands) 

Year Ended June 2013 

Mountain States Noncontrolling 
Health Alliance Interests Total 

UNRESTRICTED NET ASSETS: 
Excess of Revenue, Gains and Support 

over Expenses and Losses $ 52,692 $ 6,875 $ 59,567 
Pension and other defined benefit plan adjustments (172) (171) (343) 
Net assets released from restrictions used for the 

purchase of property, plant and equipment 1,506 1,506 
Distributions to noncontrolling interests 

INCREASE IN UNRESTRICTED 
NET ASSETS 54,026 6,655 60,681 

TEMPORARILY RESTRICTED NET ASSETS: 
Restricted grants and contributions 4,969 21 4,990 
Net assets released from restrictions !3,41~ P9l {3,435} 

lNCREASE IN 'I'ffivtPORARlL Y 
RESTRICTED NET ASSETS 1,553 2 1,555 

INCREASE IN TOTAL NET ASSETS 55,579 6,657 62,236 

NET ASSETSt BEGINNING OF YEAR 447,738 163,009 610,747 

NET ASSETS, El\TD OF YEAR $ 503,317 $ 169,666 $ 672~983 
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MOUNTAJN STATES HEALTH ALLIANCE 

Consolidated Statements of Changes in Net Assets - Continued 
(Dollars in Thousands) 

Year Ended June 2012 

Mountain States Noncontrolling 
Health Alliance Interests Total 

UNRESTRICIBD NET ASSETS: 
Excess (Deficit) of Revenue, Gains and Support 

over Expenses and Losses $ 31,702 $ (3,726) $ 27,976 
Pension and other defined benefit plan adjustments (1,119) (l,115) (2,234) 
Net assets released from restrictions used for the 

purchase of property, plant and equipment 1,550 1,550 
Distributions to noncontxolling interests (324) (324) 
Repurchases of noncontrolling interests 3,860 p,860) 

INCREASE (DECREASE) IN 
UNRESTRICTED NET ASSETS 35,993 (9,025) 26,968 

TEMPORARILY RESTRICTED NET ASSETS: 
Restricted grants and contributions 3,860 39 3,899 
Net assets released from restrictions (3,352) (46l (3,398) 

INCREASE (DECREASE) IN TEMPORARILY 
RESTRICTED NET ASSETS 508 (7) 501 

lNCREASE (DECREASE) IN 
TOTAL NET ASSETS 36,501 (9,032) 27,469 

NET ASSETS, BEGINNING OF YEAR 411,237 172,041 583,278 

NET ASSETS, END OF YEAR $ 447,738 $ 163,009 $ 610,747 

See notes to consolidated financial statements. 7 



MOUNTAIN STATES HEALTH ALLIANCE 

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows 
,ir,~.si~,-~ in nt~'iUSir.ma:s) 

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES: 
Increase in. net assets S 
Adjustments to reconcile increase in net assets to 

net cash provided by operating activities: 
Provision for depreciation and amortization 
Provision for bad debts 
Loss on early extinguishment of debt 
Change in estimated fair value of derivatives 
Equity in net income of joint ventures, net 
Loss (gain) on disposal of assets 
Amounts received on interest rate swap settlements 
Gain on escrow restructuring - Note F 
Gain on swap settlement-Note D 
Income recognized through forward sale agreements 
Gain on termination of swaption and forward sale 

agreements - Note D 
Capital Appreciation Bond accretion and other 
Restricted contributions 
Pension and other defined benefit plan adjustm.ents 
Increase (decrease) in cash due to change in: 

Patient accounts receivable 
Other receivables, net 
Inventories and prepaid expenses 
Trading securities 
Other assets 
Accrued interest payable 
Accounts payable and accrued expenses 
Accrued salaries, compensated absences and 

amounts withheld 
Estimated amounts due to third-party payers, net 
Other long-term liabilities 
Estimated professional liability self-insurance 

Total adjustments 

NET CASH PROVIDED BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES 

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIBS: 
Purchases of property, plant and equipment 
Purchases of land held for expansion 
Additions to goodwill 
Purchases of held-to-maturity securities 
Net distribution from joint ventures and unconsolidated affiliates 
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment 

NET CASH USED IN JNVESTING ACTIVITIES 

Year Ended June 30, 
2013 2012 

62,236 $ 

81,786 
112,497 

(457) 
(636) 

(1) 
(6,661) 

(13,847) 
(3,020) 

3,910 
(4,990) 

343 

(129,218) 
(3,192) 
(2,263) 

(17,845) 
(1,073) 
1,181 

(20,263) 

8,076 
4,757 

556 
(586) 

9,054 

71,290 

(105,751) 
(5,769) 

(8,722) 
732 
335 

(119,175) 

27,469 

75,777 
122~917 

2,636 
6,198 
(979) 
446 

(7,515) 
(5,337) 

(864) 

(7,766) 
3,159 

(3,899) 
2,234 

(138,996) 
(3,501) 

155 
107,593 

(2,733) 
(l,522) 
4,131 

(2,211) 
3,247 

236 
(348) 

153,058 

180,527 

(132,890) 

(S,725) 
(9,516) 

882 
1,881 

(145,368) 
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CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTMTIES: 
Payments on long-term debt and capital lease obligations, 

including deposits to escrow 
Payment of acquisition and fmancing costs 
Proceeds from issuance of long-term debt and other 

financing arrangements 
Payment on termination of derivative agreements - Note D 
Gain on escrow restructuring - Note F 
Net amounts received on interest rate swap settlements 
Restricted contributions received 

NET CASH PROVIDED BY (USED IN) 
FINANCING ACTNITIES 

NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH 
AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, beginning of year 

Year Ended June 30, 
2013 2012 

~~~--~~~--------

~~~----~~~~---~ 

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, end of year $ ===================== 

SUPPLEMENTAL INFORMATION AND NON-CASH TRANSACTIONS: 

Cash paid for interest S 37 ,023 $ 

Cash paid for federal and state income taxes $ 616 $ 

Construction related payables in accounts payable 
and accrued expenses 

Property acquired through capital lease arrangement 

Payable on termination of forward sale agreements in accounts 
payable and accrued expenses 

Land held for expansion placed in use 

$ 11,598 $ 

$ - $ 

$ .. $ 

$ - $ 

41,168 

336 

6,821 

13,959 

13,429 

1,610 

During the year ended June 30, 2012, the Alliance refinanced previously issued debt of$174,547. 

See notes to consolidated financial statements. 9 



MOUNTAIN STATES HEALTH ALLIANCE 

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 
(Dollars in Thousands) 

Years Ended June 2013 and 2012 

NOTE A--ORGANIZATION AND OPERATIONS 

Mountain States Health Alliance (the Alliance) is a tax-exempt entity with operations primarily 
located in Washington, Sullivan, and Carter counties of Tennessee and Smyth, Wise, Dickenson, 
RusseU and Washington counties of Virginia. The initial funds for the establishment of the Alliance 
in 1945 were provided by individuals and various institutions. 

The primary operations of the Alliance consist of ten acute and specialty care hospitals, as follows: 

• Johnson City Medical Center (JCMC) - licensed for 658 beds 
• Indian Path Medical Center (IPMC)- licensed for 261 beds 
• Smyth County Community Hospital (SCCH) - licensed for 153 beds 
• Norton Community Hospital (NCH) - licensed for 129 beds 
• Sycamore Shoals Hospital (SSH)- licensed for 121 beds 
• Johnston Memorial Hospital (JMH) - licensed for 116 beds 
• Franklin Woods Community Hospital (FWCH) - licensed for 80 beds 
• Russell County Medical Center (RCMC) - licensed for 78 beds 
• Dickenson Community Hospital (DCH) - licensed for 25 beds 

Johnson County Community Hospital (JCCH) .. licensed for 2 beds 

The Alliance has a 50.1 % interest in JMH. JMH is also the sole member of Abingdon Physician 
Partners (APP), a non .. taxable corporation that owns and manages physician practices. 

The Alliance has a 50. l % interest in NCH. NCH is also the sole member or shareholder ofDCH and 
Norton Community Physician Services, LLC (NCPS), a taxable corporation that consists of 
physician practices and a pharmacy and Community Home Care (CHC), a taxable corporation that 
provides home medical equipment. 

The Alliance has an 80% interest in SCCH. SCCH is the sole shareholder of Southwest Community 
Health Services, Inc. (SWCH); a taxable entity that operates a pharmacy and provides other health 
services. 

The activities and accounts of JMH, NCH and SCCH are included in the accompanying consolidated 
financial statements. 

The Alliance is the sole shareholder of Blue Ridge Medical Management Corporation (BRMM), a 
for-profit entity that owns and manages physician practices and provides other healthcare services to 
patients in Tennessee and Virginia. BR.l\1M: also operates as a medical office real estate developer by 
owning, selling and leasing real estate to physician practices and other entities. BR.MM: is either the 
sole shareholder, a significant shareholder, or member of the following consolidated organizations: 

10 



MOUNTAIN STATES HEALTH ALLIANCE 

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements - Continued 
(Dollars in Thousands) 

Years Ended June 2013 and 2012 

NOTE A--ORGANIZATION AND OPERATIONS - Continued 

Mountain States Physician Group, Inc. (MSPG): A company that contracts with physicians to 
provide services to BRM.N.I physician practices. 

Mountain States Properties, Inc. (MSPI): An entity that owns and manages certain real estate 
(primarily medical office buildings) and provides rehabilitation and fitness services. 

Mediserve Medical Equipment of Kingsport, Inc. (Mediserve): A company that provides durable 
medical equipment services. 

Kingsport Ambulatory Surgery Center (KASC) (d.b.a. Kingsport Day Surgery): A joint venture 
operating as an outpatient surgery center which performs procedures primarily in otolaryngology, 
orthopedics, ophthalmology, and general surgery. BRMM has a 43% ownership of KASC and 
maintains control over KASC through a management agreement. The accounts and activities of 
KASC are included in the accompanying consolidated financial statements. 

Piney Flats Urgent Care (PFUC): A for-profit entity that provides urgent care patient services. 
BRMM has a 75% ownership of PFUC. The accounts and activities of PFUC are included in the 
accompanying consolidated fm.ancial statements. 

Wilson Pharmacy1 Inc. (Wilson): In August 2012, BRMM acquired Wilson, a company that owns 
and operates retail pharmacies. BruvtM purchased 100% of the total issued and outstanding 
capital stock of Wilson for $8,114 and recognized goodwill of $5,725. 

The Alliance is the primary beneficiary of the activities of Mountain States Foundation, Inc. (MSF), 
a not-for-profit foundation formed to coordinate fund.raising and development activities of the 
Alliance. The Alliance is also the beneficiary of the Mountain States Health Alliance Auxiliary 
(Auxiliary), a not-for-profit organization formed to coordinate volunteer activities of the Alliance. 
The activities and accounts ofMSF and the Auxiliacy are included in the accompanying consolidated 
financial statements. 

The Alliance is a 99.6% shareholder of Integrated Solutions Health Network, LLC (ISHN). The 
primary function of ISHN is to establish, operate and administer a provider-sponsored health care 
delivery network. ISHN is the sole shareholder of the following subsidiaries: 

CrestPoint Health Insurance Company (CHIC): A for-profit insurance company licensed in the 
State of Tennessee which provides network access and administration and third-party Medicare 
administrator services. During 2013, cmc entered into a risk-based contract with the Center for 
Medicare & Medicaid Services (CMS) to provide or arrange for the provision of healthcare 
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ALLIANCE 

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements - Continued 
(Dollars in Thousands) 

Years Ended June 2013 and 2012 

NOTE A--ORGANIZATION AND OPERATIONS - Continued 

services to senior citizens who have Medicare Part A, Medicare Part B and Medicare Part D 
entitlements. 

AnewCare Collaborative {AnelVCare): A for~profit accountable care organization which began 
participating in the CMS's Medicare Shared Savings Program (M:SSP) in July 2012. 

NOTE B--SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

Principles of Consolidation: The accompanying consolidated financial statements include the 
accounts of the Alliance and its subsidiaries after elimination of all significant intercompany 
accounts and transactions. 

Noncontrolling Interests in Subsidiaries: The Alliance's accompanying consolidated financial 
statements include all assets, liabilities~ revenues, expenses, and changes in net assets, including 
amounts attributable to the noncontrolling interests. Noncontrolling interests represent the portion of 
equity (net assets) in a subsidiary not attributable, directly or indirectly, to the Alliance. For the years 
ending June 30, 2013 and 2012, the Alliance attributed an Excess (Deficit) of Revenue, Gains and 
Support over Expenses and Losses of $6,875 and ($3, 726), respectively, to the noncontrolling 
interests in JMH, NCH, SCCH, KASC, PFUC and ISHN based on the noncontrolling interests' 
respective ownership percentage. 

Use of Estimates: The preparation of the consolidated financial statements in conformity with 
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America requires management to 
make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and 
disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities as of the date of the consolidated financial statements. 
Estimates also affect the reported amounts of revenue and expenses during the reporting period. 
Actual results could differ from these estimates. 

Cash and Cash Equivalents: Cash and cash equivalents include all highly liquid investments with a 
maturity of three months or less when purchased. Cash and cash equivalents designated as assets 
limited as to use or uninvested amounts included in investment portfolios are not included as cash 
and cash equivalents on the Consolidated Balance Sheets. 

Investments: Investments as reported in the Consolidated Balance Sheets include trading securities 
and held-to-maturity securities (Note C). The Financial Accounting Standards Board (F ASB) 
Accounting Standards Codification (ASC) 958-320, Investments - Debt and Equi'ty Securities, 
allows not-for~profit organizations to report in a manner similar to business entities by identifying 
securities as available-for-sale or held-to-maturity and to exclude the unrealized gains and losses on 
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MOUNTAIN STATES HEALTH ALLIANCE 

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements - Continued 
(Dollars in Thousands) 

Years Ended June 30, 2013 and 2012 

NOTE B--SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - Continued 

those securities from the Performance Indicator (as defmed below). Investments which the Alliance 
has the positive intent and ability to hold to maturity are considered as held-to-maturity. 
Substantially all other investments are considered as trading securities. 

On June 30, 2013, the Alliance determined that it no longer intended to hold certain of its held-to­
maturity investment portfolios to maturity and reclassified investments with an amortized cost of 
$161,929 into the trading designation. As a result, the Alliance recognized net unrealized gains of 
approximately $8,255 in the accompanying 2013 Consolidated Statement of Operations. The 
investments that remain designated as held-to-maturity are limited as to use under a safekeeping 
agreement or are otherwise unavailable for disposition. 

Management annually evaluates investments designated as held-to-maturity and recognizes any 
"other-than-temporary'' losses as deductions from the Performance Indicator (as defined below). 
Management's evaluation considers the amount of decline in fair value, as well as the time period of 
any such decline. Management does not believe any investment classified as held-to-maturity is 
other-than-temporarily impaired at June 30, 2013. 

Within the trading securities portfolio, all debt securities and marketable equity securities with 
readily determinable fair values are reported at fair value based on quoted market prices. Investments 
without readily determinable fair values are reported at estimated fair market value pursuant to 
F ASB ASC 825, Financial Instruments. 

Realized gains and losses are computed using the specific identification method for cost 
determination. Interest and dividend income is reported net of related investment fees. 

Investments in joint ventures are generally reported under the equity method of accounting, which 
approximates the Alliance's equity in the underlying net book value, unless the ownership structure 
requires consolidation. Other assets include investments injoint ventures of$2,057 and $2,153 at 
June 30, 2013 and 2012, respectively. Subsequent to June 30, 2013, the Alliance liquidated a portion 
of its investment in one joint venture (Note S). 

Inventories: Inventories, consisting primarily of medical supplies, are stated at the lower of cost or 
market. 

Property, Plant and Equipment: Property, plant and equipment is stated on the basis of cost, or if 
donated, at the fair value at the date of gift. Generally, depreciation is computed by the straight .. line 
method over the estimated useful life of the asset. Equipment held under capital lease obligations is 

13 



MOUNTAIN ALLIANCE 

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements - Continued 
(Dollars in Thousands) 

Years Ended June 30, 2013 and 2012 

NOTE B--SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - Continued 

amortized under the straight~line method over the shorter of the lease term or estimated useful life. 
Amortization of buildings and equipment held under capital leases is shown as a part of depreciation 
expense and accumulated depreciation in the accompanying consolidated financial statements. 
Renewals and betterments are capitalized and depreciated over their useful life, whereas costs of 
maintenance and repairs are expensed as incurred. 

Interest costs incurred on borrowed funds during the period of construction of capital assets is 
capitalized as a component of the cost of acquiring those assets. The amount capitalized is net of 
investment earnings on assets limited as to use derived from borrowings designated for capital assets. 

The Alliance reviews capital assets for indications of potential impairment when there are changes in 
circumstances related to a specific asset. If this review indicates that the carrying value of these 
assets may not be recoverable, the Alliance estimates future cash flows from operations and the 
eventual disposition of such assets. If the sum of these undiscounted future cash flows is less than 
the carrying amount of the asset, a write-dovvn to estimated fair value is recorded. The Alliance did 
not recognize any impairment losses during 2013 and 2012. 

Other assets include property held for resale and property held for expansion of $20,220 and 
$14,451, respectively, at June 30, 2013 and 2012. Property held for resale and property held for 
expansion primarily represent land contributed to, or purchased by, the Alliance plus costs incurred 
to develop the infrastructure of such land. Management annually evaluates its investment and 
records non-temporary declines in value when it is determined the ultimate net realizable value is 
less than the recorded amount. No such declines were identified in 2013 and 2012. 

Goodwill: Goodwill represents the difference between the acquisition cost of assets and the 
estimated fair value of net tangible and any separately identified intangible assets. In accordance 
with ASC 350, Intangibles - Goodwill and Other, goodwill is evaluated for impairment at least 
annually. The reporting unit for evaluation of the majority of the Alliance's goodwill is the 
aggregate acute-care operations. Management performed an evaluation of goodwill for impairment 
considering qualitative and quantitative factors and does not believe it is more likely than not that 
goodwill associated with any of its reporting units is impaired as of June 30, 2013. 

Deferred Financing, Acquisition Costs and Other Charges: Other assets, including deferred 
financing, acquisition costs and other charges, total $28,480 and $28, 187 at June 30, 2013 and 2012, 
respectively. Deferred financing costs a.re amortized over the life of the respective bond issue 
principally using the average bonds outstanding method. Other intangible assets include licenses and 
similar assets and are being amortized over the intangible's estimated useful life under the straight­
line method. 
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MOUNTAIN STATES HEALTH ALLIANCE 

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements .. Continued 
(Dollars in Thousands) 

Years Ended June 30, 2013 and 2012 

NOTE B--SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - Continued 

Prior to 2009, the Alliance routinely financed interest rate swap and other derivative transaction 
issuance costs through modification of future settlement terms. As such, the unamortized issuance 
costs of these derivatives are included as deferred financing costs in the accompanying Consolidated 
Balance Sheets and are being amortized over the term of the respective derivative instrument. The 
unpaid issuance costs are included as a part of the estimated fair value of derivatives in the 
accompanying Consolidated Balance Sheets. Subsequent to 2009, interest rate swap and derivative 
transaction issuance costs were expensed as incurred. 

Derivative Financial Instruments: As further described in Note D, the Alliance is a party to various 
interest rate swaps. These financial instruments are not designated as hedges and have been 
presented at estimated fair market value in the accompanying Consolidated Balance Sheets as either 
current or long-term liabilities, based upon the remaining term of the instrument. Changes in the 
estimated fair value of these derivatives are included in the Consolidated Statements of Operations as 
part of net derivative gain. 

Estimated Professional Liability Self-Insurance and Other Long-Term Liabilities: Self .. ffisurance 
liabilities include estimated reserves for reported and unreported professional liability claims (Note 
G) and are recorded at the estimated net present value of such claims. Other long-tenn liabilities 
include contributions payable and obligations under deferred compensation arrangements, a defined 
benefit pension plan, a post-retirement employee benefit plan as well as other liabilities which 
management estimates are not payable within one year. 

Net Patient Service Revenue/Receivables: Net patient service revenue is reported on the accrual 
basis in the period in which services are provided at the estimated net realizable amounts, including 
estimated retroactive adjustments under reimbursement agreements with 1hird-party payers. 
Retroactive adjustments are accrued on an estimated basis in the period the related services are 
rendered and adjusted in future periods as final settlements are determined. The Alliance's revenue 
recognition policies related to self .. pay and other types of payers emphasize revenue recognition only 
when collections are reasonably assured. 

Patient accounts receivable are reported net of both an estimated allowance for uncollectible 
accounts and an estimated allowance for contractual adjustments. The contractual allowance 
represents the difference between established billing rates and estimated reimbursement from 
Medicare, Medicaid, TennCare and other third-party payment programs. Current operations include 
a provision for bad debts in the Consolidated Statements of Operations estimated based upon the age 
of the patient accounts receivable, historical Miteoffs and recoveries and any unusual circumstances 
(such as local, regional or national economic conditions) which affect the collectibility of 
receivables, including management's assumptions about conditions it expects to exist and courses of 
action it expects to truce. Additions to the allowance for uncollectible accounts result from the 
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provision for bad debts. Patient accounts written off as uncollectible are deducted from the 
allowance for uncollectible accounts. 

For uninsured patients that do not qualify for charity care, the Alliance recognizes revenue on the 
basis of discounted rates under the Alliance~s self-pay patient policy. Under the policy, a patient who 
has no insurance and is ineligible for any government assistance program has his or her bill reduced 
to the amount which generally would be billed to a commercially insured patient. 

The Alliance's policy does not require collateral or other security for patient accounts receivable. 
The Alliance routinely accepts assignment of, or is otheiwise entitled to receive, patient benefits 
payable under health insurance programs, plans or policies. 

Charity Care: The Alliance accepts all patients regardless of their ability to pay. A patient is 
classified as a charity patient by reference to certain established policies of the Alliance and various 
guidelines outlined by the Federal Government. These policies define charity as those services for 
which no payment is anticipated and, as such, charges at established rates are not included in net 
patient service revenue. The estimated direct and indirect cost of providing these services totaled 
approximately $24,354 and $24,709 in 2013 and 2012, respectively. Such costs are determined 
using a ratio of cost to charges analysis with indirect cost allocated. 

In addition to the charity care services described above, the Alliance provides a number of other 
services to benefit the poor for which little or no payment is received. Medicare, Medicaid, 
Tenn Care and State indigent programs do not cover the full cost of providing care to beneficiaries of 
those programs. The Alliance also provides services to the community at large for which it receives 
little or no payment. 

Excess (Deficit) of Revenue, Gains and Support Over Expenses and Losses: The Consolidated 
Statements of Operations and the Consolidated Statements of Changes in Net Assets includes the 
caption Excess (Deficit) ofRevenue, Gains and Support Over Expenses and Losses (the Perfonnance 
Indicator). Changes in unrestricted net assets which are excluded from the Performance Indicator, 
consistent with industry practice, include contributions oflong-lived assets or amounts restricted to 
the purchase of long-lived assets, certain pension and related adjustments, and transactions with 
noncontrolling interests. 

Income Taxes: The Alliance is classified as an organization exempt from income taxes under 
Section 50l(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code. As such, no provision for income taxes has been 
made in the accompanying consolidated financial statements for the Alliance and its tax-exempt 
subsidiaries. Taxable entities account for income taxes in accordance with FASB ASC 740, Income 
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Taxes (Note L). The Alliance has no significant uncertain tax positions at June 30, 2013 and 2012. 
At June 30, 2013, tax returns for 2009 through 2013 are subject to examination by the Internal 
Revenue Service. 

Temporarily and Permanently Restricted Net Assets: Temporarily restricted net assets are those 
whose use has been limited by donors to a specific time period or purpose. When a donor or time 
restriction expires; that is, when a stipulated time restriction ends or purpose restriction is fulfilled, 
temporarily restricted net assets are reclassified as unrestricted net assets and reported in 'the 
Consolidated Statements of Operations and Changes in Net Assets as net assets released from 
restrictions. The Alliance's policy is to net contribution and grant revenues against related expenses 
and present such amounts as a part of other revenue, gains and support in the Consolidated 
Statements of Operations. Permanently restricted net assets have been restricted by donors to be 
maintained by the Alliance in perpetuity. 

Premium Revenue: Premiums earned include premiums from individuals and Medicare. Medicare 
revenue includes premiums based on predetermined prepaid rates under Medicare risk contracts. 
Premiums are recognized in the month in which the members are entitled to health care services. 
Premiums collected in advance are deferred and recorded as unearned premium revenue. Premium 
deficiency losses are recognized when it is probable that expected future claim expenses will exceed 
future premiums on existing contracts. CHIC evaluated the need for a premium deficiency reserve 
and recorded an estimated reserve of$1,500 at June 30, 2013. 

Medicare Shared Savings Program (MSSP): AnewCare~ an Accountable Care Organization (ACO), 
participates in CMS' s Medicare Shared Savings Program which is designed to facilitate coordination 
and cooperation among providers to improve the quality of care for Medicare beneficiaries and 
reduce unnecessary costs. ACOs participating in the program are assigned beneficiaries by CMS and 
are entitled to share in the savings if they are able to lower growth in Medicare Parts A and B fee-for­
service costs while meeting performance standards on quality of care. The program is based on 
performance periods, the first of which specific to AnewCare is the period of July 2012 to December 
2013. Utilizing statistical data and the methodology employed by CMS, AnewCare has estimated 
and recognized $2,644 of net shared savings through June 30, 2013. Variability is inherent in the 
estimation methodology and due to uncertainties in the estimation; it is probable that management's 
estimates of shared savings, if any, will change by the end of the performance period, and such 
change could be significant. 

Electronic Health Record Incentives: The American Recovery and Reinvestment Act of 2009 
(ARRA) provides for incentive payments under the Medicare and Medicaid programs for certain 
hospitals and physician practices that demonstrate meaningful use of certified electronic health 
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record (EHR) technology. The incentive payments are calculated based upon estimated discharges, 
charity care and other input data and are predicated upon the Alliance's attainment of program and 
attestation criteria and are subject to regulatory audit. During the years ending June 30, 2013 and 
2012, the Alliance recognized EHR incentive revenues of $22,474 and $4,894, respectively, 
comprised of$17,340 ofMedicare revenues in 2013 and $5,134 and $4,894 ofMedicaid revenues in 
2013 and 2012, respectively. EHR incentive revenues are included in other revenue, gains and 
support in the accompanying Consolidated Statements of Operations. 

Tue Alliance incurs both capital expenditures and operating expenses in connection with the 
implementation of its various EHR initiatives. The amount and timing of these expenditures does not 
directly correlate with the timing of the Alliance's receipt or recognition of the EHR incentive 
payments. 

Medical Costs: The cost of health care services is recognized in the period in which services are 
provided. Medical costs include an estimate of the cost of services provided to CIDC members by 
third~party providers, which have been incurred but not provided to cmc. The estimate for incurred 
but not reported claims is based on actuarial projections of costs using historical paid claims and 
industry data. Due to uncertainties in the estimation, it is at least reasonably possible that 
management's estimates of incurred but not reported claims will change in 2014, although the 
amount of the change cannot be estimated. 

Fair Value Measurement: The Alliance had previously adopted FASB ASC 820, Fair Value 
Measurements and Disclosures, which defines fair value, establishes a framework for measuring fair 
value under generally accepted accounting principles and expands disclosures about fair value 
measurements. 

Subsequent Events: The Alliance evaluated all events or transactions that occurred after June 30, 
2013, through October 24, 2013, the date the consolidated financial statements were available to be 
issued. During this period management did not note any material recognizable subsequent events 
that required recognition or disclosure in the June 3 0, 2013 consolidated financial statements, other 
than as discussed in Note S. 

Reclassifications: Certain 2012 amounts have been reclassified to conform with the 2013 
presentation in the accompanying consolidated financial statements. Prior to 2013, the Alliance 
classified only those activities directly associated with its mission of providing healthcare services, 
as well as other activities deemed significant to its operations, as operating activities. In 2013, the 
Alliance no longer presents an intermediate measure of operating income (loss) and the 2012 
Consolidated Statement of Operations has been reformatted to be consistent with this presentation. 
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Assets limited as to use are summarized by designation or restriction as follows at June 30: 

2013 2012 

Designated or restricted: 
Under safekeeping agreements and other $ 10,350 $ 24,026 
By Board for capital improvements 4 
Under bond indenture agreements: 

For debt service and interest payments 60,823 77,602 
For capital acquisitions 36,989 29,578 

108,162 131,210 
Less: amount required to meet current obligations ~20,386) (36,557) 

$ 87,776 $ 94,653 

Assets limited as to use consist of the following at June 30: 

2013 2012 

Cash, cash equivalents and money market funds $ 57,190 $ 80,304 
U.S. Government securities 11,164 8,582 
U.S. Agency securities 30,407 40,398 
Corporate and foreign bonds 7,530 
Municipal obligations 1,871 1,926 

$ 108,162 $ 131,210 

Trading securities consist of the following at June 30: 

2013 2012 

Cash, cash equivalents and money market funds $ 9,488 $ 5,186 
U.S. Government securities 18,481 10,697 
U.S. Agency securities 19,620 26,165 
Corporate and foreign bonds 172,350 52,581 
Municipal obligations 17,749 961 
Preferred and asset backed securities 3,491 11,183 
U.S. equity securities 10,944 28,344 
Mutual funds 186,028 141,968 
Other 37,353 34,880 

$ 475,504 $ 311,965 
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Held-to-maturity securities (other than assets limited as to use) are carried at amortized cost and 
consist of the following at June 30: 

2013 

Cash, cash equivalents and money market funds $ 75 $ 298 
Corporate and foreign bonds 33,060 138,232 
Municipal obligations 4,937 15,549 

$ 38,072 $ 154,079 

Held~to-maturity securities had gross unrealized gains and losses of $15 and $1,421, respectively, at 
June 30, 2013 and $11,432 and $33, respectively at June 30, 2012. At June 30, 2013 and 2012, the 
Alliance held no securities within the held-to-maturity portfolio which had been at an unrealized loss 
position for over one year. At June 30, 2013, the contractual maturities of held-to-maturity securities 
were $2, 702 due in one year or less, $17 ,923 due from one to five years and $17 ,44 7 due after five 
years. At June 30, 2012, the contractual maturities ofheld-to-maturity securities were $11,225 due in 
one year or less, $67,532 due from one to five years and $75,322 due after five years. 

The net investment gain is comprised of the following for the years ending June 30: 

2013 2012 

Interest and dividend income, net of fees $ 13,881 $ 15,213 
Net realized (losses) gains on the sale of securities 3,074 (2,595) 
Change in net unrealized gains on se-curities 24,025 (2,884) 

$ 40,980 $ 9,734 

At June 3 0, 2013 and 2012, the Alliance held investments in certain limited partnerships and hedge 
funds with a recorded value of $37,353 and $34,880, respectively, that have a wide range of 
investment strategies with various levels of risk. These funds are included within trading securities 
and do not have readily determinable fair values. The funds are reported at estimated fair market 
value pursuant to FASB ASC 825, Financial Instruments. 

NOTE D--DERIV ATNE TRANSACTIONS 

The Alliance is a party to a number of derivative transactions. These derivatives have not been 
designated as hedges and are valued at estimated fair value in the accompanying Consolidated 
Balance Sheets. Management's primary objective in holding such derivatives is to introduce a 
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variable rate component into its fixed rate debt structure. Under the terms of these agreements, 
changes in the interest rate environment could have a significant effect on the Alliance. Deferred 
fmancing and acquisition costs, net of amortization, include $5, 791 and $6, 135 at June 30, 2013 and 
2012, respectively, related to these swaps. 

These derivative agreements require that the Alliance post additional collateral for the derivatives' 
fair market value deficits above specified levels. As of June 30, 2013, the Alliance was not required 
to post additional collateral. Such investments totaling $13,809 are in.eluded as assets limited as to 
use in the accompanying 2012 Consolidated Balance Sheet. 

The following is a summaryofthe interest rate swap agreements at June 30, 2013 and 2012: 

Notional Payments by: Estimated Fair Value 
Amount Term Countere.'!!!l'.. Receive p~ 2013 2012 

$ 170,000 4/2008-4/2026 Bank of 1.27% 7/2012-4/2013 0.000/c $ 3,895 $ 3,500 
America, Merrill 1.0'1°/o 5/2013-6/2013 

Lynch 

95,000 4/2008-4/2026 Bank of 1.27% 7/2012-4/2013 0.00% 2,205 1,983 
America, Merrill 1.08% 5/2013-6/2013 

Lynch 

173,030 4/2008-4/2034 Bank of 1.32% 7/2012-4/2013 0.00% (710) (513) 
America, Merrill 1.12% 5/2013-6/2013 

Lynch 

82.055 12/2007-7/2033 Bank of 67% USD-LIBOR- 0.312% + (9,322) (9,520) 
America, Merrill BBA USD-SIFMA 

Lynch 

50,000 212008-712038 Bank.of 67% (USD-LIBOR- USD-SIFMA (4,218) (3,895) 
America, Mettill BBA+0.15%) 

Lynch 

21,400 7/2007-7/2015 Bank of 1.05%+ 4.500/c 35 (320) 
America, Merrill USD-SJFMA 

Lynch 

5,524 Variollil Various Various Various (70) Q21) 

$ (8,185) $ (8,98~ 
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The terms of five of these agreements were modified without settlement during 2013. No gain or 
loss was realized as a result of the modifications although such modifications did impact the 
estimated fair value of the interest rate swaps as of June 30, 2013. 

The net investment derivative gain is comprised of the following for the years ending June 30: 

2013 2012 

Settlement income and other $ 6,661 $ 7,515 
Change in estimated fair value 457 (6,198) 

$ 7,118 $ 1,317 

These fair values are based on the estimated amount the Alliance would receive, or be required to 
pay, to enter into equivalent agreements at the valuation date and include an estimated credit value 
adjustment. The fair value of various derivatives are netted on the Consolidated Balance Sheets 
based on management's evaluation of the settlement provisions in the master contract. Gross 
positions of these derivatives are indicated in the table above. Due to the nature of these financial 
instruments, such estimates of fair value are subject to significant change in the near term. 

The Alliance was previously a party to a total return swap with Lehman Brothers as the counterparty. 
Lehman Brothers filed for bankruptcy in September 2008. The Alliance subsequently received 
notification from Lehman Brothers Special Financing, Inc. indicating the intent of the counterparty to 
terminate tills agreement effective January 1, 2009. The Alliance and Lehman Brothers Special 
Financing, Inc. were unable to reach a settlement agreement at the time the swap was terminated. An 
estimated liability related to the agreement of $10,395 was recognized by the Alliance at June 30, 
2012. In addition, a third party held investments with a fair market value of approximately $13 ,809, 
at June 30, 2012, as collateral. fu 2013, the parties reached a settlement agreement and in full 
settlement of the liability, the Alliance paid the counterparty $7 ,3 7 5 from the funds held as collateral 
and the remaining collateral was returned to the Alliance. A gain of approximately $3,020 was 
recognized on the settlement, which is included within other revenue, gains and support in the 
accompanying 2013 Consolidated Statement of Operations. 

In June 2004, the Alliance entered into an agreement with Bear Steams (acquired by JP Morgan) 
whereby Bear Stearns purchased from the Alliance an option to enter into an interest rate swap 
agreement (swaption) with the Alliance beginning July 1, 2011. During 2012, the counterparty 
expressed their intent to exercise the swaption on January l, 2012 and the Alliance exercised its right 
to temrinate the swaption at its fair market value. To effectuate the termination, the Alliance 
transferred $93,353 of a Guaranteed Investment Contract (GIC), to the third party as a termination 
payment. A gain of $3,058 was recognized on the termination, which is included within other 
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revenue, gains and support in the accompanying 2012 Consolidated Statement of Operations. Net 
derivative gain in the accompanying 2012 Consolidated Statement of Operations includes an 
unrealized loss of $4,676 related to this derivative, prior to termination. 

Also in June 2004, the Alliance entered into two related forward sale agreements with the 
counterparty to the swaption agreements and the Master Trustee of the Series 2000 Bonds. In June 
2012, the Alliance and the counterparty terminated the agreements. To effectuate the termination, 
the Alliance agreed to pay $13,429 to the counterparty. The termination payable is included in 
accounts payable and accrued expenses in the accompanying 2012 Consolidated Balance Sheet. The 
Alliance recognized a gain of $4, 708 on the termination of these agreements, which is included 
within other revenue, gains and support in the accompanying 2012 Consolidated Statement of 
Operations. 

NOTE E--PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 

Property, plant and equipment consist of the following at June 30: 

2013 2012 

Land $ 60,180 $ 57,525 
Buildings and leasehold improvements 718,489 661,146 
Property and improvements held for leasing 77,767 74,914 
Equipment 664,469 571,774 
Buildings and equipment held under capital lease 671 20,540 

1,521,576 1,385,899 

Less: Allowances for depreciation and amortization (704,002) (626,552) 

817,574 759,347 
Construction in progress (Note N) 66,719 94,278 

$ 884,293 $ 853,625 

Accumulated depreciation and amortization on property and improvements held for leasing purposes 
is $25,146 and $22,951 at June 30, 2013 and 2012, respectively. Net interest capitalized was $4,163 
and $3,110 for the years ended June 30, 2013 and 2012, respectively. 

During 2012, the Alliance executed an Amendment and Mutual Release Agreement with a vendor 
whereby the Alliance waived its right to take any action with respect to prior contracts in exchange 
for professional services in future periods, primarily related to accelerated deployment of information 
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systems. The Alliance recognized approximately $3,386 and $3,799 in 2013 and 2012 as additions 
to property, plant and equipment with an offsetting gain related to the agreed-upon value of such 
professional services. The Alliance anticipates recognition of additional amounts in future periods as 
such services are provided. 

NOTE F--LONG-TERM DEBT AND OTHER FINANCING ARRANGEMENTS 

Long-term debt and capital lease obligations consist of the following at June 30: 

Ollt6ltutdir&( ~ 
DacriptitRf Mlll.urltla Raia 201J 2011 

2012A Hospital Rev=lue Bonds, net of $55,000 ~ tenn bonds, due Augwit 15, 2042, S.00% $ S6,IU7 $ 
un.amortiud pmrJum ofSl,817 at June 30, subject to early redemption 
2013 

20l2B Hospital RevM!llfl Bonds $28,095 uninsured tmn bonds, due August 15, 2042, Variable, 0.06% 28,095 
wbject to C11rlyredemption or mndcr at June 30, 2013 

:W 12C Hospital Revenue Bonds $9, 785 unimured tmn bonds, due Au~ 15, 2042, Vari:able,!Ulfi% 9,785 
wbject to earlyi:OOemption ortmldcr at June 30, 2013 

201 tA Hospital R.cvatue Bonds $61,185 uninsured tetm bonds, due July 1, 2033, wbject Vllriahle,Ct01i% 61,185 65,260 
to early redemption or t.ender at June 30, 2013 

20 I 1B Hoipital Revenue Bonds $20,000 unmsmed tmn bonds, due July 1, 2033, aubject Vari:ablc,0.06% 20,000 2-0,000 
to early redemption or tend« at June 30, 2013 

201 IC Hoopital Revem.mi Bonds $4&,974 nninsurod term bonds, due July I, 2031, &uhjoot Variable, 0.06% 48,974 49,815 
to early redemption oc tender at June 30, 2013 

201 ID Hospital Ri:vmue Bonds $60, 105 uninsured tmn bends. due July 1, 203 I, i;ubject Variable, 0.06% 60,705 60,105 
to early redcmptioo or tender at June 30, 2013 

201 IE Taxable Bonds $15,960 uninsmcd temi bonds, due July 1, 2026, subjcc.it VWJ:ilc; O.l'l"Ai tS,%0 15,960 
to early redmnption or tmder at Jme 30, 2() 13 

2011 Hospital Facility R~e Refunding and $23,095 ~term bends, due July 1, 2033, subject Vll.riahle,1.14% 23,095 24,870 
Improvement Boods (JMH) to early redemption or tender at June30, 2013 

201 OA Hos¢.tal Rwenue Bonds, net of $28, 7&0 uninsured serially, through 2020 3.00% to S.00% 159,023 162,952 
mi.amortized premium of$978 and $1,017 at $14,9&5 uninsured term bonds, due July 1, 2025 S.3&% 
JJmC) 30, 2013 and 2012, respeotively $19,230 uninsured term bonds, due July 1, 2030 S.63% 

$39,570 uninsured term bonds, due July I, 2038 6.SO% 
$55,41!0 uninsured tcml bonds, due July 1, 2038 6.00% 

2ClOB Hospital Revenue Bonds, net of $20,295 unlmured serlally, through 202(} 2.50% to 5.00% 29,526 33,129 
ll!lll!OOrtized prcmimn of$626 a.nd $669 at June $4,355 unimured term bonds, due July I, 2023 5.00% 
30, 2013 and 2012, respectively $4,250 unimured term bonds, due July 1, 2028 5.50% 

2009A Holpiml Rcwenue Bow, net of $655 uninmred tenn bends, due July 1, 2019 1.~Ai S,377 5,443 
unamortized discount of$H3 and $117 m June $I, 730 uninsured tenn bonds, due July 1, 2029 7.SO% 
30, 2013 amt 2012, resp~y SS, 105 unimured tenn bonds, due July 1, 2038 7.75% 

2009B Hospital Revenue Bonds $5,410 unlmurod tenn hoods, due July 1, 2038 8.00'% 5,470 5,535 

2009C Hospital Rn-~ Bonds, net of $18,800 uninsurod tcnn bonds, due July 1, 2019 1.25% 111,4-09 113,621 
uns:mortized diS«lunt of$2,246 and $2,334 at $20,000 uninsured term bonds, due July l, 2029 1.50% 
JJmC) 30, 2013 and 2012. rupectivcily $74,SSS uniitl!med term bonds, due Jnly 1, 2038 7.75% 

2008A Ho.spital Rcmmuc Bondi $13,245 uninmin:d tmn bonds, due July 1, 2038, aubject Variable, 0.06% 13,245 13,MS 
to eerly redmiption or tender lit 11.me 30, 2013 

200RB Hospital R.evmue Bonda $51,965 uninsnmd remi. bonds, due July l, 2038, .ubjl!ili.lt Vlll'iablo, 0.06% 51,965 52,930 
to early m!l!ll'lption or tender at.June30,2013 

2007B Ta'.lt.llble Hospital Revenue Bands, sub- $123,335uni.nallredimmbonds,duoJuly1, 2033, mbject Vsriahle, 123,335 156,76(} 
~B·l endB-2 to early redemption or timder, 11ub-0.0& B·3 ~ed in 0.17"htD0.1&% 

2013 at .June 30, 2013 
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OWl41*4iltf. &l11nce 
~!fl.!l.011 MmMrilies RllleS :um 2012 

2006A Ho~ital First Mortgaf!l' Revenue $5,295 uninsured aerially, throngb 2019 5,00% 168,485 169,136 
Bonds, net af U!lll!l'lDrtiz.ed premium of $135 S7,375 uninsured term bonds, due July 1, 2026 5.25% 
and $141atJune30, 2013 and2012, $20,505 uninsured tmn bond£, dll!l July I, 2031 5.50% 
:tmprotil'oly $135,175 uninsured. tmm bonds, due July 1, 2036 5.50% 

2001 A Hospital First Mortgage Revenue Bonds $21,400 tenn hoods, due July J, 2026, subject to early 4.50% ZJ,4ll0 22,300 
redemption or tender 

2000A Hospital First Mortgage Revenue S34,54S insured Cap.ital Apprec:lation Bonds, interest and 6.63% 34,545 32,431 
Refunding Bonds principal duo July 1, 2026 through 2030 

2000C Hospital First Mortgage Revenue Bonds $32,040 insured term bonds, due July 1, 2026 8.50% 32,04-0 33,230 

2000D First Mortgage Taxable Bonds $13,!WO kiinirOO term bonds, due July I, 2026 8.50% 13,800 14,315 

Capitalized lease obligatiomi 8llCUrlld by VariOU!! monthly pitynlUl1tl of principal llnd inWnist Various 1,240 1,645 
equipmcat 

$1,593 note payable, secured by equipmmt Various annual principal payments through July 2014 Unepecified 896 1,343 

Capita!Wid lease obligation secured by medical Lease was paid-off in 2013 NJA 15,498 
office building (JMH) 

Msllter installment paym®t agreement Variou& quarterly payments through May2014 Unspccifll:d 2,320 4,438 

Master installment payment agreement, ~ Various <pllllt«lypaym.ents through Mny2014 Unspooified I,503 3,032 
by equipment 

Sl,640 note payabl=, secured by l1111d Monthly principal payments ofSJ() through maturity in Unspecified 1,640 1,870 
July2015 

S985 in prom.imuy notr:is ~by l15Sf:f.s of Variom monthly principal l!lld intorellt payments through 3.00% - 3.75% 985 1,052 
Emmaus Community Haalthllllnl, ILC 2019 

Sl7.,61J7tmn~ Monthly principal llild interest paymmtll of $60 beginning Variable, 1.14% 17,607 
November 2012 mntm:ing September 2015; mmaining at JUilJ) 3(), 2013 
principal lb October 2015 

S4,238 in notes payable, ~by land Annual principal payments ofS215 beginningOctcber Variable, 0.19% 4,238 
2013 maturing Ootob« 2015; remaining principal due at Jene 30, 2013 
October 2016. ~st is payable monthly. 

1,124,765 1,080,575 
Leas W?mlt portion ~141Zl Q2.47!} 

s 1,090~8 s l,043,098 

Series 2012 Bonds: In September 2012, the Alliance issued $55,000 (Series 2012A) fixed rate and 
$28,095 (Series 2012B) variable rate tax-exempt Hospital Revenue Bonds through The Health and 
Educational Facilities Board of the City of Johnson City, Tennessee, and $9,785 (Series 2012C) 
variable rate taxKexempt Hospital Revenue Bonds through the Industrial Development Authority of 
Wise, Virginia (collectively, the Series 2012 Bonds). The proceeds from the Series 2012A Bonds 
will be used to finance a surgery center project at JCMC and pay issuance costs related to these 
Bonds. The proceeds from the Series 2012B and 2012C Bonds will be used to finance orrefmance 
capital improvements and equipment acquisitions and to pay issuance costs associated with these 
Bonds. The timely payment of the Series 2012B and Series 2012C Bonds is secured by irrevocable 
transferable direct-pay letters of credit which expire September 17, 2015. 

Series 2011 Bonds: In October 2011, the Alliance issued $65,260 (Series 2011A) and $20,000 
(Series 201 lB) variable rate tax-exempt Hospital Revenue Bonds through The Health and 
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Educational Facilities Board of the City of Johnson City, Tennessee, $49,875 (Series 201 lC) and 
$60, 705 (Series 201 lD) variable rate tax-exempt Hospital Revenue Bonds through the Industrial 
Development Authority of Smyth, Virginia and $15,960 (Series 201 lE) variable rate Taxable Bonds 
(collectively, the Series 2011 Bonds). The proceeds from the Series 201 lA and Series 201 lB Bonds 
were used to finance certain capital acquisitions in the State of Tennessee and pay issuance costs 
related to these Bonds. The proceeds from the Series 2011 C and 20 l lD Bonds were used to 
refinance the 2001 NCH Hospital Refunding and Improvement Revenue Bonds, finance capital 
acquisitions for NCH, IlviH and SCCH and to pay issuance costs associated with these Bonds. The 
Series 20 l lE Bond proceeds were used to refinance certain capital acquisitions of SCCH and 
BRM.:M and pay issuance costs. The timely payment of the Series 2011 Bonds is secured by a letter 
of credit which expires October 19, 2014. 

In November 2011, JMH issued $24,870 (JMH Series 2011) variable rate tax-exempt Hospital 
Facility Revenue Refunding and Improvement Bonds through the Industrial Development Authority 
of Smyth County. The proceeds from the Th1H Series 2011 Bonds were used to refinance the 1998 
Hospital Refunding and Improvement Revenue Bonds, refinance existing indebtedness incurred to 
fmance capital acquisitions and to pay issuance costs associated with the Bonds. 

Series 2010Bonds: InApril2010, the Alliance issued $168,080 (Series2010A)and$35,935 (Series 
2010B) fJXed rate Hospital Refunding Revenue Bonds (collectively, the Series 2010 Bonds). 
Proceeds of the Series 201 OA and the Series 201 OB Bonds were used to refinance outstanding 
indebtedness, specifically related to the Alliance's facilities in Tennessee and in Virginia, 
respectively, fund debt service reserve funds and pay costs of issuance. 

Series 2009 Bonds: In March 2009, the Alliance issued $5,560 (Series 2009A), $5,535 (Series 
2009B) and $115,955 (Series 2009C) fixed rate Hospital Revenue Bonds (collectively, the Series 
2009 Bonds). The proceeds of Series 2009 Bonds were used to refinance a portion of the outstanding 
Series 2006C Taxable Notes, which were originally issued to finance a capital commitment to SCCH 
and purchase certain leased assets, finance the acquisition of a majority ownership in JMlI, fund a 
debt service reserve fund and pay costs of issuance. The portion of the 2006C taxable notes which 
were not refinanced with the Series 2009 Bonds were repaid with cash on hand. 

Series 2008 Bonds: In February 2008, the Alliance issued $72, 770 (Series 2008A) and $54,230 
(Series 2008B) variable rate Hospital Revenue Bonds (collectively, the Series 2008 Bonds). The 
proceeds of Series 2008 Bonds were primarily used to finance certain future capital projects for the 
Alliance's hospital facilities and for the repayment of previously issued 2008 Taxable Notes used for 
the acquisition ofRCMC. The payment of principal and interest on the Series 2008 Bonds and the 
purchase price of any tendered bonds on each series are secured by a separate, irrevocable, 
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transferable, direct-pay letter of credit. A portion ($59,525) of the Series 2008A Bonds were repaid 
from proceeds of the Series 2010 Bonds. 

Series 2007 Bonds: In December 2007, the Alliance issued $104,355 (Series 2007A), $327,170 
(Series 2007B taxable) and $36,575 (Series 2007C) variable rate Hospital Revenue Bonds 
(collectively, the Series 2007 Bonds). The proceeds of Series 2007 Bonds were primarily used to 
early extinguish a portion of the outstanding Series 2000A Bonds, all of the outstanding 2000B 
Bonds, all of the outstanding Series 1994 Bonds, and all of the outstanding Series 2006B Bonds; to 
finance the acquisition of a majority ownership in NCH, and to finance certain capital improvements 
and equipment acquisitions for the Alliance's hospital facilities. A portion of the outstanding Series 
2007 A ($91,685) and Series 2007C ($32,840) Bonds were repaid from proceeds of the Series 2010 
Bonds. 

During 2012, the Alliance redeemed $115,135 of the Series 2007B-1 Bonds and $29,405 of the 
Series 2007B-3 Bonds. The Alliance redeemed $26,530 of the Series 2007B-3 Bonds during 2013. 
The payment of principal and interest on the outstanding Sub-Series 2007B Bonds and the purchase 
price of any tendered bonds on each series are secured by a separate, irrevocable, transferable, direct­
pay letter of credit. 

Series 2006 Bonds: During 2006, the Alliance issued $173,030 Hospital First Mortgage Revenue 
Bonds (Series 2006A) and $66,500 Hospital First Mortgage Variable Rate Revenue Bonds (Series 
2006B). The proceeds from the sale of the Series 2006A Bonds were used to :finance certain future 
and prior capital projects for the Alliance's hospital facilities and to refund certain existing 
indebtedness, specifically the Series 2001 B Bonds (discussed below) and certain existing short and 
intermediate term loans and leases, as well as fund a debt service reserve fund. The Series 2006B 
Bond proceeds were substantially used to refund the remaining outstanding principal of the Series 
200 lB Bonds and establish a debt service reserve fund. 

Series 2001 Bonds: During 2001, the Alliance issued $26,000 Hospital First Mortgage Revenue 
Bonds (Series 2001A). The Alliance redeemed the 2001A Bonds and released a new Series 2001A 
to Bank of America Merrill Lynch during 2012. 

Series 2000 Bonds: The Hospital First Mortgage Revenue Refunding (Series 2000A Bonds) and 
First Mortgage Revenue Refunding Bonds (Series 2000B Bonds), were used to advance refund 
previously existing indebtedness as well as fund a required debt service reserve fund. The Hospital 
First Mortgage Revenue Bonds (Series 2000C Taxable Bonds) were used to refinance certain 
mortgage indebtedness of Bruv.tiv!, and to refund other previously existing indebtedness. The 
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proceeds from the sale of the First Mortgage Bonds (Series 2000D Taxable Bonds) were used 
primarily to fund working capital for the Alliance. 

The Series 2000A Bonds included at issue date $14,680 of insured Capital Appreciation Bonds. 
Such bonds bear a 0% coupon rate and have a yield of 6.625% annually. The Alliance recognizes 
interest expense and increases the amount of outstanding debt each year based upon this yield. Total 
principal and interest due at maturity (2026 through 2030) is $93,675. 

Derecognized Bonds: The advance refunding of previously issued debt requires funds to be placed 
in :irrevocable trusts in order to satisfy remaining scheduled principal and interest payments. 
Management, upon advice oflegal counsel, believes the amounts deposited in such irrevocable trust 
accounts have contractually relieved the Alliance of any future obligations with respect to this debt, 
and the debt and escrowed securities are not considered liabilities or assets of the Alliance. 
Therefore, such debt has been derecognized. Debt outstanding and not recognized in the 
Consolidated Balance Sheet at June 30, 2013 due to previous advance refundings of the Series 
2000A Bonds, Series 2000B Bonds, Series 1998C Bonds, and Series 1991 Bonds, totaled 
approximately $213,060. 

The assets placed in the irrevocable trust accounts are also not recognized as assets of the Alliance. 
These assets consist primarily of various investments, as permitted by bond indentures ahd other 
documents, including United States Treasury obligations, an investment contract with MBIA 
Insurance Corporation (MBIA) in the original amount of$54,300, as well as the Series 2000C and 
20000 Bonds which were purchased with the proceeds of the 2000A and 2000B Bonds specifically 
for the purpose of utilizing the Series 2000C and 2000D Bonds in the irrevocable trust. Therefore, 
certain of the assets held in the irrevocable trust accounts have future income streams contingent 
upon payments by the Alliance. 

The Alliance instructed the trustee of the 1998C Bonds to liquidate certain investments held in the 
related irrevocable trust account and to redeem a portion of the 1998C Bonds with the proceeds from 
the liquidation. The fair value of the liquidated assets exceeded the payment necessary to redeem the 
l 998C Bonds and the excess was paid to the Alliance. As a result of this transaction, the Alliance 
recognized a net gain in 2013 and 2012 of $13,847 and $5,337, respectively, which is included in 
other revenue, gains and support in the accompanying Consolidated Statements of Operations. 

Variable Rate Issuances: The variable rate of interest on the Series 2012, Series 2011, Series 2008 
and Series 2007 Bonds is determined weekly by the Remarketing Agent, as the rate equal to the 
lowest rate which, in regard to general financial conditions and other special conditions bearing on 
the rate, would produce as nearly as possible a par bid for the Bonds in the secondary market In no 
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event shall the variable rate on the Bonds during any period where interest is calculated weekly 
exceed the lesser of 12% annually or the maximum contract rate of interest permitted by the 
applicable State of issue. The Alliance has the option, upon written approval of the holder of the 
letters of credit, the Remarketing Agent and others, to convert to a medium-term rate period or to a 
fixed rate. 

Early Redemption: Essentially all of the Alliance's bonds are subject to redemption prior to 
maturity, including optional, mandatory sinking fund and extraordinary redemption, at various dates 
and prices as described in the respective Bond indentures and other documents. 

Other Bonds, Notes Payable and Financing Arrangements: The Alliance has granted a deed of trust 
on JCMC and SSH to secure the payment of the outstanding Bonds. The Bonds are also secured 
by the Alliance's receivables, inventories and other assets as well as certain funds held under 
the documents pursuant to which the bonds were issued. The JMH Series 2011 Hospital Refunding 
and Improvement Revenue Bonds are secured by pledged revenues of JMH, as defined in the Credit 
Agreement. 

The scheduled maturities and mandatory sinking fund payments of the long-term debt and capital 
lease obligations (excluding interest), exclusive of net unamortized original issue discount and 
premiwn, at June 30, 2013 are as follows: 

Year Ending June 30, 

2014 
2015 
2016 
2017 
2018 

Thereafter 

Net premium 

$ 

$ 

34,417 
28,191 
45,427 
32,290 
29,253 

953,990 

1,123,568 
1,197 

1,124,765 

Certain members of the Alliance and JMH. are each members of separate Obligated Groups. The 
bond indentures, master trust indentures, letter of credit agreements and loan agreements related to 
the various bond issues and notes payable contain covenants with which the respective Obligated 
Groups must comply. These requirements include maintenance of certain financial and liquidity 
ratios, deposits to trustee funds, permitted indebtedness, use of facilities and disposals of property. 
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These covenants also require that failure to meet certain debt service coverage tests will require the 
deposit of all daily cash receipts of the Alliance into a trust fund. Management has represented the 
Alliance and JMlI are in compliance with all such covenants at June 30, 2013. 

In connection with the tax-exempt bonds, the Alliance is required every five years, and at maturity, 
to remit to the Internal Revenue Service amounts which are due related to positive arbitrage on the 
borrowed funds. The Alliance performs such computations when required and recognizes any 
liability at that time. Management does not believe there are any significant arbitrage liabilities at 
June 30, 2013 or 2012. 

During 2012, the Alliance recognized a $2,636 loss on early extinguishment of debt representing the 
'Write off of previously deferred and unamortized financing costs generally related to the refinanced 
or otherwise redeemed portion of the Series 2007B Bonds, Series 1998 JMH Bonds and the Series 
2001 NCH Bonds. 

NOTE Q ... sELF-INSURANCE PROGRAMS 

The Alliance is substantially self-insured for professional and general liability claims and related 
expenses. The Alliance maintains a $25,000 umbrella liability policy that attaches over the self­
insurance limits of $10,000 per claim and a $15,000 annual aggregate retention. The Alliance's 
insurance program also provides professional liability coverage for certain affiliates and joint 
ventures. 

The Alliance is also substantially self-insured for workers' compensation claims in the State of 
Tennessee and has established estimated liabilities for both reported and unreported claims. The 
Alliance maintains a stop-loss policy that attaches over the self-insurance limits of $1,000 per 
occurrence and $1,000 annual aggregate retention. In the State of Virginia, the Alliance is not self .. 
insured and maintains workers' compensation insurance through commercial carriers. 

At June 30, 2013, the Alliance is involved in litigation relating to medical malpractice and workers' 
compensation and other claims arising in the ordinary course of business. There are also known 
incidents occurring through June 30, 2013 that may result in the assertion of additional claims, and 
other unreported claims may be asserted arising from services provided in the past Alliance 
management has estimated and accrued for the cost of these unreported claims based on historical 
data and actuarial projections. The estimated net present value of malpractice and workers' 
compensation claims, both reported and unreported, as of June 30, 2013 and 2012 was $12,348 and 
$12,896, respectively. The discount rate utilized was 5% at June 30, 2013 and 2012. 
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Additionally, the Alliance is self-insured for employee health claims and recognizes expense each 
year based upon actual claims paid and an estimate of claims incurred but not yet paid, including a 
catastrophic claims reserve based on historical claims in excess of $7 5. Such amount is included in 
accounts payable and accrued expenses in the Consolidated Balance Sheets. 

NOTE H--NET PATIENT SERVICE REVENUE 

A reconciliation of the amount of services provided to patients at established rates to net patient 
service revenue as presented in the accompanying Consolidated Statements of Operations is as 
follows for the years ended June 30: 

2013 2012 

Inpatient service charges $ 2,086,519 $ 2,095,036 
Outpatient service charges 2,120,400 1,982,154 

Gross patient service charges 4,206,919 4,077,190 
Less: 

Estimated contractual adjustments and other discounts 3,058,580 2,899,678 
Charity care 103,094 102,462 
Provision for bad debts 112,497 122,917 

3,274,171 3,125,057 

Net patient service revenue $ 932,748 $ 952,133 

Patient service revenue, net of contractual allowances and discounts is composed of the following for 
the years ended June 30: 

Third-party payers 
Patients 

Patient service revenue $ 

2013 

946,979 $ 
98,266 

1,045,245 $ 

2012 

968,101 
106,949 

1,075,050 

Patient deductibles and copayments under third-party payment programs are included within the 
patient amounts above. 
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Management regularly reviews data about these major payer sources of revenue in evaluating the 
sufficiency of the allowance for uncollectible accounts. For receivables associated with services 
provided to patients v.rho have third .. party coverage, the Alliance analyzes contractually due amounts 
and provides an allowance for uncollectible accounts and a provision for bad debts, if necessary, for 
expected uncollectible deductibles and copayments on accounts for which the third-party payer has 
not paid or for payers who are known to be having financial difficulties that make the realization of 
amounts due unlikely. For receivables associated with patients, which includes both patients without 
insurance and patients with deductible and copayment balances due for which third-party coverage 
exists for part of the bill, the Alliance records a significant provision for bad debts in the period of 
service on the basis ofits past experience, which indicates that many patients are unable or unwilling 
to pay the portion of their bill for which they are financially responsible. The difference between 
rates and the amounts actually collected after all reasonable collections efforts have been exhausted 
is charged against the allowance for uncollectible accounts. 

The Alliance's allowance for doubtful accounts totaled $49,449 and $52,696 at June 30, 2013 and 
2012, respectively. The allowance for doubtful accounts decreased from 26% of patient accounts 
receivable, net of contractual allowances, at June 30, 2012 to 23% of patient accounts receivable, net 
of contractual allowances, as of June 30, 2013. During 2013, MSHA began recording contractual 
allowances at time-of-billing for three additional payers, two of whom are MSHA's largest 
commercial payers. Previously, MSHA had recorded an allowance for bad debt for those three payers 
in addition to an estimated allowance for contractual adjustments. As a result of a more accurate 
methodology for recording contractual allowances for those three payers, MSHA was able to 
decrease its allowance for bad debts by a minimal amount. The provision for bad debts associated 
with the Alliance's ancillacy service lines are not significant. 

NOTE I--THIRD-P AR TY REIMBURSEl\IBNT 

The Alliance renders services to patients under contractual arrangements wim Medicare, Medicaid, 
TennCare,, Blue Cross and various other commercial payers. The Medicare program pays for 
inpatient services on a prospective basis. Payments are based upon diagnosis related group 
assignments, which are determined by the patient's clinical diagnosis and medical procedures 
utilized. The Alliance also receives additional payments from Medicare based on the provision of 
services to a disproportionate share of Medicaid and other low income patients. Most Medicare 
outpatient services are reimbursed on a prospectively detennined payment methodology. The 
Medicare program also reimburses certain other services on the basis of reasonable cost, subject to 
various prescribed limitations and reductions. 
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Reimbursement under the State of Tennessee's Medicaid waiver program (Tenn Care) for inpatient 
and outpatient services is administered by various managed care organizations (MCOs) and is based 
on diagnosis related group assignments, a negotiated per diem or fee schedule basis. The Alliance 
also receives additional supplemental payments from the State of Tennessee. These supplemental 
payments recognized totaled $8,455 and $11,300 for the years ended June 30, 2013 and 2012, 
respectively. Such payments are not guaranteed in future periods. 

The Virginia Medicaid program reimbursement for inpatient hospital services is based on a 
prospective payment system using both a per case and per diem methodology. Additional payments 
are made for the allowable costs of capital. Payments for outpatient services are based on Medicare 
cost reimbursement principles and settled through the filing of an annual Medicaid cost report. 

Amounts earned under the contractual agreements with the Medicare and Medicaid programs are 
subject to review and final determination byfiscal intermediaries and other 3:Ppropriate governmental 
authorities or their agents. Retroactive adjustments are accrued on an estimated basis in 1he period 
the related services are rendered and adjusted in future periods as final settlements are determined. 
During 2013, the State of Virginia outsourced its Medicaid program to six managed care 
organizations. ISHN provides the provider network for Southwest Virginia to five Virginia Medicaid 
managed care organizations; two of which are on an exclusive basis. ISHN is not at-risk under these 
contracts. 

Activity with respect to audits and reviews of the governmental programs in the healthcare industry 
has increased and is expected to increase in the future. No additional specific reserves or allowances 
have been established with regard to these increased audits and reviews as management is not able to 
estimate such amounts, if any. Management believes that any adjustments from these increased 
audits and reviews will not have a material adverse impact on the consolidated financial statements. 
However, due to uncertainties in the estimation, it is at least reasonably possible that management's 
estimate will change in 2014, although the amount of any change cannot be estimated. The impact of 
final settlements of cost reports or changes in estimates increased net patient service revenue by 
$1,328 in 2013 and decreased net patient service revenue by $1,556 in 2012. 

Participation in the Medicare program subjects the Alliance to significant rules and regulations; 
failure to adhere to such could result in fines, penalties or expulsion from the program. Management 
believes that adequate provision has been made for any adjustments, fines or penalties which may 
result from final settlements or violations of other rules or regulations. Management has represented 
that the Alliance is in substantial compliance with these rules and regulations as of June 30, 2013. 

The Alliance has also entered into payment agreements with certain commercial insurance carriers, 
health maintenance organizations, preferred provider organizations and employer groups. The basis 
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for payment under these agreements includes prospectively determined rates per discharge, discounts 
from established charges and prospectively determined daily rates. 

NOTE J--EMPLOYEE BENEFIT PLANS 

The Alliance sponsors a retirement plan (the Plan) which covers substantially all employees. The 
Plan is a defined contribution plan which consists principally of employer-funded contributions. 
During 2013 and 2012, the Alliance made contributions to the Plan under a stratified system, 
whereby the Alliance's contribution percentage is based on each employee's years of service. 
Employees of certain other subsidiaries are covered by other plans, although such plans are not 
significant. The total expense related to defined contribution plans for the years ended June 30, 2013 
and 2012 was $16,121 and $15,072, respectively. 

NCH maintains a defmed benefit pension plan and a post-retirement employee benefit plan. The 
accrued unfunded pension liability was $3,028 and $2,560, and the accrued unfunded post-retirement 
liability was $4,943 and $4,554 at June 30, 2013 and 2012, respectively. 

The Alliance sponsors a secured executive benefit program (SEBP) for certain key executives. 
Contributions to the plan by the Alliance are based on an annual amount of funding necessary to 
produce a target benefit for the participants at their retirement date, although the Alliance does not 
guarantee any level of benefit will be achieved. The Alliance contributed $1,020 and $1, 734 to the 
plan during 2013 and 2012, respectively. Other assets at June 30, 2013 and 2012 include $10,721 
and $9 ,67 5, respectively, related to the Alliance's portion of the benefits which are recoverable upon 
the death of the participant. Jn addition, the Alliance sponsors a Section 457(f) plan for certain key 
executives. The Alliance contributed $294 and $452 to the Section 457(f) plan during 2013 and 
2012, respectively. 

NOTE K--CONCENTRATION OF RlSK 

The Alliance has locations primarily in upper East Tennessee and Southwest Virginia which is 
considered a geographic concentration. The Alliance grants credit 'Without collateral to its patients, 
most of whom are local residents and are insured under third-party payer agreements. Net patient 
service revenue from Washington County, Tennessee operations were approximately 51%and51 % 
of total net patient service revenue for 2013 and 2012, respectively. 

The mix of receivables from patients and third-party payers based on charges at established rates is 
as follows as of June 30: 
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Medicare 
Tenncare/Medicaid 
Commercial 
Other third-party payers 
Patients 

2013 2012 
38% 36% 
16% 14% 
28% 26% 
9% 13% 
9% 11% 

100% 100% 

Approximately 88% and 94% of the consolidated total revenue, gains and support were related to the 
provision of healthcare services during 2013 and 2012, respectively. Admitting physicians are 
primarily practitioners in the regional area. 

Two of the Alliance's Virginia hospitals' employees are covered under collective bargaining 
agreements which extend through February 2014 and January 2015, respectively. 

The Hospital maintains bank accounts at various fmancia.l institutions covered by the Federal 
Deposit Insurance Corporation (FDIC). At times throughout the year, the Alliance may maintain 
bank account balances in excess of the FDIC insured limit. Management believes the credit risk 
associated with these deposits is not significant. 

The Alliance routinely invests in investment vehicles as listed in Note C. The Alliance's investment 
portfolio is managed by outside investment management companies. Investments in corporate and 
foreign bonds, municipal obligations, money market funds, equities and other vehicles that are held 
by safekeeping agents are not insured or guaranteed by the U.S. government. 

NOTE L--JNCOME TAXES 

BRM:M: and its subsidiaries file a consolidated federal tax return and separate state tax returns. As of 
June 30, 2013 and 2012, BRMM and its subsidiaries had net operating loss carryforwards for 
consolidated federal purposes of $33,620 and $35,968, respectively, related to operating loss 
canyforwards which expire through 2031. At June 30, 2013 and 2012, BRMM: had state net 
operating loss carryforwards of$70,347 and $69,403, respectively, which expirethrough2027. The 
net operating loss carryforwards may be offset against future taxable income to the extent permitted 
by the Internal Revenue Code and Tennessee Code Annotated. 
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At June 30, 2013 and 2012, SWCH had federal and state net operating loss carryforwards of $5 ,906 
and $5,614, respectively, which expire through 2032. The net operating loss carryforwards may be 
off-set against future taxable income to the extent permitted by the Internal Revenue Code and tax 
codes of the Commonwealth of Virginia. 

Net deferred tax assets related to these carryforwards and other deferred tax assets have been 
substantially offset through valuation allowances equal to these amounts. Income taxes paid relate 
primarily to state taxes for certain subsidiaries and federal alternative minimum tax. 

NOTE M-~RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 

The Alliance enters into transactions with entities affiliated with certain members of the Board of 
Directors including transactions to construct Alliance facilities and provide professional services to 
the Alliance. Board members refrain from discussion and abstain from voting on transactions with 
entities with which they are related. 

NOTE N--OTHER COM1\1ITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES 

Construction in Progress: Construction in progress at June 30, 2013 represents costs incurred 
related to various hospital and medical office building facility renovations and additions and 
information technology infrastructure. The Alliance has outstanding contracts and other 
commitments related to the completion of these projects, and the cost to complete these projects is 
estimated to be approximately $39,110 at June 30, 2013. The Alliance does not expect any 
significant costs to be incurred for infrastructure improvements to assets held for resale. 

Physician Contracts: BRMM employs physicians to provide services to BRM.M's physician 
practices through employment agreements which provide annual compensation, plus incentives 
based upon specified productivity levels. These contracts have various terms. 

In addition, the Alliance has entered into contractual relationships with non-employed physicians to 
provide services in Upper East Tennessee and Southwest Virginia. These contracts guarantee certain 
base payments and allowable expenses and have terms of varying lengths. Amounts drawn and 
outstanding under each agreement are treated as a loan bearing interest at various rates and are 
subject to repayment over a specified period. The physician notes may also be amortized by virtue of 
the physician, s continued practice in the specified community during the repayment period. A net 
receivable of $884 and $1A36 related to these agreements is included in the accompanying 
Consolidated Balance Sheets at June 30, 2013 and 2012, respectively. 
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Employee Scholarships: The Alliance offers scholarships to certain individuals which require that 
the recipients return to the Alliance to work for a specified period of time after they complete their 
degree. Amounts due are then forgiven over a specific period of time as provided in the individual 
contracts. If the recipient does not return and work the required period of time, the funds disbursed 
on their behalf become due immediately and interest is charged until the funds are repaid. Other 
receivables at June 30, 2013 and 2012 include $9,021 and $8,005, respectively, related to students in 
school, graduates working at the Alliance and amounts due from others who are no longer in the 
scholarship program, net of an estimated allowance. 

Operating Leases and Maintenance Contracts: Total lease expense for the years ended June 30, 2013 
and 2012 was $8, 739 and $8,823, respectively. Future minimum lease payments for each of the next 
five years and in the aggregate for the Alliance's noncancellable operating leases with remaining 
lease terms in excess of one year are as follows: 

Year Ending June. 30, 

2014 $ 5,165 
2015 6,044 
2016 4,491 
2017 2,459 
2018 1,848 

Thereafter 6,297 

$ 26,304 

Asset Retirement Obligation: The Alliance has identified asbestos in certain facilities and is required 
by law to dispose of it in a special manner if the facility undergoes major renovations or is 
demolished; otherwise, the Alliance is not required to remove the asbestos from the facility. The 
Alliance has complied with regulations by treating the asbestos so that it presents no known 
immediate or future safety concerns. An asset retirement obligation has been established to the 
extent that sufficient information exists upon which to estimate the liability. 

Other: The Alliance is a party to various transactions and agreements in the normal course of 
business, which include purchase and re-purchase agreements, put arrangements and other 
commitments, which may bind the Alliance to undertake additional transactions or activities in the 
future. In addition, the Alliance has agreed to guarantee a portion of the outstanding indebtedness of 
a joint venture. Management estimates that the fair value of the guarantee of this debt is immaterial 
as of June 30, 2013. 

37 



MOUNTAIN STATES HEALTH ALLIANCE 

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements - Continued 
(Dollars in Thousands) 

Years Ended June 2013 and 2012 

NOTE N--OTHER CO!vfMITivffiNTS AND CONTINGENCIES - Continued 

Healthcare Industry: Recently, government activity has increased 'With respect to investigations and 
allegations concerning possible violations of fraud and abuse statutes and regulations by healthcare 
providers. Violations of these laws and regulations could result in expulsion from government 
healthcare programs together with the imposition of significant fines and penalties, as well as 
significant repayments for patient services previously billed. 

In March 2010, Congress adopted comprehensive health care insurance legislation, Patient Care 
Protection and Affordable Care Act and Health Care and Education Reconciliation Act. The 
legislation, among other matters, is designated to expand access to coverage to substantively all 
citizens by 2019 through a combination of public program expansion and private industry health 
insurance. Changes to existing TennCare and Medicaid coverage and payments are also expected to 
occur as a result of this legislation. Implementing regulations are generally required for these 
legislative acts, which are to be adopted over a period of years and, accordingly, the specific impact 
of any future regulations is not determinable. 

NOIB 0--RENTAL INCOME UNDER OPERA TING LEASES 

The Alliance leases rental properties to third parties, most of whom are physician practices, for 
various terms, generally five years. The following is a schedule by year and in the aggregate of 
minimum future rental income due under noncancellable operating leases at June 30, 2013: 

Year Ending June 30, 

2014 
2015 
2016 
2017 
2018 

Thereafter 

Total minimum future rentals 

NOTE P--FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INS'IRUMENTS 

$ 

$ 

1,779 
1,487 

727 
379 
248 
225 

4,845 

The fair value of fmancial instruments has been estimated by the Alliance using available market 
information as of June 30, 2013 and 2012, and valuation methodologies considered appropriate. The 
estimates presented are not necessarily indicative of amounts the Alliance could realize in a current 
market exchange. The carrying value of substantially all fmancial instruments approximates fair 
value due to the nature or tenn of the instruments, except as described below. 
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NOTE P--FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - Continued 

Investment in Joint Ventures: It is not practical to estimate the fair market value of the investments 
in joint ventures. 

Other Long-Term Liabilities: Estimates of reported and unreported professional liability claims, 
pension and post-retirement liabilities are discounted to approximate their estimated fair value. It is 
not practical to estimate the fair market value of other long-term liabilities due to uncertainty of 
when these amounts may be paid. Other long-term liabilities are not discounted. 

Long-Term Debt: The fair value of long-term debt is estimated based upon quotes obtained from 
brokers for bonds and discounted future cash flows using current market rates for other debt. For 
long-term debt with variable interest rates, the carrying value approximates fair value. 

The estimated fair value of the Alliance's financial instruments that have carrying values different 
from fair value is as follows at June 30: 

FINANCIAL LIABILITIES: 

Carrying 
Value 

2013 
Estimated 
Fair Value 

Carrying 
Value 

2012 
Estimated 
Fair Value 

Long-term debt $ 1,124,765 $ 1,167,846 $ 1,080,575 $ 1,150,201 

NOTE Q--F A1R VALUE I\IBASUREMENT 

FASB ASC 820 establishes a three-level valuation hierarchy for disclosure of fair value 
measurements. The valuation hierarchy is based upon the transparency of inputs to the valuation of 
an asset or liability as of the measurement date. The three levels are defined as follows: 

• Level 1 - Inputs based on quoted market prices for identical assets or liabilities in active 
markets at the measurement date. 

• Level 2 - Observable inputs other than quoted prices included in Level 1, such as quoted 
prices for similar assets and liabilities in active markets; quoted prices for identical or similar 
assets and liabilities in markets that are not active; or other inputs that are observable or can 
he corroborated by observable market data. The Alliance's Level 2 investments are valued 
primarily using the market valuation approach. 
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NOTE Q-F AfR VALUE MEASUREMENT - Continued 

• Level 3 - Unobservable inputs that are supported by little or no market activity and are 
significant to the fair value of the assets or liabilities. Level 3 includes values determined 
using pricing models, discounted cash flow methodologies, or similar techniques reflecting 
the Alliance's own assumptions. 

In instances where the determination of the fair value hierarchy measurement is based on inputs from 
different levels of the fair value hierarchy~ the level in the fair value hierarchy within which the entire 
fair value measurement falls is based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value 
measurement in its entirety. The Alliance's assessment of the significance of a particular input to the 
fair value measurement in its entirety requires judgment and considers factors specific to the asset or 
liability. 

The following table sets forth, by level within the fair value hierarchy, the financial assets and 
liabilities recorded at fair value on a recurring basis and long-term debt as disclosed at fair value as 
ofJune 30, 2013 and 2012: 

Total Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 

June 30, 2013 
Cash. cash equivalents and money market funds $ 66,075 $ 66,075 $ - $ 
U.S. Government securities 25,905 25,905 
U.S. Agency securities 45,997 45,997 
Corporate and foreign bonds 179,880 179,880 
Municipal obligations 17,749 17,749 
Preferred and asset backed securities 3,491 3,491 
U.S. equity securities 10,944 10,944 
Mutual funds 186,028 125,479 60,548 
Other 37,353 37,353 

Total assets $ 573,422 $ 274,400 $ 261,668 $ 37,353 

Fair value of derivative agreements - Note D $ (8,18Sl $ - $ - $ ~8,185i 

Fair value of long-term debt $ ~1,167,846l $ - $ - $ (1,167,846) 
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NOTE Q--FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENT-Continued 

Total 

June 30, 2012 
Cash, cash equivalents and money market funds $ 85,017 $ 
U.S. Government securities 15,693 
U.S. Agency securities 62,437 
Corporate and foreign bonds 52,581 
Municipal obligations 961 
Preferred and asset backed securities 11,183 
U.S. equity securities 28,344 
Mutual funds 141,968 

Other 34,880 

Total assets $ 433,064 $ 

Fair value of derivative agreements - Note D $ {19,38Q $ 

Fair value of long-tenn debt $ p,150,201) $ 

Level 1 Level 2 Level3 

85,017 $ - $ 
15,693 
62,437 

52,581 
961 

11,183 
28,344 
97,600 44,368 

34,880 

289,091 $ 109,093 $ 34,880 

- $ - $ (19,381) 

- $ - $ ~l.150,20Q 

The valuation of the Alliance's derivative agreements is determined using market valuation 
techniques, including discounted cash flow analysis on the expected cash flows of each agreement. 
This analysis reflects the contractual terms of the agreement, including the period to maturity, and 
uses certain observable market-based inputs. The fair values of interest rate agreements are 
determined by netting the discounted future fixed cash payments (or receipts) and the discounted 
expected variable cash receipts (or payments). The variable cash receipts (or payments) are based on 
the expectation of future interest rates and the underlying notional amount. The Alliance also 
incorporates credit valuation adjustments (CV As) to appropriately reflect both its own 
nonperformance or credit risk and the respective counterparty' s nonperformance or credit risk in the 
fair value measurements. The CV A on the Alliance's interest rate swap agreements at June 30, 2013 
and 2012 resulted in a decrease in the fair value of the related liability of $3,080 and $5,726, 
respectively. 

A certain portion of the inputs used to value its interest rate swap agreements, including the forward 
interest rate curves and market perceptions of the Alliance's credit risk used in the CV As, are 
unobservable inputs available to a market participant. As a result, the Alliance has determined that 
the interest rate swap valuations are classified in Level 3 of the fair value hierarchy. 

The following tables provide a summary of changes in the fair value of the Alliance's Level 3 
financial assets and liabilities during the fiscal years ended June 30, 2013 and 2012: 
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NOTE Q--F AIR VALUE MEASUREMENT - Continued 

Jmy1,2011 
Total unrealized/realized gains in the Perfonnance Indicator, net 
Net investment income 
Purchases 
Settlements 
Distributions 

June30,20U 

Total unrealized/realized gains in the Perfonnance Indicator. net 
Net investment income 
Purchases 
Settlements 
Distributions 

June 30, 2013 

There were no changes in valuation techniques in 2013 or 2012. 

Trading 
Securities 

$ 32,718 
1,466 
1,221 

5~107 

(5,632} 

34,880 

1,614 

1,360 
807 

~l,308! 

$ 37,353 

NOTE R--OPERATING EXPENSES BY FUNCTIONAL CLASSIFICATION 

Derivatives~ 

Net 

$ (110,732) 
(6,198) 

515 

97,034 

(19,381) 

457 

399 

10,340 

$ (8,185} 

The Alliance does not present expense information by functional classification because its resources 
and activities are primarily related to providing healthcare services. Further, since the Alliance 
receives substantially all of its resources from providing healthcare services in a manner similar to 
business enterprises, other indicators contained in these consolidated financial statements are 
considered important in evaluating how well management has discharged their stewardship 
responsibilities. 

NOTE S--SUBSEQUENT EVENTS 

On March 28, 2013, the Alliance executed an agreement to acquire Unicoi County Memorial 
Hospital (UC:MH), a 48-bed acute care hospital located in Erwin, Tennessee. UCMH has 
approximately 250 employees and offers emergency, surgical, and home health services. Nursing 
home services a.re provided in a 46 licensed bed long term care facility. The Alliance will fund the 
acquisition from cash flow and intends to construct a new acute care hospital in Erwin, Tennessee. 
After consideration of the revenues and expenses expected from operation of the facility, 
management of the Alliance does not expect this acquisition to have a material effect on the 
Alliance. The Tennessee attorney general's office is expected to approve the transaction and the 
Alliance anticipates that Unicoi County Memorial Hospital will become a member of Mountain 
States Health Alliance on or around November 1, 2013. 
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NOTE S--SUBSEQUENT EVENTS - Continued 

In July2013, the Alliance issued $16,235 (Series 2013A) tax-exempt variable rate Hospital Revenue 
Bonds and $99,680 (Series 2013B) variable rate Taxable Hospital Refunding Revenue Bonds 
through The Health and Educational Facilities Board of the City of Johnson City, Tennessee. The 
proceeds from the Series 2013A Bonds will be used to finance or refinance capital improvements 
and equipment acquisitions and pay issuance costs related to these Bonds. The proceeds from the 
Series 2013B Bonds will be used to refund $97 ,915 of the Series 2007B-2 Bonds and to pay issuance . 
costs associated with these Bonds. Contemporaneously with the issuance of the Series 2013A and 
Series 2013B Bonds, the Alliance refunded the Series 2008A, Series 2008B, Series 201 lC, Series 
201 ID, Series 2012B and Series 2012C through private placements with financial institutions. 

At June 30, 2013 and 2012, the Alliance owned membership units in Premier, Inc. Subsequent to 
yearend Premier, as part of a reorganization, converted to a publically traded entity. As part of its 
reorganization, certain of the Alliance's membership units were redeemed for approximately $3,000 
and a gain was recognized on the sale of these units. Unredeemed units continue to be held by the 
Alliance and may be effectively exchanged for Class A common stock of Premier ratably over a 
seven year period. The unredeemed membership units may be exchanged for up to 723 thousand 
Class A shares. 
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MOUNTAIN STATES HEALTH ALLIANCE 

Consolidating Balance Sheet 
(Dollars in Thoustuuls) 

June 30, 2013 
Blwllhfge Ollil!f' Total 

M11i!lkid Obligated Group Ohligafetl Oi/fd MauJtlahrSfsk:.r 
Mtmtlg0ftl!1JJ* M~ l!Jimimtfwru Gro!!J!. 81ttitiu l'ro/Jmia EIJmimrtioM Tot Ill 

ASSETS 

CURRENT ASSETS 
Cash and caslJ equivalent.a 659 48,607 $ 49,266 25,137 $ 499 - $ 74,90:2 
Current pimlon of in~ 20,31!7 20,387 (1) 20,3ll6 
PBlim:rt zux:ounl!! m>1>iVlilbk, less estim.md allowilnoe for 

tme01leclible ar:cormti 6,928 128,703 135,636 23,551 164,187 
Othor recmvuhlfd, net 649 20,580 21,229 12,862 377 (1,000) 33,4-0ll 
.lnvml!orl .. .andJJf'OP'lidCXJICIUI .. 605 23,068 23,673 7,333 61 31,073 

TOTAL CURR.ENT ASSETS 8,841 241,350 250,191 73,882 943 (1,000) 324,016 

INVESTMENf'S, kM llJl1!lUlllli required 
to meet !;ll!TMt obllgiaions 19,735 416,147 435,882 110,109 55,361 601,352 

EQUTIY IN AFFILIATES 146,2&4 333,016 (161,250) 318,120 (318,120) 

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUJPMENT, net 18,743 614,210 632,953 197,192 S4,14ll 8&4,293 

OTHER ASSETS 
Goodwill 7,575 1#,708 1S2,283 2,108 154,391 
Net deferred finllnciog, acquiaition coots and 

o!h..-~hlttgios 270 26,800 Tl,070 86{) sso 211,480 
Other Bll9C!:s 9,663 28,193 37,856 6,126 2~62 46,54{ 

TOTAL OnreR ASSETS 17508 199701 217,209 9,094 3112 229,415 

211,111 1,804,494 ~161~0l s l,8S4,3S5 390),Tl 113,564 ~319,120) $ ;039!076 

• M•:nag.,menl ~ Orpnlzation only 

See note to supplemental schedules. 44 



MOUNTAIN STATES HEALTH ALLIANCE 

Consolidating Balance Sheet - Continued 
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2013 

()hllguJd Other MoU11toill:SWes 
Bl~ G'r<>!ll! Erititk8 Prof!.t!l1ia ElintlnlrtWns Total 

LIABIIJTIES AND 'N"ET ASSETS 

CURRENT l.IABJI,fllf.:S 
Accmed interest payable 46 19,622 • $ 19.~8 38 s 19,706 
Current portion oflong-lenn debt and capital lease 

obliglltions 13 31,422 31,435 2,982 34,417 
Accollllt!I ~le and aocrued cxpc!lK<> S,543 74,934 !l0,477 12,902 923 94,302 
Accrued salariCll, oompensated abliien~ and 

amounts withheld 3,836 44,713 48,549 15,116 63,665 
Payables tD (=Mibles from) affillalio11, net 16,697 2,194- l&,8!11 7,738 (26,629) 
Eslimallild amounts due 10 third-party .!J"YC'l!, ~ 2S,270 25,970 805 2.6,77'5 

TOTAL CURRENTUABILITJES 26,135 198,855 224,990 39,581 (25,706) 23l!,86S 

OTHER LlABIIJTIES 
Lang-ierm debt and capital lease obligati<>nll, less 

CUll'el'ltportion 13,663 l,036,740 1,0.50,403 4-0,945 (l,000) 1,090,348 
EsUnmted fair value of derivatives 8,2W S,220 (35) ll,185 
Deferred revenue 2,130 2,130 86 2,216 
EsUnmted professional &hility eelf-inmmmre 2,576 '5,198 7,774 984 8,758 
OOer long-term liahilitioo 7.487 Hl,058 17,S4S 176 17721 

TOTAL LIABILITIES 49,861 1,261,201 1,311,062 81,772 (25,741) (l,000) 1,365,093 

NET ASSETS 

Unreetrkted net~ 
Mourrta.in States lieA!th Alliance 161,250 490,414 (161,250) 490,414 171,9-01 139,305 (311,206) 490,414 
Nonoontrolling inlttmlti in subsidiaries 39923 39,923 12.3,945 s 746 169614 

TOTAL UNRESTRICTED NET ASSETS 161,250 530,337 (161,250) 530,337 295,846 139,30S (305,460) 660,02ll 

Tempornrl!y :tcmicted net asset& 

MoWIWn States lli!alili AlJi£nce 12,776 12,776 12,531 (12,531) 12,776 
Noru:ootrolling interem in subsidiaries S3 53 1 2 52 

TOTAL TEMPO.RARIL Y 
RESTRICTED NET ASSETS 12,829 12,829 12,532 (12,533) 12,828 

Pem!anently restricted Mt im:et& 127 127 127 !12!} 127 
TOTAL NET ASSETS 161~0 543,293 ~161,250} 543,293 308205 139,305 pl8,12l>l 672,983 

$ 211,111 1,804,494 {161.25~ $ 1,854,355 39-0,277 113,564 ~19,120~ $ 2,039~Q?§.. 

"Managnmont Services ()rpnizlltiOll only. 
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Consolidating Stat.ement of Operations 
(Dollars in Thousandr) 

Year Ended June 30, 2013 

Revenue, gains and support: 
Patient 5"l'Vice revenue, net of eo!ltractu!!l 

elloWl!l'.lCCS and diioounlll 
ProvWon for 00!. debts 
Net pafumt service mren~ 
Premiumrcvctme 
Net investment gain 
Net deriV!ltm gain 
Othet' 1'W60'.l<>, gnbit""" support 
F..quity in net gtdn {!OM) of llffili.&tes 

TOTAL REVBNl'.JE, GAJNS AND SUPPORT 

Expcnsca: 
s.W.oo end WllgM 

Physician wariC!l< mu1 wages 
ConlrDctlnlior 
Employoc bcnefita 
Fees 
SuppliC:I 
'Utilliies 
Medlc::a!Com 
Other 
Deprcoiution 
lllnor!i2lltion 
Jntmeotend~ 

TOTAL EXPENSES 
EXCESS OF REVENUE, GAINS AND 

SUPl'ORT OVER EXPENSES AND LOSSES 

•Mimagement Si:tViC(IS Organlmion only. 

See note to supplemental schedules. 

Blwl!lifge Otllu 
Mdk:tt.l Obligotd6ro1q1 

MRJMge!!e:wi • M...,,be,, EJ/mfna:tJoR11 

60,981 $ 800,370 $ {2,002) $ 
(5,851) {84,SO!) 
55,130 715,862 (2,002) 

2,029 27,241 
S,80l 

47,477 46,942 (36,~) 
3,380 731 {4,151) 

108,016 796,579 (42,819) 

23,'l:/4 271,876 
S2,48Z 1,354 

1,169 1,505 
8,493 56,307 (2,067) 
4/iJ97 114,967 (36,00S) 
2,989 m,m 

604 1.2,172 

8,981 48,958 {596) 
l,82ll SS,199 

34 2,119 
(986) 42,213 

103,865 742,915 (38,668) 

4,151 $ 53,664 _{4,IS_!LS 

Tw.I 
Ob/lgtJkll Odtu M.olUlhlhr Stam 

GNt11f Entltks Properlii!t Hlinrf11atioR¥ TMlf 

859,349 $ 185,8% $ - $ - $ 1,()45,245 
(90,359} (?2,138) (112,497} 
768,990 163,758 932,748 

l,003 l,003 
'ZS,270 7.543 4,230 (63) 40,980 
5,803 133 1,182 7,l18 

57,753 86,929 8,384 (15,611) 71,455 
(4-0} 40 

861,776 259,366 13,796 (75,634) 1,059,304 

295,150 65,919 430 (5,909) 35S,590 
53,&36 70,45() (S0,028) 74,238 

2,674 1,545 (J,11) 3,942 
62,733 17,033 S1 (5,233) 74,S90 
83,959 28,619 692 (l,379} 105,1!91 

136,174 26,976 13 {208) 162,955 
12,776 3,065 1,019 (3) 16,857 

1,039 1,039 
51,343 25,324 4,118 (6,574) 8il,21l 
60,027 16,664 2,250 78,94! 
2,213 47 2,260 

41,227 684 1,355 (63) 43,203 
808,112 257,365 9,934 (75,674) 999,737 

53,664 2,001 3,862 4-0 $ 59,561 
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Consolidating Statement of Change,'i in Net Assets 
(Dollars in Thousands) 

Year Ended June 30, 2013 

UNRESTIUcrnD Nb"T ASSh'TS: 

~ol'=-QQ!ns •rul Bopport"""" 
~....ir ....... 

Pm.lonandnthordofinedbcaofitpkr.~ 
Neta.-mi.....dfrom~;u."'<!furU,., 

purd!= ofprop«ty, pion! and oquipimat 
DiolribWoo>w.......-olling~ 

Netw.t1"ll<ll!lm 

INCRFASE INUNRES'Ill!CTED 
NETASS!ITS 

'.!'F.M!'QllARIL Y ltE.~TIUCTl'.D NET A8SCTS: 

Bbze~ Otlle~em..,,H~ 
Medh# M~S- ~mg 

Mmuw""""" .. H...tth~ bl- E~ 

~.lSI $ 

4,151 

52,691 s 
(172) 

1,506 

1'.w.l 
ll!'ke M•""W..Sldd 
~ ~ e-... 

3,862 s 40 s 59,567 
4 (343) 

poO) 1,S06 
(49) 

00,!l()Ol 

(12,362) 60.6!11 

~u.ignml..,id~ 4,%9 {4,561) 4.9% 

Net....ia~ftmn=trlctlono -------~fl~4=l6)~--~~------=--......--~~~---~-='-=--------"?,"-'98;,.S_ (~,~~:~). 
JNCRBASE IN TEMPORARILY 

RllSTIUCTEDNl!f ASS!ml l,Ss:l (l,576) l,5SS 

'INCREASE IN TOTAL NET AsseTS 4,!Sl 55,S19 {13,93!) 62,236 

NETASSETS,BF..GlNNINGOFYF~R --~l~S7~,fJ'J9;;.;;._ __ ~#~7~,~~g---=:.:.=---=:"-'='"'--~-'-'----"-"""-"'"''-----';.::.:.:;:=--=~"'----1~3~~M~3"---P~>~"""''l8=~'-'6~10~~~47~ 
NETASSITTS,ENDGFYEAll .s ...... __.1.61~,250-..-...~-5-~~,31-7...;..~.....o;;..;&...._..._..:.:.;;~;;o..;....._.'"""";;.;.;....:;....~....;;.;;.......,_,;,~_..;;.;;;;;; ..... ..;.;;..,...;;.,,,,;.._,~1~39~)-~;...;$~g._1~~ll~~r..;:..$6-'12..9;,;;.;S3~ 
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MOUNTAIN STATES HEALTH ALLIANCE 

Note to Supplemental Schedules 

Year Ended June 30, 2013 

NOTE A--OBLIGA TED GROUP MEMBERS 

As described in Note F to the consolidated financial statements, the Alliance has granted a deed of 
trust on JCMC and SSH to secure the payment of the outst.anding bonds. The bonds are also secured 
by the Alliance's receivables, inventories and other assets as well as certain funds held under 
the documents pursuant to which the bonds were issued. In accordance with Article Six, Section 6.6 
of the Amended and Restated Master Trust Indenture between Mountain States Health Alliance and 
the Bank of New York Mellon Trust Company, NA as Master Trustee, those members pledged 
include Johnson City Medical Center Hospital, Indian Path Medical Center, Franklin Woods 
Community Hospital, Sycamore Shoals Hospital, Johnson County Community Hospital, Russell 
County Medical Center and Blue Ridge Medical Management Corporation (parent company only), 
collectively defined as the Obligated Group (Obligated Group). In 2012, NCH and SCCH (hospitals 
only) were admitted into the Obligated Group. 

The supplemental consolidating schedules include the accounts of the members of the Obligated 
Group after elimination of all significant intergroup accounts and transactions. Certain. other 
subsidiaries of the Alliance, Mountain States Properties, Inc. (MSP) and all other affiliates (Other 
Entities), are not pledged to secure the payment of the outstanding bonds as they are not part of the 
Obligated Group. These affiliates have been accounted for within the Obligated Group based upon 
the Alliance's original and subsequent investments, as adjusted for the Alliance's pro rata share of 
income or losses and any distributions, and are included as a part of equity in affiliates in the 
supplemental consolidating balance sheet. 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR>S REPORT 

To the Board of Directors of 
Mountain States Health Alliance: 

We have audited the accompanying consolidated fmancial statements of Mountain States Health 
AHiance and its subsidiaries (the Alliance)) which comprise the consolidated balance sheets as of 
June 30, 2014 and20l3, and the related consolidated statements of operations, changes in netassetsli 
an.d cash flows for the years then ended1 and the related notes to the consolidated financial 
statements. 

Managem.e.nt's Raponsibility for the J?immcial Statements 

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these consolidated financial 
statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of 
America; thi~ includes the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to 
the preparation and fair presentation of consolidated financial statements that are free from material 
misstatements, whether due to fraud or error~ 

A uditor'a Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated fmancial statements based on our 
audits. We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the 
United· States of America. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain 
reasonable- assw·ance about whether the consolidated financial statements are free from material 
misstatement. 

An audit involves perfonning procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures 
in the consolidated financial statements. The procedures. selected depend on the auditor's judgment., 
including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial 
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers 
internal control relevant to the Alliance's preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated 
financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but 
not for 1he purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Alliance's internal control. 
Accordingly~ we express no such opinion. An· audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of 
accounting policies used . and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by 
management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated financial statements. 

AiLANTA KANSAS CITY KNOXVltlE NASHVIUE 
1 

TAMPA BAY 



We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis 
for our audit opinion. 

Opinion 

In our opinion, the consolidated fmancial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material 
respects, the financial position ofMountain States Health Alliance and its subsidiaries as of June 30, 
2014 and 2013 ~ and the results of their operations, changes in net assets, and cash flows for the years 
then ended in accordance with accounting principles generaUy accepted in the United States of 
America. 

Other Matter 

Our audits were conducted for the purpose of fonning a.n opinion on the consolidated financial 
statements as a whole. The supplemental in.formation is presented forpmposes ofadditional analysis 
and is not a :required part of the consolidated financial statements, Such information is the 
responsibility ofmanagement and was derived from and relates directly to the underlying accounting 
and other records used to prepare the consolidated financial statements. The information has been 
subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit offhe consolidated financial statements and 
certain additional procedurest including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the 
underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the consolidated financial statements or to 
the c-0nso Iidated financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with 
auditing standards generally accepted in fue United States of America. In our opinion, the 
information is fairly stated in an material respects in relation to the consolidated financial statements 
as a 'Whole .. 

Knoxville, Tennessee 
October29, 2014 
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MOUNTAIN STATES HEALTH ALLIANCE 

Consolidtded Balance Sheets 
(DoUar5 in Thousands) 

ASSETS 

CURRENT ASSETS 
Cash an.d cash equivalents 
Current portion of investments 
Patient accounts receivable, less estimated allowances 

fonmcollectible accounts of $47~853 in 2014 and 
$49,449 in 2013 

Other receivables! net 
Inventories and prepaid expenses 

TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS 

lNVESTMENTS, less amounts required 
to meet current obligations 

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT, net 

OTI-IBR ASSETS 
Goodwill 
Net deferred financing, acquisition costs and 

other charges 
Other assets 

TOTAL OTHERASSETS 

See rwtes to consolidated financial statemefils. 

$ 

s 

June301 

2014 2013 

59,185 $ 74,902 
25,0.29 20~386 

161,318 l64~187 

45,502 33A68 
30,838 31,073 

321,872 324,016 

648,475 601,352 

881,429 884,293 

156,613 154,391 

25,841 28,480 
48,350 46,544 

230,804 229,415 

2,082,580 $ 2,039,076 
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MOUNTAIN STATES HEALTH ALLIANCE 

June30, 
2014 2013 

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS 

CURRENT LIABILITIES 
Accrued interest payable 18,648 $ 19,706 
Current portion of long-term debt and capital lease 

obligations 30,618 34A17 
Accounts payable and accrued expenses 87,126 94~302 
Accrued salaries, compensated absences and amounts 

withheld 72,181 63j665 
Estimated amounts due to third-party payers, net 10,463 26,715 

TOT AL CURRENT LIABILITIES 219,036 238,865 

OTHER LIABILITIES 
Long ... tenn debt and capital lease obligations, less 

current portion 1~075,069 1~090,348 

Estimated fair value of derivatives 10,603 8,185 
Estimated professional liability self .. insurance 8,957 8,758 
Other long-tenn liabilities 35,974 19,937 

TOT AL LIABILITIES 1,349,639 1)1366,093 

CO:MMITivIBI'v1TS AND CONTINGENCIES ... 
Notes D, F, G, and N 

NET ASSETS 
Unrestricted net assets 

Mountain States Health Alliance 541,979 490,414 
Noncontrolling interests in subsidiaries 178,547 169,614 

TOT AL UNRESTRICTED NET ASSETS 720,526 660,028 

Temporarily restricted net assets 
Mountain States Health Alliance 12~04 12~776 
Noncontrolling interests in subsidiaiies 84 52 

TOTAL TEMPORARILY 
RESTRICTED NET ASSETS 12,288 12,828 

Permanently restricted net assets 127 121 

TOTAL NET ASSETS 732,941 672,983 

$ 2,082,580 $ 2,039,076 

See nntes to consolidated fi:nanctal srarements. 4 



MOUNTAIN STATES HEALTH ALLIANCE 

Consolidated Statements of Operations 
(Dollars in Thousands) 

Revenue, gains and support: 
Patient service revenue, net of contractual allowances 

and discounts 
Provision for bad debts 

Net patient service revenue 
Premium revenue 
Net inves:tment gain 
Net derivative gain 
Other revenue!! gains and support 

TOTAL REVENUE, GAINS .AND SUPPORT 

Expenses and losses: 
Salaries and wages 
Physician salaries and wages 
Contract labor 
E~loyee benefits 
Fees 
Supplies 
Utilities 
Medical costs 
Other 
Loss on early extinguishment of debt w Note F 
Depreciation 
Amortization 
Interest and taxes 

TOTAL EXPENSES AND LOSSES 

EXCESS OF REVENUE, GAJNS AND SUPPORT 
OVER EXPENSES AND LOSSES 

See notes to cansulidatedfinancial statements, 

s 

$ 

Year Ended June 30, 
2014 2013 

1,050,426 $ l,045)245 
(122,642) (112,497} 

927,784 932,748 
10,683 1,003 
50,703 40\1980 

3,219 7,118 
62,457 77,455 

l,054,846 1,059~304 

340,589 355~590 
77,636 74,258 
4,282 3,942 

69,173 74,590 
115,606 105,891 
l.63,699 162,955 
17,052 16,857 
10,.292 1,039 
79,980 80,21 l 
4,622 

69,437 78,941 
1,742 2,260 

44,392 43,203 

998,502 999,737 

56,344 $ 59,567 



MOUNTAIN STATES HEALTH ALLIANCE 

Consolidated Statements of Changes in Nd Assets 
(DollfU's in Thousands) 

Year EndedJune 2014 

Mountain States Nonco!ftrolling 
Health Alliance lntere.m T.otal 

UNRESTRICTED NET ASSETS: 
Excess of Revenue, Gains and Support 

over Expenses and Losses S 48,058 $ 
194 

8,286 $ 56,344 
Pension and other defined benefit plan adjustments 
Net assets released from restrictions used for the 

purchase of property~ plant and equipment 
Nonoontrolling interest in acquired subsidiary 
Distributions to noncontrolling interests 

INCREASE lN UNRESTRICTED 
NET ASSETS 

TE:MPORARJL Y RESTRICTED N"ET ASSETS: 
Restricted grants and contributions 
Net as:sets released from restrictions 

INCREASE (DECREASE) IN TEMPORARILY 
RESTRICTED NET ASSETS 

INCREASE IN TOTAL NET ASSETS 

NET ASSETS, BEGINN1NG OF YEAR 

NET ASSETS,, END OF YEAR 

See notes to consolidated financial statements. 

194 388 

3,313 
914 914 

(461) (461) 

51,565 1,933 60,498 

4,693 88 4,781 
(5.265) (56) (S,321) 

~~~~-----.~~~~~~~~---''--~ 
32 (540) (572) 

50,993 8,965 59;958 

503,317 169,666 672,983 
~~~~~~~~~~~~~~-----

==================================== 178,631 s 732,941 $ 554~10 $ 
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MOUNTAIN STATES HEALTH .ALLIANCE 

Consolidated Statements of Changes in Net Assets .. Continued 
(Dollars in Thousands) 

}.,ear Ended June 30, 2013 

Mountain States 
Health Alfi(llfce 

UNRESTRICTED NET ASSETS: 
Excess of Revenue, Gains and Support 

over Expenses and Losses $ 52,692 
Pension and other defined benefit plan adjustments (172) 
Net assets released from restrictions used for the 

purchase of property~ plant and equipment 1,506 
Distributions to noncontrolling interests 

INCREASE 1N ~'RESTRICTED 
NET.ASSETS 54,026 

TEMPORARJL Y RESTRICTED NET ASSETS: 
Restricted grants and contributions 4,.969 
Net assets released from restrictions {3,.41~ 

INCREASE IN TETvlPORARILY 
RESTRICTED NET ASSETS 1,553 

INCREASE JN TOTAL NET ASSETS 55.579 

NET ASSETS, BEGINNING OF YEAR 4471'738 

NET ASSETS, END OF YEAR $ 503{'317 

See no!es to consolidated financial statements. 

Noncoldrolling 
Interests Total 

$ 6,875 $ 59,561 
(171) (343) 

1,506 
(49) {49) 

6,655 60,681 

21 4,990 
(19) {3,435) 

2 1,555 

6,651 62).36 

163~009 610,747 

$ 169,666 $ 672,983 
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MOUNTAIN STATES HEALTH ALLIANCE 

Consolidatt!d State.menu of C119h Flows 

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES: 
Increase in net assets 
Adjustments to reconcile increase in net assets to 

net cash pruvided by operating activities: 
Provision for depreciation and amortization 
Provision fot bad debts 
Loss on early extinguishment of debt 
Change in estimated fair value of derivatives 
Equity i.n net income of joint ventures, net 
Loss (gain) on disposal of assets 
Amounts received on interest rate swap settlements 
Gain on escrow restructuring 
Gain on swap settlement 
Capital Appreciation Bond ac-0retion and other 
Restricted contributions 
Pension and other defined benefit plan adjustments 
Increase (decrease) in cash due to change in: 

Patient accounts receivable 
Other receivables, net 
Inventories and prepaid expenses 
Trading securities 
Other assets 
Accrued interest payable 
Accounts payable and accrued expenses 
Accrued salaries) ~ompensated absences and 

amounts withheld 
Estimated amounts due to tfilrd .. party payers1 net 
Estimated professional liability self-insurance 
Other long-term liabilities 

Total adjustments 

NET CASH PROVIDED BY OPERATING ACTMTIES 

CASH F.LOWS FROM INVEST!NG ACTIVITIES: 
Purchases of property, plant and equipment 
Purchases of land held for expansion 
Acquisitions~ net of cash acquired 
Purchases of he1d-.to-maturity securities 
Net distribution :fromjoint ventures and uncon.solidated affiliates. 
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment 

NET CASH USED IN INVESTING ACTIVITIES 

See notes to consolidated financial statements. 

$ 

Year 30~ 
2014 2013 

59,958 $ 62~236 

71,789 81,786 
122,642 112.497 

4.622 
2,761 (457) 
(369) (636) 

(3,489) (l) 
(5,980) (6,661) 

(13,847) 
(3,020) 

2,629 3,910 
{4,781) (4,990) 

(388) 343 

(llS,380) (129)218) 
(11,880) (3,192) 

959 (2,263) 
(46,451) (17.845) 
(2,492) (l,073) 
(1,058) 1,181 
(6,666) (20,263) 

8,006 &,076 
(16~12) 4,757 

199 (586) 
16,425 556 
14,786 9,054 

74,744 71,290 

(63,851) (105,751) 
(573) (5~769) 

(4,256) 
(5~78) (8,722) 

661 732 
Z,858 335 

(71,139) (119,175) 



MOUNTAIN STA TES HEALTH ALLIANCE 

Co11.solidated Siat1mum.ts of Ca.fh Flows - Continued 
(Dollars in Thousands) 

J7ear Ended June 30,, 
2014 2013 

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES: 
Payments on long ... term debt and capital lease obligations, 

including deposits to escrow 
Payment of acquisition and financing costa 
Proceeds from issuance of long·-tenn debt and other 

rma.ncing arrangements 
Payment on termination of deri'1ative agreements 
Gain on escrow restructuring 
Net amounts received on interest rate swap settlements 
Restricted contributions received 

NET CASH PROVIDED BY (USED IN) 
FINANCING ACTMTIBS 

~~----------~~~ ............. ~ 

NET INCREASE (DECREASE} 1N CASH 
AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 

CASH AND CASHEQU1VALENTS~ beginning of year 
--~~---~~~~---~ 

CASH AND CASH EQUIV ALENTS.i end of year S ====================== 

SUPPLEMENTAL INFORMATION AND NON-CASH TRANSACTIONS: 

Cash pa.kl for interest $ 40,546 $ 

Cash paid for federal and state income taxes S 854 $ 

Construction related payables in accounts payable 
and ac~rued expenses s 8,604 $ 

Supplemental cash flow information regarding acquisitions - Note A: 
Assets acquired, net of cash S 12,715 $ 
Liabilities assumed (8,459) 

37,023 

616 

11,598 

Acquisitions, net of cash acquired S 4,156 · $ ======================= 
During the year ended June 30, 2014, the Alliance refinanced previously issued debt of $318,385. 

See notes ro consolidated financial statements. 9 



MOUNTAIN STATES HEALTH ALLIANCE 

Note,'J to Consolidated Financial Staiem.enttt 
(Dollars in, TJwusantb:) 

Yean Ended June 2014 and 2013 

NOIB A--ORGANIZATION AND OPERATIONS 

Mountain States Health Alliance (the Alliance) is a tax-exempt entity with operations primarily 
located in W ashlngton, Sullivan, Unicoi, and Carter counties of Tennessee and Smyth!! Wise, 
Dickenson, Russell and Washington counties of Virginia. The initial funds for the establishment of 
the Alliance in 1945 were provided by individuals and various institutions. 

The primary operations of th.e Alliance consist of eleven acute and specialty care hospitals; as 
follows: 

• Johnson City Medical Center (JCMC) .. licensed for 65 8 beds 
• Indian Path Medical Center (IPMC) .. licensed for 261 beds 
• Smyth Cowity Community Hospital (SCCH) .., licensed for 153 beds 
• Norton Community Hospital (NCH) - licensed for 129 beds 
• Sycamore Shoals Hospital (SSH) - licensed for 121 beds 
11 Johnston Memorial Hospital (JMH) - licensed for l J 6 beds 
• Franklin Woods Community Hospital (FWCH) .. licensed for 80 beds 
• Russell County Medical Center (RCMC) - licensed for 78 beds 
• Unicoi County Memorial Hospital (UCMH) - licensed for 48 beds 
• Dickenson CommWJity Hospital (DCH) - licensed for 25 beds 
• Johnson County Community Hospital (JCCH) - lice11sed for 2 beds 

The Alliance has a 50.1% interest in IlvfH. IMH is also the sole member of Abingdon Physician 
Partners (APP), a non-taxable corporation that owns and manages physician practices. 

The Alliance has a 50.1 % interest in NCH. NCH is also the sole member or shareholder ofDCH and 
Norton Community Physician Services, LLC (NCPS)~ a taxable corporation that consists of 
physician practices and a pharmacy and Community Horne Care (CHC), a taxable corporation that 
provides home medical equipment 

The AlHance has an 80% interest in SCCH. SCCH is the sole shareholder of Southwest Community 
Health Services, Inc. (SWCH), a taxable entity that operates a phannacy and provides other health 
services,. 

The activities and ac~ounts of JMH, NCH and SCCH are included in the accompanying consolidated 
financial statements. 

Effective. November 1, 2013, the Alliance acquired substantially all the assets~ and certain liabilities, 
of Unicoi County Memorial Hospital from Unicoi County, Tennessee. To effectuate the acquisition, 
the Alliance paid approximately $2,:500 and committed to construct a new facility within five years. 

10 



MOUNTAIN STATES HEAL TH ALLIANCE 

Notes tv Consolidated Financial Statttments - Continued 
(DfJllars in Tlunmmds) 

Years Ended June 30, 2014 and 2013 

The accounts and activities of UCMH since acquisition are included in the accompanying 
consoli<la.ted financial statements. 

The Alliance is the sole shareholder of Blue Ridge Medical Management Corporation (BRMNI), a 
for-profit entity that owns and manages physician practices and provides oilier healthcare services to 
patients in Tennessee and Virginia .. BR!vlM is either the sole shareholder, a significant shareholder, 
or member of the following consolidated organizations: 

.Mmmtain States Physician Group, Inc, (MSPG): A company that contracts with physicians to 
provide services to BRMM physician practices. 

Mountain States Properties, Inc. (MSPI): A company that owns and manages real estate 
(primarily medical office buildings) and provides rehabilitation and fitness services. 

Mediserve Medical Eq_uipment of Kingsport» Inc. (Mediserve): A company that provides durable 
medical equipment services. 

Kingsport Ambulatory Surgery Center (KASC) (db. a. Kingsport Day Surgery): A joint venture 
operating as an outpatient surgery center which performs procedures primarily in otolaryngo]ogy, 
orthopedics, ophthalmology, and general surgery. BruvtM has a 43% ownership of KASC and 
maintains control over KASC through a management agreement. The accounts and activities of 
KASC are included itt the accompanying consolidated financial statements. 

Emmaus Community Healthcare LLC (db.a. Piney Flats Urgent Care (PFUC)): A for.-profit 
entity that provides urgent care patient services. BRMM has a 75% ownership of PFUC. The 
accounts and activities of PFUC are included in the accompanying consolidated financial 
statements, 

~Mountain States Pharmacy (MSP ): A for .. profit company that owns and operates retail 
pharmacies. 

East Tennessee Ambulatory Surgery Center (ETASC): Effective January 1, 2014, BRM1vi 
acquired a controlling 66.1% ownership in ETASC and recognized approximately $2,244 of 
goodwill as a result of the transaction. The accounts and activities of ET ASC since acquisition 
are included in the accompanying consolidated financial statements. 

The Alliance is the primary beneficiary of the activities ofMo'Untain States Foundation, Inc. (MSF), 
a not ... for-profit. foundation formed to coordinate fundraising and development activities of the 
Alliance. The Alliance is also the beneficiary of the Mountain States Health Alliance Auxiliary 
{Auxiliary), a not .. for-profit organization formed to coordinate volunteer activities ofthe Alliance. 

I.I 



MOUNTAIN STATES HEALTH ALLIANCE 

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements .. Continued 
(Dollars in Thousands) 

Years Ended June 2014 and 2013 

The activities and accounts ofMSF and the Auxiliary are included in the accompanying consolidated 
financial statements. 

The Alliance is a 99.8% shareholder of Integrated Solutions Health Network, LLC (ISHN). The 
primary :function of ISHN is to establish, operate and administer a provider-sponsored health care 
delivery network. ISHN is the sole shareholder of the following subsidiaries: 

CrestPoint Health Insurance Company (CHIC): A for~profit insurance company licensed in the 
State of Tennessee which provides network access and administration and third-party 
administrator services. CHIC has a risk-based contract with the Center for Medicare & Medicaid 
Services (CMS) to provide or arrange for the provision of healthcare services to senior citizens 
who have Medicare Part A, Medicare Part B and Medicare Part D entitlements. 

AnewCare Collaborative (AnewCare): A for-profit acoountable care organization which 
participates in CMS' s Medicare Shared Savings Program. 

NOTE B--SIGNIFICANT ACCOlJNTING POLICIES 

Principles of Consolidation: The accompanying consolidated financial statements include the 
accounts of the Alliance and its consolidated subsidiaries after elimination of all significant 
intercompany accounts and transactions. 

Noncontrolling Interests in Subsidiaries: The Alliance's accompanying consolidated financial 
statements include all assets, liabilities, revenues, expenses, and changes in net assets, including 
amounts attributable to the noncontrolling interests. Noncon1rolling interests represent the portion of 
equity (net assets) in a subsidiary not attributable, directly or indirectly, to the Alliance. F or1he years 
ending June 30, 2014 and 2013, the Alliance attributed an Excess ofRevenue, Gains and Support 
over Expenses and Losses of$8,286 and $6,875, respectively, to 1he noncontrolling interests in JMH, 
NCH, SCCH, KASC, PFUC, ETASC and ISHN based on the noncontrolling interests' respective 
ownership percentage. 

Use of Estimates: The preparation of the consolidated financial statements in conformity with 
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America requires management to 
make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and 
disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities as of the date of the consolidated financial statements. 
Estimates also affect the reported amounts of revenue and expenses during the reporting period. 
Actual results could differ from these estimates. 

Cash and Cash Equivalents: Cash and cash equivalents include all highly liquid investments with a 
maturity of three months or less when purchased. Cash and cash equivalents designated as assets 
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MOUNTAIN STATES HEALTH ALLIANCE 

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statemenis .. Continued 
(Dollars in Thousands) 

Years Ended June JO, 2014 and 2011 

limited as to use or uninvested amounts included in investment portfolios are not. included as cash 
and cash equivalents. 

Investments; Investments include trading securities and held-to-maturity securities. Within the 
trading securities portfolio, all debt securities and marketable equity securities with readily 
determinable fai.r values are re_ported at fa.irvalue based on quoted market prices. Investments 
without readily deterrninab1e fair values are reported at estimated fair market value pursuant to The 
Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) Accounting Standards Codification (ASC) 825, 
Financial Instroments. Realized gains and losses are computed using the specific identification 
method for cost determination. Interest and dividend income is reported net of related investment 
fees. 

Investments which theAlliance has the positive intent and ability to hold to maturity are classified as 
held-to-.maturity and are stated at amortized cost On June 30, 2013~ the Alliance determined that it 
no longer intended to hold certain of its held-to .. maturity investment portfolios to maturity and 
reclassified investments with an amortized cost of $161,929 into the trading designation. As a result, 
the Alliance recognized net unrealized gains of approximately $8,255 in the accompanying 2013 
Consolidated Statement of Operations. The investments that remain designated as held~to ... maturity 
are limited as to use under a safekeeping agreement or are otherwise unavailable for disposition~ 

Management annually evaluates investments designated as .held-to-maturity and recognizes- any 
t'other-tharr-temporacy'1 losses as deductions from the Performance Indicator (as defined below). 
Managemen~s evaluation .considers the amount of decline in fair value" as well as the time period of 
any such decline. Management doos not believe any investment classified as heJd ... to.-maturity is 
other--than-.temporarily impaired at June 30, 2014. 

Investments in joint ventures are generally reported unde.r the equity method of accounting~ which 
approximates the Allian~' s equity in the underlying net bookvalue, unless the ownership structure 
requires consolidation. ·otherassets include investments in joint ventures of$1,364 and $2,057 at 
June 30, 2014 and2013,respectively. 

Inventories; Inventories> consisting primarily of medical supplies, are stated at the lower of cost or 
market with cost detem1ined by first-in, first-out method. 

Property, Plant and.Equipment: Property~ plant and equipment is stated on the basis of cost, or if 
donated, at the fair value at the date of gift. Generallyt depreciation is computed by the strai.ght-line 
method over the estimated useful life of the asset. During 2014, the Alliance changed itsestimates 
of depreciable lives for certain classes ofproperty and equipment. Management evaluated the useful 
lives of certain classes of equipment and determined that, based on information available to them, the 
previously assigned lives were not consistent with actual usage of such assets, As a result, 
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MOUNTAIN STATES HEALTH ALLIANCE 

Notes ta Consolidated Fina1u:wl Statements ... Continued 
(Dollar$ in Tlumsands) 

Years Ended .lune 2014 and 2013 

management extended the depreciable lives of certain classes of property and equipment to better 
reflect the actual usage pattern. The impact of this change in estimated useful lives was to decrease 
depreciation expense in the Consolidated Statement of Operations for the year ended J Wle 3 0, 2014 
by approximately $7,500. 

Equipment held under capital lease obligations is amortized under the straight-line method over tbe 
shorter of the lease tenn or estimated useful life. Amortization of buildings and equipment held 
under capital leases is shown as a part of depreciation expense and accumulated depreciation in the 
accompanying consolidated :financial statements. Renewals and bettennents are capitalized and 
depreciated. over their useful life, whereas costs of maintenance and repairs are ex~nsed as incurred. 

Interest costs incurred on borrowed funds during the period of construction of capital assets is 
capitalized as·a component of the cost of acquiring those assets. The amount capitalized is net of 
investment earnings on assets limited as to use derived from bottowings designated for capital assets. 

The Alliance reviews cap it.al assets for indications of potential impairment when there are changes in 
circumstances related to a specific asset. If this review indicates that the carrying value of these 
assets may not be recoverable.! the AJHance estimates future cash flows from operations and the 
eventual disposition of such assets. If the sum of these undiscounted future cash flows is less than 
the cm:rying amount of the asset, a write-down to estimated fair value is recorded. The Alliance did 
not recognize any impairment losses during 2014 and 2013. 

Other assets include property held for resale and property held for expansion of $20, 793 and 
$20,220, respectively1 at June 30, 2014 and 2013. Property beld for resale and property held for 
expansion primarily represent land contributed to, or purchased by, the Alliance plus costs :incurred 
to develop the infrastructure of such land. Management annually evaluates its investment and 
records non-temporary declines in value when it is determined the ultimate net realizable value is 
less than the recorded amount No such declines were identified in 2014 and 2013. 

Goodwill: Goodwill represents the difference bet-ween the acquisition cost of assets and the 
estimated fair value of net tangible and any separately identified intangible assets. Goodwill is 
evaluated for impairment at least annua1Jy. The reporting unit for evaluation of the majority of the 
Alliance's goodwill is the aggregate acute-care operations. Management perfonned ml evaluation of 
goodwill for impairment considering qualitative and quantitative factors and does not believe the 
goodwill associated withanyofits reporting units is impaired as ofJune30, 2014, Management's 
estimates utilized in the evaluation contain significant estimates and it is reasonably possible that 
such estimates oould change in the near term. 

Deferred Financing, Acquisition Costs and Other Charges: Other assets include deferred financing, 
acquisition costs and other charges of $25,841 and $28,480 at June 30, 2014 and 2013, respectively. 
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MOUNTAIN STATES HEALTH ALLIANCE 

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements"" Continued 
(Dollars in Thousands) 

Years Ended J1me 30, 2014 and 2013 

Deferred :financing costs are amortized over the life of the respective bond issue principally using the 
average bonds outstanding method. 

Prior to 2009, the Alliance routinely financed interest rate swap and other derivative transaction 
issuance costs through modification of future settlement tenns. As such, the unamortized issuance 
costs of these derivatives are included as deferred financing costs .in the accompanying Consolidated 
Balance Sheets and are being amortized over the tenn of the respective derivative instrument The 
unpaid issuance costs are included as a part of the estimated fair value of derivatives in the 
accompanying Consolidated Balance Sheets. Beginning in 2009, interest rate swap and derivative 
transaction issuance costs were expensed as incurred. 

Derivative Financial Instruments: The Alliance is a party to various interest rate swaps. These 
financial instruments are not designated as hedges and have been presented at estimated fair market 
value in the accompanying Consolidated Balance Sheets as either current or long-term liabilities, 
based upon the remaining term of the instrument.. Changes in the estimated fair value of these 
derivatives are included in the Consolidated Statements of Operations as part of net derivative gain. 

Estimated Professional Liabilit,y Self-Insurance and Other Long-Term Liabilities: Self-insurance 
liabilities include estimated reserves for reported and unreported professional liability claims and are 
recorded at the estimated net present value of such claims. Other long-tern1 liabilities. include 
contributions payable and obligations under de.fened compensation ammge.ments, a defined benefit 
pension plan, a post.retirement employee benefit plan as well as other liabilities which management 
estimates are not payable within one year. 

Net Patient Service Revenue/Receivables; Net patient service revenue is reported on the accrual 
basis in the period in which services .are provided at the estimated net realizable amounts; including 
estimated retroactive adjustn1ents under reimbursement agreement~ with third-party payers. 
Retroactive adjustments are accrued on an estimated basis in the period the related sel'Vices are 
rendered and adjusted in future periods as final settlements are determined. The AIUance ~ s revenue 
recognition policies related to self•pay and other types of payers emphasize revenue recognition only 
when collections are reasonably assured. 

Patient accounts receivable are reported net of both an estimated allowance for micollectib}e 
accounts and an estimated allowance for contractual adjustments. The contractual allowance 
represents the difference between established billing rates and estimated reimbursement from 
Medicare, Medicaid, TennCare andotherthird-partypayment programs. Current operations include 
a provision for bad debts in the Consolidated Statements of Operations estimated based. upon the age 
of the patient accounts receivable, historical writeoffs and recoveries and any unusual circumstances 
(such as local, regional or national economic conditions) which affect the coUectibility of 
receivables, including managemenf s assumptions about conditions it expects to exist and courses of 
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MOUNTAIN STATES HEALTH ALLIANCE 

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements "' Continued 
(Dollars in Thousa:nds) 

Years Ended June 2014 and 2013 

action it expects to take. The primary uncertainty Hes with uninsured patient receivables and 
deductibles, co-payments or other amounts due from individual patients. Additions to the allov,rance 
for uncollectible accounts result from the provision for bad debts. Patient accounts vvritten off as 
uncollectible are deducted from the allowance for uncollectible accounts. 

For uninsured patients th.at do not qualify for charity care, the Alliance recognizes· revenue on the 
basis of discounted rates under the Alliance's self~pay patient policy. Under the policy, a patient who 
has no insurance and is ineligible for any govemtnent assistance program has his or her bm reduced 
to the amount which generally would be billed to a c-0mmercially insured patient. The AIHance's 
policy does not require coHateral or other security for patient accounts receivable. The Alliance 
routinely accepts assignment of: or is othenvise entitled t.o receivet patient benefits payable under 
health insurance programs~ plans or policies. 

Charity Care: The Alliance accepts all patients regardless of their ability to pay; A patient is 
classified as a charity patient by reference to certain established policies of the Alliance and various 
guidelines outlined by the Federal Government ·These policies defme charity as those services for 
which no payment is anticipated andi as suchi charges at established rates are not included in net 
patient service revenue. Charges forgone, based on established rates, totaled approximately 
$109 ,5 50 and $103, 084 during 2014 and 2013, respectively. The estimated direct and indirect cost 
of providing these services totaled approximately $23~733 and $24,709 in 2014 and 2013, 
respectively. Such costs are determined using a ratio of cost to charges analysis with indirect cost 
allocated~ 

fu addition to the charity care services, the Alliance provides a number of other services to benefit 
the poor for which little or no payment is received. Medicare; Medicaid, TennCare and State 
indigent programs do not cover the full cost of providing care to beneficiaries of those programs. 
The Alliance also provides services to the community at large for which it receives little or no 
paymenL 

Excess of Revenue, Gains and Support Over Expenses and Losses: The Consolidated Statements of 
Operations and the Consolidated Statements of Changes in NetAssets includes the caption Excess of 
Revenue, Gains and Support Over Expenses and Losses (the Performance Indicator). Changes in 
unrestricted ne;t assets which are excluded from the Perfonmmce Indicator, consistent with industry 
practice, include contributions of long-lived assets or amounts restricted to the purchase, of long­
Jived assets, certain pension and related adjustments, and transactions \vith noncontrolling interests. 

lncQme Taxes: The Alliance is classified as an organization exempt from income taxes under 
Section 50l(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code. As such, no provision for income taxes has been 
made in the accompanying consolidated fmancial statements for the Alliance and its tax-exempt 
subsidi&-ies. The Alliance's taxable subsidiaries are discussed in Note L The Alliance has no 
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Years Ended June 30, 2014 and 2013 

significant Un.certain tax positions at June 30, 2014 and 2013. At June 3 ot 2014, tax returns for 2010 
through 2013 are subject to examination by the Inteinal Revenue Service. 

Temporari(v and Permanently Restricted Net M-sets: Temporarily restricted net assets are those 
whose use has been limited by donors to a specific time period or purpose. When a donor or time 
restriction expires; that is, when a stipulated time restriction ends or purpose restriction is fulfilled, 
temporarily restricted net assets are reclassified as unrestricted net assets a.nd reported in the 
Co.nsolidated Statements of Operations and Changes in Net Assets as net assets released from 
restrictions. The Alliance1s policy is to net contribution and grant revenues againstrelated expen.ses 
and present such amounts as a part of other revenue~ gains and support in the Consolidated 
Statements of Operations. Permanently restricted net assets have been restricted by donors to be 
maintained by·the Alliance in perpetuity. 

Premium Revenue: Premiums earned include premiums from individuals and Medicare. Medicare 
revenue includes .Premiums based on predetermined prepaid rates under Medicare risk contracts. 
Premiums are recognized in the month in which the members are entitled to health care services. 
Premiums collected in. advance are deferred and recorded as unearned premium revenue. Premium 
deficiency losses are recognized when it is probable that expected future claim expenses will exceed 
future premiums on existing contracts. CHIC evaluated the need for a premium deficiency reserve 
and recorded an estimated reserve of $2t000 at June 30, 2014~ 

Medicare Shared Savings Program (MSSP): AnewCare, an Accountable Care Organization (ACO), 
participates in CMS' s Medicare Shared Savings Program which is designed t.o facilitate coordination 
and· cooperation among providers. to improve the quality of care for Medicare be11eficiaries and 
reduce unnecessary costs. ACOs participating in the program are assigned beneficiaries by CMS and 
are entitled to share in the savings if they are able to lower growth in Medicare Parts A and B fee-for,.. 
service costs while meeting performance standards on quality of care. The program is based on 
performance periods, the f:rrst of which specific to AnewCare was the period of July 2012 to 
December 2013. Utilizing statistical data and the methodology employed by CMS. AnewCare 
estimated and recognized $2,644 of net shared savings through June 30i 2013. Upon completion of 
the initial performance period~ total net shared savings of $4,745 were recognized. For the second 
perfonnance period, AnewCare has estimated $1,625 of net shared savings as of June 301 2014. 
Variability is inherent in the estimation methodology and due to uncertainties in. the estimation.; it is 
probable that management's estitnates of shared savings, if any: will change bytbe end of the second 
performance period, and such change could be significant. 

Electronic Health Record (EHR) Incentives: The American Recovery and Reinvestment Act of 2009 
(ARRA) provides for incentive payments under the Medicare and Medicaid programs for certain 
hospitals and physician practices that demonstrate meaningful use of certified EHR technology. The 
incentive payments are calculated based upon estimated discharges, charity care and other input data 
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and are recorded upon the AllianceJs attainment of program and attestation criteria. The incentive 
payments are subject to regulatory audit. During the years ending June 30, 2014 and 2013) the 
Alliance recognized EHR incentive revenues of $18,269 and $22A74, respectively. EHR incentive 
revenues are included in other revenue, gains and support in the accompanying Consolidated 
Statements of Operations. The Alliance incurs both capital expenditures and operating e:xpenses in 
connection with the implementation of its various EHR initiatives. The amount and timing of these 
expenditures does not directly correlate with the timing of the Alliance's receipt or recognition of the 
EHR incentive payments. 

Medical Costs,* The cost of beaJth care services is recognized in the period in which services are 
provided~ Medical costs include an estimate of the cost of services provided to cmc members by 
third-party providers, which have been incurred but not reported to CHIC. The estimate for incurred 
but not reported claims is based on actuarial projections of costs using historical paid claims and 
industry· data. Due to uncertainties in the estimation~ it is at least reasonably possible that 
managemenCs estimates of incurred but not reported claims will cl1ange in 2015, although the 
amount of the change cannot be estimated. 

Subsequent Events: The Alliance evaluated all events or transactions that occurred after June 30, 
2014) through October 29, 2014, the date the consolidated financial statements were available to be 
issued. During this period management did not note any material recognizable subsequent events 
that required recognition or disclosure in the June 30, 2014 consolidated :financial statements, other 
than as discussed in Note Q. 

Reclassifications: Certain 2013 amounts have been reclassified to confom1 with the 2014 
presentation in the accompanying consolidated financial statements. 

NOTE c .. -INVESTMENTS 

Assets limited as to use are summarized by designation or restriction as follows at June 30: 

2014 2013 
Designated or restricted: 

Under safekeeping agreements $ 8,220 $ 8,254 
By Board to satisfy regulatory requirements 6,759 2)096 
Under bond indenture agreements: 

For debt service and interest payments 55,123 60,823 
For capital acquisitions 16,127 36,989 

86,229 108,162 
Less: amount required to meet current obligations (25}029) (20,386) 

$ 61,200 $ 87,776 
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Assets limited as to use consist of the following at June 30: 

Cash, cash equivalents and money market funds 
U.S. Government securities 
U.S. Agency securities 
Corporate and foreign bonds 
Mumcipal obligations 

Trading securities consist of the following at June 30: 

Cash, cash equivalents and money market funds 
U.S. Government securities 
U.S. Agency securities 
Corporate and foreign bonds 
Municipal obligations 
Preferred and asset backed securities 
U.S. equity securities 
Mutual fimds 
Alternative investments 

$ 

$. 

$ 

2014 

54,437 
8,683 

19,835 
2,354 

920 
86,229 

2014 

47~126 
30,721 
39~084 
96,749 
21,409 

3,497 
1)868 

253)301 
54,761 

548,516 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

2013 

57,190 
ll,164 
30,407 
7,530 
1,871 

108,162 

2013 

9,488 
18,481 
19,620 

172,350 
17,749 
3)491 

10,944 
186~028 
37,353 

475,504 

Held-to-maturity securities (other than assets limited as to use) are carried at amortized cost and 
consist of the foUowing at June 30: 

Cash~ cash equivalents and money market funds 
Corporate and foreign bonds 
Mll100ipal obligations 

$ 

2014 

220 $ 
35)131 

3,4-08 

38,759 $ 

2013 

75 
33,060 
4,937 

Held .. to~maturity securities had gross unrealized gains and losses of $206 and $456, respectively, at 
June 30, 2014 and $15 and $1,421, respectively, at June 30; 2013. At June 30, 2014, the Alliance 
held securities within the held-to-maturity portfolio with a fair value and unrealized loss of $13,513 
and $456, respectively; which had been at an unrealized loss position for over one year. At June 30; 
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2013} the Alliance held no securities within the heJd .. to·maturity portfolio which had been in an 
unrealized loss position for over one year. At June 30, 2014, the contractual maturities ofhe1d-to­
maturity securities were $17,625 due in one year or less, $5 ,411 due from one to five years and 
$15,723 due afte.r five years. 

The net investment gain is c-0mprised of the following for tbe years ending June 30: 

Interest and dividend income, net of fees 
Net realized gains on the sale of securities 
Change in net unrealized gains on securities 

2014 

$ 12,074 $ 
15,311 
23,318 

$ 50,703 $ 

2013 

13,881 
3,074 
24~025 

40,980 

The Alliance is a member of Premier Inc.' s (Premier) group purchasing organization and in 
connection with this membershipj the Alliance held a non-controlHng interest in Premier that was 
accounted for using the cost method of accounting. In October 2013, Premier completed an initial 
public offering (JPO) and a restructuring of the oompany. In connection with the restructuring~ the 
Alliance received 860,499 Class B Units and concurrently sold approximately 16% of the units back 
to Premier. The Alliance recognized a gain of approximately $3,500 on the sale, which is included 
within other revenue" gains and support in the 2014 Consolidated Statement of Operations. 

The Alliance has the ability to convert its remaining Class B units into cash or Premier1s Class A 
common stock over a seven year vesting period. The Alliance recorded an inves1ment in Premier 
relative to the estimated fair value of the remaining Class B units of approximately $14,713~ In 
addition,, as the vesting period is tangential to the Alliance's continued participation in the group 
purchasing contract, the Alliance recorded a. liability equivalent to the estimated fair value of the 
Class B units, which is included within other long .. terrn liabilities in the 2014 Consolidated Balance 
Sheet The liability is being amortized as a vendor incentive over the seven year vesting period. 
During 2014, the Alliance recognized· approximately $2,995 related to the first vesting period 
(Tranche l ), which is included within other revenue~ gains and support in the 2014 Consolidated 
Statement of Operations. 

NOTE D-DERJV ATIVE TRANSACTIONS 

The Alliance is a party to a number of derivative transactions. These derivatives have not been 
designated as hedges and are valued at estimated fair value in the accompanying Consolidated 
Balance Sheets. Management's primary objective in holding such derivatives is to introduce a 
variable rate component into its fixed rate debt structure. Under the tenns of these agreements, 
changes in the interest rate environment could have a significant effect on the Alliance. Net deferred 
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financing, acquisition, costs and other charges include $5,447 and $5 ,791 at June 30, 2014 and 2013, 
respectively, related to these swaps. 

The Alliance is subject to an enforceable master netting arrangement in the form of an ISDA 
agreement with Bank of America, Merrill Lynch. Under the terms of this agreement, offsetting of 
derivati\.-e contracts is permitted in the event of default of either party to the agreement The ISDA 
agreement requires that the Alliance post additional collateral for the derivatives' fair market value 
deficits above specified levels. As of June 30, 2014 and.2013, the Alliance was not required to post 
additional collateral. 

The following i.s a summary of the interest rate swap agreements at June 30, 2014 and 2013: 

Notlor1al Pfl.Y.~:. Esiimmed.Falr. 'Vttlue 
,,4.motmi Te1t1 Cou:~ R~ p~ 20U 1013 

S170.000 4/2006-4/2026 Bank of America, 1.07% 412013-4/2014 0.00% s ~.0119 ~ 3,~9.S 

:tvkniU Lyricll 1J4%5/20l4-4/2016 

$95,000 4/2006-4/2026 Bank of America, 1.08% 4/2013-412014 0.00% l,748 2,.205 
Merrill Lynch L14% S/2014-4/.2016 

$173,030 4/2006-412034 BankofAmmca,. U2%4/2013-4/20.14 0,0(}% (l,884) (710) 
Merrill Lynell 1..J 6% 5/2014-412016 

.$82.055 12/2007-712033 Bank of Ame.tica, (}7% USD-LIBOR- 0.312%+ (9,365) {9,322) 
Metrill !:.ynch BBA USD~SIFMA 

$50,000 212008-7/2038 B~ of America, 67% (USDMLIBOR~ USD~SIFMA (41210) (4ill8) 
Me.trill Lynch. BBA+0.15%) 

S2MOO 7/20fJ7-7!l.Ol S Bank of America, 1.05%+ 4.50% 63 35 
Merrill .Lynch USO.SIFMA 

{10.S59~ {8.115} 

$4,680 7/201M/201S First Tennessee Bank 0.004.4 USO.LIBOR_.,BBA (44.) {70) 
$ !10.6032 $ ,&.1ssi 

The netinvestment derivative gain is comprised of the following for the years ending June 30: 

2014 101 ... ~ 

Settlement income .and other $ 5,980 $ 6,661 
Change in estimated fair value (2,761) 457 

$ 3,219 $ 7,118 

These fair values are based on the estimated amount the Alliance would receive> or be required to 
pay, to enter into equivalent agreements at the valuation date and include an estimated credit value 

21 



MOUNTAINSTATESHEALTIIALLIANCE 

Notes to Consolidated Fi.mmcial StatemenJs"" Continued 
(Dollars in Thousands) 

Years Ended June 2014 and 2013 

adjustment. Due to the nature of these financial instruments; such estimates of fair value are subject 
to significant change in the near term. 

The Alliance was a party to a total return. swap which terminated in 2009. In 2013, the Alliance and 
oounterparty reached a settlement agreement. A gain of approximately $3,020 was recognized on the 
settlement, which is inc-luded within other revenue, gains and support in the accompanying 2013 
Consolidated Statement of Operations. 

NOTE E~~PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPl\IBNT 

Property, plant and equipment consist of the following at June 30: 

20J.t 2013 

Land $ 60,722 $ 60,180 
Buildings and leasehold improvements 760,853 718,489 
Property and improvements held for leasing 80,824 77,767 
Equipmentand infonnation technology infrastructure 700,748 664,469 
Buildings and equipment held under capital lease 340 671 

l,603,487 1$521~576 

Less: Allowances for depreciation and amortization (757,641) (704,002) 

845,846 817,574 
Const.ruction in progress (Note N) 35,583 66,719 

$ 881,429 $ 884,293 

Accumulated depreciation and amortization on property and improvements held fut leasing purposes 
is $27~500 and$25,l46atJune30;) 2014 and 2013, respectively. Netinterestcapitalizedwas $1,533 
and $4,419 for the yea.rs ended June 30, 2014 and 2013~ respectively. 

The Alliance entered into an Amendment and Mutual Release Agreement with a vendor whereby the 
Alliance waived its right to take any action with respect to prior contracts in exchange for 
professional services, primarily related to accelerate-d deployment of information systems. The 
Alliance recognized approximately $282 and $3,386 in 2014 and 2013, respectively, as additions to 
property1 plant and equipment with an offsetting gain related to the agreed .. upon value of such 
professional services. The Alliance anticipates recognition of additional amounts in future periods. 

12 



MOUNTAJN STATES HEALTH ALLIANCE 

Notes to c,msolidflted Financial Statements .. Continued 
(Dollars in Thousands) 

Years Ended June 30, 2014 and 2013 

NOTE F-~LONG-TERM DEBT A.i'ID OTHERFINANCING ARRANGEMENTS 

Long-term debt and capital lease obligations consist of the following at June 30: 

20 t 3 Ho~pital Revenue 11nd Refunding Revenue Bonds: 
$61,180 variable mtc tax~C!.X,ernpt term bondt due Auguht 203 l 
$48,600 variable nit~ tax.*e..'lemlpt. tetm hon~ due August 2032 
$13,350 vmiable mte mx..exempt rertn bond, due August 2038 
$89,620, variable rate tax-exempt term bonds, due August 2042 
$16,235. variable rate tu-exempt term bond., due August W43 
$99,680 variable raW: taxable term bond due AuguaX 2043 

2012 Hospiw Revenue Bonds: 
{net of unamortized prc:mium-of$1,756 and Sl,817 atJU:ne 30, 2014 und 
2013, respectively) 
$55,000flxed rate tax~exempt tenri bond. due Augum 2042 

20 l t Hospital Revenue and Refunding and Tulprovemont Bond.s: 
36~445 variable rate tox@le tenn bond, due July 20.26 
f76,930 variable rate tu.~exempt term bond.sf due Jufy 2033 
$21,335 variable rnte tM~~empt te:cm bond, due July 2033 (JMH) 

20 I 0 Hospital Revenue Refunding Bonds: 
(net of unamortized premium ors 1 ,523 and $1,004 at June30, 2014 and 
201.3. ~iveiy) 
$411600 fixed~ Utx:-.exemptseiial boods1 throµgh 2(1l0 
S4.355 fixed mw f.ax-exempt ~ bond, due July 2023 
$14,985 fixed rete ta.x~empt term bond, due July W25 
$4,250 fixed rate tax·cxcmpt temt bond. due July 2028 
$19;!30 fixed rate tax..acmpt term bond, due July 2030 
$9.SfOSO fixed Oite tu~emPt f:e'fm bonds, due July 2038 

2009 Hospital Revenue Bonds: 
(netofw:wnortiud discount Qf $2,267 and $2r3S9 at June30j 2014 and 
2013~ respectively) 

Sl6,9?0 fixed.rate mx~empttetm bondsl ~July2-0l9 
S21.730 fi:xed.r.ate tru<-exempttenn bonds, dueJuly 2.029 
$83;360 fixed rate tnx.wexempt'erm bonds, dueJuly203S 

2008 Hospital Revcnu" Bend: 
Refunded in 2014 

2007B Taxable HospiblJ Revenue Bonds: 
${91515 variable rate tauble t«rn bond due July20:J9 

2006 Hospital First Mortgage lt.evmue Bonds: 
(net of unmnortizod pn:mium of$l29 and $13S at Jim~ JO, 2014 and 
W13t r~peclfvcty) 
$4,680 fixed ;rat¢ tax~ serin1 bonds, through 20 l9 
$7.315 h.xl riUe tux:.exempt tezm bond, d~ July 2026 
$20,505 fix:ed mte tax-exempt term bond. due July 2031 
$13~,l 75 fixed mte m·cxempt: wm bond; due July 2036 

2001 Hospital First Mortgage Revenue Bond: 
$20AOO fixed me hlX-ex.empt term ho~ due Juty 2026 

RIM 11$ of Outrumdin& Bal1ma 
June J(), 20U 20U 2013 

1.13% $ 328,66S S 
0.91% 
l.f3% 
LlfPA .. J.21% 
0.05% 
0.12% 

0.12% 
t}.07% 
Ll0% 

4.00,,. to $.()(}% 

S.00% 
5.38% 
5.56% 
5.63% 
6.110% - 6.500.4 

7,25, .. 
7500/o 
1.15%" S.00% 

0.13% 

S.00% 
S.2S% 
5.50% 
5.SQfllo 

119,813 

19,515 

20,400 

94,697 

219.919 

183,549 

Jll.256 

65,210 

123,335 

2l,4UO 
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2000 Hospital First Mortgage Revenue and R.efmxling Bonds: 
$43,995 fn::ed rate tax..exettlpt term bonds, du€ July 2026 
$37~01 l fn:ed rate tax"6Xentpt Capitn!Appreciation Bonds, interest and 
principal due Jilly 2025 through 2030 

Capitalized lease obligations secured by equipment 
Various monthly principal W'ld interest paymen.ts through Decambc:r 2016 

Mnster in.~lrnent pa:yment agreements 
Vmowrpayments !lm:n.tslJ May 2014 

'Notes payalble secured by r~ !'stale 

Variou$ principttl and interest payments thtou8h 1017 

Promi~ry noie$ secured by iWttft of PFUC 
Varfousmonthlyprindpal and intcrei>t:payrnents ~gb.2019 

T~note 

Monthly prlncipat ·pa.yment'- of S60 pl~ vmabl~ rate interest beginning 
November 2012 through September 201 S; remaining principal due Octobr:r 2015 

Notes payable secured by equipment 
Vatfous:monthly principal tmd interest pa}ments l:hrough 2016 

Promissory note seoumi by~~ of KA.SC 

RllietUof 
JwteS0.20U 

8.50% 
6.63% 

Various 

Various 

'.t00%" 3.7$% 

t.14% 

Various 

Monthtyprit!cipal payments of$1 beginning April 2014 through Febtuary•2019; 3.25% 
remaining principal due March 2019 

Promissory note secuted by assets of ETASC 
Monthly principal payments of SS plus variable rate inim:st beginning Janwuy 2011 3"25% 
thmugh August 2015~ remaining prlni;ipiU due September 2015 

Otlblmuling Bahmce 
ZOU 201J 

S,542 

918 9S5 

16,883 

790 

431 

595 

1,1051687 l,124~765 
(30,,618) (34,417) 

s i.01s.069 z; 1
7
090.348 

Series 2013 Bonds: In July 2013, the Alliance issued $16~35 {Series 2013A) Hospital Revenue 
Bonds, $99,680 (Series 2013B) Hospital Refunding Revenue Bonds, $13,350 (Series 2013C) 
Hospital Refunding Revenue Bonds and $281310 (Series 2013G) Hospital Revenue Bonds through 
The Health and Educational Facilities Board of the City of Johnson City, Tennessee and $6Ll80 
(Series 2013D) Hospital Refunding Revenue Bondsll $9,880 (Serles 2013E) Hospital Refunding 
Revenue Bonds, $51,430 (Series 2013F) Hospital Refunding Revenue Bonds and $48,600 (Serles 
2013H) Hospital Refunding Revenue Bonds through the Industrial Development Authority of Smyth 
County, Virginia (collectively, the Series 2013 Bonds). 

The proceeds from the Series 2013A Bonds were used to finance or refinance capital improvements 
and equipment acquisitions and to pay issuance costs associated with these Bonds. The proceeds 
from the remaining Series 2013 Bonds were used to refinance outstanding indebtedness, specifically 
relate-0 to the Series 2007B-2,2008A, 2008B,20llC) 2011D,2012B and2012C Bonds, and to pay 
issuance costs associated with these Bonds. 
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Capital Appreciation Bonds: The Series 2000 Bonds include $14,680 of insured Capital 
Appreciation Bonds. Such bonds bear a 0% coupon. rate and have a yield of 6.625% annually. The 
Alliance recognizes interest expense and increases the a.mount of outstanding- debt each year based 
upon this yield, Total principal and interest due at maturity (2026 through 2030) is $93,675. 

Other: Outstanding tax-exempt bond obligations that were insured under municipal bond insurance 
policies were $81,006and $80,485 at June 30, 2014 and2013, respectively. Under terms ofthese 
policies, the insurer guarantees the Alliance's payment of principal and interest. At June 30, 2014 
and 2013, the Alliance held $212,360 and $417\t290, respectively; in variable rate demand bonds 
with Jetter of credit support and $240';530 and $39,055, respectively, in variable rate bonds held 
under direct purchase agreements. 

Early Redemption: Essentially all of the Alliance's bonds are subject to redemption prior to 
maturity,. including optional, mandatory sinking fund and extraordinary redemption, at various dates 
and prices as described in the respective Bond indentures and other documents. 

Derecognized Bonds: In· previous years, the advance refunded previously issued debt by placing 
required funds in irrevocable trusts in order to satisfy remaining scheduled principal and interest 
payments of the outstanding debt Management, upon advice of legal counsel, believes the amotmts 
deposited in such irrevocable trust accounts have contractually relieved the Alliance of any future 
obligations with respect to this debt~ and the debt is not a considered liability of the AHiance. 
Therefore1 such debt has been derecognized. Debt out.standing and not recognized hl the 
Consolid.at:ecl Balance Sheet at June 30, 2014 due to p~vious advance refundings. totaled 
approximately $196~290. 

The assets placed in the irrevocable trust accounts are also not recognized as assets of the Alliance. 
These assets consist primarily of various investments, as permitted by bond indentures and other 
documents, including United States Treasury obligations, an investment contract with MBIA 
Insurance Corporation (MB.IA) in the original amount of $54,300, as well as the Series 2000C and 
2000D Bonds which were purchased with the proceeds of the 2000A and 2000.B Bonds specifically 
for the purpose of utilizing the Series 2000C and 2000D Bonds in the irrevocable trust Therefore) 
certain of the assets held in the irrevocable trust. accounts have future income streams contingent 
upon payments by the Alliance. 

The Alliance instructed the trustee of the . advance refunded l 998C Bonds to liquidate certain 
investments held in the related irrevocable trust aecount and to redeem a portion of the 1998C Bonds 
with the proceeds from the liquidation~ TI1e fair value of the liquidated assets exceeded the payment 
necessary to redeem the 1998C Bonds and the excess was paidto the Alliance. As a resultofthis 
transaction, the Alliance recognized a net gain of $13,84 7 which is included in other revenue, gains 
and supp-0rt in the accompanying 2013 Consolidated Statements of Operations. 

25 



MOUNTAINSTATESHEALTHALLIANCE 

Notes to Consolidated Financial Stat.ements ... Continued 
(Dollars in Thousands) 

2014 and 2013 

Financing Arnmgements: The Alliance has granted a deed of trust on JCMC and SSH to secure the 
paymen.t of the outstanding bonds indebtedness. The bonds are also secured by the 
Aftianceis receivables, inventories and other assets as weU as certain funds held under the documents 
pursuant to which the bonds were issued. The JMH Series 2011 Hospital Refunding and 
Improvement Revenue Bonds are secured by pledged revenues of J1\ffi, as defined in the Credit 
Agreement. 

Certain:me:mbers of the Alliance and JMH are each members of separate Obligated Groups. The 
bond indentures, master trust indentures, letter of credit agreements and loan agreements related to 
the various bond issues and notes payable contain covenants with which the respective Obligated 
Groups must comply. TI1ese requirements include maintenance of certain financial and liquidity 
ratios, deposits to trustee funds, permitted indebtedness, use of facilities and disposals of property. 
These covenants also require that failure to meet certain debt service coverage tests will require the 
deposit ofa.U daily cash receipts of the Alliance into a trust fund. Management has represented the 
Alliance and JMFI are in compliance with all such covenants at June 30, 2014. 

During 2014, the Alliance recognized a $4,622 loss on early exti.nguishment of debt representing the 
write off of previously deferred and unamortized financing costs generally related to the refunded 
portion of the Series 2012Bonds~ Series 2008 Bonds, Series 2011 Bonds and Series 2007B Bonds. 

The scheduled maturities and mandatory sinking fund payments of the long-term debt and capital 
lease obligations (excluding interest), ~xclusive of net unamortized original issue discount and 
premium, at June 30, 2014 are as follows: 

Year Ending June 30, 

2015 $ 
2016 
2011 
2018 
2019 

Thereafter 

Net premium 
$ 

NOTE G-SELF ... JNSURANCE PROGRAMS 

30,618 
42,329 
27,647 
24,793 
25~924 

953,235 
l,104,546 

1,141 

The Alliance is substantially self .. filsured for professional and general liability claims and related 
expenses. The Alliance maintains a $25~000 umbrella liability policy that attaches over the self-
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insurance limits of $10,000 per claim and a $15,000 annual aggregate retention. The Alliance"s 
insurance program also provides professional liability coverage for certain affiliates and joint 
ventures. 

The Alliance is also substantially self-insured for workers1 compensation claims in the State of 
Tennessee and has established estimated liabilities for both reported and unreported claims. The 
Alliance maintains a stop-loss policy that attaches over the self-insurance limits of $1,000 per 
occuttence and $1,000 annual aggregate retention. In the State of Virginia, the AUfance is not self­
insured and maintains workers' compensation insurance through commercial carriers. 

At June JO, 2014, the Alliance is involved in litigation relating to medical malpractice and.workers; 
compensation and other claims arising in the ordinary course of business. There are also known 
incidents occurring through June 30, 20141.hat may result in the assertion of additional claims, and 
other unreported claims may be asserted arising from services provided in the past. Alliance 
management has estimated and accrued for the cost of these unreported claims based on historical 
data and actuarial projections. Tue estimated net present vafue of malpractice and workers' 
compensation claims; both reported and unreported, as ofJune 30, 2014 and 2013 was $13~220 and 
$12,348, respectively. The discount rate utilized was 5% at June 30, 2014 and 2013. 

Additionally~ the Alliance is self-insured.for employee health claims and recognizes expense each 
year based upon actual claims paid and an estimate of claims incurred but not yet paid, including a 
catastrophic claims reserve based on historical claims in excess of $75. Such amountis included in 
acoounts payable and accrued expenses in the Consolidated Balance Sheets. 

NOTE .H .... NET PATIENT SERVICE REVENUE 

Patient service revenuet net of contractual allowances and discounts is composed of the following for 
the years ended June 30: 

2014· 2013 

Third-party payers $ 937,150 $ 946,979 
Patients 113,276 98,266 
Patient service- revenue $ 1,050,426 $ 1,045,245 

Patient deductibles and copayments under thlrd ... party payment programs are included within the 
patient amounts above. 

The Alliance also provides services to uninsured and underinsured patients that do not qualify for 
financial assistance. Based on historical experience, a significant portion of uninsured and 
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underins:ured patients are unable or unwilling to pay the portion of their bill for whlch they are 
financially responsible and a significant provision for bad debts is recorded in the period the services 
are provided. 

The Alliance's allowance for doubtful accounts totaled $47)853 and $49;449 at June 30, 2014 and 
2013, respectively. The allowance for doubtful accounts remained consistent at 23% of patient 
accounts receivable, net of contractual allowances, at June 30, 2014 and 2013. Managemenf's 
estimate of the allowance for doubtful accounts is a significant estimate subject to change in the near 
term. The provision for bad debts associated with the Alliance's anciUary service lines are .not 
significant 

NOTE J ..... THIRD-PARTY REIMBURSE.MENT 

The AH iance renders services to patie:nts under contractual arrangements with Medicare, Medicaid, 
TennCare and various other comme;rcfal payers. The Medicare program pays fur inpatient services 
on a prospective basis. Payments are based upon diagnosis related group assignments, which are 
determined by the patienf s clinical diagnosis and medical procedures utilized. The Alliance also 
receives additional payments from Medicare based on the provision of services to a disproportionate 
share of Medicaid and other low income patients. Most Medicare outpatient services are reimbursed 
on a prospectively determined payrnent methodology. The Medicare program also reimburses 
certain other services on the basis of reasonable cost, subje-et to various prescribed limitations and 
reductions. 

Reimbursement under the State of Tennessee;s Medicaid waiver program (TennCare) for inpatient 
and outpatient services is administered by various managed care organizations (I\1COs) and is based 
on diagnosis related group assignments, a negotiated per diem or fee schedule basis. The Alliance 
also receives additional supplemental payrnents from the State of Tennessee through the essentiaJ 
acce,ss program. These payments recognized totaled $6,225 and $8,455 for the years ended June 30, 
2014 and 2013, respectively~ Additionally, during the year ending June 30, 2014, the Alliance 
recorded approximately $4,097 related to additional supplemental funding through the State of 
Tennessee as management believes such funding is appllcabie to 2014. Such payments are not 
guaranteed in future periods. 

The Virginia Medicaid program reimbursement for inpatient hospital services is based on a 
prospective payment system using both a per case and per diem methodology. Additional payments 
are made for the allowable costs of capital. Payments for outpatient services were based on 
Medicare cost reimbursement principles and settled through the filing of an annual Medicaid cost 
report through December 31, 2013. Beginning January 1) 2014, payments for outpatient services a.re 
transitioning from cost-based reimbursement principles to a prospective payment system. Full 
implementation of this transition is expected to take place over multiple years. 
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Amounts earned under the contractual agreements V\tith the Medicare and Medicaid programs are 
subject to review and final determination by fiscal interm~faries and other appropriate govemroental 
authorities or their agents~ Retroactive adjustments are accrued on an estimated basis in the period 
the related services are rendered and adjusted in future periods, as final settlements are determined. 
The impact of final settlements of cost reports or changes in estimates increased net patient service 
revenue by$6~201 and $1,328 in 2014 and 2013, respectively. 

Activitywith respect to audits and reviews of the governmental programs in the healthcare industry 
has increased and is expected to increase in the future. No addjtional specific reserves or allowances 
have been established with regard to these increased audits and reviews as management is not able to 
estimate such amounts, if any. Management believes that any adjustntents from these increased 
audits and reviews will not have a material adverse impw;t on the consolidated financial statem~nts. 
However, due to uncertainties. in the estimatio~ it is at least reasomililyp0ssible that management1 s 
estimate willchange in 2015, although the amount of any change cannot be estimated. 

During 2014, the Alliance recognized $5,600 of estimated receivables from amounts previously 
recouped as a result of audits and reviews of governmental programs. Such amounts are based on 
the Alliance's historical experience with appeals of such recoupments, However, such amounts are 
subject to significant changes in the near term. 

Participation in the Medicare program subjects the Alliance to significant rules and regulations; 
failure to adhere to such could result in fines, penalties or expulsion from the program. Management 
believes that adequate provision has been made for any adjustments, fines or penalties which may 
result ih)m final settlements or violations of other rules or regulations. Management has represented 
that the Alliance is in substantial compliance with these rules and regulations as of June 30, 2014. 

The Alliance has also entered into payment agreements with certain commercial insurance carriers, 
health maintenru.1.ce organizations~ preferred p..-ovider organizations and employer groups. Tue basis 
for payment under these agreements includes prospectively detennined rates per discharge, discounts 
from established charges and prospectively detennined daily rates. 

NOTE J-E1v1PLOYEE BENEFIT PLANS 

The Alliance sponsors a retirement plan (the Plan) which covers substantially all employees. The 
Plan is a defined contribution plan which consists principally of employer~funded contributions. 
During 2014 and 2013, the Allian.ce made contributions to the Plan under a stratified system, 
whereby the Alliance's contribution percentage is based on each employee's years of service. 
Employees of certain other subsidiaries a.re covered by other plans, although such plans are not 
significant. The total expense related to defined contribution plans for the years ended June 30, 2014 
and 2013 was $13,850 and $16,121, respectively~ 
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NCH maintains a defmed benefit pension plan and a post .. retirement employee benefit plan. The 
accrued unfunded pension liability was $2,086 and $3_,028~ and the accrued unfunded post-retirement 
liability was $5,857 and $4,943 at June 30, 2014 and 2013, respectively. 

The Alliance sponsors a secured executive benefit program (SEBP) for certain key executives. 
Contributions to the plan by the Alliance are based on an annual amount of funding necessary to 
produce a target benefit for the participants at their retirement datt\ although the Alliance does not 
guarantee any level of benefit will be achieved. The Alliance contributed $511 and $1 t020 to the 
pianduring 2014 and 2013, respectively. Other assets at June 30, 2014 and 2013 include $11,302 
and $105721, respectively, related to the AIJiance's portion of the benefits which are recoverable 
upon the death of the participant. In addition, the Alliance sponsors a Section 457(t) plan for certain 
keyexeootives. The Alliance contributed $231 and $294 to the Section457(f) plan during 2014 and 
2013, respectively. 

NOTE K-CONCENTRA TION OF RISK 

The Alliance has locations primarily in upper East Tennessee and Southwest Virginia which is 
considered a geographic concentration. The Alliance grants credit without collateral to its patientts, 
most of 'whom are local residents and are insured under third"".party payer agreements. Net patient 
service revenue from Washington County, Tennessee operations were approximately 52% and 51 % 
of total net patient service revenue in 2014 and 2013, respectively. 

The mix of receivables from patients and third-party payers based on charges at established rates is 
as follows as ofJune 30. The patient responsibility related to charges for which the third~party has 
not yet paid is included within the third-party payer categories. 

Medicare 
Tenncareltvfedicaid 
Commercial 
Other third ... party payers 
Patients 

2014 

39% 
18% 
28% 

8% 
7% 

100% 

2013 

38% 
16% 
28% 
9% 
9% 

100% 

Approximately 88% of the consolidated total revenue) gains and support were related to the 
provision of healthcare services during 2014 and 2013. Admitting physicians are primarily 
practitioners in the regional area. 
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Employees at two of the Alliance's Virginia hospitals are covered under a collective bargaining 
agreement ·which extends through February 2017. 

The Hospital maintains bank accounts at various fmancial institutions covered by the Federal 
Deposit Insurance Corporation (FDIC). At times throughout the year1 the Alliance may maintain 
bank account balances in excess of the FDIC insured limit. ·Management believes the credit risk 
associated with these deposits is not significant. 

TheAllianceroutinely invests in investment vehicles as listed in Note C. The Alliance's investment 
portfolio is managed by outside investment management companies. Investments in corporate and 
foreign bonds~ municipal obligations!! money market funds, equities and other vehicles that are held 
by safekeeping agents are rmt insured or guaranteed by the U.S. government. 

NOTE L--INCOME TAXES 

BRJ\.fM. and its subsidiaries file a consolidated federal tax return and separate state tax retums. As of 
June 30) 2014 and 2013, BRMM and its subsidiaries had net operating loss carryforwards for 
consolidated federal purposes of $27,08.S and $33,620, respectively, related to operating loss 
carryfonvards, which e>..1Jire through 2031. At June 30~ 2014 and 2013 t :BRMM had state net 
operating loss carryforwards of$74~ 191 and $71,637, respectively, which expire through 2028. The 
net operating loss carryforwards may be offset against future taxable income to the extent permitted 
by the Internal Revenue Code and Tennessee Code Annotated. 

AtJune 30, 2014 and2013, SWCH had federal and state net operating loss carryforwards of$5,884 
and $5J906, respectively, which expire through 2033. The net operating loss carryforwards may be 
off-set against future taxable income to the extent permitted by the Internal Revenue Code and tax 
codes of the Commonwealth of Virginia. 

Net deferred tax assets related tQ these carryforwards and other deferred tax. assets have been 
substantially offset through valuation allowances equal to these amounts~ Income taxes pa.id relate 
primarily to state taxes for certain subsidiaries and federal alternative minimum tax. 

NOIB M-.. RELA1BD PARTY TRANSACTIONS 

The Alliance enters into transactions with entities affiliated with certain .members ofthe Board of 
Directors including transactions to construct Alliance facilities and provide professional services to 
the Alliance. Board members refrain from discussion and abstain from voting on transactions with 
entities with which they are related. 

jj 



MOUNTAIN ST ATES HEALTH ALLIANCE 

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements .. Continued 
(Dollars in Thousands) 

Years Ended June 2014 and 2013 

NOTEN-OTHERCO~NTSANDCONTINGENCIBS 

Construction in Progress: Construction in progress at June 30, 2014 represents costs incurred 
related to various hospital and medical office building facility renovations and additions and 
infonnation technology infrastructure. The Alliance has outstanding contracts and other 
commitments related to the completion of these projects, and the cost to complete these projects is 
estimated to be approximately $48,844 at June 30, 2014. The Alliance does not expect any 
significant costs to be incurred for infrastructure improvements to assets held for resale. 

P'1ysician Contracts: BRMJvf employs physicians to provide services to BRMM's physician 
practices through employment agreements \Vhich provide annual compensation, plus incentives 
based upon specified productivity and performance (quality measures). These contracts have various 
terms. 

In additioni the Alliance bas entered into contractual relationships with non-employed physicians to 
provide services in Upper East Tennessee and Southwest Virginia. These contracts guarantee certain 
base pa.ym.ents and allowable expenses and have terms of varying lengths. Amounts drawn and 
outstanding under each agreement are treated as a loan bearing interest at various rates and are 
su~ject to repayment over a specified period. The physician notes may also be amortized by virtue of 
the physician's continued practice in the specified community during the repayment period. A net 
receivable of $853 and $884 related to these agreements is included in the accompanying 
Consolidated Balance Sheets at June 30, 2014 and 2013, respectively. 

Employee Scholarships: TI1e Alliance offers scholarships to certain individuals which require that 
the recipients return to the Alliance to work for a specified period of time after they complete their 
degree. Amounts due are then forgiven over a specific period of time as provided in the individual 
contracts. If the recipient does not return and work the required period of time; the funds disbursed 
on their be.half become due immediately and interest is charged until the funds are repaid. Other 
receivables at June 30t 2014 and 2013 include $8,685 and $9,021, respectively, related to students in 
school, graduates working at the Alliance and amounts due from others who are no longer in the 
scholarship program, net of an estimated allowance. 

Operating Leases and Maintenance Contracts: Total lease expeiise fortheyears ended June30~ 2014 
and 2013 was $7 ,90 l and $8, 739, respectively. Future minimum lease payments for eac,h of the next 
five years and in the aggregate for the AlHance's noncanceUable operating leases with remaining 
Je.ase terms in excess of one year are as follows: 
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Year Ending June 30, 

2015 
2016 
2017 
2018 
2019 

Thereafter 

$ 6,996 
6,389 
4,084 

3>292 
3,025 

12,500 

36,286 

Other: The Alliance is a party to various tra:nsactions and agreements in the normal course of 
business, which include purchase and re-~purchase agreements~ put arrangements and other 
commitments, which may bind the Alliance to undertake additional transactions or activities in the 
future. 

Healthcare Industry: Recently, government activity has increased with respect to investigations and 
allegations concerning possible violations of :fraud and abuse statutes and regulations by healthcare 
providers. Violations of these laws and regulations could result in expu]sion from government 
healthcare programs together with the imposition of significant fines and penalties" as well as 
significant repayments for patient services previously billed. 

NOTE 0-FAIR V.A.LUE MEASUREMENT 

The fair value of financial instruments has been estimated by the Alliance using available market 
information as of June 3 0, 2014 and 2013, and valuation methodologies considered appropriate. The 
estimates presented are not necessarily indicative of amounts the Alliance could realize in a current 
market exchange. The carrying value of substantially all financial instruments approximates fair 
value due to the nature or tenn of the instruments, except as described below. 

Held-to--Maturity Securities: The estimated fair value of the Alliance11s held-to-maturity securities at 
June 30> 2014 and 2013, is approximately $38,508 and $36,666, respectively, and would be 
classified in level 2 of the fair value hierarchy (described below). The fair value is based on prices 
provided by the Alliance's investment managers and its custodian bank, which use a variety of 
pricing sources to determine market valuations. 

Investment in Joint Ventures: It is not practical to estimate the fair market value of the investments 
in joint ventures. 
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Estimated Professional Liability Self-insurance and Other Long-Term Liabilities: Estimates of 
reported and unreported professional liability claims, pension and post.retirement liabilities are 
discounted to approximate theit estimated fair value. It is not prnctical to estimate the fair market 
value ofother long .. tenn liabilities~ 

Long-Term Debt: The estimated fair value ofthe Alliance~s long-term debt at June 30, 2014 and 
2013,. is approximately$1!172,357 and$1,168)846,respectively~ and would be classified inlevel 2 
in the fair value hierarchy, The fair value of long ... term debt is estimated based upon quotes obtained 
from brokers for bonds and discounted future cash flows using current market .rates for other debt 
For Jong-tenn debt with variable interest rates, the carrying value approximates fair value~ 

FASB ASC 820 establishes a three-level valuation hierarchy for disclosure of fair value 
measurements. The valuation hierarchy is based upon the transparency of inputs to the valuation of 
an asset or liability as of the measurement date. The three levels are defined as follows: 

• Level 1 .. Inputs based on quoted market prices for identical assets or liabilities in active 
markets at the measurement date. 

• Level 2 .. Observable inputs other than quoted prices included in Level l, such as quoted 
prices for similar assets and liabilities in active markets; quoted prices for identical or similar 
assets and liabilities in markets that are not active; or other inputs that are observable or can 
be corroborated by observable market data~ The Alliance's Level 2 investments are valued 
primarily using the market valuation approach. 

• Level 3 - Unobservable inputs that are supported by little or no market activity and are 
significant to the fair value of the assets or liabilities. Level 3 includes values determined 
using pricing models, discounted cash flow methodologies, or similar techniques reflecting 
the Alliance's own assumptions. 

In instances where the detennination of the fair value hierarchy measurement is based on inputs from 
different levels of the fair value hierarchy, the level in the fair value hlemrehywithin which the entire 
fai.r value measurement falls is based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value 
measurement in its entirety. The Alliancet s assessment of the significance ofa particular inputt.o the 
fair value measurement in its entirety requires judgment and considers factors specific to the asset or 
liability. 

The following table sets forth, by level within the fair value hierarchy, the fmancial instruments 
measured at fair value as of June 30, 2.014 and 2013: 
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Total 

.Tune 30, 2014 
Cash, cash equivalents and money market funds $ 95,459 $ 
U.S. Government securities 35,569 
U.S. Agency securities 54,905 
Corporate and foreign bonds 99,1-03 
Municipal obligations 21,409 
Pref erred and asset backed securities 3,497 
U.S. equity securities 1,868 
Mutual funds 253,301 
Alternative investments 69,474 

Total assets $ 634,585 $ 

Derivative agreements $ (10,603} $ 

June 30, 2013 
Cash, cash equivalents and money matket funds $ 66,075 $ 
U,S, Government securities 25,905 
U.S. Agency securities 45,997 
Corporate and foreign bonds 179,880 
Municipal obligations 17i749 
Preferred and asset backed securities 3,491 
U.S. equity securities 10~944 

Mutual funds I8M28 
Alternative investments 37,353 

Total assets $ 573.422 $ 

Derivative agreements $ (S,185} $ 

Level 1 Uve/2 Level3 

95,459 $ - $ 
35,569 
54,905 

99,103 
21,409 

3,497 
1,868 

177,067 76,234 
54,761 14,713 

364,868 $ 255,004 $ 14,713 

- $ - s ~10,603~ 

66,075 $ - $ 
25,905 
45,997 

179,880 
17,749 
3.491 

10,944 
125,479 60,548 

37,353 
274,400 $ 299,021 $ 

M $ ~ $ ~8,18Sl 

Fair values for the Alliance's fixed maturity securities are based on prices provided by the Alliance's 
investment managers and its custodian bank, which use a variety of pricing sources to determine 
market valuations. Fair values of equity securities have been detennined by the Alliance from market 
quotations. 

Alternative Investments: The Alliance generally uses net asset value per unit as provided by external 
investment managers without further adjustment as the practical expedient estimate of the fair value 
of its alternative investment in a real estate fund, consistent with the provisions of FASB ASC 820, 
Fair Value Measurement. Accordingly, such values may differ from values that would have been 
used had an active market for the investments existed. The real estate fund invests primarily in U.S. 
commercial real estate. The Alliance may request redemption of all or a portion of its interests as of 
the end of a calendar quarter by delivering written notice to the fund managers at least 60 days prior 
to the end of the quarter. Such redemptions are subject to the capital requirements of the fund 
manager. 
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The Alliance)s investment in Premier's Class B units do .not have a readily determinable fair value 
and have been reported at estimated fair market value. The significant unobservable inputs primarily 
relate to management's estimate of the discount forlack of marketability oft 2%. Accordingly, such 
value may differ from values that would have been used had an active market for the investment 
existed and as such it has been classified in Level 3 of the fair value hierarchy. 

Derivati,,e Agreements: The valuation of the Alliance's derivative agreements is determined using 
market valuation tec.hniques, including discounted cash flow analysis on the expected cash flows of 
each agreement. This analysis reflects the contractual terms of the agreement, including the period to 
maturity, and uses certain observable market-based inputs. The fair values ofinterest rate agreements 
are deter.mined by netting the discounted future fixed cash payments (or receipts) and the discounted 
expected variable cash receipts (or payments). The variable cash receipts (or payments) ate based on 
the expe;ctation of future interest rates and the underlying notional amount The Alliance also 
incorporates credit valuation adjustments (CV As) to appropriately reflect both its oVvn 
nonperfotmance or credit risk and the respective counterparty1 s nonperformance or credit risk in the 
fair value measurements. The CVA on the Alliance's interest rate swap agreements at June 30, 2014 
and 2013 resulted in a decrease in the fair value of the related liability of $4~584 and $3,080, 
respective1y~ 

A certain portion of the inputs used to value its interest rate swap agreements, including the fonvard 
interest rate curves and market perceptions of the Alliance~s credit risk used in the CV As, are 
u11observable inputs available to a market participant. As a result, the Alliance has detennined that 
the interest rate swap valuations are classified in Level 3 of the fair value hierarchy. 

The following tables provide a summary of changes in the fair value of the Alliance's Level 3 
financial assets and liabilities during the fiscal years ended June 30, 2014 and 2013; 

Jnty 1,2012 
Tota! unrealized/realized gafus in the Performance Indicator~ net 
Net investment income 
Settlements 

Jane 30, l013 

Total unrealized/realized gains in the Performance Indicator, net 
Net investment income 
Additions 

Jnne 30, 2014 

$ 

$ 

Alternafi.i•e 
Investment 

Derl:vatives~ 

Net 

- $ 

14,713 
14,713 $ 

(19.,381) 
457 
399 

10,340 

(8~185) 

(2,761) 
343 

(10.603) 
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NOTE P--OPERA TING EXPENSES BY FUNCTIONAL CLASSIFICATION 

The Alliance does not present. expense information by functional classification because its :resources 
and activities are primarily related to providing healthcare services. Further, since the Alliance 
receives substantially all of its resources from providing healthcare services in a manner similar to 
business enterprises_, other indicators contained in these consolidated financial statements are 
considered important in evaluating how well management has discharged their stewardship 
responsibilities. 

NOIB Q-SUBSEQUENTEVENTS 

The Alliance signed an agreementto form a joint venture with HealthSouth Corporation to own and 
operate James H. & Cecile C. Quillen Rehabilitation Hospital (Quillen). At closing, HealthSouth 
will obtain a 50.1 % ownership of the free .. standing 60-bed ill;patient rehabilitation hospital. Quillen 
will be managed by HealthSouth Corporation under a long-tenn management contract The 
formation of the joint venture is subject to customary closing conditions including regulatory 
approvals. Management anticipates closing the joint venture transaction by the end of the calendar 
year 2014. 
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ASSETS 

CURRENT ASSETS 

Smyth County 
Community 

Hospital and 
Subsidiary 

Cash and cash equivalents $ 2,46.5 
Patient accounts receivablej less estimated allowances 

for uncollectible accounts 
Other receivables, net 
Inventories and prepaid expenses 
Estimated amounts due from third-party payers, net 
Receivables from affiliates, net 

TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS 

JNVESTMENTS, less amounts required 
to meet current obligations 

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT, net 

OTHER ASSETS 
Net deferred financing, acquisition costs and 

other charges 
Other assets 

TOTAL OTHER ASSETS 

7,099 
l,235 
1,035 

560 

12,394 

2t,335 

71~083 

148 
741 

889 

$ 105,701 

Norton 
Community 

Hospital and 
Subsidiaries 

$ 5,581 

10,583 
1,706 
1,882 

113 
319 

20,184 

30,089 

45,438 

218 

218 

$ 95,929 
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June 

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS 

CURRENT LIABILITIES 
Accrued interest payable 
Current portion of long .. term debt and capital lease 

obligations 
Accounts payable and accrued expenses 
Accrued salaries, compensated absences and amounts 

withheld 
Estimated amounts due to thfrd .. party payers, net 

TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES 

OTHER LIABILITIES 
Long-term debt and capital lease obligations, less 

current portion 
Estimated professional liability self-insurance. 
Other long-term liabilities 

NET ASSETS 
Unrestricted net assets 
Temporarily restricted net assets 

TOTAL LIABILITIES 

Smyth County 
Community 

Ho$pitfll and 
Subsidiary 

16 

11102 
2!125 

2,171 
35 

5,449 

15~966 
395 
943 

22,753 

Norton 
Comm unit)• 
Hospital and 
Subsidilll'ies 

$ 15 

147 
4,007 

4,503 

8,672 

21,096 
567 

7,646 

37,981 

82,938 57j786 

10 162 

TOTAL NET ASSETS 82,948 57,948 
~~~--'---~~~~-...:..~-

$ 10 S, 701 $ 95,929 
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UNRESTRICTED NET ASSETS: 
Revenue,, gains and support: 

Patient service revenue,, net of contractual allowances 

Smyth County 
Community 

Hospital and 
Subsidiary 

Norton 
Community 

Hospital, and 
Subsidiaries 

and discounts 
Provision for bad debts 

45A06 s 
(4,138) 

77,273 
(9,611) 

Net patient service revenue 
Net investment gain 
Other revenue; gains and. support 

TOTAL REVENUE, GAINS AND SUPPORT 

Expenses and losses: 
Salaries and wages 
Physician salaries and wages 
Contract labor 
Employee benefits 
Fees 
Supplies 
Utilities 
Other 
Loss on early exti.nguishment of debt 
Depreciation 
Amortization 
Interest and taxes 

TOTAL EXPENSES AND LOSSES 

EXCESS (DEFICI1) OF REVENUE, GAINS AND 
SUPPORT OVER EXPENSES AND LOSSES 

Pension and postretirement liability adjustments 

INCREASE (DECREASE) IN 
UNRESTRJCTED NET ASSETS 

41,268 

2~148 

2.,975 
46,391 

17,620 
261 
112 

3,611 
9j284 
5,300 

976 
4,740 

171 
4j276 

27 
162 

46,546 

(155) 

(155) 

67,662 
l,904 
5)629 

75,195 

23,622 
5_,906 

533 
8,554 
9,059 
8,319 

t301 
9~256 

321 
4;420 

8 
349 

71,648 

3,547 

388 

3,935 
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MOUNTAIN STATES HEALTH ALLIANCE 

Consolidated Statements of Operations and Clu:mges in Net Assets .. Ctmtinued 
(Smyth County Community Hospital a1id Subsidiary and Norton 
Community Hospital and Subsidiaries) 

(Dollars in Thousands) 

EndedJune 2014 

Smyth County 
Community 

Hospital and 
Subsidiary 

Norton 
Community 

Hospltal and 
Subsidiatir?$ 

91 
(26) 

71 
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MOUNTAIN STATES HEALTHALLIANCE 

Consolidating Balance Sheet 
(Obligated Group and Other Entities) 
(D(Jllars in. Tltousunds) 

J'U1J:~30, 2fJJ4 

ASSETS 

CUR.Rfil..'T ASSETS 
Cash and cash equivalents 
Current portion of .investments 
Patient accounts receivable, less estimated 

allowance for uncollectible accounts 
Other receivables. net 
In.ventories trod prepaid expenses 

TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS 

INVESTMENTS. Jess amounts required 
to meet current obligations 

EQUITY JN AFFILlA TES 

PROPE'RTY~ PLANT AfU) EQUIPMENT. net 

OTHER ASSETS 
Goodwill 

Net deferred firumcing. acquisition c.osts 
and other charges 

Other assets 

TOTAL OTHER ASSETS 

See note to st1pplemental schedules, 

$ 

$ 

ObligaJed 
GrtJNP .. 

27i419 
25,029 

134.586 
29.894 
22.856 

239i784 

449,295 

336t532 

639~370 

152.283 

24$506 
39~995 

216~784 

1,881,765 

Ell111iru1t101ts Total 

$ 3t766 $ - $ 59,185 
25,029 

26,732 161,318 
15.6-08 45,502 
7.982 30,838 

82.088 :321~872 

199,180 648,475 

(336)532} 

242.059 881,429 

41330 156,613 

1.335 25)841 
8,355 48,350 

14,02{) 230,804 

s 537,347 $ (336,532) $ 2,-082.580 
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MOUNTAIN ST ATES HEAL TH ALLIANCE 

Consolidming Balance Shed - Continued 
(Obligated Group and Other Entities) 
(Dollars in Thousands) 

June 

Obligated Other 
Group Entities Elhmnations Total 

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS 

CURREl\11' LIABILITIES 
Accrued interest payable $ 18,613 $ 35 $ . .$ 18t648 
Current portion oflong~term debt and capital 

lease obligations 27~311 3~307 30~618 
Accounts payable and accrued expenses 71.739 15;387 87.126 
Accrued s~lruies, compensated absences 

and m:nmmts withheld 54,710 17,471 72~181 
Payables to (receivables from) affiliates, net 13}760 (13,760) 
Estimated amounts due to third-party payers. 
net 10;068 395 10.463 

TOT AL CURRENT LIABILITIES l96i20l 22,835 219~036 

OTiiER LIABrr..ITIES 
Long·term debt and capital lease obligations. 

less current portion 1.037.407 37,662 l,o7S,069 
Estimated fait value of derivatives. net 10,666 (63) 10.603 
Estimated professional liability self.insurance 7.747 1~210 8,951 
Other loag~term liabilities 33A95 2,479 35,974 

TOTAL LIABILITIES 1.285,516 64,123 1.349,639 

NET ASSETS 

Unrestricted net assets 
Mountain States Health Alliance 541,979 329,803 (329,803) 541~979 
Noncontrolling interests in subsidiaries 41,855 13IA02 5,290 178,547 

TOTAL UNRESTRICTED NET ASSETS 583f834 461,2(}5 (324,513) 720~526 

Ti;:mpomi,Jy restricted net assets 
Mountain States Health Alliance 12:204 11,887 (11,887) 12)04 
Noncontrolling inter¢$($ in subsidiaries 84 5 (S} 84 

TOTAL TEMPORAlffi.N 
RESTRICTED NETASSETS 121288 11,892 (i 1,892} 12~288 

Permarumtiy restricted net asse1$ 127 127 !127) 127 

TOTAL NET ASSETS 596,249 473,224 (336,5322 732.941 
s 1,8811765 $ 537.347 $ ~336.~322 $ 2,082,58() 

See note to supplemental schedules, 43 



MOUNTAIN STATES HEALTH ALLIANCE 

Consolidating Statement of Operations 
(Obligated Group and Other Entities) 
(Dollars, in Thousands) 

Year Ended June 301 2014 

Revenue, gitins and support: 
Patient service revenue, net of contractual 

alloWMC-0$ and discounts 
Provision. for bad debts 

Net patient service revenue 
Premium revenue 
Net investment gain 
Net derivative gain 
Other n::venue~ gains and support 
Equity in net ~rt of affillaics 

TOTAL REVENUE, GAINS AND SUPPORT 
Expenses~ 

Salarli;s and ¥.<ages 
Physician salaries and wages 
Contract labor 
Employee benefits 
Fees 
Supp Ji® 
Utiliti~ 
Medical Costs 
Other 
Loss on early extinguishrnent of debt 
Depreciation 
AmortitJ:itfon 
Intetcstand tnxes 

Obllgated 
Gump 

Other 
Entitle:; 

(1,160) $ 1,0S0,4l6 

(1,160) 

(32) 

(101,418) 
{12,692) 

(121,302) 

(Si602) 
(54,931) 

(243) 
{5,S78) 

(34,817) 
(159) 

(4) 

(6.738) 

(1221642) 

927~784 
10,683 
50,703 
3.219 

62A57 

340,589 
77,636 
4,282 

69,173 
115,606 
163,699 
17~052 
10.292 
79~980 
4,622 

69.431 
1,742 

(22) 44~392 

TOTAL EXPENSES ___ .........._ ____ -"-----'{_lo_a..._,0_94_.,)_,..,. __ 9_9__.8:._50_2_ 
EXCESSOFREVENUEtOAlNSAND 

SUPPORT OVER EXPENSES AND LOSSES .,$ __ _.llllllQll0_....===="""'"""===-•{•13...,..2_0=8),.........~ ;;::::n-S.-=6'::;:.344.....,. 

See note to supplemental schedules .. 44 



MOUNTAIN STATES HEALTH ALLIA.~CE 

Consolidating Statement of Changes in Net Assets 
(Obligated Group and Other Entities) 
(Dollars in Thous(Utds) 

Year Ended June 30, 20U 

M11»r#fflf!J&ail!.f NnM~fl 
HuiJJI A.!iJu.u fnrm::;u 

u1'.'RP$f!UCTEO t..m ASSETS; 
F"'°""' or Revonue, Gains "''!<I S<ipport O>'tt 

F..xpens11elllld~ 4ll,OS7 l,U!I 
f'enaioo ""d oUw def:ine<l b<=fo plm !idj~ 194 194 

N~ M..,l< "''"""""' from res1ri<>tiOM '""° for 11>e 
pun:lwil of {W>lpetty, pllllli and ~uipment 3,m 

N(lll{.Qntm!li~g inicrut In ax:<jlllrt>d llUMldiiuy 
Dim'buli<>ns to lll>t~nirotllnt; lntcnooi.. 
Net use{ b:lmsfm 

INCRP.ASE IN UNRF..STIUCTED 
h''f!'l' ASSETS ~l,564 1,9l> 

U::MPORARIL Y RES1'1UC'!t'n NET ASSITT'S: 
lWmllllld gmm an<! eontrilmtl<lfla 4.~3 ~2-
Nioiesma re"""""'1 fumi ~kw (5,2f.4) (22} 

lNCJIBASE {DECREASE) IN TEMP0RARIL "{ 
RBS'l'rtl<-11'.0 Ntr· ASSt~ ($11) 30 

INCRE.A!iE JN iOTAL NEr ASSETS so.m !,963 

NET AS.'S.E!S, BF.GJNNINC OF VF.AR 503,317 39,976 

NET Aa"Sl!l'S, film OFYBAR S54prnl 4lS39 

See note to supplemental schedules. 

49,196 
m1 

l,m 

Sl,497 

4,'145 
(S,21!6) 

{541} 

52,956 

.543.293 

S%,249 

/i!1>ll,.itr&Skti!!'f N<Jll~"lf 
fluibh A11i«llet1 111tt!N.'N 

14,412. $ ~.344 s 
(H,I) (9) 

3,313 
9H 

(461) 
Sl!2 1,&69 

18,597 7,457 

4,04'1 42 
(4.~l} 08) 

(644} 

17,953 7,461 

323,S64 123,946 

341,&17 $ Hl.407 

19.7$6 s 
(19) 

l,313 
91..t 

(4iil) 
2,m 

26,054. 

4,0S9 
(4,729) 

(640} 

lS,414 

447,g10 

413,Z!.4 

(13.201) $ 
l9 

(3,m) 

<f,5Sl) 

(l!l,OS3) 

(4,0S3) 
4,6\!4 

641 

(U,4ll} 

(m,120} 

(336 .. 532! s 

3,m 
9lt 

(461) 

4,181 
(S,321) 

(54ilj 

59,958 

672,9U 
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MOUNTAIN STA TES HEALTH ALLIANCE 

Note to Supplemental Sched1des 

Year Ended June 30, 2014 

NOTE A--OBLIGATED GROUP ME:rvIBERS 

As described in Note F to the consolidated financial statements, theAHiance has granted a deed of 
trust on JCMC and SSH to secure the payment of the outstanding bonds. The bonds are also secured 
by the Alliance's receivables, inventories and other assets as well as certain funds held under the 
documents pursuant to which the bonds were issued. The members pledged pursuant to the 
Amended and Restated Master Trust Indenture between Mountain States Health Alliance and the 
Bank of New York Mellon Trust Company, NA as Master Trustee include Johnson City Medical 
Center Hospital~ Indian Path Medical Center, Franklin Woods Community Hospital, Sycamore 
Shoals Hospital, Johnson County Community Hospital~ Russell County Medical Center1 Unicoi 
County Memorial Hospital, Norton Community Hospital (hospital only), Smyth County Community 
Hospital (hospital only) and Blue Ridge Medical Management Corporation {parent company only), 
collectively defined as the Obligated Group (Obligated Group). 

The supplemental consolidating schedules include the accounts of the members of the Obligated 
Group after elimination. of all significant intergroup accounts and transactions. Certain other 
subsidiaries of the Alliance are not pledged to secure the payment of the outstanding bonds as they 
are not part of the Obligated Group. These affiliates have been accounted for within the Obligated 
Group based upon the Alliance's original and subsequent investments, as adjusted fortbe Alliance's 
pro rata share of income or losses and any distributions, and are included as a part of equity in 
affiliates in the supplemental consolidating balance sheet. 
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